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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 13 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON: Good morning Mr Seleka,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good.   Good morning Mr Zwane.  

MR ZWANE:   Cha i rperson good morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.   Thank you for  avai l ing  

yoursel f  and thank you to your  legal  representat i ve  for  a l l  

the cooperat ion.   Thank you.   Thank you.   Are you ready Mr 

Seleka? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight  p lease admin ister  the  oath or  

a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MR ZWANE:   Mosebenzi  Joseph Zwane.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  mak ing the  

prescr ibed aff i rmat ion? 

MR ZWANE:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you aff i rm that  the ev idence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ru th;  the  whole  t ru th and noth ing but  the  t ru th;  i f  20 

so p lease ra ise our  r ight  hand and say,  I  t ru ly  aff i rm.  

MR ZWANE:   I  t ru ly  aff i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   We may proceed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai rperson Eskom Bundle 

19 Mr Zwane’s af f idavi ts  are found in  Exhib i t  U41 on page 

351.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Zwane has submi t ted  another  

aff idavi t  advis ing the.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are we – I  see h is  sworn statement  at  201 

not  51 – d id you say 501? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   351 is  the f i rs t  a ff idavi t .   I t  is  by a way 

of  re ference Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   351 is  the f i rs t  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is  the f i rs t  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me see.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  i s  i t  –  sor ry i t  is  the  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay wel l… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  the second one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  cannot  be the f i rs t  –  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  i s  the second one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The f i rs t  one must  be the one at  201.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes cor rect  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is  the second one and Mr Zwane has 

then submi t ted another  aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ar is ing f rom the OUTA repor t  and 
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quest ions in  re la t ion thereto.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  on page 353.219.    

CHAIRPERSON:   353.?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   219.    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess we must  s ta r t  by admi t t ing  that  is  

i t  not?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Go ahead.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Zwane are you on the same page? 10 

MR ZWANE:   I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   353.219.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is  between the t raml ines i t  is  an  

aff idavi t  Mosebenzi  Joseph Zwane in  re respond to  

statement  by Benjamin Ceci l  Clark Theron dated 24 Ju ly  

2017.   You see that .  

MR ZWANE:   I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The aff idavi t  runs up to  page 353.234.  -  

.234.  20 

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see that .   The – there is  – do you 

conf i rm the s ignature above deponent  that  i s  your  

s ignature? 

MR ZWANE:   Yes I  do.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   The aff idavi t  is  dated or  deposed to on  

10 May 2021 you conf i rm the contents of  the aff idavi t?  

MR ZWANE:   Yes I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  they are t rue and correct .  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Chai rperson I  beg leave to  

have th is  aff idavi t  dated 10 May 2021 admi t ted as  Exhib i t  

U41.3 together  wi th  the annexures thereto and those 

annexures Chai r  they star t  f rom page 353.235.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   The af f idavi t  o f  Mr Mosebenzi  10 

Joseph Zwane that  s tar ts  at  page 353.219 wi l l  together  wi th  

h is  annexures be admi t ted and wi l l  be marked as Exhib i t  

U41.3.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Thank you.   Just  to  

recap Mr  Zwane’s  ev idence re lates  to  a number  of  aspects  

some of  which  we addressed in  h is  last  appearance and we 

hope to f in ish off  today Mr Zwane.   Just  in  b road l ight  o r  

just  to  touch on the h igh l ights we deal t  wi th  the issues 

regard ing your  t r ips to  Ind ia which a l legedly were 

sponsored by the Gupta ’s .   We want  to  f in ish off  on that  and 20 

then deal  wi th  i ssues re lat ing to  Mr Zwane ’s  estab l ish  – or  

the star t  as he ca l led i t  h is  own bra inchi ld  which  is  the  

Est ina Pro ject  in  the Free State.  We wi l l  deal  wi th  that  Mr  

Zwane.   Deal  wi th  the issues re la t ing to  Est ina the ev idence 

of  cer ta in  wi tnesses that  have a l ready come before the  
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commission regard ing what  happened in  regard  to  the  

pro ject .   Look at  whether  o r  not  the Gupta ’s  were involved 

in  the pro ject .   We wi l l  a lso deal  wi th  issues re la t ing to  your  

appointment  as a  MP and u l t imate ly  your  appointment  as 

the Min is ter  o f  DMR – Department  of  Minera l  Resources.   

How you were appointed and what  you d id as a  resul t  

thereof .   And a lso deal  wi th  the issue regard ing the 

Waterk loof  landing of  the Gupta a i rp lane in  2013 which f rom 

there is  the  wedd ing at  Sun Ci ty.   And we wi l l  f ina l i se  wi th  

the c losure of  bank accounts.   Your chai rperson should th is  10 

in  the In ter  Min is ter ia l  Commit tee and what  ro le  you p layed 

in  regard thereto.   So that  is  –  that  is  in  a nutshel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine but  I  wonder whether  i t  

would not  be convenient  to  f ina l ise everyth ing connected 

wi th  emai ls .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  know the emai ls  wi l l  go a l l  over  the 

p lace.   They wi l l  –  they wi l l  touch upon a l l  the i tems I  th ink  

you ment ioned but  i t  might  be convenient  to  just  deal  wi th  

that  –  get  i t  out  o f  the way even i f  a f ter  that  you can then 20 

focus on speci f ic  top ics.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  that  is  not  go ing to  d is tu rb your  p lan.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes le t  us – the emai ls  Chai rperson has 

in  mind those ones we were deal ing  wi th .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja last  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the previous occasion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   So that  is  f ine.   That  is  –  Mr  

Zwane le t  us then p ick i t  up f rom the evidence or  the 

aff idavi t  ra ther  of  Mr Theron and there we were  deal ing  wi th  

the emai ls  in  regard to  the bookings of  the t r ip  or  the f l ight  

in  September 2014 that  – that  booking was made by Travel  

Excel lence  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  te l l  us f i rs t  where to  f ind that .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  am going there.   That  is  on page 

353.134.  

CHAIRPERSON:    253 or  353? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   353.134.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Zwane you are there as wel l?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you found the page Mr Zwane? 

MR ZWANE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Now the a l legat ion in  th is  regard Mr 20 

Zwane is  – is  that  deta i ls  o f  –  of  t r ips that  you had arranged 

by  the Gupta ’s  or  Mr Ashu Chawla o f  Sahara Computers and 

that  there were emai ls  exchanged to show that .    

 F i rs t ly  we went  to  the one of  the choi r.   And maybe I  

should star t  wi th  the choi r  because you have responded to  
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that  one in  your  a ff idavi t .    

MR ZWANE:   Huh-ah.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  I  know I  have refer red you to  a 

page but  because the choi r  i ssue i t  has come up maybe I  

should sta r t  wi th  i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes maybe I  should star t  wi th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r ight .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because Mr  Zwane deals wi th  that  in  h is  

aff idavi t .   Mr Zwane you know that  in  your  aff idavi t  you do 10 

say which is  the aff idavi t  we have just  submi t ted – admi t ted  

th is  morn ing – you do say that  you in  fact  were on the same 

p lane wi th  the choi r  go ing to  Ind ia.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes I  d id  rea l i se that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Because that  – that  i s  s l ight ly  

d i f ferent  f rom in  your  main aff idavi t  where you say you 

came to know about  the choi r  be ing in  Ind ia when you were 

a l ready in  Ind ia and you t r ied to  meet  wi th  them.  

MR ZWANE:   Thank you Chai r.   Let  me deal  wi th  that  

mat te r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   P lease address the Chai rperson.  

MR ZWANE:   I  was aware that  the  choi r  would be tak ing a 

t r ip .   I  d id  say that .   I  a lso sa id I  was not  involved in  terms 

of  the organisat ion of  that  t r ip .   I  d id  ind icate that  I  sa id to  

the choi r  I  was a lso going to  the – to  Ind ia around that  
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month and i f  i t  happens that  we meet  in  Ind ia and I  have 

t ime I  wi l l  make t ime and come and see them per forming.   

And I  should a lso  say Chai r  I  d id  say I  d id  not  become par t  

o f  the t ravel l ing arrangement  wi th  the choi r.    

My name was inc luded in  the i t inerary of  the choi r  

which we deal t  w i th  the last  t ime and I  sa id that  I  do not  

know how my name was inc luded there because I  made my 

own t ravel  a rrangement  and cont rary to  the v iew that  was 

expressed by Mr Theron that  I  was paid for  by the Gupta ’s  I  

now – I  was for tunate ly  able dur ing the  week which I  was 10 

g iven by th is  commission to  get  documents that  ind icates 

that  there was an approval  g iven to  me as a MEC to go to  

Ind ia and go and l ieu investors there.    

I  have s ince a lso inc luded as an annexure the  

payment  thereof  because I  was fo r tunate to  get  that .   And 

the issue of  – the issue that  I  deal t  wi th  ear l ie r  on that  I  

was not  par t  o f  the i t inerary of  the choi r  o r  the people who 

were arranged fo r  by the choi r.    

There was a quest ion that  was asked to me that  was 

I  par t  o f  the lunch that  was prepared and in  the emai l  o f  Mr  20 

Theron i t  is  ind ica ted that  24 people at tended the lunch.    

I f  you minus 24 f rom 27 which is  in  the i t inerary i t  

w i l l  make c lear  to  th is  commission that  the three people that  

are par t  o f  the approval  o f  the t r ip  were not  par t  o f  that  

lunch.   So I  thought  I  should ra ise those issues and c lar i fy.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course you – you say you were  one of  

those three.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  Mr Zwane on that  issue 

obviously the quest ion ar ises is  i f  your  choi r  had a lunch at  

Mr Gupta ’s  house in  Ind ia how d id they know about  i t?  

MR ZWANE:   I  d id  – I  d id  expla in and c lar i f y  that  mat ter  last  

when I  was here.   I  do not  own the choi r ;  the choi r  i s  not  my 

choi r.   I  have sa id I  d id  g ive or  lend a hand there and there  10 

where they would  need my support  because I  was involved 

in  the fo rmat ion of  the choi r  as a  program of  government  

which was ca l led  socia l  cohesion.   There were a  number of  

act i v i t ies that  were undertaken under socia l  cohesion.   So I  

may not  know the deta i ls  in  te rms of  how the choi r  goes 

about  in  terms of  sourc ing funds I  d id  ra ise that  po int  even 

last  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no I  am not  sure that  answers th is  

quest ion.   How d id the choi r  know about  Mr Tony Gupta and 

the i r  i t inerary inc lud ing going to  Mr  Gupta ’s  house fo r  lunch.   20 

So i f  you take tha t  wi th  the fact  tha t  i t  was your  i -Pad,  your  

emai l  address i t  was being used to exchange in format ion in  

regard to  who is  go ing to  share a room and who is  not  go ing 

to  share a room i t  seems f rom the  to ta l i ty  o f  that  ev idence 

that  you seem to be the connect ion between the  choi r  –  
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whether  i t  is  your  choi r  or  not  but  i t  a  choi r  fo rmed – 

founded by you and others.   You seem to be the connect ion 

between the choi r  and Mr Tony Gupta and/or  the Sahara 

Computer  people.   What  is  your  comment  on that?  

MR ZWANE:   Cha i r  I  d id  ind icate last  t ime when I  was here  

that  indeed at  some point  I  d id  lend my gadget  to  a member  

of  the choi r  who wanted to  send a  Gmai l .   I  d id  say – I  d id  

say in  my last  s ta tement  that  I  was not  pr ivy to  the contents 

of  that  emai l  as i t  was sent .   I  deny the asser t ion that  I  

seem to be a common denominator  in  th is  ar rangement .   I  10 

have sa id ear l ier  on the choi r  made i t s  own arrangements  

which I  am not  pr ivy to  and I  want  to  put  that  s tatement  and 

repeat  i t  on record here today.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   So who were the – i t  is  okay you have 

counted 27 guests and minus 3 you sa id 24 seems to have 

at tended the lunch at  the – at  Mr Tony Gupta ’s  house.   Who 

were the other  th ree of  which you say are the depar tment ’s  

off ic ia ls?  

MR ZWANE:   The three was me,  Ms Matau [? ]  and Mr Ashok 

Narayan.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON:   By the way who was Ms Matau [? ]  just  

remind me? 

MR ZWANE:   She was an off ic ia l  work ing in  my department  

Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   The off ice manager.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Off ice manager.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  your  off i ce.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So that  is  – tha t  is  the one t r ip .   So your  

– your… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So is  your  vers ion Mr Zwane that  the fact  

that  you and the choi r  t ravel led  in  the  same f l ight  to  Ind ia 

was just  a  co inc idence or  you say no i t  was p lanned that  le t  

us go together  bu t  we were going for  d i f ferent  purposes and 

we were not  be ing paid for  by the same source.   I  was being  

paid for  by the Department  and I  do not  know who was 

paying for  the cho i r.  

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  I  p lanned my t r ip  to  Ind ia fo l lowed a l l  

the processes ev idence thereof  is  here and I  th ink  in  the  20 

middle or  towards the end of  processes I  learnt  that  the  

choi r  was going to  Ind ia that  i s  what  I  have sa id even in  my 

aff idavi t  a round the same – same t ime.   That  is  why I  sa id i f  

my program al lowed I  wi l l  take  a turn where you are 

because I  am go ing to  Ind ia on my work.   That  is  what  
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t ranspi red Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  i t  does not  answer my quest ion.   

My quest ion is  whether  i t  was just  a  co inc idence or  i t  was a 

p lan – i t  was p lanned that  you –  you would t rave l  in  the 

same f l ight  wi th  the choi r.  

MR ZWANE:   No i t  was not  – i t  was not  on my s ide p lanned 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So as far  as you are concerned i t  

was a co inc idence.  

MR ZWANE:   I  th ink so.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .    Mr  Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Zwane you would have seen the  

aff idavi t  o f  Mr Ephra im Dlamin i  one of  the communi ty  

members in  regard to  the dai ry  fa rm and he says there that  

to  the commission in  an aff idavi t  that  they had been 

promised.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And where is  the aff idavi t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  on page – Chai rperson i t  s tar ts  

on page 353.308.  

CHAIRPERSON:   308.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   308 and the paragraph I  want  to  

refer  to  Chai r  i s  on page 353.315 paragraph 27.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Paragraph 27.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Paragraph 27.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On page? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   35.  

CHAIRPERSON:   315.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So that  is  Mr Ephra im Marcosin i  

Dlamin i .   He is  one of  the farmers  and he says and would  

have been one o f  the benef ic iar ies in  the pro ject  and in  

paragraph 27 he says:  

“The commit tee we selected to  in te r face wi th  

the government  on a l l  mat te rs re la t ing to  the  10 

dai ry  pro ject  fa i led to  repor t  back to  us on  

any developments.   Having been promised 

t ra in ing in  Ind ia we heard instead that  Mr 

Zwane had taken a choi r  he supported  to  

Ind ia. ”  

 So any comment  on that  Mr Zwane? 

MR ZWANE:   No thank Chai r.   I  have read th is  aff idavi t  by 

Mr Dlamin i .   I  would have loved i f  Mr Dlamin i  was asked by  

th is  commission to  g ive ev idence in  terms of  that  asser t ion 

because to the best  o f  recol lect ion my knowledge and bel ie f  20 

there was never  a  stage where  I  was present  as  the MEC of  

Agr icu l ture and people were  promised to go to  Ind ia  – to  do 

what?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the – there would be benef ic iar ies of  

the – of  the pro ject  were not  p romised any t ra in ing.  
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MR ZWANE:   The – there was – there were benef ic iar ies of  

the pro ject  that  would have been t ra ined in  South Af r i ca 

main ly  because they were fa rmers who would have known in  

the course of  them doing the i r  bus iness s imple facts about  

farming.   I t  boggles  my mind why would we then have taken 

people to  Ind ia for  a  s imple t ra in ing – by whom?  Because 

those would have in  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Dlamin i  in  issues 

that  we are d iscussing here who was supposed to t ra in  them 

in Ind ia?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja cont inue – f in ish.  10 

MR ZWANE:   I f  there i s  any evidence to that  Chai r  I  wi l l  be  

g lad ly wi l l ing to  engage but  f rom where I  am seated there  

was never  at  any point  dur ing my tenure as the MEC of  

Agr icu l ture where benef ic iar ies were promised a  t r ip  to  

Ind ia.    

In  fact  i f  you look at  wi tnesses that  have came here  

i t  took some t ime before benef ic ia r ies were proper ly  

organised in to a  uni t  and by the t ime they wou ld have 

formed commit tees and so for th  I  would have never  – I  

would have actual ly  moved out  o f  that  department .    20 

Because th is  t r ip  was around October in  2012 and i f  

you look at  your  deta i l s  in  terms of  what  was happening  

dur ing that  t ime i t  was the t ime where  the department  was 

busy st i l l  br ing ing  these benef ic iar ies together  t ry ing  to  get  

in to cont racts wi th  them.    
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So there is  –  I  do not  th ink there is  an issue or  any 

mat te r  that  was ra ised of  the bui ld ing t ra in ing to  Ind ia that  I  

know of .  

CHAIRPERSON:   My understanding of  what  Mr Dlamin i  i s  

saying is  that  they as the in tended benef ic ia r ies of  the  

pro jects had been promised t ra in ing.   Now i f  the t ra in ing 

was to  take p lace in  Ind ia maybe that  would  not  be 

surpr is ing because the  ev idence is  to  the  e f fec t  tha t ,  and I  

th ink  i t  i s  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Ta le te(? )  i s  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  

he  had under taken a  t r ip  to  Ind ia ,  I  th ink  he  had a lso  gone 10 

there  w i th  Mr  Mar ia (?)  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And as  I  reca l l ,  the  –  h is  ev idence,  

the  purpose o f  the  t r ip  by  h im was to  go  and see how the  

Ind ian  company,  I  fo rge t  wha t  i t  was ca l led  now 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Paras .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Paras .   How they dea l t  w i th  what  you  

wanted to  do  under  th is  p ro jec t  in  the  Free S ta te  because  

he sa id  i t  seemed tha t  there  was someth ing  to  be  l earn t  as  20 

to  how they dea l t  w i th  tha t (? ) .   So he went  there  and o f  

course  as  we know,  accord ing  to  h is  ev idence,  u l t imate ly  

tha t  company was pa r t  o f  the  pro jec t  in  the  Free S ta te ,  

acco rd ing  to  h is  ev idence.  

 There  is  a  suggest ion  tha t  tha t  company den ied  
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tha t  bu t  le t  us  leave tha t  as ide .   Accord ing  to  h is  ev idence 

tha t  was the  company was pa r t  o f  the  Est ina  Pro jec t  and of  

course  peop le  who were  brought  in  to  work  on  the  pro jec t  

were  f rom Ind ia .    

 So i t  wou ld  make  sense i f  the  pos i t ion  was:   You 

peop le  are  go ing  to  benef ic ia r ies  to  th is  p ro jec t .   Maybe  

you must  go  there  and see how peop le ,  who are  

benef ic ia r i es  there ,  what  they do ,  what  the i r  ro les  are ,  ge t  

to  unders tand because we want  th is  to  be  as  successfu l  

here  as  i t  i s  in  Ind ia .   That  i s  one approach.    10 

 Of  course ,  another  approach m ight  be ,  the 

t ra in ing  wou ld  take  p lace in  the  Free S ta te  and peop le  who  

had the  know-how f rom Ind ia  cou ld  be  brought  in to  South  

A f r i ca .   So what  do  you say to  tha t?   Assuming tha t  i t  i s  

t rue  tha t  they were  promised tha t  they wou ld  be  g iven 

t ra in ing .  

MR ZWANE :    No ,  Cha i r  I  wou ld  no t  be  specu la t ing .   I  am 

say ing  to  th is  Commiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  –  to  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  and my  20 

knowledge and be l ie f ,  tha t  was never  the  case.   I f  tha t  i s  

the  case,  tha t  Mr  D lamin i  p roduced ev idence so  tha t  the 

person who prom ised them can ac tua l l y  be  ab le  to  answer  

what  was on h i s  m ind when he p romised these peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Zwane,  you  

have tes t i f ied  tha t  you knew the  Guptas  f rom 2010 when  

they came fo r  a  TNA Breakfas t .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    To  your  knowledge,  d id  any member  o f  

your  cho i r  have in  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas ,  because 

th is  i s  now 2012.  

MR ZWANE :    I  wou ld  pre fer  tha t  we do not  ca l l  th is  cho i r  

my cho i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  tha t  i s  why I  s topped –  I  s topped 10 

myse l f  and ca l l ing  i t  your  cho i r.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  I  am ask ing  d id  –  to  your  

knowledge . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  name o f  the  cho i r?   Le t  us  

ca l l  i t  by  the  name.  

MR ZWANE :    Umsing izane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Umsing izane.   Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]   I  w i l l  have to  remember  tha t ,  20 

Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    No ,  you can jus t  say  the  cho i r.   I  th ink  I  w i l l  

unders tand.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we l l ,  Umsing izane is  a  Zu lu  word .  
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MR ZWANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  –  Umsing izane  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .par t  o f  g rass .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So . . .   But  I  do  no t  know whether  tha t  i s  

what  they had in  m ind.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  may mean tha t  the  cho i r  was in tended 

to  be  we l l -g rounded,  we l l - roo ted .   [ laughs]   Do you know i f  10 

connect  w i th  what  I  am say ing  Mr  Zwane o r  i s  there  

someth ing  e lse?  

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  maybe i t  i s  no t  Zu lu .  

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  I  have never  ca l led  you by  your  c lang  

name in  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  a l low me to  say [speak ing  ve rnacu lar ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    I  wou ld  no t  know how they  ar r i ved  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  name.  

MR ZWANE :    . . . to  tha t  par t i cu la r  name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    As  you say,  I  know tha t  Umsing izane is  a  
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g rass .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  normal ly  no t  ea ten  by  ca t t le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    I t  is  used to  do  the  Zu lu  and Sotho lands(?)  

and hence Sotho.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  a l l  what  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  as  to  what  they had in  m ind 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . I  wou ld  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  you know more  Umsing izane  

than I  do .   [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   My ques t ion  was.   You knew the  20 

Guptas  s ince  2010.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  was go ing  to  say.   Anyway,  th is  i s  

the  on ly  cho i r  we are  ta lk ing  about .   So i f  you  fo rge t  the 

name,  i f  you  say the  cho i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . .we l  w i l l  know wh ich  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Okay you knew 

them f rom 2010.   We are  now in  2012.   And the  emai ls  a re  

exchanged to  your  emai l  address.   You are  say ing  they are  

meant  fo r  the  cho i r.   So to  your  knowledge,  d id  any o f  your  

cho i r  o f  the  cho i r  members  have any re la t ion  or  d i rec t  l ink  

w i th  the  Guptas?  

MR ZWANE :    The o rgan iser  o f  the  cho i r  a t  tha t  t ime,  I  

th ink  i t  was Mr  Thomo.   In  fac t ,  I  must  say,  maybe i t  w i l l  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  the  cho i r  was composed o f  up  10 

and coming ar t i s ts  van d i f fe ren t  a reas,  as  I  have sa id .   

D i f fe ren t  backgrounds and -  bu t  seeming ly  when the  cho i r  

–  a f te r  the  cho i r  was fo rmed,  they  then agreed tha t  –  they  

sa id  Mr  Thomo wou ld  ac tua l l y  be  the  organ iser.    

CHAIRPERSON :    The organ iser  o r  the  conductor?  

MR ZWANE :    Organ ise r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR ZWANE :    In  te rms o f  whatever  events  tha t  must  come.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  a re  connected w i th  the  cho i r.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR ZWANE :    I  wou ld  no t  know exact ly  h is  ne tworks  and 

connect ions bu t  he  d id  h i s  job  very  we l l ,  I  must  say.   

Because,  as  I  have sa id  ear l ie r  on ,  the  cho i r  t rave l led  the  

length  and breadth  o f  South  A f r i ca  and. . .   So to  go  to  your  
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quest ion .   I  wou ld  no t  know tha t  in fo rmat ion  bu t  he  was an 

easy - to -go  pe rson.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    D id  you say Tony Wood?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thomo.  

MR ZWANE :    Thomo.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thomo? 

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   He sa id  Mr  Thomo wou ld  organ ise .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.   Ja .   And. . .   Oh . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And Thomo is  t -h -o-m-o or  - t -o -m-o?  

MR ZWANE :    T-h -o-m-o.  

CHAIRPERSON :    T-h -o-m-o,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you remember  h is  name or  no t?  

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  h is  name was  Mfanafu th i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mfanafu th i?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  [ Ind is t inc t ]  [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  Zu lu  vers ion .  

MR ZWANE :    I  am rea l l y  so r ry,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  no t  my 

in ten t ion  bu t  i t  is  Advocate  Se leka who wants  to  know 

these deta i l s .   Unfor tunate ly,  they are  Zu lu  names.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  
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MR ZWANE :    I  cannot  change them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  change them.   [ laughs ]  

MR ZWANE :    No,  I  cannot  change them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Wel l ,  I  have –  I  suspect  tha t  he  

is  no t  the  f i rs tborn  in  h i s  fami ly  because when you are  

g iven tha t  name,  i t  means tha t  there  is  a  boy or  boys  

ahead o f  you.   [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  parents  say:   Oh,  i t  is  a  boy 

aga in !   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    Ja ,  i t  may happen tha t  the  paren ts  were  

expect ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . .a  g i r l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    G i r l ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I t  is  now a  boy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    So  they were  d isappo in ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  20 

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  i t  i s  a  boy.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Le t  us  –  I  was  look ing  a t  the  l i s t  o f  the 
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names wh ich  is  on  page 353.129,  Cha i rperson.   Po in t  129.  

CHAIRPERSON :    353.129?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On 129,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Which  is  tha t  l i s t ,  Mr  Zwane,  about  

shar ing  o f  the . . .   And those you who wou ld  no t  share .   I  

see  under  those you are  go ing  to  share ,  number  8 ,  there  is  

tha t  surname o f  Thomo.    

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    On wh ich  page  are  you?  10 

MR ZWANE :    129.   I  am there ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

MR ZWANE :    Number?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Number  8 . . .   those you a re  shar ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  Mr  L Thomo.   I  am say ing  mis ter  bu t  

i t  does not  m is ter  bu t  i t  i s  F  L Thomo.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  cou ld  tha t  be  the  person?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  shou ld  be  the  person?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  the  organ ise r  d id  no t  have a  

compute r?  
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MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    How was he go ing  to  o rgan ise?  

MR ZWANE :    I f  you  take  i t  back i n  2012,  a  loca l  a rea  l i ke 

the  Free S ta te ,  there  were  many  youngsters  who  wou ld  

have not  had the  luxu ry  o f  a  computer,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   So th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Ashu,  

whom I  take  to  be  Ashu Chawla ,  s imp ly  because the re  is  an  

Ashu Chawla  tha t  i s  connected  w i th  Sahara  Computer  

because h is  emai l  i s  ashu@sahara .co .za .    

 So he sends an  emai l  on  the  13 t h  o f  October  10 

2012 to  nareshkhos la@sus ind ia . com(?)  and he says  room-

shar ing  bu t  be fore  tha t ,  there  is  an  emai l  f rom 

mzwane@gmai l . com.   I  th ink  you have accepted tha t  tha t  i s  

your  emai l  address.   And i t  i s  on  October  13 ,  2012  and i t  is  

sent  –  i t  was sen t  a t  02 :46  p .m.   And i t  was sent  f rom your  

emai l  to  Ashok Narayan.    

 Okay.   No.   So tha t  –  ja ,  Ashok Narayan a t  that  

address w i l lemse@gmai l . com(?)  and the  sub jec t  i s  

Deta i led  I t inerary.   And i t  says  here  w i th  rooming  l i s t  as 

expected,  non-shar ing .   M J  Zwane,  T I  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  C  M 20 

Radebe and M E Mokwena,  MP Mabaso and MM 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]   Those are  no t  shar ing  rooms.   And then the  

res t  a re  shar ing  rooms.    

 And then above tha t  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Ashok 

Narayan tha t  i s  addressed to  ashu@sahara  and the  sub jec t  
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i s ,  Room Shar ing  Deta i l s .   And i t  i s  sent  f rom h i s  iPhone as  

i t  i s  be ing  fo rwarded message.    

 And then Ashu sends,  a t  the  top ,  sends the  room 

shar ing  de ta i l s  to  nareshkhos la@sus ind ia . com and  

khos lanaresh@hotmai l . com,  S  M Or ien t (? )  H indu Dara(?)  

a t  -  o f  the i r (? )  own(?)  g roup.com and the  sub jec t  is ,  Room 

Shar ing .   [Speaker  i s  no t  c lea r  –  names and  emai l  

addresses unc lea r ]    

 So as  I  reca l l  you ,  you sa id  th i s  –  the  reason 

why th is  has go t  your  emai l  address is  because a  member  10 

o f  the  cho i r  needed ass i s tance to  send an emai l  and you 

o f fe red  your  ce l l  phone.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  I  o f fe red  my gadget .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    By  the  way,  I  th ink  you sa id  you gave i t  

to  an  o f f i c ia l  in  your  o f f i ce  to  he lp  her  –  he lp  them.   I s  that  

r igh t?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  was sen t  by  an  o f f i c ia l  in  your  20 

o f f i ce .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  in  the  depar tment .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  Ashok Narayan.  
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MR ZWANE :    We l l ,  as  th is  th ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    As  th is  –  yes.  

MR ZWANE :    . . .as  th is  th ing  s tands,  I  remember  I  d id  say  

in  th is  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . tha t  I  was not  p r ivy  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . to  the  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    I  jus t  made my gadget  ava i lab le  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . fo r  the  cho i r  to  pe r fo rm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . .what  they needed  to  per fo rm,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   So.   And you say tha t  you  

never  to ld  anybody tha t  you were  go ing  to  be  on  th is  t r ip  

and tha t  you wou ld  be  one o f  those who wou ld  no t  be  

shar ing  rooms? 

MR ZWANE :    There  is  ev idence,  Cha i r,  f rom my s ide 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . tha t  I  pa id  fo r  my  t r ip ,  my accommodat ion  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 29 of 354 
 

and every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    There  was no need . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . fo r  the  th ree  o f  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . to  be  pu t  in  shar ing  or  no t  shar ing  

because we were  no t  par t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    . . .o f  the  ar rangement  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    . . . th is  i t inera ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no .   I  unders tand tha t .   I  am 

t ry ing  to  ge t  to  unders tand how your  name came to  be 

here .   So you are  c lear  tha t  you never  the  o f f i c ia l  who – to  

whom you gave your  gadget  tha t  you were  go ing  to  be  pa r t  

o f  th is  t r ip?  

MR ZWANE :    O f  the  cho i r?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  cho i r.  

MR ZWANE :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR ZWANE :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you never  to ld  them tha t  you  shou ld  
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be  pu t  in  the  l i s t  o f  those who wou ld  no t  be  shar ing  rooms? 

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you do not  know where  they go t  th is  

f rom? 

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know where  they go t  th is  

f rom.   Desp i te  tha t  fac t ,  as  Cha i r  has ind ica ted ,  th is  emai l  

seems to  be  a  copy o f  the  emai l  wh ich  was sent ,  the  Gmai l  

wh ich  was sent .   I t  i s  no t  an  or ig ina l  document  f rom my 

gadget .   I t  i s  a  copy o f  wh ich  I  may  not  be  pr ivy  in  te rms o f  

the  amendments  tha t  were  made to  tha t  copy.    10 

 A l l  what  I  know is  tha t ,  a t  any s tage I  d id  no t  

submi t  my name to  the  cho i r  fo r  –  to  th is  t r ip .   I  d id  say on  

record ,  the  las t  t ime when we were  here ,  tha t  my w i ld  

thought  was tha t  –  because I  per fo rmed about  two songs 

w i th  the  cho i r,  wh ich  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on ,  they thought  maybe I  

w i l l  j o in  them.   And I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  can specu la te  up  

to  th is  fa r,  Cha i r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have a  reco l lec t ion  whethe r  on  the  

occas ion  you gave your  gadget  to  the  o f f i c ia l ,  there  was a  

member  o f  the  cho i r  who was there  in  your  o f f i ce  a t  the  20 

t ime or  who was go ing  to  be  w i th  the  o f f i c ia l  who used your  

gadget?  

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  remember?  

MR ZWANE :    That  happened a  long t ime ago.   Perus ing  
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the  in fo rmat ion  by  Mr  Theron,  to  my best  reco l lec t ion ,  tha t  

was on a  weekend.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    So  tha t  I  do  no t  come in  he re  and  exp la in  

why I  worked on a  weekend.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  came to the  Commiss ion  on  a  

pub l i c  ho l iday,  Mr  Zwane.   So.   [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    . . . they  no t  be  say ing  when I  come here ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR ZWANE :    So  i t  was a  weekend  and i f  I  reca l l ,  we had a  

programme somewhere  in  Thabo . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and the  cho i r  

was pe r fo rming there .    

CHAIRPERSON :    In  tha t  funct ion?  

MR ZWANE :    In  tha t  funct ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  was a  depar tmenta l  funct ion?  

MR ZWANE :    I t  was a  depar tment  funct ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR ZWANE :    The funct ion ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR ZWANE :    So  I  was busy do ing  someth ing .   So I  len t  

the  gadget  to  lend a  hand.   That  i s  what  I  know,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   So,  wou ld  the  answer  be  

tha t  there  wou ld  have been member  o f  the  cho i r  w i th  the 

o f f i c ia l  o r  you are  no t  sure?  
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MR ZWANE :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you know tha t  they were  per fo rming?  

MR ZWANE :    I  have sa id  tha t  i s  my susp ic ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.   I  was not  pa r t  o f  th is  

a r rangement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  Zwane,  you  have sa id  tha t  you pa id  

fo r  the  t r ip  you rse l f .  

MR ZWANE :    The depar tment .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The depar tment  pa id  fo r  the  t r ip .   Can  

you show us where  is  tha t  p roo f  o f  payment?   You say i t  i s  

here .  

MR ZWANE :    In  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Must  be  a t tached to  your  a f f idav i t ,  i s  i t  

no t?  

MR ZWANE :    You sa id  i t  i s  319?  219?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    219,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    The annexures to  tha t  a f f idav i t  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    The in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  was g iven s ta r ts  f rom 

235.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    236. . .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    The in fo rmat ion  you were  g i ven? 

MR ZWANE :    I  requested fo r  th is  in fo rmat ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    I  am no longer  in  tha t  depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    As  I  have sa id  the  las t  t ime when I  was he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  g ive  me some t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    So  whatever  was g iven to  me,  I  make su re  10 

tha t  I  t ry  and he lp  the  Commiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . to  unders tand where  I  am coming f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.   There  is  a  –  241,  the  approva l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe –  le t  us  do  i t  qu ick ly.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  page two –  353.235.   What  document  

i s  tha t  Mr  Zwane? 20 

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Transact ion  log  sheet .   Do you know 

what  i t  represents?   I t  i s  wr i t ten  surname in  Eng l ish  as  

Zwane,  M J .   A ce l l  number  i s  g iven and then the  da te  

g iven is  07 /12 /12  and the  t ransact ion  code is  g iven  there  
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and anothe r  code and the  badge.   What  document  i s  tha t  

and what  i s  i t  supposed to  show? 

MR ZWANE :    Th is  i s  the  proof ,  Cha i r  tha t  –  I  th ink  th i s  

document  has to  do  w i th  subs is tence(?)  and t rave l l i ng .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    I t  i s  p roo f  tha t  the  depar tment  fo r  th is  t r ip  

pa id  fo r  my subs is tence and t rave l l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  –  tha t  da te  o f  

7  December  2012 ,  what  does i t  represent?   I t  i s  a  da te  fo r  

what?   Do you know? 10 

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  th is  –  my –  le t  me say,  Cha i r.   The  

documents ,  as  t hey are ,  we normal ly  do  no t  ge t  to  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . leve l  o f  de ta i l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . .as  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    MEC’s .  

MR ZWANE :    . . .MEC’s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR ZWANE :    And th is  Commiss ion  makes –  need to  ge t  to  

those deta i l s .   I  may not  be  spot  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  my susp ic ion  is  tha t  th is  t ransac t ion  log  

sheet  was de layed and was on ly  f i t  in  a f te r  some t ime when 
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I  was even back f rom my t r ip  to  Ind ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  reason we have to  ask  is  

because you a t tached them to  your  a f f idav i t .   So tha t  i s  

why we have to  ask  you what  do  they represent .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  go  to  page 353.236.   What  does 

tha t  document  represents?   I t  says ,  in  the  head ing ,  

Subs is tence and  Trave l l ing  P lan .   Name f i le  –  in i t ia ls :   10 

Zwane,  M J .   Personne l  number  i s  g iven.   C la im 

descr ip t ion .   SMT.   And then nex t  to  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  Ind ia .   

Per iod  s ta r t ,  15  October  2012.   Per iod  end date ,  

23  October  2012.   A re  those dates  the  da tes  fo r  your  t r ip?   

D id  you leave on  the  15 t h  o f  October  2012 and came back  

on  the  23 r d  o f  October  2012?  

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And the re  is  re fe rence to  advance  

taken and then there  is  an  amount  and tha t  i s  –  what  i s  

wr i t ten  there  is  729504.   And then next  to  tha t ,  there  is  20 

someth ing  handwr i t ten  and i t  i s  l i ke  d iv ide  by  th ree  and  

30(a) (?) .   And then on tha t  co lumn,  there  is  729504 and  

the  to ta l  i s  729504.   I s  tha t  the  amount  you c la imed fo r  

SNT tha t  i s  R 729  504,00?  

MR ZWANE :    Th i s  –  I  th ink  th is  i s  the  amount ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    To  the  best  o f  my knowledge,  i s  tha t ,  th is  i s  

–  there  is  a  fo rmula  o f  ca l cu la t i ng  th is  amount  tha t  w i l l  

inc lude the  cur rency o f  the  count ry  where  you are  go ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    . . .compared to  the  cur rency o f  the  count ry  

where  you are  depar t ing  f rom.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  do  you know whether  the  amount  

i s  what  a re  ind i ca t ing  here  or  i s  i t  perhaps seven thousand 10 

two hundred and n ine ty - f i ve  Rand four  cents  o r  i s  i t  seven  

hundred and twenty-n ine  thousand f i ve  hundred and four  

Rand?  

MR ZWANE :    No,  Cha i r.   Le t  me not  specu la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  must  remember  [ laughs]  you 

SNT c la im fo r  what  ten  days or  whatever  cou ld  have gone 

up to  seven hundred and twenty -n ine  thousand Rand?  

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  i t  i s  seven thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Seven thousand? 

MR ZWANE :    Two hundred and n ine ty - f i ve .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And four  cents .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  okay.   A l r igh t .   And I  see tha t  
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i t  i s  s tamped 6  December  2012.   And you s imp ly  have 

s igned on the  16 t h  o f  November  2012 . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  s igned 

a lso .   Yes.  Mr  Se leka,  do  you want  to  say –  ask  any 

quest ions. . .?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Mr  Zwane,  I  see tha t  a t  the  top  o f  

tha t  page –  oh ,  tha t  i s  po in t  236,  ja .   That  one the  per iod  

s ta r t  da te  i s  ind ica ted  to  be  15  October  2013 and the  

per iod  end is  23  October  2012.   Do you see tha t?   Per iod 

s ta r ts  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  yes ,  I  see tha t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  a l lega t ion  regard ing  the  Ind ia  

t r ip  i s  sa id  to  have taken p lace on the  13  October  2012  

wh ich  w i l l  be  two days be fore  th is  da te  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  Mr  

Se leka,  you can a lso  jus t  check when the  cho i r  came back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  cho i r,  accord ing  to  the 

i t inerary  the  cho i r  came back on  the  22  October.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  a  day  be fore  the  23 r d .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Zwane?  20 

MR ZWANE:    What  must  I  answer ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The f i rs t  quest ion  is  tha t  accord ing  to  

th is  document  tha t  we jus t  dea l t  w i th  namely  the  one a t  

page 353.236 your  t r ips  to  –  you le f t  on  the  15 t h  o r  the  SNT 

c la im re la tes  to  a  per iod  s ta r t ing  f rom the  15 October  2012  
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and end ing  on 23 October  2012 whereas Mr  Se leka says 

the  cho i r  le f t  on  the  13  October  two days be fo re  th i s  and I  

th ink  tha t  quest ion  is  be ing  asked in  the  contex t  o f  the  fac t  

tha t  you –  i t  i s  your  ev idence tha t  you d id  t rave l  in  the 

same p lane as  the  cho i r .  

MR ZWANE:    The t r ip  indeed  was,  acco rd ing  to  the 

approva l ,  was meant  to  take  p lace f rom the  15 t h  to  the  23 r d  

and Cha i r ,  I  must  ind ica te  tha t  I  do  no t  have an answer  in  

te rms o f  th is  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR ZWANE:    Th is  i s  what  I  know about  –  bu t  to  the  best  

o f  my reco l lec t ion  maybe the  i t ine rary  o f  the  cho i r  m ight  be  

the  one wh ich  is  fau l t y .   To  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  

tha t  i s  the  reco l lec t ion .   I  may be wrong,  I  am happy to… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Acknowledge tha t  po in t .   I t  i s  –  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Now but  your  reco l lec t ion  is  

tha t  you came back f rom Ind ia  on  the  23  October .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes because accord ing  to  my i t inera ry  I  had 

an engagement  o f  the  22n d .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  cho i r  –  Mr  Se leka says the  cho i r  

came back on  the  22  October .   I s  tha t  co r rec t ,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  am look ing  a t  –  maybe Mr  
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Zwane w i l l  he lp  us .   Page 353.130 and .131.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  in  regard  to  the  i t inera ry .   You 

w i l l  see  aga ins t  –  there  are  da tes  there ,  Mr  Zwane,  aga ins t  

some o f  what  i s  wr i t ten  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  can see tha t ,  I  do  no t  know i f  Mr  

Zwane can see  i t ,  21  October  2017,  17 .00  a r r i va l  a t  

Mumbai  Hote l ,  p ick  up  in te rcont inenta l  and re lax  fo r  the 

res t  o f  the  even ing ,  22  October ,  8  o ’c lock  break fas t  a t  

ho te l .   9  o ’c lock  checkout  –  tha t  i s  now 22n d ,  checkout  f rom 10 

the  ho te l  and p roceed fo r  [ ind i s t inc t ]  Ind ia ,  lunch  outs ide  

nearby and go ing  towards an  Orb i t  Ma l l ,  shopp ing  and 

d inner  and a f te r  tha t  s t ra igh t  p roceed fo r  a i rpo r t  to  f l y  back  

home.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Home.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Luxury  [ ind is t i nc t ]  requ i red  a t  Mumbai  

In ternat iona l  a t  8  a .m.  fo r  the  who le  day [ ind i s t inc t ]  and 

drop a t  a i rpor t  a t  10 .30  p .m.   Tha t  must  be  10 .30 p .m.  on 

the  22 n d ,  I  th ink?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  so ,  Cha i r ,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Up to  12  hours  and 120 k i lomet res  

[ ind is t inc t ]  hour .   Wel l ,  tha t  –  i f  tha t  –  in  te rms  o f  tha t  

i t inerary ,  the  cho i r  cou ld  no t  have ar r i ved back on  the  22 n d .   

I  th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Because they were  s t i l l  go ing  to  spend a  

day there  bu t  do  we have anyth ing  tha t  shows when they 

ac tua l l y  a r r i ved back?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  in  the  f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And not  in  –  there  is  no th ing  tha t  

ind ica tes… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  except  fo r  what  i s  a t tached here ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  say  here  a t  page 353.131:  

“A f te r  tha t  s t ra igh t  p roceed fo r  a i rpo r t  to  f l y  back  

home. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i f  they  were  go ing  to  –  i f  tha t  i s  on  

the  22 n d ,  wh ich  much be even ing ,  I  guess,  then they  wou ld  

have a r r i ved in  South  A f r i ca  on  the  23 r d .   A f l igh t  f rom Ind ia 

to  South  A f r i ca ,  i f  you  leave in  t he  even ing  in  Ind ia ,  you 

wou ld  ar r i ve  on  the  23 r d ,  wou ld  you not?   Mr  Zwane,  you  

know you d id  f l y.  20 

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  the  Cha i r  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   I  th ink  we must  jus t  

check,  see i f  there  i s  someth ing  concre te  about  when they  

ar r i ved.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Of  course  what  th is  does ra ise ,  Mr  

Zwane,  wh ich  you obv ious ly  apprec ia te ,  I  th ink ,  i s  i t  seems 

tha t  your  s tay  i n  Ind ia  was fo r  more  or  less  the  same 

dura t ion  as  the  cho i r.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So you have  a  s i tua t ion  where :  

1 .  You a re  the  founder  o f  the  cho i r  o r  one o f  the  

founders ,  whatever  the  pos i t ion  is ,  you have an 

assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  cho i r.   That  i s  someth ing .    

2 .  There  is  an  emai l  made f rom your  gadget  wh ich  l i s ts  10 

you as  one o f  the  peop le  go ing  on  th is  t r ip  w i th  the  

cho i r.   You say i t  i s  done by  an  o f f i c ia l  f rom your  

depar tment .  

3 .  You are  in  the  same f l igh t  as  them to  Ind ia .  

4 .  You s tay  w i th  –  you s tay  in  Ind ia  f o r  more  or  less  the  

same per iod  as  them and you –  and i f  you came back  

on  the  23 r d  and i f  th is  in fo rmat ion  a t  page 353.131  is  

cor rec t ,  i t  looks  l i ke  the  p lann ing  fo r  the  cho i r  was fo r  

them to  ar r i ve  back in  South  A f r i ca  on  the  23 r d  as  

we l l .    20 

Whether  they ac tua l l y  a r r i ved back  on  the  23 r d  a t  th is  s tage 

we do not  know but  the  p lann ing  was tha t  they  shou ld  

ar r i ve  back in  South  A f r i ca  on  the  23 r d .   Now the  p lann ing  

o f  your  own t r ip  must  have been  tha t  you shou ld  ar r i ved  

back about  the  23 r d  as  we l l  un less  the  p lann ing  was tha t  
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you  were  go ing  to  come back  ear l ie r  and someth ing  

changed and d id  you reca l l  whethe r  f rom the  beg inn ing  the  

23 r d  was the  p lanned day o f  re tu rn  on  your  pa r t  o r  the  

depar tment ’s  par t  fo r  your  t r ip?  

MR ZWANE:    There  a re  two i ssues he re ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    I  thought  ear l ie r  on  I  was asked a  quest ion  

whethe r  the  cho i r  t rave l led  on  the  13 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes ,  yes ,  ja ,  yes .   Do you want  to  

dea l  w i th  tha t?  10 

MR ZWANE:    No,  I  am jus t  say ing  on  th is  i ssue  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    On what  I  am say ing .  

MR ZWANE:    What  the  Cha i rperson is  ra is ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  there  is  a  d i f fe rence.  

MR ZWANE:    There  is  a  d i f fe rence there .   Number  two  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  I  accep t  tha t ,  tha t  i s  why I  sa id  

a lmost .  

MR ZWANE:   Ja.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  sa id  i t  i s  fo r  a lmost  the  same per iod .  

MR ZWANE:    Number  two,  i f  you  look a t  241.  

CHAIRPERSON :    353.241.  

MR ZWANE:    353.241.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR ZWANE:    I  had a  c lear  i t inera ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  ge t  there ,  241.  

MR ZWANE:    2 .3 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?   243?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    241.   I t  s ta r ts  on  241,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR ZWANE:    241,  po in t  2 .3 ,  down there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  jus t  say  i t  aga in ,  I  am get t ing  

confused.    

MR ZWANE:    The page [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    353 po in t?  

MR ZWANE:    241.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  am there .  

MR ZWANE:    Down the re ,  2 .3 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  s ta r t  –  f i rs t  say  th is  appears  to  be  a  

le t te r  f rom Mr  M Peter,  head o f  depar tment  fo r  Agr icu l tu re ,  

addressed to  the  Premie r,  Honourab le  E  S  Magashu le ,  Free 

S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government  and the  sub jec t  i s :  

“Request  fo r  approva l  fo r  MEC o f  Depar tment  fo r  

Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment  Mr  M J  Zwane ,  20 

Ms I  T Motaung  and Ashok Narayan to  a t tend a  

s t ra teg ic  meet ing  w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  

and s t ra teg ic  pa r tners  in  Ind ia  f rom the  15 to  23  

October  2012. ”  

Okay,  so  yes,  con t inue.  
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MR ZWANE:    I  am say ing  2 .3  w i l l  g ive  ind ica t ion  to  th is  

Commiss ion  abou t  my bus iness in  Ind ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes,  yes ,  2 .3  says –  tha t  o f f  tha t  

le t te r  says:  

“The fo l low ing  meet ings have there fore  been  

ar ranged fo r  the  MEC:  

1 .  Min is te r  o f  Agr icu l tu re  S ta te  o f  Ut ta rakhand,  Mr  

Sh ive ja  S ingh Rawat  on  October  16  a t  Dehradun.  

2 .  Min is te r  o f  Agr icu l tu re  S ta te  o f  [ indist inct ]  Mr  

Vidush i  Yadav on  October  18  a t  Agra .  10 

3 .  Meet ing  and ta lk  o f  Pares da i ry,  October  19 ,  

2012.  

4 .  Min is te r  o f  Agr icu l tu re ,  S ta te  o f  Maharasht ra ,  Mr  

R V  Pate l (? )  on  October  22  a t  Mumbai .  

And then 4 .1  says on  page 353.242:  

I t  i s  recommended tha t  approva l  be  granted by  the  

Honourab le  Premier  fo r  Mr  M J  Zwane,  Ms I  t  

Motaung and Mr  Ashok Narayan,  to  under take a  t r ip  

to  Ind ia  f rom 15 to  23  October  2012. ”  

So the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is  tha t  f rom the  s ta r t  your  t r ip  20 

was p lanned to  be  f rom 15 October  to  23 ,  you wou ld  depar t  

on  the  15  October  and ar r i ve  back  on  the  23  October.   You  

say tha t  was your  t r ip  as  organ ised  by  the  depar tment .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   But  you accept ,  I  guess,  
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you  accept  tha t  –  you accept  the  th ings tha t  I  was  

observ ing  to  say –  except  fo r  say ing  i f  the  cho i r  le f t  on  the  

13 t h ,  you l e f t  on  the  15 t h ,  bu t  you  accept  tha t  i t  i s  a lmost  

the  same dura t ion .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  I  do ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and Cha i r  on  –  I  mean,  on  the  f i rs t  

one,  go ing  ou t ,  Mr  Zwane,  i f  you  f lew on the  same f l igh t ,  

on ly  da te  can be cor rec t .   E i ther  the  13 t h  o r  the  15 t h .   So i t  

i s  ne i ther  here  nor  the re  wh ich  da te  a t  th is  po in t  bu t  the  10 

fac t  tha t  you f lew out  togethe r,  so  your  t r ip  co inc ided  

a lmost  to  the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  a lmost  exact ly,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you cou ld  no t  have been on the  

same f l igh t  w i th  them to  Ind ia  and be on the  same f l igh t  

w i th  them f rom South  A f r i ca  to  Ind ia  aga in  on  the  15 t h .   So 

e i ther  your  depar tment  has go t  i t  wrong about  the  15 t h  o r  

somebody e l se  who says the  cho i r  le f t  on  the  13 t h  go t  i t  

wrong,  i t  i s  no t  the  13 t h ,  i t  i s  the  15 t h .   But  in  the  end i t  20 

m ight  no t  mat te r  whether  i t  i s  the  13 t h  o r  the  15 t h  i f  i t  i s  

accepted,  as  you  do accept ,  tha t  you were  on  the  same 

f l igh t  to  Ind ia  w i th  the  cho i r  and  ind ica t ions are  tha t  the  

cho i r  must  have ar r i ved back on  the  23 r d  as  we l l .   We a re  

no t  sure  bu t  we  suspect  based on tha t  i t inerary .   I f  the  
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cho i r  a lso  ar r i ved  back on  the  23 r d  then your  per iod  o f  –  o r  

the  t r ip  w i th  the  cho i r  i s  exact ly  the  same,  i f  tha t  i s  the  

pos i t ion .   So you  accept  tha t ,  those fac ts ,  except  tha t  we  

are  no t  su re  tha t  the  cho i r  a r r i ved back on  the  23 r d  bu t  i t  

looks  l i ke  i t ,  tha t  i s  what  we a re  say ing .  

MR ZWANE:    I  am a lso  no t  sure  whethe r  I  was r igh t  when 

I  sa id  we t rave l led  together  on  the  15 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  we must  change tha t  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Must  change tha t .   Ja ,  okay.  10 

MR ZWANE:    Bu t ,  Cha i r ,  the  issue here  as  ra i sed by  Mr  

Theron was tha t  I  t rave l led  together  w i th  the  cho i r  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  the  expense o f… 

MR ZWANE:    A t  the  expense o f  the  Guptas .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Guptas ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE:    That  was an issue  and I  have s ince  in  th is  

Commiss ion ,  I  re f lec ted  tha t  tha t  i s  no t  co r rec t .   The issue  

tha t  we a re  ta lk ing  about  now,  i t  i s  beyond my con t ro l .   In  

a  p lane as  you go to  Ind ia  or  Ch ina  or  anywhere ,  there  are  20 

obv ious ly  peop le  in  tha t  p lan  wh ich  have  booked 

themse lves go ing  where  they are  go ing .   Some are  go ing  

where  you a re  go ing  and they are  f rom South  A f r i ca .   I  

have met  a  number  o f  peop le  on  my var ious t r ips  whom I  

know.   Where  a re  you go ing?  I  am go ing  to  Ch ina  or  
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Russ ia .   When are  you coming back?  Maybe the re  w i l l  be  

a  d i f fe rence o f  two,  th ree  days.   That  to  me is  no t  an  issue,  

I  th ink  what  I  was t ry ing  to  re f lec t  in  th is  Commiss ion  is  

tha t  the  asser t ions  as  made by  Mr  Theron,  because I  th ink 

Mr  Theron is  the  reason why we had to  ge t  to  th is  po in t ,  I  

am not  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Zwane,  the  po in t  you  

make is  an  impor tan t  po in t ,  namely  tha t  you a re  dea l ing  

w i th  the  a l legat ion  tha t  your  t r ip  was pa id  fo r  by  Guptas a t  

a l l .  10 

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You a re  say ing  I  have checked w i th  the  

depar tment ,  here  are  documents  tha t  suppor t  my vers ion  

tha t  I  was –  th is  was an o f f i c ia l  t r ip  and i t  was not  pa id  fo r  

by  the  Guptas ,  i t  wou ld  have  been pa id  fo r  by  the 

depar tment .   But  the  o ther  aspects ,  tha t  we have been 

dea l ing  w i th ,  may  be re la ted  to  the  issue tha t  you sa id  tha t  

you may have been in  the  p lane,  the  same p lane,  was jus t  

a  co inc idence,  you were  no t  invo lved in  the  p lann ing  o f  the  

cho i r  t r ip ,  tha t  i t  m igh t  go  to  say  was i t  a l l  a  co inc idence  20 

but  you are  r igh t  to  say the  issue o f  who pa id  i s  an  

impor tan t  i ssue fo r  your  t r ip .   Ja .  

Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  take  the  tea  ad journment ,  we 

w i l l  resume a t  quar te r  to  twe lve ,  i t  i s  near ly  twenty  f i ve  to .   

We ad journ .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    So,  I  be l ieve  we 

have exhausted tha t  par t ,  you might  have some quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  we have exhausted th is  emai l ,  ja ,  

le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Very  we l l ,  Mr  Zwane  I  w i l l  go  back to  

Mr  Theron ’s  a f f idav i t ,  wh ich  is  on  page 353.22.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 353.22.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    Okay,  so  we dea l t  w i th  .21 ,  we  

dea l t  w i th  .21 ,  the  a l legat ion  in  pa rag raph 30.   

MR ZWANE:    Can I  ge t  the  page,  sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  353.21  

MR ZWANE:    Po in t  .21?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    And th is  i s  Annexure  NDZ? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No Annexure  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Look a t  the  b lack  numbers ,  remember  to  

look  a t  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  le f t  corner  o f  each  page.  20 

MR ZWANE:    Okay,  okay Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    353.21,  and tha t  i s  Mr  Theron ’s  a f f idav i t  

as  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    Po in t  .21?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you found i t?  

MR ZWANE:    Okay I  found i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  what  we have been dea l ing  w i th  i s  

parag raph 30,  pa rag raph 30?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O f  par t i cu la r  concern  is  the  ev idence.   

o f  a  k ick-back f rom the  Gupta ’s  to  Zwane and o ther  

o f f i c ia ls  in  the  depar tment  who  fac i l i ta te  in  the  

Est ina  scheme in  October  2012,  sho r t l y  a f te r  the  10 

launch o f  the  Est ina  pro jec t ,  Zwane,  o f f i c ia ls  f rom 

h is  depar tment  and  loca l  gospe l  

cho i r…[ In tervenes] ” .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  don ’ t  fo rge t  the  

quest ion  or  po in t  you wanted to  pursue.   Can we go back 

or  no ,  we don ’ t  need to  go  back?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  purpose o f  your  t r ip  to  

Ind ia  on  15 October  to  23  October  2012? 

MR ZWANE:    As  shown in  my i t inerary  I  was go ing  to  meet  20 

w i th  d i f fe ren t  Min is te rs  and …[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was two Min i s te rs ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ZWANE:    Ja ,  i t  was two Min is te rs…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  when I  looked a t  tha t  le t te r  f rom 

Mr  Thabethe to  t he  Premie r,  i t  was two Min i s te rs  i s  tha t  
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r igh t?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  one was Min is te r  o f  Agr icu l tu re  

the  o the r  one –  or  they were  Min is te rs  o f  Agr icu l tu re  f rom 

d i f fe ren t  s ta tes?  

MR ZWANE:    D i f fe ren t  s ta tes  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay but  bo th  were  Min is te rs  o f  

Agr icu l tu re?  

MR ZWANE:    I  shou ld  a lso  ind ica te ,  Cha i r,  tha t  in  tha t  

i t inerary  I  was schedu led  to  go  and see the  p lan t  in  Paras.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    In  Paras,  yes .  

MR ZWANE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    When I  was the re ,  I  th ink  the  CEO of  the 

company was not  ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    So  tha t  t r ip  d id  no t  mater ia l i se .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  meet ing  w i th  the  CEO? 

MR ZWANE:    Ja ,  ja  o f  Paras.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MR ZWANE:    D id  no t  mate r ia l i se ,  tha t  i s  why cons is ten t ly  

in  my a f f idav i t  I  have been say ing  I ’ ve  never  been to  

Paras.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    And I ’ ve  never  been there ,  bu t  jus t  to  
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comple te  the  quest ion  you have  asked,  Cha i r,  a f te r  the  

announcement  o f  Mahoma Mobung there  were  ac tua l l y  a  

number  o f  p ro jec ts  in  tha t  Mahoma Mobung concept .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    And they were  d iv ided in  te rms  o f  the  

d is t r i c ts  o f  the  prov ince.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    I  can  reca l l ,  we had vegetab le  fa rm ing,  we  

had  f i she ry,  we had  meat ,  we had sheep fa rm ing  jus t  to  

ment ion ,  bu t  a  few.   We wi l l  co l labo ra te  w i th  any  count ry  10 

who shows in te res t  in  those pro jec ts .   So,  as  I  went  ou t ,  

i t ’s  no t  on ly  Ind ia ,  I  remember  tha t  the  f i shery  was,  a t  

some po in t  f ina l l y  suppor ted  by  the  Ch inese  and i t  

happened.   As  to  how fa r  i t  i s  now,  I  can ’ t  te l l ,  I  know tha t  

the  pou l t r y  was a lso  suppor ted  by  a  company ca l led  VKB in  

the  Free S ta te  and a  number  o f  fa rmers ,  have,  s ince  

benef i t ted  ou t  o f  tha t  p ro jec t ,  so  tha t  was the  a im ,  Cha i r,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  was the  purpose o f  the  t r ip ,  

there fo re  –  o f  your  t r ip ,  there fore ,  to  meet  w i th  the  two 20 

Min is te rs  o f  Agr icu l tu re ,  f rom d i f f e ren t  s ta tes  and  to  v is i t  

the  Paras par t  o r  head quar te rs ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  tha t ’s  r igh t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Those are  the  th ree  impor tan t  th ings you  

were  to  do  wh i le  you were  in  Ind ia ,  as  fa r  as  the  
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depar tment  was concerned?  

MR ZWANE:    There  were  four  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  we are  us ing  the  four th  one,  I  can 

qu ick l y…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t ’s  go  –  where  is  tha t  le t te r  f rom Mr  

Thabethe?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    353.241.  

CHAIRPERSON:    241?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

MR ZWANE:    There  were  ac tua l l y  th ree  Min is te rs  I  was 

supposed to  meet  w i th  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t  was th ree? 

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the  one was Mr  Rawat ,  S ingh 

Rawat  and the  o ther  was Mr  Yadav.   

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  o ther  was Mr  Pate l ,  Mr  Pate l  

was on the  22 n d ,  yes .   So,  on  the  16 t h  o f  October,  Mr  

Rawat ,  on  the  18 t h  o f  October,  Mr  Yadav and then  on the  20 

22 n d  o f  October  Mr  Pate l .   Okay and then,  Paras was 

supposed to  be  on  the  19 t h  yes ,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you,  

Mr  Se leka then we can…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me jus t  pu rsue th is…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We can go back to  the  –  oh  you a re  

pursu ing  someth ing…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me jus t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Zwane then i t  means –  you say the  

tour  to  the  Paras p lan t  d idn ’ t  take  p lace?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  19 t h  became open –  the  19 t h  o f  

October  became open fo r  you?  10 

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  i t  was open fo r  me,  yes Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  f rom your  i t inera ry  we a lso  see  

tha t  the  17 t h ,  the  20 t h  and the  21 s t  seem to  be  open fo r  

you.   So,  what  –  you say yes?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And so ,  on  those days wh ich  –  four  

days,  wou ld  you mind te l l ing  the  Cha i rperson what  wou ld  

have been your  ac t i v i t ies ,  in  those days because the  

i t inerary  fo r  the  cho i r   has those days,  maybe you  20 

accompanied the  cho i r  on  those days?  

MR ZWANE:    No,  thanks Advoca te  Se leka.   Cha i r,  I  d id  

say,  indeed,  one  or  two occas ions I  d id  go  and watch  the  

cho i r  pe r fo rm ing ,  I  d id  say tha t  in  th is  Commiss ion .   

Normal l y  i f  you  have meet ings back- to -back l i ke  th is  you  
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have in fo rmat ion ,  you come back,  you process i t ,  i f  there ’s  

any issue tha t  you need to  fo l low up,  then you have the  

day to  do  tha t  fo l low up so  tha t  when you come back and  

g ive  a  repor t ,  you have t r ied  your  leve l  best  to  ac tua l l y  

g ive  account  f ru i t fu l l y.   So,  normal ly  those days we ’ l l  then 

dea l  w i th ,  how was the  t r ip ,  how was the  meet ing ,  do  we  

need to  make a  fo l low up when we are  s t i l l  here ,  on  any  

o ther  i ssue,  ca l l  back home i f  you need to  ca l l  back home 

and get  some more  in fo rmat ion  and prov ide ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you say,  you d id  meet  w i th  the  10 

cho i r?  

MR ZWANE:    I  d id  say las t  t ime,  Cha i r  when I  was here ,  

tha t  I  d id  meet  w i th  the  cho i r  once or  tw ice ,   yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  once o r  tw ice .   The tou r  wh ich  

d idn ’ t  take  p lace,  as  you say,  to  Paras p lan t  what  was the 

purpose fo r  tha t?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  I  d id  ind i ca te  t ha t  the  top  o f f i c i a l  there ,  

I  th ink  the  CEO was not  ava i lab le ,  he  had some urgent  

mat te rs  to  a t tend to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  what  was the  purpose?  20 

MR ZWANE:    The purpose was tha t ,  because  I  was 

a l ready go ing  to  Ind ia  fo r  these o thers ,  check fo r  myse l f  in  

te rms o f  the  repor t  tha t  I  go t  f rom the  o f f i c ia ls  about  the  

capac i ty  tha t  Paras has,  by  and la rge ,  tha t  was the  

purpose,  Cha i r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  go ing  to  check Paras capac i ty  

to  do  what?  

MR ZWANE:    We were  in fo rmed tha t  Paras had capac i ty  in  

te rms o f  quant i t ies ,  m i lk  quant i t ies ,  i t  a lso  had a  r i se  in  

te rms o f  market ing ,  se l l ing  m i lk  and I  thought ,  when I  was  

there ,  I  may as  we l l  ver i f y  the  repor t  tha t  was g i ven to  the  

Execut ive  and myse l f ,  in  te rms o f  Paras.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  why I  wan ted to  meet  w i th  the  top  10 

o f f i c ia l  and jus t  ascer ta in  whether  we were  in  the  r igh t  

d i rec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you  remember  whether  Mr  

Thabethe ’s  t r ip  to  Ind ia  preceded  yours  o r  you p receded 

h is?  

MR ZWANE:    No ,  Cha i r  I  don ’ t  remember  those de ta i l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you do know he d id  go  to  Ind ia?  

MR ZWANE:    I  know he d id  go .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and he –  I  wou ld  imag ine  when he 

came back,  he  wou ld  have g iven you a  repor t?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  tha t ’s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t ’s  i f  o f  course  i t  d id  p recede  

yours…[ in tervenes] .  
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MR ZWANE:    He  wou ld  have had 

in fo rmat ion…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He wou ld  have got  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion .  

MR ZWANE:    Even i f  I  was to  be  the  f i rs t  to  go ,  he  wou ld  

have a l ready had  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR ZWANE:    About  th is  Paras.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  seems to  me,  and I  want  you 

to  comment  on  th is ,  i t  seems to  me tha t  the  Paras meet ing 

wou ldn ’ t  rea l l y  have been essent ia l  fo r  you i f ,  indeed,  your  10 

DG or  Head o f  Depar tment  had been there  because he  

wou ld  be  the  opera t ions man,  he  wou ld  be  the  one who  

wou ld  have got  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion ,  in  o rde r  to  be  ab le  to  

make an assessment  whether  Paras cou ld  be  a  par tner  bu t  

i t  may be tha t ,  because you were  go ing  to  be  in  Ind ia  

anyway,  you might  have thought ,  i f  we are  go ing  to  have –  

i f  my depar tment  i s  go ing  to  have a  work ing  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Paras I  may  as  we l l  see them so –  bu t  in  te rms o f  i t  

be ing  essent ia l ,  i t  p robab ly  wou ldn ’ t  have been,  wou ld  you 

agree o r  wou ld  you not  agree?  20 

MR ZWANE:    Un for tunate ly,  I  don ’ t  agree Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you th ink  i t  was very  essent ia l?  

MR ZWANE:    My  ro le  i s  to  p lay  overs igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Even on these issues tha t  there  i s  a  repor t  
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tha t  there  is  a  b lack  f i le  w i th  wh i te  papers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    As  I  ge t  a  chance to  p lay  an  overs igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    I t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  me to  go  and see whethe r  

th is  f i l e  ex is ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    I t  i s  in  the  cond i t ion  tha t  I  was to ld  i t  i s  and 

those deta i l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

MR ZWANE:    We normal ly  do  tha t  in  our  work  

as…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka,  in  in te r rup ted  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Thabethe i s  in  the  Bund le ,  h is  t r ip  was,  acco rd ing  to  

h im,  on  the  29 t h  o f  February  2012  to  the  4 t h  o f  March  2012 

so  i t  wou ld  have preceded th is  one in  October  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  tha t  i s  so ,  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  20 

by  October  a  lo t  o f  g round had been covered in  te rms o f  

th is  Est ina  pro jec t .   So,  your  meet ing  wou ldn ’ t  have been  

an essent ia l  mee t ing  because by  then,  i f  my reco l lec t ion  is  

cor rec t ,   the  dec i s ion  to  pa r tne r  w i th  Paras had long been  

made,  I  may be mis taken,  bu t  I ’m  th ink ing  the re  was an 
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agreement  tha t  was conc luded in  June o r  Ju ly,  I  th ink  there  

were  th ree  cont rac ts .  I  th ink  the  one was Ju ly  5  i f  I ’m  not  

m is taken Ju l y  5  I  know tha t  there  was one…[ in tervenes] .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    June,  7  June 2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:    7  June,  and so  on  so ,  the  re levant  

dec is ions had long been made i f  tha t  i s  the  case.  

MR ZWANE:    Hence I ’ ve  ra ised an issue o f  an  overs igh t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you can ’ t  ve r i f y  whether  they 

ex i s t  when you have a l ready s igned an agreement  w i th  

them,  you shou ld  ver i f y  tha t  be fore  you s ign  agreements ,  

i sn ’ t  i t?  

MR ZWANE:    No .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r,  le t  me jus t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say,  even i f  they ’ve  s igned,  I  want  

to  see.  

MR ZWANE:     Le t  me jus t  make a  prac t ica l  example  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    In  the  space where  I ’m  work ing ,  the  

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  th rough i t s  en t i t y  hav ing  acqu i red  

a  proper t y  in  the  a i rpor t  in  Braz i l  long before  I  become the  

Cha i rperson there .   We normal l y  app ly  to  go  on  overs igh t  
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to  go  and see th is  p roper ty  whether  i t  ex is ts…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  happen ing  there?  

MR ZWANE:    Whethe r  what  i s  on  the  paper  i s  on  the  

ground.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  normal ly  a  known.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    I t ’s  ac tua l l y  be t te r  i f  every th ing  has been  

s igned because you ’ re  no t  seen  as  a  po l i t i c ian  runn ing  

ahead o f  you in  t e rms o f  these processes in  te rms o f  PFMA 10 

tha t  may not  need you to  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    I n  te rms o f  the  …[ ind is t inc t ] ,  once those 

processes a re  done then we can come in  and say,  indeed  

there  is  th i s  there  is  th is ,  bu t  you  sa id  tha t  was there  and  

i t ’s  no t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  yes  Cha i r  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  20 

Thabethe makes an in te res t ing  read ing  and tha t ’s  on  page 

353.340 -  .340.  

MR ZWANE:    .340 okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    From paragraph 9  onwards,  
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so…[ in tervenes] .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  I ’m  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He says,  

“ I  then made a  request  –  we l l  Ind ia  he  says is  

ident i f ied  as  the  h ighest  m i lk  p roducer  and the re 

was a l ready a  b i la te ra l  agreement  on  Agr i cu l tu re  

be tween South  A f r i ca  and Ind ia .   I  then made a 

request  to  the  Premier  honourab le  ES Magashu le  on  

recommendat ions  o f  the  fo rmer  MEC Mosebenz i  

Zwane to  take  a  t r ip  to  Ind ia ,  accompan ied by  Mr  10 

Ashok Narayan and I  adv ised tha t  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  

the  Premie r  a t  tha t  t ime” ,  

 But ,  in  fac t  he  was not  a t  the  t ime,  because h i s  

appo in tment  was on ly  on  the  1s t  o f  March ,  I ’ l l  show you the  

le t te r.   So,  the  f i rs t  par t ,  Mr  Zwane is  tha t  th is  t r ip  was 

taken a t  your  recommendat ion ,  to  Ind ia .  

MR ZWANE:    There  was in fo rmat ion  as  I  ge t  i t  here .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    About  th is  Paras hav ing  th is  quant i t ies  and 

so  fo r th  and so ,  where  d id  tha t  in fo rmat ion  come f rom? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  was the  t r ip  under taken  a t  your  

recommendat ion?  

MR ZWANE:    No Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  remember  me 

recommending –  in  fac t ,  we don ’ t  d ic ta te  to  o f f i c ia l s  as  to  

how they do  the i r  work  espec ia l l y  when i t  comes to  i ssues 
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o f  th i rd  par t ies  who are  appo in ted  in  a  process tha t  we are  

no t  par t y  to .   We normal ly  don ’ t  invo lve  ourse l ves.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  th is  i s  cont rary  to  the  

overs igh t ,  you c la im,  because in  th is  case i t ’s  on ly  to  go  

and –  go  to  Ind ia  look  a t  –  you w i l l  see  as  he  goes fu r ther  

in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  is  to  v is i t ,  p rec i se ly  th is  company  ca l led  

Paras.   So,  I  th ink  h is  a l legat ion  wou ld  be  cons is ten t  w i th  

your  pos i t ion  tha t  you wou ld  p lay  an  overs igh t  ro le  

because he ’s  no t  opera t ing  the  pro jec t ,  he ’s  on ly  t ak ing  a  

t r ip  to  v is i t  th is  po ten t ia l  company.  10 

MR ZWANE:    May I  answer  Cha i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  no t  h is  ro le  to  p lay,  overs igh t .   

Overs igh t  i s  a lways p layed by  po l i t i c ians,  o f f i c ia ls  

imp lement .   I  see  noth ing  wrong about  th is  t r ip ,  I  must  say,  

i f  in  h is  m ind,  he  wanted to  make sure  be fore  he  appo in ts  

these peop le  tha t ,  indeed,  what  i s  sa id  about  them does  

ex i s t ,  he  was f ree  to  go  to  Ind ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  tha t ’s  f ine  bu t  the  one po in t  

wh ich  i s  o f  in te res t  i s  tha t  I  read h is  a f f idav i t ,  parag raph 9  20 

to  mean tha t  you  were  the  one who recommended  tha t  he  

under takes th is  t r ip  togethe r  w i th  Mr  Ashok Narayan.   Now,  

i f  I  reca l l  f rom h is  ev idence,  when  he was g iv ing  ev idence,  

and I  may be mis taken,  bu t  I  seem to  th ink  tha t  he  sa id  

tha t  when you to ld  h im about  h im go ing  w i th  Mr  Narayan to  
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Ind ia ,  tha t  he  sa id ,  you sa id ,  tha t  came f rom the  Premie r.   I  

hope I ’m not  wrong,  bu t  he  ce r ta in ly  sa id  i t  was – the  fac t  

tha t  he  had to  go  w i th  Narayan who wasn ’ t  someth ing  tha t  

came f rom h im and he seems to  have sa id ,  you to ld  h im,  

you ment ioned i t  to  h im,  bu t  i f  my reco l lec t ion  is  co r rec t ,  i t  

seems tha t  you  might  have got  tha t  f rom the  Premie r.   

Does tha t  jog  your  memory  a t  a l l?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  I  do  remember  v iv id ly  what  happened  

there  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  10 

MR ZWANE:    And I  d id ,  on  severa l  occas ions pa in ted  tha t  

p ic tu re  and you w i l l  see  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  have been very  

cons is ten t .   I  have sa id  to  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  there  was  

a  prac t ice  up  unt i l  I  le f t  Free  S ta te ,  tha t  i f  you  are  go ing  on  

a  t r ip  as  a  depar tment ,  a f te r  a l l  your  a r rangement  there  

was a  sect ion  in  the  –  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  Premier ’s  

depar tment  no t  o f f i ce ,  depar tment  ca l led  In te rnat iona l  

Re la t ions.   They  wou ld  a lways recommend an o f f i c ia l  to  

accompany you who w i l l  be  conversant ,  fo r  example ,  i f  we 

go to  Ch ina ,  there  were  peop le  who were  t ra ined in  20 

Mandar in  in  Ch ina  who wou ld  be  ab le  to  take  you th rough  

t rad i t ion  and customs in  Ch ina  and  be ab le  to  in te rp re t  the  

Mandar in ,  tha t  was the  prac t ice .   I t  d id  no t  need a  Premie r  

to  p inpo in t  an  ind iv idua l ,  th is  ind iv idua l  wou ld  be  

recommended to  us  and when we do our  request ,  wh ich  in  
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th is  case,  w i l l  obv ious ly  be  done  by  h im to  the  Premie r  

then we…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  what  you say –  I  th ink  you say w i l l  

be  done by  h im,  I  found i t  s t range  tha t  i t  was done  by  h im 

in  regard  to  you .  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  i f  an  MEC 

wanted the  Premier ’s  permiss ion  to  t rave l  overseas the  

MEC wou ld  wr i te  to  the  Premie r  ra the r  than an  o f f i c ia l  

wr i t ing  to  the  Premier  ask ing  the  Premier  to  re lease the  

MEC.   I  can unders tand h im wr i t ing  in  regard  to  o f f i c ia ls  o f  

the  depar tment ,  bu t  I  found tha t  a  l i t t le  s t range but ,  maybe  10 

you say,  no  tha t ’s  how we used to  do  th ings.  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r,  on  the  face  va lue  i t  looks  s t range but  

the  prac t ica l i t ies  tha t  pu ts  me here  today,  i f  I  want  to  run  

to  the  Premier,  I  wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  p rove aspers ions cast  

to  me by everybody tha t  I  t rave l  to  Ind ia  on  a  t r ip  a l l  pa id  

by  the  Gupta ’s ,  no .   so ,  the  paper  t ra i l  has  to  be  done 

th rough cor rec t  channe ls  by  o f f i c ia ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    Once,  the  MEC has taken a  dec is ion  tha t  –  I  

th ink  i t  i s  p rudent  fo r  the  depar tment  to  v is i t  here  and 20 

there ,  then we get  in to  an  o f f i c ia l  p rocess o f  request ing  

and tha t  p rocess,  indeed,  w i l l  be  overseen by  the  HOD.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  no ,  tha t ’s  f ine ,  Mr  Se leka?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Zwane isn ’ t  i t  

tha t  Paras was go ing  to  team up w i th  Est ina  to  supp ly  

serv i ces  or  manage the  pro jec t  a t  Vrede? 

MR ZWANE:    I  wou ldn ’ t  have known deta i l s  in  te rms o f  the  

n i t t y  g r i t t y ’s  because tha t  p rocess is  no t  a  p rocess we are  

invo l ved in ,  Cha i r  bu t  I  know,  the  in fo rmat ion  and the  

repor t ,  as  i t  was  g iven,  was tha t  Paras was a  b ig  da i ry  

company who ’d  ass is t  the  pro jec t  to  the  leve l  wh ich  we 

wanted i t  to  be ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  see ,  in  Mr  Thabethe ’s  a f f idav i t ,  10 

parag raph 10,  you don ’ t  need to  go  there ,  tha t  he  says,  on  

h is  t r ip  to  Ind ia  w i th  Mr  Narayan he d id  meet  w i th  the  CEO 

of  Paras Da i ry  fo r  some reason he sa id ,  who ’s  name wi l l  be 

d ivu lged a t  a  la te r  s tage and he exp la ined the  who le  cha in  

o f  m i lk  p roduct ion  in  Ind ia .   He says there  were  a lso  s ta f f  

members  o f  Paras who were  fu r ther  accompan ied  by  the  

Ind ian  de legat ion  to  v is i t  the  process ing  p lan t  and in  Ind ia  

I  b rought  back my presenta t ion  f rom the  Paras.   I t  i s  on  our  

re tu rn  f rom Ind ia ,  tha t  i s  paragraph  11,   

“ tha t  I  then deve loped an Execut ive  Counc i l ’s  repor t  20 

car ry ing  recommendat ions in to  the  concept  o f  a  

da i ry  p ro jec t  ident i f ied  in  Ind ia  as  S iya ta  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  MPPC’s .   A f te r  the  Ind ian  t r ip  Mr  

Narayan went  back to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  as  

he  was not  par t  o f  my team save fo r  the  sake of 
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accompanying me to India.   The execut ive counci l  

upon receiving the report  on recommendat ions of  the 

MEC f rom the Department of  Agricul ture then 

approved  – approval  document is . . . ”  

I  am just  ment ioning that  that  is what I  have just  

. . . [ indist inct ]  in other words even though you may not  have 

met the CEO Mr – Mr Thabethe had met the CEO of  Paras.  

Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Mr Zwane i f  you say you did not  

know the deta i ls Paras – Paras ro le of  Est ina in order to 

manage the project  in October which is about  four or f ive 

months af ter the agreement is s igned for the purposes of  a  

project  which you in i t iated.   Why would you not  have known 

what Paras role is  in the pro ject? 

MR ZWANE:   Chair  I  am saying the report  that  we got  

indicated that  Paras had the capaci ty to  deal  wi th the 

project .   That  stemmed f rom interact ions that  I  was not  part  

of  because of  PFMA but  off ic ia ls wi l l  deal  wi th those detai ls  20 

in terms of  appoint ing a service provider that  is sui table for  

the project .    

 Now those detai ls  wi l l  not  be the detai ls that  in Paras 

there is th is one and this one and this one i t  surpr ises when 

you are being informed that  th is is  a company that  is going 
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to do work,  th is is  the prof i le of  the company and i f  you have 

t ime then you can play an oversight  over what you have 

been told about the company.  

 You do not  go back and get  deta i ls as to the ni t ty  

gr i t ty ’s in terms of  that  company who wi l l  be sub-contracted,  

who wi l l  be doing th is.   Unless there is something that  is  

being raised at  a  later  stage ei ther  by Audi tor General  or 

Treasurer or somebody saying there is something here then 

you dig deeper.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thanks Chai r.   But  I  th ink you can 

f reely te l l  the Chai rperson because your  response seems to 

suggest  that  i t  is Paras you were contract ing wi th but  i t  was 

not .  You cont racted wi th Est ina a company cal led Est ina.   

And in paragraph 12 Chai r  Mr Thebethe explains how Est ina 

comes about.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is t rue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   But  you could tel l  – say to the 

Chairperson here is  Paras in October  you go to  Paras for a 

tour to India to tour amongst  other Paras – you say that  did 20 

not  happen but  you are saying to the Chairperson you were 

playing an oversight  role but  th is  is  not  a  company you 

contracted wi th.   You should be actual ly looking at  Est ina – 

who is Est ina because I  want to p lay an oversight  role and 

hence the reason for my quest ion.   What d id you understand 
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Paras to be play ing in the pro ject  – to be i ts  role in the 

project?  And I  am asking you this let  me conclude i t  

because then you can address everything.   That  Paras is  

said to have denied i ts involvement  in the pro ject .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe let  us start  wi th th is .    You 

accept  that  no agreement – I  just  hope I  am r ight  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No agreement was ever concluded 

between the Department of  Agricul ture and Paras in  regard 

to the Est ina project .  10 

MR ZWANE:   Wel l  Chai r  maybe let  me say before we – we 

get  to that  point .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   I t  is a fact  that  my HOD together wi th Ashok 

Narayan went to India and went to Paras and this is a fact  in 

terms of  the repor t  we got .   That  necessi tated me when I  was 

going to India to go and ver i fy what was in the repor t  for the 

longest  t ime I  have been under the impression that  Paras is 

the one that  is doing work in  Vrede on the project  cal led 

Vrede Dairy.   And unt i l  there were issues that  were raised by 20 

Audi tor General  I  th ink in mid-2013 I  have been operat ing 

under that  impression.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And when you discovered that  the 

Department had never concluded any agreement wi th Paras 

what did you do in ci rcumstances where – when were al l  
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a long you were under the impression that  the department 

had an agreement  wi th Paras? 

MR ZWANE:   Chair  i f  I  was st i l l  in the department and in th is  

case unfortunate ly I  was no longer in the department 

because I  lef t  the department ear ly March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2013.  

MR ZWANE:    2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2013.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay but  when you discovered was i t  af ter 10 

you had lef t  the department when you discovered that… 

MR ZWANE:   The report  of  the Audi tor General  was af ter 

when I  had lef t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR ZWANE:   And there was subsequent ly a report  I  th ink by 

Treasury which came at  a later stage when I  was no longer 

there.   So the remedial  act ions would have happened even 

when I  was no longer there.  

 I  know as wel l  seated here having read al l  the  

informat ion that  is  before me that  there were issues in terms 20 

of  the contract  as you ear l ier have indicated that  there was a 

contract  in June which was subsequent ly  

CHAIRPERSON:   Replaced by another one in July.  

MR ZWANE:   Replaced by another one and government was 

involved at  a higher – at  the highest  level  in terms of  that  
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contract  which normal ly is not  in the prevue ordinar i ly of  our 

sects.   Yes.   In my aff idavi t  the f i rs t  aff idavi t  I  have t r ied to 

paint  a picture as to the process you iden – you go to the 

community you ident i fy thei r  needs then you come up wi th a 

concept as I  have done.   

And this concept is tested for a lack of  a bet ter word 

even at  the level  of  the execut ive af ter  having tested i t  wi th  

the department.   And everybody says no this is a concept 

that  we think i t  is  correct  and we can t ry th is concept.   And 

then thereaf ter once this concept  has passed i t  went  through 10 

the state of  the province which was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  hang on Mr Zwane we understand 

that .   

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The quest ion is real ly relates to Paras.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you have said that  you did get  to know 

at  some stage that  the Department of  Agricul ture had not  

concluded any contracts or agreement wi th Paras but  you 

say you only got  to know that  af ter you had lef t  the 20 

department.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you say you lef t  the Department  

of  Agricul ture in March 2013.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Now did Mr Thabethe the HOD of  your 

department te l l  you that  there was a contract  between the 

department and Paras? Is that  where you got  the informat ion 

f rom or where did you get  the informat ion f rom that  the – 

there was an agreement or contract  between the department 

and Paras? 

MR ZWANE:   Chair  there was informat ion as I  indicated 

ear l ier that  there is a company ca l led Paras in India which 

has the capaci ty to undertake the magni tude of  the project  

that  we envisaged.  And as such off ic ia ls went to India to 10 

ver i fy and they came back and they were happy.   Right .   And 

then the work star ted internal ly in terms of  administ rat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the quest ion is did Mr Thabethe tel l  

you that  the department had concluded an agreement wi th 

Paras or d id he not  te l l  you?  Where did you get  the 

impression f rom that  the – there was an agreement between 

the Department of  Agricul ture and Paras? 

MR ZWANE:   Because normal ly Chair  nobody wi l l  be given 

work wi thout  having fol lowed the due processes as we al l  

know that .   So that  was my impression about Paras.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  was i t  your impression or  did he 

tel l  you as the HOD?  Remember that  th is is somebody that  

had undertaken a t r ip to Paras in India.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you knew about that  t r ip .   You 
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obviously approved the t r ip as the MEC – when I  say 

approved I  do not  necessari ly  mean 00:11:51 but  I  do not  

th ink you would have gone there wi thout  pol i t ical  approval  

but  – and you say you knew about  the t r ip – you supported 

the t r ip.   The Premier supported the t r ip – approved the t r ip.   

Now did he say to you we do have an agreement  as the 

department wi th Paras or did he not  say that? 

MR ZWANE:   I  do not  remember him saying such Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So your  impression that  there was an 

agreement between the department and Paras was based on 10 

what? 

MR ZWANE:   My agreement was based on… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Your impression.  

MR ZWANE:   My impression was based on the fact  that  i t  

was a common cause that  there should be processes – due 

processes that  are fol lowed in ident i fy ing a serv ice provider.   

And that  – those processes are then undertaken by HOD 

assisted by other  off ic ia ls.   And once the HOD has taken al l  

these processes we are ready to move.   

We do not  many a t imes get  to  a point  where we are 20 

shown cont racts or are told about  contracts being ready.   In  

the report  normal ly what comes is  that  we are going to be 

working wi th Paras which in th is case was the case I  was 

told.   That  is why in October I  a lso wanted to go and play my 

oversight  when I  was in India.    
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That  is – that  is how far I  knew about Paras Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you ever ask Mr Thabethe for the 

agreement wi th  Paras because you were under the 

impression that  the Department had an agreement wi th 

Paras,  did you ever ask him to show you the agreement? 

MR ZWANE:   We do not  normal ly do that  i f  there is  nothing 

untoward or there is a query raised Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  how are you going to p lay your 

oversight  i f  your  department has or you understand the 

department to have contracts wi th  another ent i ty  involving 10 

mi l l ions and mi l l ions or rands and you never even want to 

see this contract? 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  there were a number of  cont racts that  

were entered into by the department except  th is  cont ract .   

Those cont racts were not  shown to us not  only me and other  

MEC’s what you normal ly get  as a report  is that  here is a  

serv ice provider  who is going to do these things af ter 

processes have been undertaken and i f  you have any 

quest ions you do not  raise your quest ion at  that  part icular 

point  or i f  there is any suspicion you then go deep to say 20 

was the due processes fol lowed and how were they – the 

processes fol lowed?  Reading by any suspicion but  i f  there 

is no suspicion what you normal ly do is to ensure that  what 

the HOD has undertaken to do is tak ing p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  my quest ions – you said as MEC you – 
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your role is play overs ight .  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Over the department over the HOD.  You 

take the t rouble of  want ing to make this CEO at  – of  Paras 

want ing to go to Paras and meet them because you want to  

even ver i fy whether th is Paras exis ts or whatever you want  

to ver i fy.   One would have thought that  i f  you want to do that  

the least  you would do is let  me see the contract  that  the 

department has.   How do you play oversight  in regard to a 

project  where you have no idea what the cont ract  says about  10 

the project  and the partnership? 

MR ZWANE:   Let  me revert  back to  my earl ier example of  a  

property owned by ACSA in Brazi l .  I f  we apply to go and play 

our oversight  in Brazi l  i t  has never happened Chai r  that  we 

normal ly would get  into the detai ls  of  saying let  us see how 

the contract  – how this property was acqui red,  the contract  

and so forth.   We look at  the repor t  in f ront  of  us and based 

on that  report  we take that  report  wi th,  we go and play our  

oversight .   I f  there are issues we pick up there we then come 

back and say there are these issues g ive us further 20 

informat ion.   So normal ly that  is how we – we do things.   So 

i t  would not  have come to me that  in th is case speci f ical ly I  

must  look for a contract  before I  go there.   Because that  has 

not  been the norm.  I  do not  th ink any MEC in the Free State 

has done that  Chair.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  then you – i f  you do not  do i t  that  way 

– you do not  ask to see the contract  when you see the 

contract  you might  not  need to go through every clause but  

at  least  you can look at  the main c lauses or features there 

might  be a memorandum that  explains to you the main 

features of  the contract  but  at  least  you see i t .    

Now when you do not  see i t  and you do not  cal l  for 

the contract  the resul t  may be what happened namely in 

October 2012 you are under the impression that  your 

department has a contract  wi th Paras.   You are in India – 10 

you want to meet  wi th the CEO of  Paras and I  suspect  you 

are going to say to the CEO of  Paras I  know that  we have a 

contract  wi th you and then he would say what are you talk ing 

about?   

You would feel  embarrassed I  would imagine.   

Because you d id not  have – the department did not  have a 

contract .  But  then the quest ion that  ar ises is  even the t r ip 

that  Mr Thabethe undertook to India even whatever expenses 

i f  any may have been connected wi th your meet ing wi th him 

maybe there were not  any because you were going to be in 20 

India anyway or other meet ings they could have been  

MR ZWANE:   Frui t less.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wasteful  –  f rui t less and wasteful  

expendi ture because why are going to India to meet an ent i ty  

wi th whom you have no contract?  You understand.   Whereas 
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i f  you asked for the cont ract  you would have been to ld there 

– the department  would have fai led to give you a contract  

and you would have said but  why – what kind of  partnership 

do you say we have wi th Paras is  we do not  even have a 

contract .   You would have ra ised that  quest ion is i t  not? 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  let  me answer that  quest ion simply.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   By referr ing you to page 241 – i t  is 353.241.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  am there.  

MR ZWANE:   As the Chai r  has read this let ter that  goes to 10 

the Premier and the let ter is f rom the HOD. This let ter  has 

an i t inerary that  points me to Paras in October as the Chai r  

is saying.  I  mean i f  my assert ion in th is commission is not  

r ight  why would in my i t inerary rat ing by the HOD st i l l  wr i te 

Paras.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no nobody says – nobody says you 

were not  – you are saying you were under the impression 

that  the department had a cont ract  wi th Paras 

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said you are not  in a posi t ion to say 20 

Mr Thabethe told you that  the department had a contract  wi th  

Paras.  Okay.   Nobody says your impression – your evidence 

that  you were under that  impression is  wrong.   So nobody is 

saying your – you were – you did not  have that  impression.   

You understand.    
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So – so I  asked you what gave r ise to that  impression 

and you may legi t imately point  to among other th ings the fact  

that  in the let ter that  the – Mr Thabethe wrote to the Premier  

he said you were going to meet – you were going to have a 

meet ing wi th Paras off ic ia ls or whoever.   There may be other 

th ings that  he sa id to you that  made you gain that  – that  

gave you that  impression.   

But  what is st range to me is that  also Mr Thabethe 

when he was giv ing evidence before this  commission i f  I  

recal l  correct ly I  certa inly  understood h im for qui te some 10 

t ime to be saying we were working wi th Paras.   But  one was 

looking for the contract .   So where is the contract  wi th  

Paras?  Because we can only see an agreement  between the 

department and Est ina and Est ina is not  Paras.    

And then he said i f  I  recal l  correct ly  he was under the 

impression that  there was an agreement between Est ina and 

Paras that  Est ina would be assisted by Paras or something 

l ike that .    

But  the whole project  I  th ink was promoted on the 

basis that  Paras was part  of  the project  but  there was 20 

nothing in wr i t ing that  had been s igned by Paras wi th the 

department to say Paras was part  o f  the project .   That  is my 

recol lect ion.   Does i t  accord wi th your understanding? 

MR ZWANE:   Chair  I  th ink your recol lect ion wi l l  come handy 

wi th what I  have referred to the Chair  to.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   In October already.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   Paras was st i l l  an ent i ty or a service provider 

according to my knowledge and impression.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Your understanding.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  But  now what did you know Est ina ’s 

ro le to be in th is project  as at  October 2012?  Did you know 

about Est ina at  a l l?  10 

MR ZWANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  know about Est ina? 

MR ZWANE:   No Sir  – no Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When did you hear about  Est ina being 

involved in th is project  for the f i rst  t ime? 

MR ZWANE:   AI  th ink there was an issue raised by Treasury 

i f  I  –  i f  I  recal l  wel l  and Est ina – that  is why the Vrede Dai ry 

ended up in 00:25:30 the Est ina Vrede Dai ry.   And when 

asking is Paras Est ina then there was informat ion there I  

th ink at  the level  of  EXCO i f  I  am not  mistaken I  cannot 20 

recal l  that  these companies were work ing together.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So do you recal l  around about when i t  was 

that  th is… 

MR ZWANE:   I  th ink i t  was 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Transpi red.  
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MR ZWANE:   I  th ink i t  was 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were you st i l l  in the department? 

MR ZWANE:   No I  was long gone by then.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So by the t ime you lef t  the department in 

March 2013.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You had not  heard about Est ina being 

involved in th is project .  

MR ZWANE:   No Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Thabethe had never to ld you about i t  10 

ei ther in wri t ing or  verbal ly.  

MR ZWANE:   No Chair  not  of  what I  remember.   No.   That  is  

why in October I  was st i l l  going to Paras.   I  would have 

endeavoured to check where is Est ina – what – what  does i t  

look l ike as I  p lay my oversight? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  that  –  th is is very st range or  

interest ing but  then Mr Zwane you have to concede that 

there must  have been something wrong with  how you were 

performing your overs ight  funct ion over the department and 

over the HOD.  I f  for at  least  a  year 2012 because Mr 20 

Thabethe went to  India to see – to vis i t  Paras in February 

2012 you lef t  the department in March 2013. I f  for a whole 

year you were under the impression that  in regard to th is  

project  Paras was the department ’s  partner i t  had a contract  

wi th the department on this project  and you had heard 
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nothing about Est ina which was the ent i ty that  actual ly had 

an agreement wi th the department then there must  

something that  was terr ib ly  wrong with performing overs ight  

funct ions.    

Whatever i t  is we might  not  be able to detect  that  

maybe but  any overs ight  where your own HOD – where your 

department can give you the impression that  i t  has a 

contract  wi th an ent i ty a involving mi l l ions and mi l l ions of  

rands on a certain project  when actual ly i t  only  has a 

contract  wi th b and you are – you are not  aware of  th is ent i ty 10 

cal led b then there must  something that  is not  going wel l .   I t  

should not  be l ike that  is i t  not? 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  I  th ink this commission wi l l  appreciate 

that  I  d id take an in i t iat ive of  playing oversight  on the 

informat ion that  was before me.  And the evidence is  here 

r ight  in f ront  of  the commission.    

2.  The Chai r  has just  said in terms of  his best  recol lect ion 

the HOD when he was here gave an impression that  he 

himsel f  was under that  impression that  Paras was actual ly 

. . . [ indist inct  –  word cut  off ]  provider.   Now,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  20 

d id  ind i ca te  th i s  p rev ious ly  tha t  th is  a re  the  peop le  

appo in ted  in  te rms o f  the i r  knowledge,  sk i l l s  and 

qua l i f i ca t ions to  do  th is  work  as  g i ven to  them by law.   Now 

i f  a  repor t  comes  to  me and I  fo l low the  repor t ,  and  as  th is  

Commiss ion  can see,  tha t  I  d id  a t tempt  to  go  and meet  w i th  
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the  se rv i ce  p rov ider  and i t  i s  he re  in  the  i t inera ry,  I  wou ld  

no t  have,  hones t ly,  a  v iew tha t  I  was not  p layed my  

overs igh t .    

 I f  a t  a l l ,  the  ev idence in  th is  Commiss ion  was  

cont rary,  even  in  the  te rms o f  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

unders tand ing  tha t  no  Est ina  has a lways been there  and I  

am ta lk ing  about  –  bu t  I  w i l l  agree w i th  the  Cha i r.   The  

Cha i r  i s  say ing ,  in  te rms o f  h is  own reco l lec t ion ,  tha t  i s  

what  HOD(?)  sa id  in  th is  Commiss ion .   And I  am say ing  

tha t  i s  cor rec t .   That  was a l so  the  in fo rmat ion  g iven to  me.    10 

 So I  fo l low tha t  in fo rmat ion  and  a  repor t  was 

g iven to  me and I  p layed my overs igh t  over  the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]   I  am not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Zwane,  the  propos i t ion  is .   There  

must  be  someth ing  te r r ib le  wrong in  the  per fo rmance o f  

overs igh t  i f  i t  leads to  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  MEC of  the  

depar tment  th inks  the  depar tmen t  has a  cont rac t  w i th  a  

company in  Ind ia  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    H ’m? 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and i t  tu rns  ou t ,  he  even wan ts  to  go 20 

and meet  w i th  the  CEO of  tha t  company in  Ind ia  and i t  

tu rns  ou t  tha t  h is  depar tment  never  had a  cont rac t  w i th  

tha t  company,  number  one.   Number  two,  i f  i t  tu rns  ou t  tha t  

i t s  –  h is  depar tment  had a  cont rac t  w i th  a  loca l  company,  

Est ina ,  and fo r  a  who le  year  i t  d id  no t  know about .    
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 I  am say ing  the re  must  be  someth ing  te r r ib le  

wrong i f  per fo rmance o f  the  overs igh t  funct ion  by  the  MEC 

does not  enab le  h im to  d iscover  tha t .   Do you d isagree? 

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Why?  You th ink  overs igh t  –  the  

overs igh t  funct ion  wou ld  be  pe r fo rmed qu i te  we l l  i f  such 

cha l lenges wou ld  ar ise?  

MR ZWANE :    I  am pa in t ing  a  p ic tu re  here ,  Cha i r,  tha t  

overs igh t  i s  p layed in  te rms o f  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  

p laced before  you.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    When you p lay  ove rs igh t ,  you do no t  go  and 

d ig  what  i s  no t  in  f ron t  o f  you un less  there  is  an 

in fo rmat ion  or  somebody has ra ised an issue in  te rms o f  

th is  same repor t  tha t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  you.   The repor t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you ca l l  fo r  in fo rmat ion  as  we l l .  

MR ZWANE :    There  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You must  jus t  re ly  on  what  o f f i c ia ls  g ive  

you.   You must  have an unders tand ing  tha t  w i l l  enab le  you 20 

to  say:   I  see  what  you are  g iv ing  me but  there  is  

someth ing  e l se  tha t  you shou ld  be  g iv ing  me tha t  you are  

no t  g iv ing  me.   I  want  tha t .   Where  is  th is?   Where  is  tha t?   

Where  is  tha t?   Br ing  i t  here .   Tha t  i s  what  you shou ld  do .   

You shou ld  no t  say :   Th is  i s  what  the  o f f i c ia ls  g ive  me.   I  
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w i l l  on ly  look  a t  what  the  o f f i c ia ls  g ive  me.   What  do  you  

say to  tha t?  

MR ZWANE :    No,  Cha i r  i t  no t  l i ke  tha t ,  un for tunate ly,  in  

the  pub l i c  sec to r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    You do not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You say i t  i s  f ine  i f  –  a re  you say ing  tha t  

as  an  MEC in  p lay ing  –  i n  pe r fo rming your  overs igh t  

funct ion  over  the  depar tment ,  you  must  on ly  look  a t  what  

the  o f f i c ia ls  g ive  you?  You must  no t  ca l l  fo r  o ther  10 

documents  tha t  they m ight  no t  be  g iv ing  you wh ich  a re  

impor tan t  o r  re levant  fo r  your  overs igh t  funct ion?  

MR ZWANE :    Once you know tha t  there  are  documents  

tha t  a re  no t  g i ven to  you,  once tha t  comes to  your  

knowledge,  you  w i l l  indeed request  fo r  tha t  add i t iona l  

in fo rmat ion .   I t  is  a  s tandard  in  the  depar tments  tha t  in  a  

par t i cu la r  t ime you must  ge t  the  repor t  in  te rms  o f  how 

th ings are  go ing .   In  a  par t i cu la r  t ime,  you must  then p lay  

your  overs igh t  based on the  repor t  tha t  i s  p laced before  

you.  20 

 Now I  am say ing  to  th is  Commiss ion .   Based on 

the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was put  be fo re  me,  s igned by  the  HOD 

about  Paras,  i t  is  here .   I  was go ing  to  Paras myse l f  in  

October  to  p lay  my overs igh t  because a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  

t ime there  was noth ing  tha t  was susp ic ious in  te rms o f  the 
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repor ts .   In  fac t ,  on  the  h inds igh t ,  i f  the  meet ing  w i th  Paras  

I  had,  had mater ia l i sed  I  wou ld  have p icked i t  up  there  tha t  

no  I  am knock ing  a t  the  wrong door.   Yes.  

 And I  wou ld  have w i thout  any hes i ta t ion  ac ted  

and then I  wou ld  have then gone to  what  the  Cha i r  i s  

say ing :   No,  b r ing  the  documents  and le t  me see the  

cont rac t .   Embar rassed as  I  wou ld  be  but  I  w i l l  then,  a t  tha t  

po in t ,  because there  is  th is  i ssue tha t  has been ra i sed.   I  

know about  i t .   Get  to  deeper  de ta i l s .   But  i f  there  i s  

no th ing ,  normal ly  Cha i r,  we do no t  ask  fo r  someth ing  tha t  10 

we do not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  le t  me a l low you  to  pu t  

quest ions to  m is ter.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  know we are  four  m inutes  to  one but  I  

th ink  le t  us  ad jou rn  fo r  lunch a t  quar te r  past  one.   Le t  me 

g ive  you a  chance to . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Yes,  Mr  Zwane,  

a  coup le  o f  th ings and I  was s t ruck  by  the  fac t  tha t  you  

sa id  the  meet ing  w i th  the  CEO of  Paras in  Ind ian  d id  no t  20 

take  p lace but  I  thought  tha t  i t inerary  o f  yours  wou ld  have  

been ar ranged on  the  bas is  tha t  whoever  you were  go ing  to  

see has agreed to  see you.   I t  i s  a  p r io r  a r rangement .   That  

i s  why i t  i s  then dated.   Even the  da te  i s  there  and you 

wou ld  know wh ich  day you a re  see ing  who,  wh ich  day you  
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a re  see ing  wh ich  one.   So how come tha t  the  CEO was not  

ava i lab le?  

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  I  d id  say the  CEO was not  ava i lab le .   

Someth ing  urgent  had c ropped up.   I  d id  say tha t .   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Two.   In  regard  to  –  back to  the 

issues the  Cha i rperson has been dea l ing  w i th  you.   Cha i r,  I  

–  we might  as  we l l  jus t  go  in to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sure ,  Mr  Zwane,  you can see  th is  i s  

no t  –  the  p ic tu re  tha t  you emerges is  –  you are  go ing  a l l  

the  way to  Ind ia  to  meet  w i th  somebody tha t  you be l ieve  is  

the  CEO of  the  company tha t  the  depar tment  has an  

agreement  w i th ,  ac tua l l y  tha t  i s  wrong.   There  is  no  

agreement .   But  here  i t  i s  Est ina  loca l l y.   You are  no t . . .   

[ laughs]   You do not  know about  them.   You do not  go  and  

do overs igh t  there .   [ laughs]    

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And Mr  Zwane,  the  ev idence o f  

the  CFO,  Ms Sepath i  D lamin i ,  ta lks  about  your  ca l l  to  her.   

Your  te lephone ca l l  to  her  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Okay?  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .on  the  15 t h  o f  June 2012.   Now th is  

i s  some two days or  th ree  days a f te r  you r  depar tment  o r  

Exco has approved the  pro jec t .   You approved  on the  

12 t h  o f  June 2012 .   On the  15 t h ,  she rece ives a  ca l l  f rom 

you,  she says.   And you wanted to  en ter  –  to  go  to  a  

meet ing  in  regard  to  the  R 30 mi l l ion  prepayment .   And 

guess i t  was to  who in  regard  to  the  pro jec t?   I t  was to  

Est ina .  

MR ZWANE :    Can I  answer?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  p lease.  10 

MR ZWANE :    Thank you very  much,  Advocate  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    The in fo rmat ion  tha t  th is  Commiss ion  shou ld  

have is  tha t  when th is  p ro jec t  was approved by  Exo there  

were  issues,  number  one,  tha t  had  to  be  looked in to  by  the 

commi t tee ,  Treasury  Commi t tee .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  dea l  w i th  tha t  

in  due course  because we are  go ing  to  come to  them.  

MR ZWANE :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  jus t  you r  comment  on  you ca l led  20 

he r,  you sa id  to  her :   Go to  a  meet ing  w i th  M – i s  i t  MEC or  

Mr  Moha l i?   And  th is  was in  regard  to  the  prepayment  o f  

R 30 mi l l ion  to  none o ther  than Est ina .  

MR ZWANE :    I  may –  I  am tak ing  a  long rou te .   Le t  me be 

shor t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR ZWANE :    And get  to  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  po in t .   I  made a  

ca l l  to  the  CFO.   I t  was on Fr iday  a f te rnoon.   I  th ink  she  

has a lso  sa id  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  yes .  

MR ZWANE :    That  I  was supposed to  repor t .   We had Exco 

on eve ry  Wednesday.   I  am supposed to  go  back to  Exco 

and repor t  in  te rms o f  the  work  done s ince  the  las t . . .   And 

he then ra ised the  issue tha t  Treasury  seems to  be  s t i l l  

busy in  te rms o f  what  they need  to . . .   I  then ca l led  the  10 

MEC of  Treasury  and asked h im:   I s  there  any p rog ress  

tha t  we w i l l  repor t ,  because we are  bo th  go ing  to  tha t  Exco 

meet ing  on  Wednesday.    

 The MEC sa id :   No,  I  am busy w i th  my o f f i c ia ls .   

I  am a t  th is  p lace .   I t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  i f  you  can make  

your  o f f i c ia l s  ava i lab le  shou ld  they have any quest ions to  

c la r i f y  in  te rms o f  the  prog ress in  th is  p ro jec t .   My ca l l  was  

not  spec i f i ca l l y  a  ca l l  tha t  was a imed a t  the  re leas ing(?)  o f  

the  R 30 mi l l ion .   I t  was a  ca l l  tha t  was say ing :   As  we go  

to  Exco,  le t  us  know how much  we have progressed or  20 

there  a re  i ssues tha t  w i l l  enab le  us  to  have more  t ime in  

te rms o f  Treasury.   We wi l l  have to  g ive  tha t  repor t .   That  

was my ca l l  to  the  CFO.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  d id  you ask  the  CFO to  do?  

MR ZWANE :    I  asked the  CFO to  jo in  the  MEC of  Treasury  
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w i th  h is  team.   He had g iven me a  venue where  they were  

meet ing .   They were  in  a  meet ing  when I  ta lked to  h im.   He  

sa id :   No,  fo r tunate ly,  we are  here .   We are  meet ing .   So 

we can look a t  tha t  i ssue and i f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i ssue was tha t?  

MR ZWANE :    The progress in  te rms o f  what  needed to  be  

done by  the  commi t tee  and the  depar tment  per ta in ing  the  

pro jec t .   Le t  me jus t ,  maybe fo r  the  sake o f  v iewers .   There  

was an issue o f  R 84 mi l l ion  tha t  the  Treasury  Commi t tee  

had to  look  in to .   There  was an issue o f  our  R 30  mi l l ion  10 

tha t  our  depar tment  had sa id  –  the  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  –  i t  i s  ava i lab le .    

 Now look ing  a t  the  magn i tude  o f  what  was 

needed and Treasury  had to  look  in to .   We had to  go  back 

to  Exco and say i t  i s  feas ib le  o r  i s  no t  feas ib le  o r  we need  

to  buy more  t ime  in  te rms o f  a l low ing o f f i c ia ls  to  work  on  

th is  p ro jec t .   Tha t  was my ca l l  to  her  to  say:   Le t  us  no t  be  

found want ing  because we are  the  lead depar tment  in  

te rms o f  th is  p ro jec t .  

 I f  Treasury  i s  say ing  they are  ready,  they can 20 

engage on th is  mat te r  and reso lve ,  can you p lease then go 

to  a  meet ing?  Meet  w i th  the  o f f i c ia ls  there  and the  MEC 

wi l l  g ive  me a  repor t  on  Monday.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  was about  R 84 mi l l ion  no t  the  

R 30 mi l l ion?  
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MR ZWANE :    Treasury  was look ing  in to  the  feas ib i l i t y  o f  

ge t t ing  th is  R 84 mi l l ion .   Th i r t y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  your  depar tment?  

MR ZWANE :    For  the  pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  the  pro jec t?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   H ’m? 

MR ZWANE :    That  emai l ,  to  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  

Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR ZWANE :    The depar tment  was requ i red  to  rep r io r i t i se  

w i th in  the  depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I t  i s  tha t  repr io r i t i sa t ion  tha t  wou ld  go  back  

to  Exco to  ta lk  about .   I t  i s  a lso  about  the  feas ib i l i t y  o f  the 

R 84 mi l l ion  tha t  w i l l  b r ing  the  who le  annua l  amount  o f  th is  

p ro jec t  to  R 140 mi l l ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    So  my was tha t ,  le t  us  no t  be  found want ing  

on  overs igh t  in  te rms o f  g iv ing  in fo rmat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    That  was the  essence o f  the  ca l l .    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  –  to  your  knowledge the  meet ing  

to  wh ich  you were  send ing  the  CFO was to  d iscuss  money 

fo r  the  Est ina  Pro jec t?  
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MR ZWANE :    I  do  no t  know whe ther  to  ca l l  i t  Es t ina  or  

Paras.   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    I t  is  l i ke  the  issue o f  the  cho i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have never  heard  i t  ca l led  Paras  

Pro jec t .  

MR ZWANE :    Oh ,  bu t  l i ke  –  le t  me accept ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    A f te r  th is  d iscuss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec ts .   Then you can  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i t  w i l l  su f f i ce .  

MR ZWANE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    That  was the  ar rangements  in  t e rms o f  

f inances o f  tha t  p ro jec t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  you see,  Mr  Zwane.   Okay,  le t  20 

me ask th is  ques t ion .   I  take  i t  tha t  you repor ted  regu lar ly  

to  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  about  how th is  p ro ject  was go ing  

as  we l l  as  o ther  p ro jec ts  in  your  depar tment?  

MR ZWANE :    I  take  i t  Cha i r  tha t  the  leader  o f  ev idence  

here  has jus t  repor ted  tha t  th is  was a  pro jec t  recent ly  
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app roved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  what  I  mean.   Once i t  had been 

approved . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .go ing  fo rward  up  to  the  t ime you le f t  

the  depar tment .   I  take  i t  tha t  you repor ted  regu lar ly  a t  

cer ta in  in te rva l s  to  Exco . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .as  to  how the  pro jec t  was go ing .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And wou ld  tha t  have been maybe – 

what?   A t  leas t  once a  month  or  once every  th ree  months  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    I t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i s  tha t?  

MR ZWANE :    I t  can  depend,  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  pr io r i t y  20 

g iven to  the  pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  okay.    

MR ZWANE :    Th is  p ro jec t ,  as  i t  was approved,  there  was 

urgency a t tached  to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR ZWANE :    I t  is  there  in  the  m inutes  o f  Exco.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    And once you have tha t  –  and i t  was a  

re f lec t ion(? )  p ro jec t  tha t  was a lso  announced in  the  s ta te  

o f  the  prov ince o f  the  Premie r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    So i t  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was an impor tan t  p ro jec t?  

MR ZWANE :    I t  w i l l  gave tha t  p r io r i t y  tha t  anyt ime when  

you are  g iven a  task  to  per fo rm,  you must  be  ready tha t  10 

you shou ld  repor t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Regu lar ly.  

MR ZWANE :    Not  even regu la r ly.   There  m ight  be  a  

quest ion :   How fa r  a re  you in  te rms . . .? 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    You shou ld  no t  be  found want ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR ZWANE :    So  tha t  was the  dr i ve  in  te rms o f  th is  p ro jec t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So in  o ther  words.   You shou ld  be  up to  20 

da te?  

MR ZWANE :    You must  be  up  to  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you can  be asked anyt ime.  

MR ZWANE :    Anyt ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   You see the  –  i t  i s  jus t  d i f f i cu l t  

to  unders tand how i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  on  a  pro jec t  tha t  was 

so  impor tan t  to  the  prov ince and to  Exco and to  your  

depar tment  and on wh ich  you cou ld  be  asked anyt ime,  you 

cou ld  be  asked quest ions,  you may have to  repor t  anyt ime.   

How i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  th roughout  the  per iod  o f  

February  2012 up to  March when  you le f t  in  2013(?) ,  you  

cou ld  no t  have known tha t  there  was Est ina  p lay ing  a  ro le  

in  the  pro jec t  un less  the  head o f  depar tment  made a  10 

concer ted  e f fo r t  tha t  you shou ld  no t  know about  Est ina .    

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  maybe I  must  t ry  and g i ve  some more  

in fo rmat ion  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  around March /Apr i l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    2012?  

MR ZWANE :    2012.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    In  my speech,  as  an  MEC now o f  Depar tment  

o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  Deve lopment ,  I  tab led  th is  p ro jec t ,  20 

no t  in  February.   March /Apr i l .   R igh t?   And once I  have 

tab led  –  the  Premier  w i l l  come w i th  a  he l i copter  v iew o f  

what  the  depar tment  w i l l  do  and  tha t  bu t  the  depar tment  

w i l l  then g ive  de ta i l s  du r ing  the i r  p resenta t ion .  

 Th is  i s  a  p ro jec t  tha t  was announced by  the  
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P remie r  a round March or  la te  February,  le t  us  say  so .   Our  

depar tment  in  a round Apr i l  and a f te r  Apr i l ,  when the  pro jec t  

has been announced by  the  depar tment ,  work  wou ld  s ta r t  

to  happen.   Then i t  i s  May/June go ing  fo rward .  

 In  fac t ,  i f  you  come f rom tha t  po in t ,  you w i l l  see  

tha t  f rom Apr i l  to  June(? ) ,  i t  was two months.   June to  

September,  four  months .   November  s ix  months .   A round 

Apr i l ,  you  see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Months  by  months?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    The fo l low ing year.   Now,  fo r  a l l  in tense and 

purposes,  Cha i r,  I  d id  what  I  cou ld .   I  do  no t  want  to  cast  

susp ic ions because I  do  no t  l i ke  tha t  happen ing  to  me a lso  

bu t  I  g ive  what  was b rought  to  me and I  ac ted  upon i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  was  brought  to  you by  –  or  

what  was to ld  t o  you by  the  HOD,  Mr  Thabethe,  d id  no t  

inc lude h im te l l ing  you tha t  the  company tha t  the  

depar tment  had a  cont rac t  w i th  o r  had an agreement  w i th  

was Est ina?  That  i s  no t  par t  o f  what  he  to ld  you? 20 

MR ZWANE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Se leka,  I  know I  sa id  I  

was g iv ing  you t ime.   Would  you l i ke  to  go?  [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    No prob lem.   As long as  I  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You have f i ve  m inutes  be fore  we take 

the  lunch break,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    My t ime is  you r  t ime,  Cha i r.   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I f  you  spent  i t ,  i t  i s  as  much as  I  spent  

i t ,  Cha i r.   [ laughs ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  Zwane ,  the  –  Ms D lamin i  i s  10 

spec i f i ca l l y.   Her  a f f idav i t  i s  here ,  Cha i r.   Spec i f i ca l l y  

towards . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease te l l  me where  to  f ind  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 353.398.  

CHAIRPERSON :    398,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    She is  spec i f i ca l l y  ta lk ing  about  the  

R 30 mi l l ion  in  regard  to  your  ca l l  to  her  on  the 

15 t h  o f  June 2015  –  I  mean 2012.   So you w i l l  see  on page 20 

353.409 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Four,  zero ,  n ine .   Paragraph 9 .    

MR ZWANE :    Four,  zero ,  n ine?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  
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MR ZWANE :    Yes,  Cha i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 9 .   So th is  who le  par t ,  the  

re ference you w i l l  see  i t  i s  on l y  to  the  R 30 mi l l ion .   9 .1  

says:  

“On the  same day,  15  June 2012,  wh ich  was a  

Fr iday a f te rnoon ,  I  have rece ived urgent  

ins t ruc t ions f rom the  MEC of  Agr icu l tu re  and 

Rura l  Deve lopment ,  i .e .  Mr  M Zwane,  to  

u rgent ly  a t tend  the  meet ing  w i th  MEC of  

F inance,  i .e .  Mr  M Moha i . . . ”  10 

 I s  i t  Moha i?   

MR ZWANE :    Moha i .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Moha i?   I s  i t  an  I?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  in  the  end.   Thank you.    

“ I  cou ld  sense urgency in  the  ins t ruc t ion  g iven  

the  fac t  tha t  I  had to  do  i t  on  a  Fr iday in  the  

a f te rnoon and there  was a lso  a  bank c red i t  

t ransfer  document  tha t  had to  go  th rough 

Treasury  fo r  i t  to  be  send to  the  bank in  o rde r  20 

o f  the  bank to  t ransfer  the  payment  to  the  

in tended benef ic ia ry  (Est ina)  to  pay fo r  the  

pro jec t .  

The bank cred i t  t ransfer  document  comes in  

the  p ic tu re  where  the  payment  o f  any amount  
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above one mi l l ion  had to  be  made.  

Th is  p rocess had  s tar ted  w i th  myse l f  and the  

D i rec tor  o f  F inance in  the  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  hav ing  fo l lowed cor rec t  p rocess to  

request  payment  o f  R 30 mi l l ion . . . ”  

 The next  pa ragraph:  

“A t  15  June 2012,  when I  was ins t ruc ted  by  

MEC Zwane to  meet  w i th  MEC Moha i ,  the 

Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  had a l ready remi t ted  

a l l  the  necessary  documenta t ion  to  Treasury  10 

so  tha t  Treasury  cou ld  ass is t  in  the  fo rmal  

f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  payment  o f  R 30 mi l l ion ,  

wh ich  payment  was in tended fo r  the  

benef ic ia r i es . . . ”  

 I  w i l l  sk ip  the  paragraphs.   Le t  us  go  to  the  next  

page,  parag raph 9 .6 .  

“ I  a r r i ved a t  Anta  Boga Hote l  fo r  the  

meet ing . . . ”  

 So th is  i s  meet ing  in  a  pr iva te  ho te l?  

MR ZWANE :    H ’m.   Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  no t  in  the  depar tment?  

MR ZWANE :    We d id  no t  have su f f i c ien t  venues so  i t  was 

a  normal  p rac t ice  in  the  Free S ta te  to  do  tha t .   I t  i s  save to  

say,  th is  was not  my meet ing ,  Cha i r.   Before  I  cas t  

susp ic ions or  –  th is  was the  meet ing  organ ised by  
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Treasury.   I  jus t  requested my o f f i c ia l  to  jo in  them.   I  may 

not  know the  de ta i l s .   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   You take your  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  

i t  be ing  ou ts ide  o f  your  o f f i ces  o f  the  depar tment?  

MR ZWANE :    I  am jus t  re la t ing  tha t  tha t  was a  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  okay.  

MR ZWANE :    Ja .   We used to  do  tha t  in  the  Free S ta te .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  bu t  –  okay.   Here  is  the . . .   Know,  

she has emphas ised she cou ld  sense u rgency,  she cou ld  

sense urgency and in  the  subsequent  paragraph,  she  wou ld  10 

say the  same th ing ,  the  urgency f rom your  communica t ion  

w i th  her  and i t  is  spec i f i ca l l y  in  regard  to  the  payment  o f  

R 30 mi l l ion .   How d id  you know tha t  th is  payment  had to  

be  made?  One.   Two.   What  was urgent  about  i t?   But  le t  

us  dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  par t .   How d id  you know th is  amount  

had to  be  pa id?    

MR ZWANE :    Can I  respond?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Thank you ve ry  much,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  I  had  

a l ready responded to  th is  quest ion  in  te rms o f  my  ca l l  to  20 

the  CFO.   My ca l l  was never  about  the  payment  o f  any 

money to  anybody.   My ca l l  was about  the  progress tha t  I  

needed to  repor t  back to  Exco,  as  I  have sa id .   So  tha t  i s  

what  I  want  to  pu t  on  record  to  th is  Commiss ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry,  I  am confused.   Th i s  meet ing  
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Ms D lamin i  i s  ta l k ing  about ,  i t  i s  about  to  de te rmine why 

there  is  a  de lay  in  pay ing  the  R 30  mi l l ion .  

MR ZWANE :    The meet ing  i s  about  Treasury  and 

Agr icu l tu re  prepar ing  any response,  shou ld  i t  be  needed,  in  

the  next  meet ing .   I t  was the  next  Wednesday.   About  two  

aspects .   The  repr io r i t i sa t ion  o f  p ro jec ts  w i th in  the 

depar tment  i t se l f  to  the  tune o f  R 30 mi l l ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    And the  issue o f  R 84 mi l l ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  10 

MR ZWANE :    My ca l l  was about  tha t .   I t  was no t  about  

pay ing  anybody.   That  i s  no t  my pu rv iew.   To  the  bes t  o f  my 

reco l lec t ion ,  I  have not  seek to  in te r fe re  un less  there  is  

somebody who has not  been pa id  w i th in  the  per iod  tha t  we  

have sa id  peop le  shou ld  be  pa id  in  –  in  respec t  o f  th is  

case i t  was 30 -days.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  see  tha t  Ms D lamin i  la te r  in  her  

a f f idav i t  a t  page 353.415 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  can I  in te r jec t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   [ laughs]   I  th ink  I  know why.  20 

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  take  the  lunch break.   We 

wi l l  resume –  i t  i s  now near ly  twenty  past  one.   We wi l l  

resume a t  twenty  past  two.   

MR ZWANE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   The Cha i r  has no  

fo l low-up quest ions?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  w i l l  now le t  you  ask  your  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  we w i l l  f in ish ,  Cha i r .   By  f i ve  

o ’c lock  or  so  we w i l l  be  f in ished w i th  Mr  Zwane.   Mr  Zwane,  

so  tha t  i s  the  Es t ina  par t  and the  ev idence by  Ms D lamin i  10 

about  a  R30 mi l l ion .   I  had asked you the  quest ion  how d id  

you know the  30  mi l l ion  was to  be  pa id .   You say no ,  you r  

ca l l  was not  about  a  payment  o f  an  amount .   You d id  

ment ion ,  however ,  tha t  there  was what ,  rea l loca t ion  to  be  

made?  

MR ZWANE:    Re-pr io r i t i sa t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Repr io r i t i sa t ion .   Ja  and I  thought  I  

cou ld  ask  you about  Ms Four ie ,  Anna Four ie ’s  ev idence 

par t i cu la r l y  in  regard  to  tha t  because in  her  a f f idav i t  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  wh ich  is  on  page 353.358 we –  jus t  go  to  20 

po in t  360.    

MR ZWANE:    360?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  po in t  60 ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  po in t  60 ,  i s  tha t  353.60?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t ,  Cha i r ,  yes ,  353.6  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  we mov ing  away f rom…? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  le t  us  go  fu r ther  because the  f i rs t  

par t ,  i t  i s  a  con f i rmatory  o f  what  she d id  submi t  as  her  

ac tua l  a f f idav i t  on  page 353.360.   So Mr  Zwane,  she 

submi ts  th is  a f f idav i t .  She says she had been employed by  

the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Treasury  as  the  Deputy  D i rec tor  

Genera l  F inance  Governance.   That  i s  in  parag raph 1 .   

Paragraph 4  says :  

“Due to  my respons ib i l i t i es  re la ted  to  r i sk  10 

management  as  we l l  as  norms and s tandards  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second?  You sa id  we 

shou ld  go  to  353.60.   That  i s  where  I  am but  I  do  no t  see a  

parag raph marked 4 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Poin t  360.  

CHAIRPERSON :    353.360?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Poin t  360,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So I  have read paragraph 1 ,  she was 20 

employed by  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Treasury  as  the  

Deputy  D i rec to r  Genera l  F inance Governance and then she 

makes the  a f f idav i t ,  paragraph 3 ,  in  her  o f f i c ia l  capac i ty  as  

the  Deputy  D i rec to r  Genera l  F inance Governance –  

F inanc ia l  Governance.  
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“Where  we now repor t  d i rec t l y  to  the  head o f  

depar tment . ”  

Then parag raph 4 :  

“Due to  my respons ib i l i t i es  re la ted  to  r i sk  

management  as  we l l  as  norms and s tandards  I  

a t tend to  va r ious meet ings. ”  

Paragraph 5  on  the  next  page,  she says:  

“On 15 June 2012 I  a t tended s ta f f  func t ion .   In  the  

same funct ion  the  then CEO Mr  Kgomongwe was 

present .   Whi le  a t  the  s ta f f  func t ion ,  Mr  10 

Kgomongwe,  requested me to  ass is t  the  o the r  

co l leagues w i th in  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  

Treasury  to  cons ider  the  funds requ i red  by  the  Free  

S ta te  Depar tmen t  o f  Agr icu l tu re .   Whi le  a t  the  

funct ion  the  then Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  O f f i cer…”  

That  i s   D lamin i .  

“…f rom Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  

ar r i ved.  When she ar r i ved I  and o ther  co l leagues  

had to  leave the  funct ion  ear l ie r  and go back to  the  

o f f i ce .   A t  the  o f f i ce  the  CFO produced the  cont rac t  20 

be tween the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  

and Est ina  as  we l l  as  a  payment  document  reques t  

f rom the  Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  fo r  

an  amount  o f  R30 mi l l ion .   The  documents  were  

assessed and ce r ta in  quest ions were  asked to  the  
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CFO,  wh ich  some o f  those quest ions were  re la ted  o t  

the  cont rac t  p roduced by  the  CFO.   She was unab le  

to  answer  sa t is fac tor i l y .   A f te r  assess ing  the  

documents  Ms M Maduka,  an  o f f i c i a l  respons ib le  fo r  

the  Prov inc ia l  Revenue Fund a t  the  t ime was  

requested to  ver i f y  the  ava i lab i l i t y  o f  the  funds in  

the  Prov inc ia l  Revenue bank account .   On 

conf i rmat ion  o f  the  ba lance the  max imum amount  

wh ich  was ava i lab le ,  i f  the  payment  shou ld  proceed,  

was on ly  R5 mi l l ion .   There  were  no t  enough funds 10 

in  the  Prov inc ia l  Revenue Fund.   We were  unab le  t o  

e f fec t  the  payment  o f  R30 mi l l ion . ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t ,  Mr  Zwane? 

MR ZWANE:    No,  I  do  no t  have.   I  do  no t  have any 

comment ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  do  you reca l l  whether  in  

te rms o f  the  agreement  be tween the  depar tment  and  Est ina  

there  was prov is ion  to  say the  prepayment  shou ld  precede  

the i r  ac tua l  commencement  o f  the  work .   We have  ca l led  i t  

p repayment .   I  do  no t  know whether  tha t  i s  what  –  tha t  20 

comes f rom the  cont rac t  o r  no t .   Do you remember  what  the  

pos i t ion  was?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  saw in  one a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r ,  a  

re fe rence to  a  c lause in  the  agreement  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  

in i t ia l  t ransfe r  payment  o f  R30 mi l l ion  sha l l  be  pa id  in to  the 
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account  o f  the  imp lement ing  agent ,  Es t ina  (P ty)  L td .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  in  te rms o f  anyth ing  a long the  l ines  

o f  i t  happen ing  before  any work  was to  be  done,  d id  you 

come across anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  have  to  –  no ,  I  do  no t  know 

o f fhand.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  i t  comes –  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  I  do  no t  know o f fhand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  what  I  p icked up  in  Ms 

D lamin i ’ s  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Zwane,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  l as t  page,  i f  I  

am not  m is taken  –  i f  you  need us  to  go  there  we  can go 

there .   What  she does say is  tha t  there  was u rgency  fo r  the  

pro jec t  to  s ta r t  o r  she posed i t  as  k ick-s ta r t  the  pro jec t .   

Now I  am unders tand the  impress ion  tha t  you a lso  spoke 

about  u rgency in  regard  to  the  pro jec t  bu t  I  may be  

mis taken,  am I  r igh t?  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  I  th ink  the  urgency I  d id  say was in  

fac t  f rom the  execut ive  commi t tee .   In  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  20 

Venter ,  the  m inutes  o f  the  execut i ve  commi t tee ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

po in t  3 ,  i t  says  –  i t  ta lks  about  the  urgency o f  th is  p ro jec t  

be ing  imp lemented.   That  i s  what  I  was ment ion ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

MR ZWANE:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So I  am wonder ing  whethe r  the  pos i t ion  

is  no t  tha t  th is  payment  o f  R8 mi l l ion  has to  be  made 

before  the  pro jec t  cou ld  s ta r t  because i f  the  a r rangement  

o r  agreement  was  tha t  i t  shou ld  be  pa id  f i r s t ,  i t  may be tha t  

i t  was urgent  because the  o the r  par ty  to  the  cont rac t ,  

Es t ina ,  wh ich  you thought  was Paras,  may have taken the  

pos i t ion  tha t  we cannot  s ta r t  the  pro jec t  un t i l  you  make th is  

payment .   You unders tand what  I  mean? 

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  do  unders tand,  bu t  I  am not  

p r ivy  to  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  know what  the  pos i t ion  was.  

MR ZWANE:    Ja ,  no ,  I  am not  p r ivy  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   But  I  unders tand you,  Mr  Zwane,  

to  be  say ing  be fore  the  ad journment  tha t  you needed to  

show tha t  you w i l l  p lay  your  par t  and you seem to  l ink  tha t  

to  the  urgency o f  the  mat te r .  

MR ZWANE:    I  d id  say,  I  needed to  be  ready fo r  feedback  

in  te rms o f  the  dec is ions taken …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  sor ry ,  no t  you persona l ly ,  I  am 20 

ta lk ing  the  depar tment  –  as  I  unders tood you,  the  

depar tment  needed to  show tha t  i t  w i l l  p lay  i t s  par t  and 

tha t  seemed to  have been the  reason fo r  u rgency.  

MR ZWANE:    I  have ind ica ted  tha t  bo th  ourse l ves and 

Treasury  were  g iven tasks  and I  have ind ica ted  those  
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tasks ,  Cha i r ,  and  I  a lso  ind ica ted  tha t  on  our  s ide  I  d id  no t  

want  us  to  be  found lack ing  as  the  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  in  t e rms o f  what  was g iven us  as  a  task  be fore  

the  next  execut ive  commi t tee  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  tha t  30  mi l l ion  i s  ca l led  an  in i t ia l  

t ransfer  payment  wh ich  I  have wondered why d id  the 

depar tment  have to  make i t  because on the  ev idence o f  Ms  

D lamin i  –  and I  w i l l  read f rom her  a f f idav i t  –  apparent ly ,  

Paras had under taken to  invest  R228 mi l l ion  in to  the  

pro jec t ,  she says VAT inc lus ive .  10 

MR ZWANE:    So  she a l so  ta lks  about  Paras.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  she says –  bu t  th is  i s  a t  the  

presenta t ion  s tage,  th is  i s  p r io r  to  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  

agreement .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.   No,  I  was jus t  ind ica t ing  tha t  

seeming ly  there  is  cons i s tency in  te rms o f  th is  i ssue o f  

Paras f rom the  p r io r  p resenta t ion  bu t  le t  me answer  your  

quest ion ,  Cha i r .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  I  d id  …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  d id  no t  ask  a  quest ion  bu t  I  th ink  you 

can assume f rom my s ta tement  to  you what  the  quest ion  is .   

Shou ld  I  o r  do  you want  to  say someth ing?  

MR ZWANE:    No,  I  am ready fo r  the  quest ion ,  

Cha i rperson.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  the  quest ion  is ,  why  d id  you  

need to  make an  in i t ia l  payment  o f  30  m i l l ion  th ree  days 

a f te r  Exco approved the  p ro jec t  when a l leged ly  Paras had  

commi t ted  to  invest ing  R228 m i l l ion  in to  the  pro jec t?   

Cou ld  you not  have asked them to  s ta r t  w i th  the  payment ,  

a  down payment?  

MR ZWANE:    We,  as  the  depar tment  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    I  am sure  in  th is  case.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  cor rec t .  10 

MR ZWANE:    And i t  w i l l  fu r ther  cascade down to  PFMA in  

te rms o f  a r rangements  o f  payment ,  a r rangements  o f  the  

process p lan  when i t  comes to  t h is  p ro jec t .   So the  n i t t y  

g r i t t ies  in  te rms o f  how th is  was ar ranged shou ld  ac tua l l y  

be  the  work  o f  the  HOD ass i s ted  o f  course  by  o f f i c ia ls  l i ke  

CFO which  I  have ind ica ted  ear l ie r  on  tha t  I  had not  seen  

the  cont rac t  and those deta i l s  I  am sure  wou ld  have been  

conta ined in  the  cont rac t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So you are  say ing  you are  no t  ab le  to  

say why the  R30  mi l l ion  had to  be  pa id  w i th in  a  space o f  20 

th ree  days a f te r  Exco had approved the  pro jec t?  

MR ZWANE:    No ,  I  am not  ab le  to  say why.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are  no t  ab le  to .  

MR ZWANE:    And why was i t  supposed to  be  pa id  up  f ron t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 107 of 354 
 

MR ZWANE:    I  am not  ab le  to  say  why.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  I  am in t r igued by  tha t  because th is  

p ro jec t  i s  you in i t ia t ion ,  i t  i s  a  p ro jec t  wh ich  one  wou ld  

re fer  to  as  your  b ra inch i ld  insp i red  by  your  upbr ing ing  w i th  

your  fa ther ,  you have seen the  b lack  fa rmers  who were  no t  

mak ing  i t  and you in i t ia ted  the  pro jec t  w i th  the  in ten t ion  to  

tu rn  around a  s i tua t ion .   You go to  the  communi t i es ,  you  

ca l l  meet ings,  you a t tend meet ings w i th  them in  o rde r  to  

in t roduce the  pro jec t ,  in  o rder  to  ident i f y  the  benef ic ia r ies  

fo r  the  pro jec t  and change the i r  l i ves  and here  the  process,  10 

you ac tua l l y  a l so  se l l  the  idea,  as  you sa id ,  to  the  o ther  

po l i t i c ians or  members  o f  o ther  po l i t i ca l  par t ies  serv ing  

w i th  you a t  the  p rov ince.    But  you seem the reaf te r ,  i f  one 

l i s tens to  your  answers ,  to  have dropped the  ba l l .  

MR ZWANE:    No,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  tha t .   I  th ink  there  

are  ro les  and respons ib i l i t i es  in  government  wh ich  a t  a  

par t i cu la r  po in t  I  must  hand over  to  the  o f f i c ia ls .   The  

issues o f  p rocurement  in  the  main  accord ing  to  a  PFMA are  

no t  my purv iew,  i t  i s  a  purv iew tha t  i s  be ing  p rac t ised and 

moni to red  by  o f f i c ia ls .   I  do  ge t  in  there  i f  there  are  i ssues 20 

and those issues are  ra i sed w i th  me,  I  do  ge t  -  and ask  the  

same o f f i c ia l s  to  do  the i r  work .   There  i s  no  way where  you 

can f ind  me as an  MEC dea l ing  w i th  p repayment  and s tu f f  

l i ke  tha t ,  i t  i s  no t  my purv iew.   To  the  best  o f  my 

reco l lec t ion  I  was on the  ba l l  and  in  tha t  p rocess I  had to  
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a l low o f f i c ia ls  to  do  what  i s  de legated to  them in  te rms o f  

the  law and I  guess the  issue we are  ta l k ing  about  here  i s  

ac tua l l y  a  de legat ions o f  o f f i c ia ls ,  i t  i s  no t  my  

respons ib i l i t y .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no ,  I  th ink  you were  on  the  ba l l ,  

Mr  Zwane,  fo r  you to  phone Ms D lamin i  on  the  15  June  

2012,  fo r  you to  go  to  Ind ia  in  October  2012,  fo r  you to  go  

to  the  communi t ies  no t  on l y  once  or  tw ice  bu t  more  than  

tha t  and there  i s  a  coup le  o f  th ings we need to  ask  you on  

th is  because even though you were  on  the  ba l l ,  the  10 

procurement  and  appo in tment  o f  Est ina  was sa id  to  be  

noncompl ian t  w i th  supp ly  cha in  management  and  go the 

adv ice  f rom the  S ta te  Law Adv isers ,  obv ious l y .   Do you 

remember  tha t?  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  the  quest ion  is  we l l  appr i sed in  te rms  

o f  the  processes  wh ich  were  fo l lowed in  the  Free S ta te ,  

every  cont rac t  had to  ac tua l l y  be  seen by  the  S ta te  Law 

Adv iser  be fo re  i t  cou ld  be  imp lemented.   The to  and f ro  

engagements  be tween the  depar tment  and the  depar tment  

–  in  th is  case the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and the  S ta te  20 

Law Adv ise r ’s  o f f i ce  wh ich  ac tua l l y  be  an  issue  o f  the 

f ina l i sa t ion  o f  lega l i t y  in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t  and tha t  fa l l s  

square ly  a t  the  doors tep  o f  the  HOD.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  you know tha t  the  S ta te  Law 

Adv isers ,  when the  mat te r  came to  them,  the  cont rac t  had 
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a l ready been s igned and they adv i sed tha t  the  procu rement  

p rocess was not  compl ied  w i th .  

MR ZWANE:    I  have s ince  saw tha t  dur ing  th is  p rocess as  

I  was fo rwarded w i th  documenta t ion .   Yes,  I  saw i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And you  have a lso  seen tha t  the  

on ly  person in  Es t ina  was Mr  Vasram who was apparent ly  a 

source  manager  fo r  Sahara  Compute rs ,  d id  no t  have  

exper ience in  fa rm ing.   You comment?  

MR ZWANE:    Wel l ,  you  want  me  to  comment  in  te rms o f  

the  cont rac t  and who was appo in ted .   Le t  me g i ve  you the  10 

process.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  want  you to  comment  on  the  fac t  

tha t  Est ina  had th is  one pe rson,  Mr  Kamal  Vasram,  who 

had no fa rm ing  exper ience,  who came f rom Sahara  

Computers  as  a  sa les  manager .   D id  you know tha t?  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  I  d id  say up  unt i l  October  2012 I  have 

a lways been under  the  impress ion  tha t  Paras  is  the  

imp lementer  o f  th is  p ro jec t ,  tha t  i s  why I  h igh l igh ted  th is  

i ssue now a f te r  b reak tha t  even the  CFO seemed to  ra ise  

tha t  mat te r  cons i s ten t ly  about  Paras.   So I  was not  aware .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  you have s ince  read about  i t?  

MR ZWANE:    I  have s ince  read about  i t ,  yes ,  tha t  i s  why I  

thought  in  te rms  o f  the  process th is  mat te r  shou ld  have  

been cor rec ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  
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MR ZWANE:    Once i t  i s  de tec ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR ZWANE:    The peop le  respons ib le  shou ld  have been 

he ld  respons ib le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Accountab le .  

MR ZWANE:    Accountab le  in  te rms o f  what  has happened.   

Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes because we can cu t  a  long s to ry  

shor t .   I f  you  say  to  the  Cha i rperson,  Cha i r ,  I  acknowledge 

th ings d id  no t  go  as  they were  supposed to .   You know,  10 

jus t  p iggyback ing  f rom what  you were  say ing  about  peop le  

shou ld  have been  he ld  accountab le ,  le t  me cu t  a  long s to ry  

shor t .   What  do  you say because I  cou ld  go  in to  the 

de ta i l s ,  R184 mi l l ion  was u l t imate ly  pa id  to  Est ina .   You 

sure ly  have been aware  o f  tha t?   Yes?  

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  so ,  Cha i r ,  acco rd ing  to  the  lega l  

p rescr ip ts  tha t  a re  c lear ly  tabu la ted .   Shou ld  there  be  

anyth ing  un toward ,  there  shou ld  be  somebody who is  be ing  

he ld  accountab le  to  exp la in  what  has happened and so  

fo r th  and so  on .   I  do  acknowledge  tha t  fac t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.   And one cou ld  a l so  say say ing  –  

or  you cou ld  take  i t  fu r ther  because you wou ld  have seen 

tha t  there  a re  a l legat ions and w i th  in fo rmat ion  showing 

tha t  par t  o f  tha t  R184 mi l l ion  u l t imate ly  found i t s  way to  

Gateway,  the  Gupta-owned ent i t y .   You read tha t  in  the 
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OUTA repor t?  

MR ZWANE:    I  d id  read tha t ,  yes ,  Cha i r .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.   But  there  persons who were  

ident i f ied  as  benef ic ia r ies ,  I  be l ieve  some 82 o f  them,  d id  

no t  benef i t  f rom the  p ro jec t .   We see tha t  f rom Mr  Ephra im 

Dlamin i ’ s  a f f idav i t  and f rom anothe r  benef ic ia ry  o r  in tended 

benef ic ia ry  –  you are  go ing  to  he lp  me pronounc ing  h i s  

surname.  

MR ZWANE:    Can I  say  someth ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  i t  N-c-o -n-g-w-a-n -e .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  Ncongwane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.   So what  do  you say …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You wanted  to  say someth ing ,  Mr  

Zwane?  Say i t?  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  I  th ink  th is  Commiss ion  shou ld  have  

been fu rn i shed by  an  agreement  be tween the  depar tment  o f  

Free  S ta te  government  and the  benef ic ia r ies .   As  fa r  as  I  

can reca l l  and  to  the  best  o f  my knowledge,  the  

benef ic ia r i es  were  to  benef i t  f rom the  rea l  ac t i v i t ies  o f  

V rede Da i ry .   That  w i l l  inc lude the  m i lk ing  par lour ,  tha t  w i l l  20 

inc lude the  p rocess ing  o f  m i lk  and  they w i l l  a lso  benef i t  in  

the  process o f  comple t ion  o f  the  va lue  cha in  when by-

product  a re  a l so  produced in  Vrede.   So f rom mi lk ing ,  

p rocess ing  m i lk  and p roduct ion  o f  by-product ,  tha t  i s  the 

c losest  where  these benef ic ia r ies ,  as  fa rmers ,  as  owners  o f  
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the  bus iness w i l l  benef i t .   That  i s  as  fa r  as  I  know.   I  do  

no t  reca l l  a t  any moment  where  benef ic ia r ies  were  to  

benef i t  in  the  es tab l i shment  o f  the  pro jec t .   My 

unders tand ing  is  tha t  once there  is  a  se rv i ce  p rov ider  who 

w i l l  be  deve lop ing  th is  Vrede Da i ry .   Th is  serv i ce  prov ider  

acco rd ing ly  w i l l  have to  b r ing  mate r ia ls  and a l l  those o ther  

th ings  and do –  accord ing  to  t he  p rocess p lan  be tween h im 

or  he rse l f  w i th  the  depar tment  and then the  serv ice  

prov ider  w i l l  ge t  pa id  fo r  what  they have pe r fo rmed .   That  

i s  my unders tand ing  o f  th is  p ro jec t .   I  do  no t  know i f  I  am 10 

c la r i f y ing  your  concern .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  have  to  pu t  to  you what  they 

have sa id  in  the i r  a f f idav i t s  about  whether  they benef i t ted  

a t  a l l  o r  no t  because Mr  Ephra im  Dlamin i  goes as  fa r  as 

say ing  he  had a  shop in  town and Est ina  wou ld  de l i ver  m i l k  

next  door  to  h im wh ich  was a  shop owned by  a  gent leman 

o f  Ind ian  or ig in  who d id  no t  even speak the  loca l  language 

and he cou ld  no t  even obta in  the  m i lk  f rom th i s  p ro jec t .   

Your  comment?  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  on  the  occas ions I  went  there  m i lk  20 

was so ld  f rom the  da i ry  par lour .   By  the  t ime when the  

par lour  was produc ing  th i s  I  shou ld  ind i ca te  i n  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  I  was no longer  i n  the  depar tment ,  so  tha t  

tha t  i s  the  –  bu t  on  the  few occas ions tha t  I  went  there ,  

m i lk  was so ld  and I  assumed tha t  nobody w i l l  be  bar red  
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f rom buy ing  m i lk  there  and I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  g ive  you  

the  de ta i l s  in  te rms o f  how much  peop le  have benef i t ted 

because I  th ink  when the  [ ind is t inc t ]  rewro te  her  repor t  the  

process was a t  the  leve l  where  m i lk  p rocess ing  was to  be  

comple ted .   The  th i rd  layer ,  wh ich  was the  product ion  o f  

by-product ,  up  un t i l  today has no t  happened.   So there  is  a  

poss ib i l i t y ,  I  assume,  tha t  –  because o f  the  va lue  cha in  

have not  -  up  un t i l  today has no t  happened,  so  the re  is  a  

poss ib i l i t y  I  assume tha t  because  o f  the  va lue  cha in  have  

not  –  tha t  peop le  have not  benef i ted  as  they were  10 

supposed to .    I  th ink  one issue I  am p i ck ing  up  here  Cha i r,  

I  go t  in to  the  s ta tement  o f  Mr  H longwane and D lamin i ,  i s  

an  issue o f  communica t ion  in  te rms o f  how fa r  i s  the 

pro jec t ,  i f  peop le  have not  benef i ted  up  to  now,  what  a re  

the  h iccups,  Because I  th ink  t ha t  shou ld  actua l l y  be  

communica ted  to  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  you  say  you le f t  the  depar tment  

in  March 2013 but  you were  no t  fa r,  you s t i l l  remained in  

the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government ,  i s  i t  no t?   

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were  jus t  moved to  another  

depar tment .   

MR ZWANE:    I  was moved to  economic  deve lopment .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and you d id  come back to  

agr i cu l tu re  in  2015.   
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MR ZWANE:    Fo r  two,  th ree  months ,  yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  you were  no t  fa r,  th is  p ro jec t  

was c lose  to  your  hear t .   

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  I  was not  fa r,  tha t  i s  t rue .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  know tha t  you have sa id  in  your  

a f f idav i t  the  reason why the  pro jec t  d id  no t  succeed,  i s  

because o f  -  you a t t r ibu te  tha t  to  poor  management ,  o r  i s  i t  

ope ra t ions,  you say tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR ZWANE:    That  was my v iew and i t  i s  s t i l l  my v iew.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  s t i l l  your  v iew.   10 

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  do  you th ink  went  wrong because 

we unders tand cows,  ca t t le  was dy ing  and those who 

sought  to  expose the  s i tua t ion ,  the i r  l i ves  were  e i ther  

endangered,  o r  some o f  them d id  l ose  the i r  l i ves ,  a l leged ly  

because o f  peop le  who were  sa id  to  be  sent  by  you to  

p ro tec t  your  pos i t ion .   

MR ZWANE:    There  was no pos i t ion  to  p ro tec t  a t  tha t  

po in t .  I  was a l ready not  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were  a l ready?  20 

MR ZWANE:    I  was a l ready gone  f rom th is  depar tment .   I  

was not  invo lved Cha i r,  in  the  procurement  o f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  to  p ro tec t  you.   

MR ZWANE:    From what?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do  no t  know,  tha t  i s  the  a l legat ion  
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made tha t  peop le  were  sent ,  maybe f rom tarn ish ing  your  

name,  you were  exposed,  what  i s  happen ing  a t  Vrede Da i ry  

Farm,  wh ich  is  in i t ia ted  by  MEC Zwane,  you ta in t  h is  

reputa t ion ,  so  keep your  mouth  shut .   

MR ZWANE:    I  have read about  those a l legat ions ,  I  can 

say to  th i s  Commiss ion  ,  one o f  the  peop le  who had made  

those a l legat ions  has s ince  came back to  me,  Mr  Gadebe 

and I  have   tabu la ted  in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  Gadebe is  a  

fo rmer  ANC member  who went  to  DA and I  do  no t  want  to  

b r ing  peop le 's  names here ,  as  they d id  w i thout  any 10 

ev idence on my  name because  I  respect  tha t  par t  bu t  

leaders  o f  a  cer ta in  par t y  went  to  Est ina  Pro jec t  accord ing  

to  what  he  is  te l l ing  me and when they were  there ,  they 

sa id  they must  t ry  and expose whatever  they can f ind ,  

espec ia l l y  ta rn ish  my name.  

Now,  I  asked h im,  why are  you coming to  me now 

when you have gone to  the  Commiss ion  and sa id  what  you 

sa id ,  and I  d id  no t  respond and I  d id  no t  ac t .   He says what  

they had been promised has not  been fu l f i l l ed  and I  sa id ,  

no ,  i t  i s  no t  my purv iew,  I  do  no t  want  to  invo lve  myse l f  20 

there ,  Cha i r.  

But  the  fac t  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  Mr  Gadebe and I  th ink  Mr  

D lamin i  made ser ious a l legat ions in  te rms o f  me 

assass ina t ing  peop le ,  and I  wou ld  rea l l y  apprec ia te  i t  i f  

those a l legat ions  cou ld  be  tes ted  because I  th ink  i t  i s  
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un fa i r  tha t  such  ser ious a l legat ions can jus t  be  made 

w i thout  any ev idence.   The po in t  i s ,  they  are  s t i l l  l i v ing ,  

they are  in  fear  and noth ing  has happened to  them a f te r  

them say ing  i f  anybody touches my name then they are  

sure  to  be  k i l led .  

The peop le  they  are  ra is ing  here ,  were  ac tua l l y  

o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  depar tment ,  s ta t ioned in  Vrede so  when 

meet ings in  te rms o f  th is  p ro jec t  were  ca l led  the i r  o f f i c ia ls  

w i l l  be  there  and  some counc i l lo rs  o f  wh ich  Mr  Gadebe a t  

some po in t  was one o f  the  counc i l lo rs .   I  shou ld  pu t  i t  on 10 

record  tha t  when th is  p ro jec t  was proposed,  I  th ink  the  

mun ic ipa l i t y  b rought  ev idence to  the  fac t  tha t  the 

mun ic ipa l i t y  counc i l  d id  agree 100% wi th  th is  p ro jec t ,  and 

he was pa r t .   The issue o f  the  ca t t le  wh ich  d ied  was a  

na t iona l  i ssue,  i t  was pub l i c i sed,  i t  i s  we l l  known.   

We went  to  there  as  Free S ta te  Government  to  

check what  was  the  cause,  so  i t  i s  no t  an  issue tha t  

somebody cou ld  have t r ied  to  sh ie ld  anyth ing  there .   I f  a  

p ro jec t  i s  there  and someth ing  goes wrong there  is  no th ing  

to  sh ie ld  bu t  to  cor rec t  the  m isnomers ,  because i t  i s  no t  20 

about  me,  i t  i s  about  the  communi t y,  wh ich  must  benef i t .   I f  

the  cont rac tor  i s  no t  do ing  r igh t ,  the  cont rac tor  must  be  

a t tended to ,  to  co r rec t  o r  remove,  i t  i s  as  s imp le  as  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka can I  jus t  in te r rup t  you  

because I  do  no t  want  to  m iss  tha t  and I  am go ing  back to  
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someth ing  we dea l t  w i th  be fore  lunch,  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  

fo rge t  i t .   

I  have been look ing  a t  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms E lzabe 

Corne l ia  Rockman in  the  same,  in  th is  bund le ,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  

page 353.378.   What  I  am go ing  to  ra ise  w i th  you Mr  Zwane 

and then we w i l l  go  back to  what  Mr  Se leka is  dea l ing  w i th .   

I s  your  ev idence tha t  you on ly  heard  about  the  invo lvement  

o f  Est ina  in  th is  p ro jec t  a f te r  you  had le f t  the  Depar tment  

o f  Agr icu l tu re .    

You see Ms Rockman says she was the  D i rec to r  10 

Genera l  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  f rom September  2010 

unt i l  11  March 2013.   Now I  am read ing  f rom paragraph 5  

o f  her  a f f idav i t  a t  page 353.379 ,  and then she says in  

parag raph 6 :  

“ I  was appo in ted  as  the  MEC,  respons ib le  fo r  

f inance and took  the  oa th  o f  o f f ice  on  11 March  

2013 and he ld  tha t  o f f i ce  un t i l  the  e lec t ion  o f  the  

Premie r  fo l low ing  the  2014 genera l  e lec t ions. ”  

And then she ta lks  about  the  Mahoma Mabung f ramework  

and Vrede a t  page 353.380.   In  parag raph 2 .2 .2  and 2 .2 .3  20 

she ta lks  about  budget  a l loca t ions fo r  2012/2013 f inanc ia l  

year  on  29  February  2012 and re fers  to  m inutes  o f  the  

meet ing  o f  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  and says a t  2 .2 .3 :  

“The Execut ive  Counc i l  approved a  memorandum 

tab led  by  the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  and Rura l  
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Deve lopment  on  13  June 2012 as  fo l lows. ”  

about  the  Vrede Da i ry  a re  supposed to  be  crea ted  theory  

pro jec ts  and she says:  

“The Execut ive  Counc i l  app roved  the  fo l low ing the  

recommendat ions ,1 ,  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  

proposed in teg ra ted  Vrede Da i ry  Agr i  Bus iness 

Pro jec t  and 3 ,  suppor ts  the  sourc ing  o f  add i t iona l  

fund ing  o f  R84mi l l ion  fo r  th is  cur ren t  f inanc ia l  yea r  

f rom the  prov ince . ”  

And says:  10 

“The Execut ive  Counc i l  fu r ther  agreed tha t ,  where  

poss ib le  the  depar tment  shou ld  meet  the  costs ,  and 

w i l l  be  la te r  re funded and engaged o ther  re levan t  

depar tments .   The mat te r  be  fu r ther  d iscussed in  

the  Treasury  Commi t tee  as  a  mat te r  o f  u rgency.   

FDC shou ld  a l so  p lay  a  ro le  espec ia l l y  f rom the  

fa rm ing po in t  o f  v iew. ”  

Then in  2 .2 .4  she  says;  

“On 18 June 2012,  th is  i s  when you were  s t i l l  an  

MEC for  ag r icu l tu re ,  I  was i n fo rmed by  the  Deputy  20 

D i rec tor  Genera l  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier,  Mr  

A lber tus  Vente r  who was on leave a t  the  t ime tha t  

he  had been contac ted  by  Advocate  Koen ie  

Det ie r ra [? ]  in  h is  o f f i ce  regard ing  cont rac ts  

per ta in ing  to  the  Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec t ,  wh ich  had  
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been p resented a t  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  meet ing  o f  

18  June 2012. ”  

Do you see tha t?   Do you reca l l  whether  cont rac ts  were  

presented,  cont rac ts  re la t ing  to  the  Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec t  

were  p resent  tha t  a t  any meet ings o f  the  Execut ive  

Counc i l?  

MR ZWANE:    No  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR ZWANE:    I  do  no t  reca l l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    You do not  reca l l?  10 

MR ZWANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you see,  the  in te res t ing  th ing  about  

th is  i s  th is ,  tha t  i f  con t rac ts  were  presented  a t  the  

Execut ive  Counc i l  meet ing  o f  13  June 2012,  those 

cont rac ts  cou ld  on ly  have been between Est ina  and the  

depar tment .   They cou ld  no t  have  been cont rac t s  be tween  

Est ina  and Paras and the re fore ,  i f  you  were  a t  tha t  

meet ing ,  you wou ld  have become aware  o f  Est ina  a t  tha t  

s tage a t  the  la tes t .   

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r,  i t  was not  a  norm for  a  cont rac t  to  be  20 

presented a t  the  execut ive ,  a t  the  execut ive  the re  w i l l  be  a 

memo,  the  shor t  summary o f  what  you want  to  

communica te  and  in  th is  case,  as  I  look  a t  th is ,  one o f  the  

issues tha t  necess i ta ted  a  memo to  the  execut ive  i t  i s  po in t  

number  2 :  
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“Suppor t  and sourc ing  o f  add i t iona l  fund ing  o f  R84 

mi l l ion  fo r  th is  cur ren t  f inanc ia l  year  f rom the  

prov ince. ”  

Why am I  say ing  so ,  Cha i r  i s  tha t  th is  p ro jec t  was a l ready  

a  f lagsh ip  pro jec t ,  i t  was not  any p ro jec t .   The P rem ier  d id  

ta lk  about  i t  in  h is  S ta te  o f  P rov ince  Address,  

subsequent ly,  I  then went  to  de ta i l s  on  th is  p ro jec t .   I  have 

sa id  around Apr i l  and then the reaf te r  the re  s ta r ts  in  

earnests  the  issue o f  serv ice  prov iders  and so  fo r th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  remember  tha t  i s  no t  on  my  10 

quest ion .   My quest ion  is  s imp ly  tha t ,  do  you ag ree tha t  i f  

con t rac ts  re la t ing  to  Vrede Da i ry  P ro jec t  were  presented to  

the  Execut ive  Counc i l ,  then on what  you know now,  those  

cont rac ts  cou ld  on ly  have been between Est ina  and the  

depar tment ,  they wou ld  no t  have been a  cont rac t  invo l v ing  

Paras.   Do you accept  tha t  tha t  wou ld  have to  be  the  case? 

MR ZWANE:    No ,  I  th ink  Cha i r  ear l ie r  on  I  d id  h igh l igh t  the  

fac t  tha t  the  two o f f i c ia ls  exc lud ing  myse l f  tha t  i s  the  HOD 

and the  CFO,  fo r  a  long t ime have been unders tand ing  or  

hav ing  an  impress ion  tha t  the  depar tment  has cont rac t  w i th  20 

Paras.  

I f  th is  was presented ear l ie r  on  and co r rec ted  tha t  

th is  i s  no t  Paras  th is  i s  Est ina  I  th ink  the  who le  process 

tha t  we ta l ked about  ea r l ie r  on  wou ld  no t  even have taken  

p lace,  shou ld  i f  I  had known tha t  i t  i s  Est ina .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  Mr  Thabetha ’s  ev idence,  i f  I  

reca l l  cor rec t l y,  was characte r ised by  h im ta lk ing  about  

Paras be ing  invo lved and be ing  beh ind  Est ina  or  Paras 

hav ing  some ar rangement  o r  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Est ina  a t  

leas t  a t  a  cer ta in  s tage he was ta lk ing  a long those l ines  

dur ing  h is  ev idence may have fo rmula ted  what  he  was  

say ing  d i f fe ren t ly.  

But  e i ther  a t  cer ta in  s tage or  th roughout  he  was 

ta lk ing  about  there  be ing  a  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  Est ina 

and Paras bu t  I  th ink  a t  some s tage,  the  quest ion  was,  was 10 

there  a  cont rac t  o r  agreement  be tween the  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  and Paras?  And i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  none cou ld  

be  su re ,  there  was an agreement  be tween the  depar tment  

and Est ina ,  you see.    

So what  I  am suggest ing  to  you,  i s  tha t  on  what  you  

know,  now,  i t  seems to  me log ica l  tha t  you wou ld  ag ree 

tha t  i f  cont rac ts  per ta in ing  to  the  Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec t  were  

presented a t  a  meet ing  o f  the  Prov inc ia l  Execut ive  Counc i l  

on  13  June 2012.   That  those cont rac ts  cou ld  no t  have 

been or  have  inc luded any  cont rac t  be tween the  20 

depar tment  and Paras.  

On the  cont rary,  they cou ld  on ly  have re la ted  to  the  

depar tment  and Est ina .   Even though you say i t  was not  

normal  to  p resent  cont rac ts  a t  Eskom meet ings,  bu t  i f  

indeed they were  present  on  th is  occas ion ,  fo r  whatever  
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reason,  those cou ld  on ly  be  re la t ing  to  Est ina  l og ica l l y  i t  

seems to  me.   

MR ZWANE:    I f  what…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Rodman.  

MR ZWANE:    Mr  Thabetha sa id  tha t  there  was no cont rac t  

be tween Paras and the  depar tment  my assumpt ion  wou ld  

be  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  you see -  and then I  moved f rom 

tha t  page wh ich  is  353.381 to  the  next  page in  pa rag raph  

2 .2 .5  Ms Rockman says the  fo l low ing.   You see,  what  we 10 

were  dea l ing  w i th  she sa id :  

“She had been in fo rmed by  the  Deputy  D i rec tor  

Genera l  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  P remier  on  18  June 

2012. ”    

Ta lk ing  to  her  about  cont rac ts  tha t  re la ted  to  the  Vrede  

Da i ry  Pro jec ts ,  tha t  Mr  Venter  sa id  had been presented a t  

the  Execut ive  Counc i l  meet ing  o f  13  June 2012.   Then in  

the  next  paragraph,  she says:  

“Dur ing  the  even ing  o f  the  same day. ”  

Which  must  be  dur ing  the  even ing  o f  the  18 t h  o f  June 2012.  20 

She says:  

“Mr  Vente r,  and tha t  i s  the  Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  

in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r,  fo rwarded an emai l  

f rom Advocate  Koen ie  Det ie r ra [? ]  w i th  an  

a t tachment  to  me in  my capac i ty  as  D i rec tor  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 123 of 354 
 

Genera l . ”  

She says:  

“The a t tachment  conta ined,  1 ,  a  submiss ion  o f  the  

Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  w i th  the  sub jec t ,  and she  

quotes ,  the  sub jec t  i s  quoted ,  to  accept  the  

proposa l  f rom Est ina  w i th  regard  to  the  Vrede  

in tegra ted  Da i ry  Pro jec t  and to  en ter  in to  a  

par tnersh ip  w i th  Est ina  ass igned by  the  Ch ie f  

D i rec to r,  h is  se rv ices  and the  ch ie f  f inanc ia l  o f f i cer  

on  26  May 2012 and approved  by  the  head o f  10 

depar tment  w i thout  a  da te . ”  

So,  she is  say ing  the  Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  in  the  o f f i ce  

o f  the  Premier  tha t  same even ing  o f  the  18 t h  o f  June 2012  

sent  th is  document  and the  document  i s  one s igned  by  the 

Ch ie f  D i rec to r,  d is t r i c t  se rv i ces  o f  your  depar tment  and the  

Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  o f  your  depar tment  and approved by  

the  Head o f  Depar tment  o f  your  depar tment .   

And when you look a t  what  she quotes  there ,  she 

says tha t  submiss ion  was wr i t ten  to  accept  the  p roposa l  

f rom Est ina ,  okay and then number  2 ,  she a lso  says tha t  20 

Mr  Venter  sent  her  a  pa r tnersh ip  agreement  she wr i tes  in  

quotes :  

“Par tnersh ip  ag reement  be tween the  Depar tment  o f  

Agr icu l tu re  Free S ta te  Prov ince,  South  A f r i ca  and  

Est ina  P ty  L td . ”  
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And she g i ve  the  reg i s t ra t ion  number :  

“ In  re la t ion  to  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  a  Da i ry  Pro jec t  

a t  Vrede th rough  a  spec ia l  pu rpose thereof  c rea ted  

to  fu l f i l  the  s t ipu la ted  Agr i  BEE bus iness ca l led  

Zana Investments  P ty  L im i ted  t rad ing  as Mahoma 

Mabung Da i ry  P ro jec ts ,  s igned by  the  manag ing  

d i rec tor  [Mr  San jeev Gautam]  o f  Est ina  P ty  L td  on  

the  5 t h  o f  June 2012 and s igned  by  the  head o f  

depar tment  on  the  7 t h  o f  June 2012. ”  

That  i s  the  head o f  your  depar tment  who s igned tha t .   So,  10 

the  quest ion  tha t  a r ises  is ,  you remember  I  sa id  to  you 

ear l ie r  on  i f  th roughout  2012 or  maybe f rom about  m id-

2012 to  when you le f t  the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  in  

March 2013 the  invo l vement  o f  Est ina  was we l l  known 

wi th in  the  depar tment  in  the  pro jec t  and Mr  Thabetha had 

even s igned an agreement  w i th  them,  fo r  you not  to  have  

known o f  the  invo l vement  o f  Est ina  he  must  have  

de l ibe ra te l y  w i thhe ld  tha t  in fo rmat ion  f rom you.   Do you  

remember  tha t  I  sa id  tha t  o therw ise ,  you wou ld  have p icked 

i t  f rom ta lk ing  or  f rom documents .   You unders tand tha t ,  20 

tha t  i s  what  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  say  you agree w i th  i t?  

MR ZWANE:    No,  Cha i r  I  unders tand what  the  Cha i r  i s  

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  le t  me f in ish  so  tha t  you can  

dea l  w i th  eve ry th ing .   What  I  want  to  suggest  to  you  is  tha t  
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here  are  peop le  in  o the r  o f f i ces  o ther  than the  Depar tment  

o f  Agr icu l tu re .    

Mr  Venter  i n  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r  he  has 

documents  tha t  come f rom your  depar tment ,  wh ich  ta lk  

about  Est ina  be ing  invo l ved.   

Here  is ,  Ms Rockman who is  D i rec to r  Genera l ,  in  

the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  i s  ge t t ing  documents  f rom Mr  

Venter  ta lk ing  about  Est ina  in  regard  to  th is  p ro jec t .  

How wou ld  i t  be  poss ib le  tha t  you  are  the  on ly  one  

f rom whom th is  i n fo rmat ion  about  t he  invo l vement  o f  Est ina  10 

is  w i thhe ld  when everybody e l se  i s  ge t t ing  documents  tha t  

ment ion  Est ina .  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r,  the  approva l  o f  my t r ip  to  Ind ia  was  

approved in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  where  Ms Rodman i s  

and th i s  approva l  had Paras,  nobody sa id  no  wa i t .   I t  was  

ins tan t  approved,  I  went  to  Ind ia  and i f  the  o f f i c ia ls  were  

ava i lab le  there  I  wou ld  have gone when everybody knew.  

Coming back to  th is  in fo rmat ion  Cha i r,  I  have read  

th is  in fo rmat ion  I  have read even the  par t  o f  Mr  Venter  in  

te rms o f  the  to  and f ro  o f  agreements ,  where  there  are  no  20 

proper  cont rac ts  and subsequent ly,  a  new cont rac t  be ing  

en tered in to ,  I  have read tha t  now.   

But  a t  the  t ime when these th ings  were  happen ing ,  

i t  was between o f f i c ia ls ,  my o f f i c i a ls  who le t  me to  go  to  

Ind ia  to  Paras and the  o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  Premier 's  depar tment  
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I  now know tha t  Ms Rockman a lso  knew about  th is  i ssue  

and th i s  i ssue b ig  as  i t  i s ,  i t  shou ld  ac tua l l y  gone to  Eskom 

because the  next  ve rs ion  w i l l  be  when payment  was  

supposed to  be  done around June on what  was tha t  

payment  go ing  to  be  done,  i f  there  was no cont rac t .   

These a re  the  issues tha t  I  am say ing ,  i f  they  were  

brought  to  l igh t ,  I  am su re  I  wou ld  have dea l t  w i th  them.   

Le t  me speak on  my beha l f ,  I  wou ld  have dea l t  w i th  them,  

yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you see,  i t  goes back to  what  I  10 

ra ised w i th  you ear l ie r  on .   I t  shou ld  no t  be  jus t  what  you  

are  g iven by  o f f i c ia ls ,  you shou ld  a l so  be  ask ing  fo r  

in fo rmat ion  to  make sure  tha t  you know tha t  th ings are  

under  cont ro l  and par t i cu la r ly  i f  you  ta lk  abou t  lay ing  

overs igh t ,  per fo rm ing overs igh t  funct ions bu t  we have dea l t  

w i th .   

So I  wanted to  jus t  -  le t  me jus t  ment ion  I  th ink  two 

o ther  par ts  o r  documents ,  you  see a t  page 353.383  

parag raph 2 .27  Ms Rockman says,  le t  me s tar t  a t  2 .2 .6  

wh ich  is  a t  pa rag raph 353.382 she  says;  20 

“ I  responded to  Mr  Venter  tha t  I  had been in fo rmed 

tha t  a  meet ing  o f  the  Treasury  Commi t tee  was  

schedu led  fo r  19  June 2012 on the  mat te r  o f  the  

Vrede Da i ry  Pro jec t .   Advocate  Det ie r ra [? ]  i ssued 

cor respondence to  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  
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P rov inc ia l  Treasury  addressed to  Ms Anna Four ie  on  

19  June 2012,  mak ing  re ference to  a  consu l ta t ion  

be tween Prov inc ia l  Treasury  and lega l  serv i ces ,  

lega l  serv ices  be ing  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r,  tha t  took  

p lace on 18 June  2012 and sugges ted among o thers  

tha t ,  3 ,  i t  appears  tha t  the  procurement  p rocess  

was not  fo l lowed.   The cont rac t  may be inva l id  due  

to  a  number  o f  reasons or  we suggest  tha t  you  

propose to  the  Treasury  Commi t tee  tha t  the  

agreement  and the  procurement  documents  be  sent  10 

to  us  fo r  rev iew. ”  

And then Ms Rockman says a f te r  tha t :  

“A copy o f  the  cor respondence  f rom Advocate  

Det ie r ra [? ]  i s  a t tached and marked VR9. ”  

Then in  parag raph 2 .2 .7  she says:  

“Cor respondence  dated 19 June 2012 w i th  

the  sub jec t  mat te r  “advanced payment  fo r  

Vrede Pro jec t ” ,  f rom provincia l  t reasury 

indicate that  the Department of  Agricul ture 

submit ted a request  dated 15 June 2012 to 20 

provincial  t reasury for an advance payment  

to Est ina Pty Limited and makes further  

reference to a di f ferent  submission dated 19 

June 2012 to amend the Department of  

Agricul ture‘s projects – agr icu l ture ’s project  
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l ist  to have funding avai lable for the Vrede 

Dai ry project . ”  

And then I  skip there then I  go to paragraph 2.2.8 she says 

there:  

“A meet ing of  the t reasury commit tee 

convened on 19 June 2012.  I  jo ined the 

meet ing at  a later  stage and i t  was resolved 

that  an ad-hoc technical  commit tee led by 

the Di rector General  in the off ice of  the 

Premier that  is  mysel f  at  the t ime he 10 

establ ished to ensure among others that  

re levant  documentat ion is provided by the 

Department of  Agr icul ture to the provincial  

t reasury to enable the provinc ial  t reasury to  

consider the appl icat ion for the advancement  

– for the advance payment to review the 

contractual  agreement entered into between 

the Department of  Agricul ture DARD and 

Est ina Pty Limited and to consider  further  

funding requi rements for the project . ”  20 

 She says:  

“ I  have not  been able to obtain the minutes 

of  the t reasury commit tee meet ing held on 19 

June 2012.”  

 So you see she is  ta lk ing about  what everybody 
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seems to have ta lk ing about Est ina.   You see.  There is an 

appl icat ion for advance payment  and the payment is to 

Est ina.    

 Let  me then go I  th ink the last  re ference I  want to  

make is to paragraph – page 353.384 paragraph 2.2.10 – 

2.2.10.  

“A further process of  engagement  unfolded 

between the off ice of  the Premier  and the 

DARD that  is your department set  out  in the 

correspondence between Advocate K J C 10 

Di t i ra and the head of  the DARD that  is your 

department dated 25 June 2012 and 26 June 

2012 respect ively.   Culminat ing in the 

rev iewed agreement signed on 5 July 2012 

by both the head of  Department of  

Agricul ture and Est ina as wel l  as the 

supplementary submission to  provincial  

t reasury.   Copies of  the correspondence is 

at tached and marked ER12 and ER13 

respect ively. ”  20 

 So I  just  wanted to put  that  to say you see al l  over 

whether i t  is t reasury or the off ice of  the Premier,  the DG 

there is ta lk ing about – is aware of  Est ina.   Correspondence 

refers to Est ina.   There are cont racts in which Est ina is a 

party relat ing to th is project .   The Deputy DG in the off ice of  
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the Premier is aware of  Est ina being involved.   Mr Thabethe 

is aware.  These documents and th is correspondence comes 

f rom his department.   How is i t  possible that  somehow the 

MEC whose project  th is is real ly does not  know about the 

involvement of  Est ina? 

MR ZWANE:   Chairperson I  th ink this issue we have 

repeated – repeated i t  for some t ime now and the simple 

explanat ion I  have given and I  th ink Chair  a l luded to i t  many 

t imes Mr Thabethe himsel f  says in th is commission according 

to your recol lect ion that  he was under the impression that  10 

Paras had someth ing to do wi th th is .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja 

MR ZWANE:   I t  is . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he said that  ja.  

MR ZWANE:   I t  is on record.   I t  is not  me saying i t  is – 

Chair ’s  recol lect ion.   The leader of  evidence here also says 

at  some point  Ms Dlamini  paints that  part icular  picture.   

Right .   These are two senior off ic ia ls in my department  I t  is 

not  – i t  is not  as i f  everybody including my off ic ia ls  in the 

department were saying Est ina I  am the only one who says 20 

Paras.   I  have produced in th is commission evidence that  I  

was pointed to Paras late in… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me – let  me make sure you understand 

what I  said about  what Mr Thabethe said.   I  said that  I  might  

not  be put t ing i t  accurately but  af ter lunch what I  d id say to  
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you is that  I  am not  sure whether throughout he was 

speaking l ike this  but  at  some stage he was speaking on the 

basis that  he understood Paras to be behind Est ina.  So in 

other words Mr Thabethe never sa id he did not  know about 

Est ina.   He knew about Est ina but  al l  he was saying is  at  

least  at  a certain stage that  his understanding was that  there 

was some re lat ionship between Est ina and Paras but  he may 

at  some stage or I  may have understood h im to – to say this  

project  was real ly  between the Department of  Agricul ture and 

Paras but  then there would be a t ime when you say but  10 

where is the contract  between Paras and the department?  

But  he never said he did not  know about Est ina.  

MR ZWANE:   He did not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He had never said – he acknowledged that  

Est ina was there.   So – so you are not  even on the same 

level  as him because you are saying you were not  aware of  

Est ina at  al l  unt i l  af ter March 2013 whereas he knows the 

involvement of  Est ina f rom beginning to end.   I t  is a quest ion 

of  what was the role of  Paras in th is whole thing?  He does 

not  say Est ina was not  known to him.   20 

MR ZWANE:   May you please accept  Chair  my version.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   Which I  have backed up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   By my i t inerary to India v is i t ing Paras that  
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indeed I  was going to vis i t  Paras.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay you – you are not  able to add – i t  is 

what you have said 

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Mr Seleka I  know I  

interrupted you but  I  th ink – I  thought i t  was important .  

MR ZWANE:   Ja,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And also to be fa i r  to Mr Zwane i f  I  p ick up 

something.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   To put  i t  to him so that  he could comment 

on i t .  

MR ZWANE:   I  appreciate that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you.   Thank you Chai r  in fact  

Mr Thabethe in his aff idavi t  says that  i t  was Paras which 

recommended Est ina as a local  company that  wi l l  – that  wi l l  

contract  wi th the department.   That  paragraph 12 I  

ment ioned.   So he was clear ly aware of  Est ina and whatever 

re lat ionship they had wi th Paras that  is where i t  is evasive – 20 

i t  is  unclear what was going on.   But  then we had this  Est ina 

concluding the contract  wi th you led by a man taken f rom an 

IT sector – the IT sector who does not  have knowledge of  

farming and you would have seen f rom his aff idavi t  of  Mr 

Theron that  he sends aff idavi t  to Mr Ashu of  Sahara 
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Computers – not  aff idavi t  I  beg your pardon invoices in order  

to be paid.   And the al legat ion is that  he was then receiving 

remunerat ion for the serv ice rendered at  th is project  f rom 

the Gupta’s.  Payments in the emai ls said pay this  invoice 

f rom Linkway.   You saw that .  

MR ZWANE:   Yes I  saw those al legat ions Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You would not  know how he was paid? 

MR ZWANE:   As I  have said ear l ier on that  was not  my 

responsibi l i ty as a MEC I  would not  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id you – did you know whether or  not  10 

f rom the out  – f rom the evidence of  Ms Dlamini  Paras did 

make the investment of  R228 mi l l ion.  

MR ZWANE:   I  d id answer that  quest ion Si r.   I  said Chai r  I  

said I  do not  know. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know that  they had commit ted to 

do that  investment? 

MR ZWANE:   Paras? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   On which basis? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  do not  know.  20 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  – no I  am… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   There is a presentat ion – Ms Dlamini  

ta lks about the presentat ion made through the department.  

The presentat ion includes that  commitment to make an 

investment of  R228 mi l l ion by Paras.  Are you saying you did 
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not  know about i t?  

MR ZWANE:   I  am saying Chai rperson i t  has gone to length 

in terms of  Est ina – Est ina and read.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja I  am just  touching on there are other  

th ings we can move on.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes,  no I  am saying the issue of  Paras is what 

I  have sa id was the presentat ion that  Paras is going to be 

doing – to be a serv ice provider that  is what I  have said.   

And the detai ls of  what wi l l  happen between the department 

and Paras I  do not  know because I  have said ear l ier on I  d id  10 

not  see the cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were – were you ever to ld by Mr Thabethe 

or anybody where the money was going to come from to 

f inance of  fund this project? 

MR ZWANE:   I f  my memory serves me wel l  Chai r  there was 

an understanding that  i f  we repr ior i t ise pro jects in the 

department we wi l l  be able to get  up to R30 mi l l ion which I  

have said ear l ier on is  the money that  we needed to 

pr ior i t ise that  is  why I  ca l led the CFO.  There was another 

R84 mi l l ion which was given as a task to the t reasury 20 

commit tee to t ry and f ind money for that  project .  That  is what  

I  have said.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  the quest ion is  whether  you were 

ever to ld by Mr Thabethe where the money would come from 

to fund this.   Did he say i t  was al l  going to come from the 
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department? 

MR ZWANE:   No in terms of  the – in terms of  the informat ion 

and in  terms of  EXCO meet ing there was going to be a 

short fa l l  that  we know hence the creat ion of  the t reasury 

commit tee 84 mi l l ion was to be sourced out  i f  I  may use that  

word f rom the province other  departments and the 

department was supposed to repr ior i t ise and they 00:13:37.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you get  to know or did you know at  the 

t ime this is  2012 now how much the project  was going to 

cost  – what was the est imated cost  of  the project? 10 

MR ZWANE:   I  th ink this project  was for three years i f  I  am 

not  mistaken R114 mi l l ion every year t imes 3 that  was the 

cost  of  the project .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was going to be over R300 mi l l ion.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is r ight  over three years.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now in terms of  where that  amount of  over 

R300 mi l l ion was going to come did you have an 

understanding whether i t  was going to come- al l  come f rom 20 

the department including money that  may be – that  could be 

contr ibuted f rom other provincial  departments or  did you 

have any under – or what understanding did you have? 

MR ZWANE:   That  – that  was exact ly my understanding 

Chai r.  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 136 of 354 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   So your understanding was that  al l  the 

money to fund this project  was going to come from the 

provincial  government.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Did you – did Mr Thabethe never te l l  

you that  the arrangement or agreement was that  the ent i ty 

that  would be involved whether i t  was Paras or whatever was 

also going to put  in  –  in ject  some money into the project  –  

mi l l ions of  rands into the project? 

MR ZWANE:   No I  never got  that  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   He never to ld you that  

MR ZWANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Could you be mistaken about th is  or you 

are sure he never  to ld you? 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  wel l  I  am recol lect ing f rom my memory 

this project  is seven/eight  years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   I  may not  be precise.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you – you do not  recal l .  

MR ZWANE:   I  do not  recal l  – I  do not  recal l  i t  in th is point  

that  is raised I  th ink the whole debate is about  th is po int .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   Of  that  I  was contr ibut ing money ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.   So the way I  understood Mr 

Zwane’s answer to your  quest ion Chair  about  whether or  not  

he was to ld where the money wi l l  come from my 

understanding is that  in fact  he is  the one who said go to 

repr ior i t ise and get  the money.   So he would have rather the 

instruct ion would have come from him to tel l  them where to  

f ind i t  as opposed to them tel l ing him where we are going to 

f ind i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  let  us conf i rm with him.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  correct  Mr Zwane? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is your understanding correct? 

MR ZWANE:   These are two d i fferent  issues Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   The Chai r  has asked me whether the to tal  cost  

was going to come from the provinc ial  government.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   I  have said that  was my understanding.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   I  have said i t  was my understanding that  at  20 

least  for 2012 we were supposed to go and repr ior i t ise and 

get  to the value of  30 mi l l ion f rom our own department and 

then 84 would then be a responsibi l i ty of  the t reasury 

commit tee.   I  d id al lude to that  fact  – to those facts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh and so the… 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The balance would come f rom other 

departments.  

MR ZWANE:   In the province.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the province.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The balance to make 84? 

MR ZWANE:   No to make 114.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay – 30 plus.  

MR ZWANE:   30 p lus 84.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Yes okay.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja just  my comment related to  the 30 

mi l l ion in 2012.    

MR ZWANE:   There is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want to repeat  to him what you say 

about that? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So Mr Zwane what I  am saying is 

the – because i t  was the f i rst  quest ion the Chai rperson 

asked you about  whether they to ld you where the money 20 

would come from and your explanat ion was in relat ion to the 

30 mi l l ion and the 84 mi l l ion.    

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So I  was saying the way I  understood you 

to be saying to the Chai rperson is  that  in respect  o f  those 



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 139 of 354 
 

amounts you inst ructed them to go repr ior i t ise so that  you 

can get  that  money.   So you told the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The 30 mi l l ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the 30 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The 30 mi l l ion ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   You told  them where to f ind the 

money and i t  was them tel l ing you where they are going to  

f ind the money.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the Department ’s off ic ia ls you are 

talk ing about.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai r.  

MR ZWANE:   Can we go to  the place Chair  where there is  

00:19:07 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is my understanding correct .  

MR ZWANE:   Where there is a  EXCO resolut ion of  Mr 

Nhlabe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Rothman.  

MR ZWANE:   Ms Rothman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.    

MR ZWANE:   I  th ink I  am try ing to at tempt to … 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  me see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You want the tab les? 

MR ZWANE:   Ja i t  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Rothman’s  
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MR ZWANE:   I t  is page 381 - .381.  

CHAIRPERSON:   .381 okay.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR ZWANE:   Vrede Integrated Dairy Agri  Business.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What paragraph are you reading f rom? 

MR ZWANE:   3.1 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   I  am reading there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry 3.1? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is at  the top of  the page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh ja okay r ight .  

MR ZWANE:   There are actual ly two 3.1 ’s I  was reading at  

the second one.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR ZWANE:   That  says Vrede Integrated Dai ry Agri  Business 

Project  propose integrat ion dai ry  and other e lements of  

product ion and processing wi th emphasis of  value addi t ion 

and benef ic iat ion that  is me.  MEC Agricul ture and Rural  

Development.  20 

“The execut ive counci l  approved the 

fol lowing recommendat ion by the department.   

The implementat ion of  the proposed agr i  

dairy project  supports the sourc ing of  

addi t ional  funding of  84 mi l l ion for the 
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current  f inancial  year. ”  

 I  th ink the quest ion is around here.   And this 84 

mi l l ion i t  says  

“Where possible the department should meet  

the costs and wi l l  be later refunded and 

engage other relevant  departments. ”  

 That  is EXCO Chair.  

“The matter be further discussed in the 

t reasury commit tee as a matter of  urgency.”  

 Now as I  understand the leader of  evidence is that  10 

we as the department was supposed to repr ior i t ise.   I  d id  not  

have a problem wi th that  to put  i t  on record.    

CHAIRPERSON:   He is saying his impression is that  you 

were the one saying to your off ic ia ls repr ior i t ise in terms of  

budget.   So is h is impression of  your evidence correct  or 

not? 

MR ZWANE:   `No that  – that  inst ruct ion would have come 

af ter the EXCO resolut ion Chai r.   I  wi l l  te l l  you why.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  coming f rom you.  

MR ZWANE:   I t  would … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or not  coming f rom you because that  is al l  

he is asking.  

MR ZWANE:   I t  wi l l  come f rom – the direct ion is f rom EXCO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   Me and HOD. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR ZWANE:   Were most  of  the t ime part  of  EXCO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

MR ZWANE:   HOD af ter EXCO has taken a decision where 

he is present  should make sure that  the decis ion of  EXCO is  

implemented.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ZWANE:   They should not  wai t  for me.  In  case where 

the HOD was not  there I  am alone I  would go back and . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Convey to him.  10 

MR ZWANE:   Convey to the department through the HOD the 

resolut ion of  the EXCO.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So can I  take i t  that  you – your answer is  

therefore that   

1.  You know that  EXCO did give an instruct ion that  the 

department should repr ior i t ise.  

2.  You are not  sure whether you did say to the HOD and 

the off ic ia ls of  the department that  they should 

repr ior i t ise but  i f  you – i f  anybody says you did say you 

can understand that  you would have said i f  necessary 20 

because that  was the inst ruct ion of  EXCO. 

MR ZWANE:   That  is what I  am saying Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me – Mr Seleka I  see that  in put t ing in 
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Ms Rothman’s aff idavi t  into this bundle.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The annexures were not  put  in.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They may prove important .   Is i t  possible 

for somebody to quickly obtain those annexures because I  

am keen to look at  some of  them. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know how many there are – I  see 

there is one that  says 50 but  i t  is –  i t  may be that  they were 10 

excluded because they – i t  was not  thought they might  be 

mater ia l  but  I  th ink they may be – or at  least  some of  them 

maybe qui te important .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  somebody can t ry and obtain them whi le 

we are cont inuing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  know i t  is – these are aff idavi ts that  

were used in other bundles Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So we wi l l  just  obtain that  bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In the Est ina work stream. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja that  should be easy to obtain.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i f  – i f  then copies can be made that  can 

be slot ted into everyone.   Now i f  there are too many i t  may 

be that  i t  is  necessary to look at  them and see what is 

important .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know what I  am looking for so i f  I  am 

given I  can have a look.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Let  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no.   Just  last ly on this point  Mr 

Zwane. The EXCO decides on the 84 mi l l ion we can see 

here.   The 30 mi l l ion which is an advance payment is the one 

which I  understood you to have said I  to ld them to 

repr ior i t ise and get  the R30 mi l l ion.   Is that  understanding 

correct  because that  is what I  heard you say ear l ier? 

MR ZWANE:   I t  is not  correct  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you saying i t  is EXCO that  made that  20 

decision.  

MR ZWANE:   The EXCO made a decision that  we should go 

and repr ior i t ise source some funds even i f  i t  means us being 

refunded by other departments.   We could repr ior i t ise 30 

mi l l ion in the department not  because – not  because of  the 



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 145 of 354 
 

advance payment .  Because of  the total  whole sum of  the 

project  an 84 wi l l  then be arranged by the t reasury 

commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  just  f rom that  Mr Zwane i t  seems that  

th is project  was being embarked upon without  any proper  

planning – proper  and adequate planning in terms of  budget 

because i f  i t  had been properly planned and budgeted for  

you would not  be having to repr ior i t ise on the budget that  

has a lready been made for pro jects that  had been there 

because when you repr ior i t ise what  i t  means as I  understand 10 

i t  is some project  or some things that  had been a l located 

budget to say they wi l l  be done suddenly they wi l l  not  be 

done because money is taken away f rom them in order for 

th is project  to be funded.  What do you say to the 

proposi t ion that  even that  shows that  the pro ject  had not  

been the subject  of  adequate and proper planning including 

budgetary planning? 

MR ZWANE:   Chai r  in terms of  the concept  of  the project  i t  

was done in 2011 consul tat ion and everything done and 

dusted.   In terms of  the f inancial  p lanning on the h indsight  20 

as I  look on in a l l  these papers that  is the p icture that  is 

painted by th is project .    

 But  let  me hasten to say I  th ink on several  occasions 

where we had to si t  down and agree maybe in lekgot la by 

that  lekgot la  that  comes late January ear ly  February where 
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we prepare for the state of  the province address.  

 At  that  point  wi th a month to go a co l lect ive then 

decides that  th is project  wi l l  be more – wi l l  g ive more value 

rather than these others smal l  projects.   Then at  that  point  a  

decision wi l l  be taken for us to  support  th is bigger  project  

that  we al l  agree that  i t  w i l l  put  moving.  

 In terms of  other  planning I  agree wi th the Chair  i t  

looks clumsy but  there are records to that  extent  not  once – 

not  twice where when we meet in – by the lekgot la there wi l l  

be a repr ior i t isat ion of  some sort .   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  how would you know there would need 

to  be  a  repr io r i t i sa t ion  in  c i r cumstances where  there  a re  

proper  g rounds o f  u rgency.   Why –  in  o ther  words ,  as  to  

why the  pro jec t  cannot  be  sub jec ted  to  p roper  and  

adequate  p lann ing  f i rs t  be fore  i t  i s  imp lemented because 

th is  was in  2012.   The concept  had  been ra ised in  2011.    

 The agreements  w i th  –  be tween the  depar tment  

and  Est ina  were  conc luded in  June/Ju ly.   Le t  us  meet  here ,  

a l ready.   Why cou ld  i t  no t  be  dec ided tha t :   Look,  le t  us  

ar range and have a  proper  budget  fo r  th is  p ro jec t .   Le t  i t  20 

s ta r t  next  year  when i t  has  been proper ly  and adequate ly  

p lanned fo r.    

 What  was so  urgent  tha t  i t  cou ld  no t  wa i t  fo r  

adequate  and proper  p lann ing?  

MR ZWANE :    Can I  specu la te?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  want  you to  specu la te .  

MR ZWANE :    Because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  do  you –  you are  the  MEC.   I  want  

you to  be  ab le  to  say:   Wel l ,  these were  the  reasons.   But  

i f  you  do not  know them,  then you  do not  know but  tha t  is  

what  –  because I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  –  I  wou ld  expect  you,  

a lso ,  as  MEC tha t  even i f  th is  was  pro jec t ,  so  to  speak tha t  

you s ta r ted ,  you came up w i th  the  idea.    

 I  wou ld  expect  tha t  you wou ld  want  th is  p ro jec t  

to  be  the  sub jec t  o f  p roper  and adequate  p lann ing  so  tha t  10 

i t  w i l l  be  imp lemented proper ly  and tha t  i f  the  depar tment  

seemed to  be  rush ing  th ings too  much,  you wou ld  say:   

Hang on.   Hang on.   Nobody is  go ing  to  d ie  i f  we wa i t  and 

have proper  and adequate  p lann ing .    

MR ZWANE :    In  the  Leghot la  p lann ing ,  the  depar tment  w i l l  

be  requested to  p ropose mega p ro jec t s  in  the  Depar tment  

o f  Agr icu l tu re .   There  was an issue,  even before  I  a r r i ved,  

tha t  the  depar tment  was do ing  smal l  p ro jec ts  tha t  do  no t  

have the  necessary  in tac t .   As  th is  Commiss ion  has  

ev idence to  the  fac t  tha t  everybody tha t  came to  th is  20 

Commiss ion  agreed tha t  the  concept  and the  pro jec t  were  

br i l l i an t .  

 We saw th i s  concept  a t  Leghot la ,  P ro jec t  

Leghot la .   Then Leghot la ,  as  a  co l lec t i ve ,  bought  in  to  the  

idea and saw th i s  p ro jec t  as  one o f  the  pro jec ts  tha t  cou ld  
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p r io r i t i sed .   That  i s  what  happened and tha t  i s  why the  

pro jec t  was f i rs t  announced in  the  S ta te  o f  the  Prov ince 

Address and then by  us .   From our  s ide  as  a  concept  we 

were  ready Cha i r.    

 In  te rms o f  p lann ing ,  as  the  Cha i r  i s  say ing ,  on  

h inds igh t  look ing  a t  what  has happened,  I  take  tha t  po in t  

bu t  as  I  have sa id  th is  i s  how we used to  do  th ings  a t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Zwane,  an  10 

innocent  person  s i t t ing  on  Exco not  knowing what  i s  

happen ing  outs ide  o f  what  ge ts  to  be  to ld  a t  Exco,  hear ing  

o f  a  p ro jec t  to  benef i t  the  immedia te  communi ty,  X  amount  

o f  money w i l l  be  pa id  accord ing  to  the  presenta t ion  by  th is  

company f rom Ind ia ,  R 228 mi l l ion .    

 Who wi l l  suppor t  the  pro jec t?   I  am surpr i sed you 

do not  know about  tha t  in ten t ion  by  Paras to  invest  

R 228 mi l l ion  bu t  your  CFO knew about  i t .   She ta lks  about  

i t  in  her  a f f idav i t .   You are  ask ing  us :   On what  bas is  w i l l  

they  make tha t  investment?   But  i t  i s  no t  – you are  ask ing  20 

the  wrong peop le .    

 So they w i l l  suppor t  i f  they  hear  what  i s  be ing  

presented to  them and th is  i s  wha t  happened.   But  i t  seems 

th is  p ro jec t  and  I  am acce lera t ing  because the re  are  

cer ta in  th ings I  want  to  ask  you bu t  le t  me . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  I  know your  cha l l enge.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  we are  go ing  to  have to  f ind  

another  day fo r  Mr  Zwane.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Zwane . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am hop ing  you are  no t  go ing  to  say:   10 

Hey,  I  have come here  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  honest ly  the  Commiss ion  is  abus ing  

my generos i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    I  honest ly  th ink  so .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    My  organ isa t ion  and  myse l f  have under taken 

to  he lp  th is  Commiss ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR ZWANE :    And I  never  fa i led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  you have been coopera t ive .  

MR ZWANE :    I  have coopera ted .   Cha i r,  to  be  qu i te  f rank.   

We s tar ted  a t  i ssues tha t  I  was he re  las t  fo r.   Now I  am jus t  
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rea l l y  beg inn ing  to  ask  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    What  i s  th is  Commiss ion  look ing  f rom me?   

Because the  Commiss ion  g i ves  a  document  an  a f te rnoon  

before  I  come here .   I  come ent i re l y  come and do my best .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  you coopera te  Mr  Zwane.  

MR ZWANE :    Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You coopera te .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . le t  me request ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  10 

MR ZWANE :    Coopera t ion  f rom the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  th ink  th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ought  to  be  the  las t  day.  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  p lease.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

MR ZWANE :    I  take  o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    I  take  days o f f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . f rom my work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    And I  do  no t  know anymore  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR ZWANE :    . . .what  to  say,  rea l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    So  I  w i l l  humbly  request  Cha i r  tha t  le t  us  t ry  

and f in ish .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  look  –  we l l ,  the  one th ing  tha t  i s  

t rue  tha t  Mr  Zwane i s  tha t  you  have been coopera t ing .   

That  cannot  be  taken away f rom you.   You – even  a t  shor t  

no t ice ,  you have  been coopera t ive .   You are  here  on  a  

pub l i c  ho l iday.   So whatever  a r rangements  happen must  

no t  de t rac t  f rom the  fac t  tha t  we know you have been  10 

coopera t ing ,  okay?  That  i s  the  f i rs t  po in t .  

 The second po in t  i s .   Know tha t  the  Commiss ion  

wou ld  never  abuse your  coopera t ion .   I t  wou ld  never  do  

tha t .   Three.   Your  –  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you may w ish  to  

f in ish  today,  tha t  i s  a lso  unders tandab le ,  okay.   As  you 

know,  I  th ink  we sa id  –  Mr  Se leka  sa id  in  the  morn ing ,  we 

thought  today wou ld  be  the  las t  day a lso .  

 But  par t  o f  the  reason why,  when there  are  some 

issues tha t  have  not  been dea l t  w i th  p roper ly,  one may  

th ink  about  another  day.   I t  i s  rea l l y  to  be  fa i r  to  a l l  20 

concerned inc lud ing  you.   To  say i t  m igh t  no t  be  the  best  

way o f  dea l ing  w i th  th ings.   To  le t  you go and the  issues  

be ing  dec ided in  c i rcumstances where  the re  is  s t i l l  a  need 

fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion  on  ce r ta in  i ssues.  

 So i t  i s  in  good fa i th .   I t  i s  no t  to  abuse.   But  the  
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po in t  you make in  te rms o f  your  coopera t ion  and w ish ing  

th is  day to  be  the  las t  one are  leg i t imate  po in ts .   They a re  

leg i t imate  po in ts .   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  what  we shou ld  do  i s .   

Le t  us  go  up to  f i ve  because we have another  sess ion ,  

even ing  sess ion .  

 And what  we can exp lore  i s  whether  whatever  

remains  can be  obta ined f rom Mr  Zwane by  way o f  

a f f idav i t s  o r  no t .   Maybe we cou ld  exp lore  tha t .   So I  jus t  

want  you to  unders tand Mr  Zwane.   Nobody wants  to  abuse 

your  coopera t ion .   Even those who do not  coopera te  w i th  10 

the  Commiss ion ,  the  Commiss ion  does not  abuse them.    

 So you have been coopera t ing .   That  must  go  to  

your  c red i t .   So le t  us  cont inue and see how fa r  we  go but  

the  bo t tom l ine  is ,  we do not  wan t  a s i tua t ion  where  when  

dec is ions a re  made about  what  rea l l y  the  ev idence 

suggest ,  somebody says or  you say:   No,  bu t  d id  these  

peop le  ever  hear  me say I  am no longer  ava i lab le  when 

they want  me?  I  was a lways prepared to  go  and be asked 

whatever  quest ions.   Now why d id  they no t  asked me about  

th is?   I  wou ld  have c la r i f ied  i t .   You know.   You see what  20 

we a re  look ing  a t?    

 But  I  th ink  le t  us  proceed and then a t  f i ve  le t  us  

take  i t  f rom there .   Thought  can be g iven to  pu t t ing  

quest ions to  you  in  wr i t ing  fo r  you to  dea l  w i th  in  an  

a f f idav i t .   Cons idera t ion  can be g i ven to  tha t .    
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    Can I  say  someth ing? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  say  someth ing ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE :    No ,  Cha i r  I  app rec ia te  tha t  cons idera t ion .   I  

am not  ra is ing  th is  ou t  o f  bad fa i th .   I  am ra is ing  th is  

because i t  i s  my  exper ience tha t  most  o f  the  t ime  I  spent  

more  t ime w i th  the  Commiss ion  repeat ing  what  I  have  

a l ready sa id  on  record .   I f  there  i s  anyth ing  in  tha t  respect ,  

my expecta t ion  is  tha t  we w i l l  go  to  tha t  i ssue,  dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  no t  repeat  the  who le  sect ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR ZWANE :    Bu t  I  rea l l y  apprec ia te  the  cons ide ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR ZWANE :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Mr  Zwane,  i t  i s  the  na ture  o f  the  

beast .   Le t  us  –  i t  i s  t rue  tha t  there  was so le  sourc ing  

here?  Est ina  was –  there  was no compet i t i ve  appo in tment?  

MR ZWANE :    Okay?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You know tha t?  

MR ZWANE :    I  know i t  now,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    I  know i t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you d id  no t  know i t  then.  
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MR ZWANE :    I  d id  no t  know i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  there  was no tender  o r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And i t  i s  t rue  tha t  Est ina  was appo in ted  

as  the  so le  serv ice  prov ider?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  I  know tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    I  have read about  i t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  you knew i t  then.  

MR ZWANE :    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    How . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    I  d id  no t  know and to  be  shor t  about  i t .   

Where  there  are  i ns tances where  cor rec t  p rocesses w i l l  no t  

be  fo l lowed,  the  depar tment  th rough the  HOD exp la ins  i t  

the  fo l low ing year  when there  is  the  repor t  o f  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l  why th is  has happened,  g ive  reasons.   So prov ide  

a l l  those reasons.   When th is  repor t  came out ,  I  was no  

longer  there  in  tha t  depar tment .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  in  October  2012,  f i ve  months  a f te r  

the  cont rac t  i s  s igned.   Who d id  you th ink  was render ing  

serv i ces  a t  the  fa rm? 

MR ZWANE :    I  d id  say Paras,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you say  
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the  prob lem wi th  the  pro jec t  l ies  in  the  management ,  poor  

management .   On ly  one company was manag ing  tha t  

p ro jec t .   I s  i t  no t?  

MR ZWANE :    Except  on  the  h inds igh t ,  hav ing  known a l l  

these issues,  th is  p ro jec t  was bad ly  managed.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Bu t  by  one company,  i s  i t  no t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe you shou ld  say by  whom? 

MR ZWANE :    The in fo rmat ion  I  have is  Est ina  as  I  have 10 

gone th rough.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Es t ina  bad ly  managed th is  p ro jec t?  

MR ZWANE :    Now what  must  I  say  to  you?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  he  had sa id  so  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And. . .   So th is  i s  the  propos i t ion  I  

wanted to  pu t  to  you and you can respond.   Because 20 

hav ing  gone th rough the  ev idence  tha t  we d id ,  a t  l eas t  to  

the  ex ten t  tha t  we have done,  i t  seems tha t  Est ina  fo r  the  

pro jec t  –  the  pro jec t  may have been es tab l i shed  fo r  a  

purpose o ther  t han what  was to ld  to  government ,  the 

Prov inc ia l  Government .    
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 I  have to ld  you about  the  ev idence tha t  shows 

the  non-compl iance in  the  appo in tment  o f  Est ina ,  the  

appo in tment  o f  a  company wh ich  was run  by  a  person who 

is  no t  exper ienced in  fa rm ing.   He  is  l inked to  the  Guptas .   

He then sent  invo ices to  Sahara  Computers  tha t  ge t  pa id  

by  a  l inkway.    

 The payments  tha t  goes to  Est ina ,  u l t imate ly,  a re  

channe l led  to  the  Gupta  company,  Gateway and the  

benef ic ia r i es  in tended to  benef i t  f rom th is  company.   Even  

on your  vers ion ,  they have not  seen what  th is  p ro jec t  was 10 

meant  to  do  fo r  them.    

 So i t  seems,  g iven the  urgency a t  wh ich  i t  was 

appo in ted ,  the  R 30 mi l l ion  advanced payment ,  a l l  th is  was  

meant  to  benef i t  Gupta  re la ted  en t i t ies  and/or  the  Guptas  

themse lves.   Your  comment  on  tha t?  

MR ZWANE :    Wel l ,  my v iew is  tha t ,  as  I  have sa id ,  th is  

p ro jec t  was bad ly  managed.   Shou ld  the  management  o f  

the  pro jec t  been done we l l ,  th is  pro jec t ,  f rom where  I  am 

s i t t ing ,  regarded as  one o f  the  best  p ro jec ts  in  ag r icu l tu re  

to  have happened fo r  the  peop le  o f  the  Free S ta te .   That  i s  20 

my v iew.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  jus t  to  look ing  a t  the  

quest ion  o f  how much s t i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Le f t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . . remain ing .   I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.   The 

main  mat te rs  on  wh ich  the  Commiss ion  wanted to  hear  

Mr  Zwane ’s  ev idence was on Est ina .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On h i s  invo lvement  in  the  t r ip  to  

Swi tze r land.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And is  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  was the re  –  we d id  the  t r ip  to  10 

Swi tze r land the  las t  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have done  Est ina .   I  am not  su re  

there  is  much le f t  bu t  you might  have a  be t te r  idea on 

Est ina .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  there  shou ld  no t  be .   And then i t  i s  

h is  re la t ion  w i th  the  Guptas .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The meet ings tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .on  the  face o f  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . the  inv i ta t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H is  appo in tment  as  the  Min is te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    How i t  came about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And then,  u l t imate ly,  the  ro le  he  p layed  

when the  banks c losed the  Gupta  accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Wel l ,  we –  I  th ink ,  

fo r  example ,  when the  banks c losed how h is  ro le  there .   

That  shou ld  no t  take  long.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  cont inue.   I  am sure  we can,  

whatever  we have not  covered by  f i ve  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We may be ab le  to  cover  by  way o f  

wr i t ten  quest ions and h im answer ing  by  way o f  a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  Mr  Zwane,  we  are  no t  

unreasonab le  peop le .  
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MR ZWANE :    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  ca l l  somebody by  h is  

c lang name un less  I  apprec ia te  how he t rea ts  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .  

MR ZWANE :    And th is  morn ing  I  have ca l led  you by  your  

c lang name.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You d id ,  yes ,  yes .  

MR ZWANE :    To  be  qu i te  f rank,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR ZWANE :    Desp i te  what  I  have ra ised,  we a re  have 

been work ing  very  we l l  w i th  you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    And I  must  pu t  i t  on  record .   That  i s  why I  am 

t ry ing  to  ra i se  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    . . .whatever  I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  we might  f in ish .   Cha i rperson,  they 

have got  the  f i les  conta in ing  the  a f f idav i t  and annexures to  20 

Ms Walkman(?)  [00 :19 :25]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  I  th ink  what  we do i n  the  l igh t  

o f  what  th is  la tes t  d iscuss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  –  we can look a t  tha t  la te r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  there  are  quest ions,  they  can be 

by  way o f  wr i t ten  quest ions to  Mr  Zwane.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So we do not  need to  look  a t  

them now.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  i t  i s  th ree  lever  a rch  f i les . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]   [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  Zwane,  then we can go back  to  the  

–  what  seems to  be  your  re la t ion  w i th  the  Guptas .   But  you 

know i t  seems to  come th roughou t  tha t  re la t ionsh ip?   But  

le t  us  look a t  the  t r ips  to  Ind ia  and we can f ina l i se  on  tha t .   

There  is  one par t i cu la r.   So we go back to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Se leka.   I  may jus t  say  so  

tha t  you r  jun io r  can hear  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wou ld ,  never the less ,  l i ke  to  see them 

th is  even ing ,  the  annexures.   Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Even i f  my even ing  might  s ta r t  a t  e leven.   

[ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  le t  us  go  back to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Theron,  page 353.22.   So Mr  Zwane,  there  is  a  head ing :  

Zwane ’s  c lose  assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  Guptas .   We went  10 

th rough some o f  these emai l s . . .   the  in fo rmat ion  p rev ious l y  

wh ich  shows the  emai ls  exchanged,  book ing  f l igh t  to  Ind ia .   

And you asked the  Cha i rpe rson to  g ive  you an oppor tun i ty  

to  dea l  w i th  these  a l legat ions in  an  a f f idav i t .    

 Now the  t r ip  to  Ind ia  in  December  2013,  you  

a t tended a  wedd ing  w i th  Ashok  Narayan,  ev idence,  an  

execut ive  o f  the  Gupta  company,  Sahara  Systems,  

members  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  and Chandrama Prasad 

Yadav,  the  fa rm manager  o f  the  Vrede Da i ry  Fa rm –  Da i ry  

Pro jec t .   You have answered th i s  f rom page 353.225,  I  20 

th ink .   Paragraph  9 .1 .12 .   You are  go ing  to  have you keep 

f inge r,  Mr  Theron ’s  a f f idav i t .    

MR ZWANE :    225?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    225,  yes .   Po in t  225.  

MR ZWANE :    224?  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    225.    

MR ZWANE :    [No  aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  look  fo r  your  a f f idav i t .    

MR ZWANE :    Oh ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR ZWANE :    I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 9 .1 .12 .    

MR ZWANE :    N ine  po in t . . .?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    One po in t  12 .  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  th is  where  you are  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  

a l legat ion?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  see  tha t  what  you deny is .  

“ I  deny tha t  a t  any s tage du r ing  my tenure  as  

the  MEC in  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  

Government  I  have a t tended a  wedd ing  o f  any  

o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  and say so  w i th  conf idence 

in  tha t  I  was not  f r iends to  the  Gupta  fami ly  to  

an  ex ten t  tha t  I  wou ld  a t tend the i r  wedd ings. . . ”  20 

 Yes.   But  I  see you d id  no t  deny the  t r ip  to  Ind ia  

in  December  2013.  

MR ZWANE :    2013 or  ’14?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    ’13 .    

MR ZWANE :    Th i s  i s  the  t r ip  o f  the  t rave l  agents .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  the  t rave l  agents  i s  

September  2014.   I t  i s  coming.   I t  is  the  next  one.  

MR ZWANE :    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    So  I  see tha t  you d id  no t  deny the  t r ip  

to  Ind ia  in  December  2013 where  you wou ld  have t rave l led ,  

as  they say,  Mr  Ashok Narayan o r  ra the r  members  o f  the  

Gupta  fami ly  and Thom Muglama(? ) ,  P rasad Yadav,  the  

fa rm manager.   So tha t  par t  i s  no t  den ied?  

MR ZWANE :    Wel l ,  Cha i r  I  am go ing  to  say tha t  i t  i s  no t  

c lea r ly  s t ipu la ted .   That  when you read my a f f idav i t ,  I  say  I  10 

deny tha t  a t  any s tage dur ing  my tenure  as  the  MEC in  the  

Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government ,  I  ever  a t tended a  

wedd ing  o f  any o f  the  Gupta  fami ly.   And I  say  so  w i th  

conf idence in  tha t  I  was not  f r iends w i th  the  Guptas .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    To  an  ex ten t  tha t  I  wou ld  a t tend the i r  

wedd ings.   So i t  i s  a  qua l i f ied  s ta tement  there .   So you  

were  f r iend w i th  them but  you were  no t  f r iends  in  the  

ex ten t  tha t  you wou ld  a t tend the i r  wedd ings.  

MR ZWANE :    Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  th i rd  a f f idav i t .   Cons is ten t ly  

in  a l l  my a f f idav i ts .   I  hear  what  the  leader  o f  ev idence is  20 

say ing  and I  take  note  o f  tha t .   I  have been cons is ten t  tha t  

I  have known –  ac tua l l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Tony Gupta .  

MR ZWANE :    . . . I  must  no t  say  the  Gupta  fami ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR ZWANE :    I  have known Tony and I  have exp la ined  tha t  

I  have known Tony because o f  the  paper  in  the  Free S ta te 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE :    And I  have sa id  I  have not  met  w i th  h im 

outs ide  the  env i ronment  o f  me do ing  my work  in  the  

organ isa t ion  or  in  government .   That  has been my 

asser t ion .   So I  see th is  qua l i f i ca t ion  and I  w ish  to  cor rec t  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   So what  you are  say ing  is .   You 10 

were  no t  f r iends w i th  h im? 

MR ZWANE :    No,  I  was not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you  in te rac ted  w i th  h im 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR ZWANE :    In  regards . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to  your  work?  

MR ZWANE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The next  a l legat ion .   Oh,  I  am jus t  

open ing  a  door  fo r  the  Cha i rperson to  ask  quest ions.   20 

[ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  No ,  jus t  cont inue.   I  w i l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  w i l l  go  –  I  w i l l  come in  w i thout  the  
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d ropp ing(?)  in  i f  I  need to .   [ laughs ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]   As  I  sa id ,  Mr  Zwane,  keep  

tha t  page open  in  Mr  Theron ’s  a f f idav i t .   The next  

a l legat ion .    

“The t r i p  to  Duba i  and De lh i  in  September  

2014 wh ich  Gupta  employees  a t  Sahara  

ar ranged and wh ich  the  Gupta  fami ly  pa id  fo r.    

The f l igh t  t i cke ts  a re  ev idence tha t  Zwane f lew 

to  Duba i  and then De lh i  in  the  company o f  

Ra jesh (Tony)  Gupta  and Sa l im Essa and 10 

Surya  Kant  S ingha la .  

The purpose o f  th is  t r ip  i s  unknown. . . ”  

 The next  page:  

“The emai l  records  f rom Sahara  Computer ’s  

server  wh ich  ev idence the  t r ips  and the  Gupta  

fami ly ’s  payment  o f  Zwane ’s  expenses upf ron t  

o r  by  re fund are  a t tached here to . . . ”  

 And i t  i s  MJZ-21  and MJZ-22.   So i t  i s  MJZ on  

page 353.134 and po in t  135.   And we went  th rough th i s  

wh ich  shows the  emai l  on  page 353.134 f rom A l ima A lana.   20 

a l ima@trave lexce l lence.co .za  on  Thursday,  

11  September  2014.    The emai l  i s  addressed to  Ashu,  

ashu@sahara .co .za  and they CC’d  Saumur  a t  Trave l  

Exce l lence.   The  sub jec t  i s  E- t i cke ts  a t tachments .   Surya  

Kant  S ingha la ,  13  September.   Zwane,  13  September.   
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Ra jesh Gupta ,  13  September.   And a l so  the  two(?)  names 

tha t  appears  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  da te  i s  11  September  2014 and 

the  t ime is  05 :46  p .m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t .   Thank you,  Cha i r.   And she 

wr i tes :  

“Dear,  Ashu . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So th is  i s  Ashu Bay i  no t  Ashu Chawla .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  she  exp la ins  i t ’s  a  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Another  name? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  i t  i s  no t  a  name,  bu t  i t  i s  a  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR ZWANE:    He  says i t  i s  the  mean ing  o f  f r iend.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  i t  means bro ther .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  bu t  i s  the  same,  i t  i s  Ashu Chawla .  

MR ZWANE:    That  i s  what  I  have read,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  what  you [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

MR ZWANE:    Th i s  what  I  have read here  is  no t  in fo rmat ion  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i t  i s  a  s ign  o f  respect  o r  a f f i l i a t ion 

o f  some so r t ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.   Cont inue?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So she says:  
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“P lease see a t tached E- t i cke ts .   Thank ing  you ,  

warmest  regards Ha l ima A l lana. ”  

Then the  t i cke ts  –  ja ,  Ha l ima A l lana,  T rave l  Exce l l ence and  

the  de ta i l s  a re  se t  ou t  be low.   On the  next  page,  Mr  Zwane  

is  then  those –  what  i s  th is ,  you r  t rave l  i t inera ry  and  we 

can see your  name:  

“T rave l le r :   Zwane/Mosebenz i  Joseph”  

And the  da tes  fo l low.   The  f i rs t  one,  Saturday 13  

September  2014.   I t  i s  depar t ing  f rom Johannesburg  to  

Duba i ,  depar t ing  a t  22 .20  and ar r i v ing  in  Duba i  a t  8 .20  on  10 

the  14  September  2014 and I  am go ing  to  jus t  read the  

next  one.    

Sunday September  2014 you leave Duba i  to  go  to  

Ind ia  on  the  same day.    

The next  page,  16  September  2014 you come back  

f rom Ind ia  to  Duba i .    

The next  page 17 September  2014 you move f rom  

Duba i  to  Swi tze r land.    

 Next  da te ,  20  September  2014  you move f rom 

Swi tze r land back to  Duba i .  20 

 And then 21 Sep tember  2014 you  come f rom Duba i  

back to  Johannesburg .  

 Trave l  Exce l lence on the  face  o f  th is  a r ranged th is .   

You send Ms A l lana ’s  a f f idav i t  –  Ha l ima A l lana ’s  a f f idav i t  

where  she conf i rms tha t  they have rece ived ins t ruc t ions to  
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a r range th is  fo r  you and the  two gent lemen ment ioned 

inc lud ing  Mr  Sa l im Essa.    

 Cha i r ,  the  a f f idav i t ,  jus t  fo r  the  record ,  i s  on  page 

353.261.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O f  Ms A l lana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Zwane has read i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  d id  you t rave l  f rom South  A f r i ca  to  

Duba i  on  Saturday 13 September  2015,  Mr  Zwane? 10 

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  thank you.   Le t  me jus t  thank the  

Cha i r ,  I  th ink  th is  was a  po in t  wh ich  made us  to  ad jou rn  

las t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR ZWANE:  I  shou ld  ind ica te ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  the  a f f idav i t  and 

her  s ta tement ,  I  rece i ved tha t  a f f idav i t  yes te rday  

a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR ZWANE:    Yesterday a f te rnoon  and then I  rece ived the  

s ta tement  th is  morn ing  bu t  due to  my commi tment  f rom my 20 

par t y  tha t  I  w i l l  a lways coopera te  w i th  th is  Commiss ion  and 

to  you,  Cha i r ,  tha t  I  took  your  adv ice  when you say I  must  

t ry  and say someth ing .   I  have t r ied  and co l lec ted  a l l  the  

in fo rmat ion ,  as  you can see the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was not  

las t  t ime,  i t  i s  here .   I  wou ld  have loved to  a lso  had enough  
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t ime but  due to  the  pred icament  tha t  the  Cha i r  ra ised o f  

t imef rames o f  the  Commiss ion  I  thought  I  shou ld  say in  th is  

Commiss ion  I  w i l l  g ive  i t  my best  in  te rms  o f  my 

reco l lec t ion  bu t  I  wou ld  have loved a  s i tua t ion  where  I  

wou ld  have a l so  had a  s i tua t ion  where  I  can prove  what  I  

am say ing .   I  w i l l  con t inue to  t ry  and source  th i s  

in fo rmat ion  even when the  Commiss ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f te r  today.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.   Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  impor tan t .   To  the  10 

ex ten t  tha t  you a re  ab le  to  respond,  do  so ,  bu t  where  you  

fee l  tha t  you need to  go  and do  some homework ,  check 

some records or  whatever  and maybe f i le  an  a f f idav i t  to  

respond,  tha t  w i l l  be  a l lowed.  

MR ZWANE:   Yes ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    May I  say  we cou ld  on ly  p rov ide  i t  

yes terday because we rece ived i t  yes te rday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    I  am not  b laming anybody,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no .  

MR ZWANE:    I  am jus t  pu t t ing  a  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR ZWANE:    And my w i l l i ngness to  coopera te  even under  

these d i f f i cu l t  c i rcumstances to  he lp  the  Commiss ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  thank you.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR ZWANE:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Cha i r ,  I  know what  I  have 

sa id  on  these issues,  I  have re f lec ted  on th is  ma t te r  las t  

t ime because I  had commi t ted  tha t  I  w i l l  come back and  

ignore  the  i ssues  –  le t  me put  the  reco rd  s t ra igh t ,  i t  was  

not  my in ten t ion  to  contes t  the  emai ls .   That  i s  why I  am 

coopera t ing  today,  t ry ing  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion .   The 

issue was get t ing  some su f f i c ien t  t ime wh ich  I  can see i t  i s  10 

no t  poss ib le  even today to  t r y  and prepare  myse l f  a round 

to  be  o f  ass is tance to  th is  Commiss ion .   That  i s  why I  am 

here .   I  thought  I  shou ld  c la r i f y  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r ,  hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  hav ing  re f lec ted  

dur ing  these few days be fo re  I  came here ,  indeed there  

was a  t r ip  I  took .   I  remember  the  t r ip  wh ich  seeks to  go  – 

and a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime I  was in  Economic  Deve lopment .   I  

d id  meet  w i th  investo rs  in  Duba i ,  I  d id  meet  w i th  investors  

in  Ind ia ,  I  d id  go  to  Swi tzer land,  as  a  bus iness t r ip ,  as  you 20 

can see i t  was po in ted  in  d i f fe ren t  d i rec t ions.   I  do  no t  w ish  

to  contes t  anybody ’s  a f f idav i t .    

What  I  want  to  pu t  as  a  po in t  and fac t  in  th is  

Commiss ion  is  tha t  th roughout  my  tenure  as  MEC and the  

Min is te r  and even in  the  ANC,  when there  is  a  t r ip  tha t  i s  
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under taken,  once  tha t  t r ip  i s  approved,  i t  was a  norm tha t  

o f f i c ia ls  w i l l  then dea l  w i th  i ssues o f  book ing ,  whether  they 

use t rave l  agent ,  whether  they pay themse lves,  tha t  was  

not  upon me.   So i t  was my assumpt ion  a l l  the  t ime tha t  

tha t  has been the  norm,  hence I  was ab le  to  p rove in  the  

ear l ie r  c i r cumstances.    

 In  th is  case a lso ,  tha t  has been an assumpt ion .   I  

want  to  say to  th is  Commiss ion ,  under  no  c i r cumstances I  

wou ld  a l lowed a  s i tua t ion  knowing ly  where  a  th i rd  par ty  w i l l  

be  invo lved to  pay my own t rave l  a r rangement  whether  i t  10 

be  in  a  fo rm o f  re fund or  o therw ise  because the  no rm and  

assumpt ion  has  a lways been the  organ isa t ion  or  the  

depar tment  I  am represent ing  shou ld  be  the  one tha t  w i l l  

a lways take  care  o f  my t rave l l ing  ar rangements .   I  w ish  to  

pu t  tha t  on  record ,  Cha i r ,  o therw ise  I  w i l l  con t inue to  t ry  

and source  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  the  documents .  

MR ZWANE:    In fo rmat ion ,  where  I  can source  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR ZWANE:    I  thought  I  shou ld  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  tha t  way.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  unders tand you to  

be  say ing  the  t r ip  re fe r red  to  in  th is  t i cke t  a t  page 353.135 

d id  take  p lace on the  da tes  g i ven and to  the  p laces  

ind ica ted  but  you  are  say ing  i t  was  an o f f i c ia l  t r ip .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And as  fa r  as  your  concerned,  you r  

knowledge i s  tha t  –  o r  assumpt ion  is  tha t  i t  was pa id  fo r  by  

the  depar tment .  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  was Economic  Deve lopment  a t  the  

t ime.  

MR ZWANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t?   And –  bu t  you have not  

had the  oppor tun i ty  o f  t ry ing  to  ob ta in  documents  tha t  

m ight  show the  pos i t ion  and you  w i l l  con t inue to  t ry  and  10 

obta in  those.  

MR ZWANE:    I  w i l l  con t inue to  do  so ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR ZWANE:    And I  am say ing  upon rea l i s i ng  th is  

in fo rmat ion ,  as  i t  i s  here ,  p roper ly  reco rded,  I  had a lways 

had an assumpt ion  tha t  the  depar tment  o r  o rgan isa t ion  

where  I  am wi l l  be  the  one tha t  i s  respons ib le  to  under take 

those n i t t y  g r i t t ies  in  te rms o f  ensur ing  tha t  I  a r r i ve  where  I  

am go ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  20 

MR ZWANE:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and there fore  you are  say ing  you 

never  yourse l f  communica ted  w i th  these t rave l  agen ts .  

MR ZWANE:    No .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And asked them to  make book ings .  
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MR ZWANE:    No ,  Cha i r .   

CHAIRPERSON :    And …[ in tervenes]  

MR ZWANE:    And,  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  know how – even the  

method o f  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Who pa id  th is  t rave l  agent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR ZWANE:    Those deta i l s  tha t  due to  t ime const ra in ts  I  

may not  want  to  bore  the  Commiss ion  w i th ,  I  thought  I  

shou ld  make tha t  p resenta t ion  in  th is  Commiss ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

A r rangements  when we s top ,  we w i l l  ta lk  about  when you 

cou ld  f i le  – le t  us  have an a f f idav i t  tha t  m ight  re fe r  to  

whatever  documents  you a re  go ing  to  be  ab le  to  ge t  

because,  as  you  say,  you wou ld  no t  ge t  enough  t ime to 

look  a t  even the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you got  yes terday.   So we 

w i l l  ta lk  about  tha t  when we s top .  

MR ZWANE:    I  have a l ready enqu i red ,  Cha i r ,  I  must  say  I  

w i l l  add some in fo rmat ion  bu t  as  I  go t  i t  th is  morn ing  and  

yesterday,  to  t ry  and c lose  th is  mat te r  and ass is t  the  20 

Commiss ion  to  know what  happened.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Zwane,  tha t  w i l l  be  

he lp fu l .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  was go ing  to  jus t  say  the  
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answer ,  as  I  see f rom Mr  Zwane ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  tha t  he  says:  

“ I t  i s  regre t tab le  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  loca te  the  

depar tmenta l  approva ls  fo r  th is  t r ip  and my request  

fo r  those documenta t ions to  the  depar tment  cou ld  

no t  y ie ld  any pos i t i ve  resu l ts  and because I  am no  

longer  in  the  Free S ta te  prov ince I  depend on o the r  

peop le  and because o f  the  shor tness o f  t ime,  I  a lso  

cou ld  no t  lay  my hands on these v i ta l  documents . ”  

So I  unders tand th is  to  mean tha t  I  have t r ied  to  loca te  

them,  I  cou ld  no t ,  I  have made enqu i r ies  w i th  the  prov ince,  10 

the  prov inc ia l  depar tment ,  to  no  success.   But  I  suppose 

you w i l l  con t inue to  dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  w i l l  con t inue to  t ry  and see  

whethe r  documents  can be found.   I  wou ld  say f rom the  

Commiss ion ’s  s ide ,  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  a l so  t ry  and  

f ind  ou t .   So le t  us  a l l  t ry  and f ind  ou t  what  i s  the re  tha t  

can ass is t  to  es tab l i sh  what  the  pos i t ion  is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because what  he  is  look ing  fo r  a re  

documents  tha t  may show tha t  th is  too  was an o f f i c ia l  t r ip .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    L ike  the  f i rs t  one tha t  we ta l ked about  in  

the  morn ing ,  was  an o f f i c ia l  t r ip  and whether  there  wou ld  

be  documents  t ha t  show tha t  i t  was pa id  fo r  by  the  

depar tment .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And whether  now in  the  l igh t  o f  what  we  

saw in  the  morn ing  whether  there  a re  S  &  T   c la im 

documents  tha t  show tha t  her  c la imed fo r  S  &  T  because i t  

was an o f f i c ia l  t r ip .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  lega l  team must  a l so  be  in  touch  

w i th  the  Economic  Deve lopment  depar tment  in  the  Free  

S ta te  to  t ry  and  get  tha t  –  I  hope i t  i s  s t i l l  ca l led  tha t  

because i f  the  name has changed one cou ld  ge t  los t  as  to  10 

wh ich  one wou ld  have those records.   Do you know 

whethe r  i t  i s  s t i l l  ca l led  tha t ,  Mr  Zwane?  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  the  depar tment  i t  has  no t  changed,  

Cha i r ,  i t  i s  ca l led  the  Depar tment  o f  Economic  

Deve lopment  and  Env i ronmenta l  a f fa i rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   So I  th ink  you t ry  f rom 

your  s ide  and the  lega l  team wi l l  a lso  t ry  and obta in .   But  

f rom your  s ide ,  we w i l l  f i x  the  da te ,  t ry  and obta in  and you 

w i l l  g ive  us  what  you have obta ined and the  lega l  team,  

whatever  i t  ob ta ins ,  i t  must  a lso  share  i t  w i th  you.  20 

MR ZWANE:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   So,  Cha i r ,  fo r  now I  

wou ld  no t  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  Ms A l lana ’s  a f f idav i t  

because she then a t taches the  passpor ts  tha t  she has o f  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 176 of 354 
 

the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you can re fer  to  i t ,  i f  you  want  to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page d id  you say i t  i s?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    353.261.5  bu t  the  next  page  is  the  –  

are  the  impor tan t  ones.  

CHAIRPERSON :    261.5?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  261.5  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  her  

a f f idav i t .  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r…? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  –  okay,  yes ,  you re fe r  to  what  you 

w ish  to  re fer  to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  paragraph 7 ,  Mr  –  we l l ,  le t  us  s ta r t  

a t  5 .    

MR ZWANE:    You are  261 po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Go to  po in t  6 .  

MR ZWANE:    Po in t  6?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  po in t  5  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  the 

a f f idav i t .   Thank you.   Paragraph 5  w i th  the  head ing :  

“Mat te rs  re la t ing  to  Mr  Mosebenz i  Joseph Zwane.  20 

I  hereby w ish  to  respond to  a  request  f rom 

invest iga to rs  o f  the  Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry  

in to  a l legat ions  o f  s ta te  cap ture  who have  

requested a l l  Trave l  Exce l lence records concern ing  

Mr  Zwane. ”  
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So ,  Mr  Zwane,  le t  me go pa ragraph  6 .   Says:  

“ I  rev iewed my emai l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  no ,  i t  i s  f ine ,  read the  who le  page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Shou ld  I  read i t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  i s  impor tan t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  s ta r t  f rom the  beg inn ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     

“ I  hereby w ish  to  respond to  a  request  f rom 

invest iga to rs  o f  the  Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry  10 

in to  A l legat ions o f  S ta te  Captu re ,  the  Commiss ion ,   

who have reques ted a l l  Trave l  Exce l lence records  

concern ing  Mr  Mosebenz i  Zwane w i th  ident i f i ca t ion  

number…”  

And the  number  i s  g iven.  

“ I  have never  met ,  cor responded  w i th  o r  rece ived  

any payments  fo r  t rave l  under taken by  Mr  Zwane.   

A l l  in te rac t ions in  respect  o f  Mr  Zwane ’s  t rave l  

a r rangements  were  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa and Mr  Ashu 

Chawla . ”  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or  Chawla ,  i s  tha t  Chawla?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  have been  say ing  Chawla ,  I  th ink  I  

have pronounc ing  i t  wrong ly .   I t  must  be  Chawla .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  my jun io r  i s  nodd ing ,  Cha i r ,  

Chawla .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Hey?  Chawla?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    My jun io r  says  Chawla .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   No,  she must  be  r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She must  be .   No,  i f  she  is  wrong,  they 

chop head. (?) .  18 .30  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    

6 .  “ I  rev iewed my emai l  account  a t  Trave l  Exce l lence 

and re t r i eved an  emai l  da ted  12  September  2014 

wh ich  I  compi led  and sent  to  Ashu@sahara .co .za.   10 

A  pr in tou t  o f  the  emai l  i s  a t tached here to  marked 

annexure  HA1.   In  the  a foresa id  emai l  I  have 

a t tached the  t rave l  i t inerar ies  fo r  the  fo l low ing 

ind iv idua ls :  

1 .  Mr  Ra jesh Kumar  Gupta .  

2 .  Mr  Essa  

3 .  Mr  Zwane  

4 .  Mr  Surya  Kant  S ingha la . ”  

7 .  Mr  Essa made the  abovement ioned t rave l  

a r rangements  and feedback was p rov ided to  h im v ia  20 

emai l  on  4  September  2014.   A  pr in tou t  o f  the  emai l  

desc r ib ing  the  f l igh t  de ta i l s  fo r  Mr  R Gupta  and Mr  

Essa is  a t tached  here to  as  annexure  HA5.   These 

t i cke ts  were  va lued a t  R53 495  per  person.   A  

pr in tou t  o f  the  emai l  descr ib ing  the  f l igh t  de ta i l s  fo r  

mailto:Ashu@sahara.co.za
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Mr  Zwane is  a t tached as  annexure  HA6.  

8 .  On 5  September  2014 I  i ssued t i cke ts  fo r  Mr  R 

Gupta ,  Mr  Essa and Mr  Zwane.   I  a t tach  he re to  a  

pr in tou t  o f  the  emai l  as  annexure  HA7.   The pr in tou t  

o f  a  fo l low-up emai l  to  Mr  Essa a t  

sa l imessa@gmai l . com and sa l im@globa l .co . za  fo r  

the  a i r  t i cke ts  o f  Mr  R Gupta  and Mr  Essa i s  

a t tached here to  as  annexure  HA8.   An add i t iona l  

fo l low-up was  sent  to  Mr  Essa  a t  

sa l imessa@gmai l . com and sa l im@globa l .co . za  fo r  10 

the  t i cke t  o f  Mr  Zwane.   A pr in tou t  o f  the  a foresa id  

emai l  i s  a t tached here to  as  annexure  HA9.  

9 .  As a  resu l t  o f  the  changes made to  the  a i r  t i cke ts  o f  

Mr  Gupta  and Mr  Zwane a f te rwards fo r  the i r  re tu rn  

f l igh t ,  an  add i t iona l  R2 500 were  invo i ced per  

ind iv idua l .   A p r in tou t  o f  the  i nvo i ce  wh ich  was 

issued on 15 Sep tember  2014 i s  a t tached here to  as  

annexure  HA10. ”  

Ja ,  sha l l  I  car ry  on ,  Cha i r?  

“The passpor ts  a re  a t tached,  I  have re fer red  to  in  20 

parag raph 13. ”  

And they are  a t tached inc lud ing  your  own,  Mr  Zwane .    

“The payment…”  

Accord ing  to  her,  in  paragraph 12:  

“…,  was made o f  R166 290 fo r  those t r ips ,  fo r  the  

mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
mailto:salim@global.co.za
mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
mailto:salim@global.co.za


13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 180 of 354 
 

a i r  t rave l ,  as  ment ioned above,  was rece ived in  

Trave l  Exce l lence ABSA bank  account .   I ,  

un for tunate ly,  cannot  reca l l  f rom whom we rece ived 

the  EFT payment .   The pr in tou t  o f  the  bank  

s ta tement  in  wh ich  the  t ransact ion  is  re f lec ted  i s  

a t tached here to ,  as  annexure  HA14. ”  

Wel l ,  so  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  t r ips  are  conceded,  the  on ly  

quest ion  is ,  who pa id  fo r  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  tha t  m ight  no t  be  the  on ly  

quest ion .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The o ther  quest ion  is  i f  Ms 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A l lana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l la l la ,  Ha l lana.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A l lana,  Ha l ima  A l lana.  

MR ZWANE:    Ha l ima A l lana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I f  she  says,  as  she does,  under  

oa th ,  tha t  she made these book ings fo r  four  peop le ,  

inc lud ing  you,  Mr  Zwane,  and she says –  and there  w i l l  20 

say,  cor rec t l y  so ,  she has never  i n te rac ted  w i th  you.   She 

says she had never  cor responded w i th  you.   She says she 

has never  met  you.   She says,  as  I  unders tand her ,  she got  

a l l  th is  in fo rmat ion  f rom Mr  Sa l im Essa.   In  o ther  words,  i t  

i s  Mr  Sa l im Essa  who sa id  he  must  make book ings  fo r  the  
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four  peop le ,  inc lud ing  you,  fo r  th is  t r ip .    

I f  tha t  i s  t rue  tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa asked he r  to  make  

the  book ings wh ich  have re la ted  to ,  among o the rs ,  you,  the  

quest ion  is  –  and  i f  i t  i s  accepted,  as  i t  shou ld  be ,  tha t  you  

d id  t rave l  on  th is  da te  to  the  p laced ind ica ted  in  the  t i cke t  

and came back on  the  day ind i ca ted  the re ,  how d id  Mr  

Sa l im Essa know th is  in fo rmat ion  about  you r  t r ip  o r  how d id  

Ms A l lana know th is  in fo rmat ion  so  accura te ly  w i thout  

hav ing  spoken to  you?  You see,  those are  the  quest ions  

tha t  a r ise  and then,  o f  course ,  the  quest ion  who pa id  bu t  10 

apar t  f rom who pa id ,  the  quest ion  –  there  are  these o ther  

quest ions.   How d id  she get  to  know you were  go ing  to  

t rave l  to  Duba i  on  such and such a  day and f rom Duba i  you 

were  go ing  to  t rave l  to  Ind ia?   And,  ac tua l l y,  tha t  is  where  

you t rave l led ,  tha t  i s  where  you  went ,  and how d id  she  

know you wou ld  come back on  the  day on  wh ich  you d id  

come back w i thout  speak ing  to  you?  She on he r  s ide  says  

she got  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom Sa l im Essa.  

So those are  the  quest ions tha t  a r ise .   But  w i th  

regard  to  Mr  Sa l im Essa,  I  th ink  you sa id  las t  t ime you d id  20 

no t  know h im,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   You may have met  h im once  

or  someth ing  or  you d id  no t  know h im a t  a l l?  

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r,  I  sa id  –  thank you,  Cha i r.   Am I  to  

answer  one quest ion  or  a l l  o f  them? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  want  to  answer  a l l  o f  them you 
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can  answer  a l l  o f  them.  

MR ZWANE:    Okay,  Cha i r.   I  d id  say I  d id  no t  know Sa l im.   

In  fac t  th is  who a f f idav i t  ra ises  an  in te res t  a lso  f rom me.   I  

conf i rm tha t  I  do  no t  know th i s  lady  ca l led  Ha l ima,  I  have  

not  spoken to  her.   I  must  a lso  conf i rm in  th is  Commiss ion  

tha t  I  a lso  d id  no t  speak to  Sa l im.   As  I  have ind i ca ted ,  the  

person I  knew I  was ta lk ing  to  was Thu l i (? )  bu t  le t  me a l so  

then respond to  the  issue,  how wou ld  they have  known?  

Cha i r,  I  have sa id  i t  i s  my assumpt ion ,  up  to  my,  inc lud ing  

th is  t r ip ,  tha t  once the  t r ip  i s  se t ,  the  n i t t y  g r i t t ies  w i l l  be  10 

done by  the  depar tment .   The presence o f  my password ,  as  

you see i t ,  in  my mind a l ludes to  tha t  fac t  because  i t  was 

there ,  I  wou ld  ensure  tha t  i t  i s  ava i lab le  in  the  depar tment  

dur ing  the  course  o f  them do ing  whatever  work  they need 

to  do .    

I  w i l l  a lso  want  to  ra ise  my in te res t  in  te rms o f  

ac tua l l y  who pa id  fo r  th is  t r ip .   I  th ink  i t  i s  a lso  impor tan t  

fo r  me because my assumpt ion  has a lways been,  to  the 

best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  my be l ie f  and my knowledge,  tha t  

the  depar tment  w i l l  be  do ing  th is  work  and once t i cke ts  a re  20 

here ,  I  w i l l  ge t  in to  the  p lane and go.   So i t  ra ises  those 

issues even to  me,  Cha i r.   I  cannot  respond how d id  she  

know,  as  a  t rave l  agent ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   And I  guess f rom your  po in t  o f  v iew  

i f  the  depar tment  asked th i s  t rave l  agent  to  make a  
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book ing  fo r  you then tha t  wou ld  have been between the  

t rave l  agent  and the  depar tment  bu t ,  o f  course ,  she does  

not  say  tha t ,  she  says i t  i s  Sa l im Essa but  i f  tha t  was the  

case,  tha t  wou ld  be  the  case.  

MR ZWANE:    That  w i l l  be  the  case,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  you jus t  do  no t  know,  ja .  

MR ZWANE:    That  w i l l  be  the  case,  ja .   I  wou ld  no t  know 

because those deta i l s  a re  no t  the  de ta i l s  tha t  w i l l  be 

fo l lowed by  me as an  MEC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Cha i r,  you know,  i t  i s  one th ing  

to  read the  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  another  th ing  to  look  a t  the  

emai ls ,  Mr  Zwane,  because the  emai ls  a re  s t r i k i ng  and 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Take us  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  take  us  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  us  go  to  page –  we l l ,  the  f i rs t  emai l  

Cha i r  i s  po in t ,  261.9 ,  so  HA1,  page 353,  po in t  261.9 ,  so  

tha t ’s  Ms He lana  on the  12 t h  o f  September  2014 wr i t ing  to  20 

Mr  Ashu and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wr i t ing  to  Mr  Ashu Chawla?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r,  @sahara .co .za .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The a t tachments  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    And she says:  

“Dear  Ashuba i ,  

P lease see amended t i cke ts ,  

Thank ing  you”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  the  a t tachments  aga in  have th ree  

names,  A jesh Gupta ,  Zwane and Sur ia  S ingana.   Then you  

tu rn  the  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe le t  me ask th is  quest ion ,  do  you 10 

know whethe r  Tony Gupta  was on  the  p lane,  on  the  same 

p lane as  yourse l f  when you went  on  tha t  t r ip  f rom South  

A f r i ca  to  Duba i?   A t  leas t  you had met  h im by tha t  t ime as  I  

unders tand i t .  

MR ZWANE:   Yes,  I  knew h im very  we l l  Cha i r.    I  can ’ t  

remember  Cha i r,  I  can ’ t  remember  see ing  h im.   I  a lso  

cannot  deny tha t  he  was on the  p lan ,  bu t  what  I  know i s  

what  I  a l ready communica ted  to  the  commiss ion  tha t  I  d id  

no t  ins t ruc t  anybody to  do  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Se leka?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then the  next  page is  the  i t inerary  fo r  

Mr  Sa l im Essa  

CHAIRPERSON:    The next  page is  page 353.261 what?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Poin t  10 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    And Mr  Ra jesh  Gupta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  da tes  is  13  September,  14  

September,  16  September,  17  September,  20  Sep tember  

and 21 September,  exact ly  the  same dates  tha t  we have 

seen in  your  –  i n  respect  o f  the  i t inerary  re la t ing  to  you Mr  

Zwane.   And I  th ink  the  p laces  are  the  same,  they ’ re  

t rave l l ing  f rom Jo ’bu rg  to  Duba i ,  f rom Duba i  to  Ind ia ,  and 

then f rom Ind ia  back to  Duba i ,  when they are  in  Duba i  then 

they go  to  Zur i ch ,  Swi tze r land and f rom Swi tzer land back 10 

to  Duba i  and u l t imate ly  Duba i  to  Johannesburg ,  exact ly  the  

same t r ip  as  yours .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  th is ,  you accept  tha t  the  

dest ina t ions are  the  same,  the  p laces where  you went?  

MR ZWANE:    Ja ,  accord ing  to  th is  in fo rmat ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes accord ing  to  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  te rms o f  your  reco l lec t ion  o f  you r  

own t r ip  as  we l l  you have sa id  tha t  f rom here  you  went  to  20 

Duba i ,  f rom Duba i  you went  to  Ind ia ,  f rom Ind ia  d id  you go  

back to  Duba i?  

MR ZWANE:    Yes Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t ’s  the  rou te  in  te rms o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  rou te  j a .   And  do you 
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remember  whethe r  you went  to  Zu r ich  o r  no t?  

MR ZWANE:    I  remember  tha t  I  d id  go  to  Zur i ch .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  go  to  Zur ich  ja .   And f rom Zur ich  

back to  Duba i .  

MR ZWANE:    And back home.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then back home f rom Zur i ch  s t ra igh t  

o r  f rom Zur ich  back to  Duba i?  

MR ZWANE:    I  th ink  i t  i s  f rom Duba i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  f i rs t  went  to  Duba i  then to  South  

A f r i ca .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r  I  wou ldn ’ t  be  asked to  specu la te ,  th is  

i s  a  p roper  specu la t ion  and I  th ink  le t  me not  waste  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  ja ,  no  tha t ’s  f ine,  

ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t ’s  the  one,  Mr  Zwane ’s  one  

then Cha i r  wh ich  we have read,  i s  a  dup l i ca t ion  o f  the  one 

we have read ear l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes. .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  on  page 353.261.13,  HA3.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  –  the  rou te  i s  the  same,  we have 

gone th rough i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    You have checked i t  i s  the  same? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   I t ’s  exact ly  the  same Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   And the  f l igh t  i s  i t  the  same 

f l igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  what  I  haven ’ t  looked a t ,  le t ’s  

see.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA:  Is  f l i gh t  the  equ ipment ,  Boe ing  77 –  okay  

le t ’s  see Mr  Zwane,  le t ’s  see –  look a t  the  f i rs t  one,  the  

13 t h  o f  September  2014,  so  on  page –  the  one o f  Sa l im 

Essa,  261.10,  aga ins t  the  en t ry  equ ipment ,  okay f l igh t ,  so  10 

we can look a t  f l igh t ,  AK762 Emi ra tes ,  i t  i s  the  same Cha i r,  

AK762 Emi ra tes ,  depar tu re ,  the  t ime is  the  same,  13 :50 ,  

a r r i va l  the  t ime is  the  same,  23 :59 ,  23 :59 ,  you ’ re  go ing  

f rom OR Tambo,  Johannesburg  to  Duba i ,  f l y ing  t ime,  i t  i s  

the  same Mr  Zwane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay we  can a lways check and 

when you have t ime you w i l l  a lso  have a  look and  to  see 

whethe r  they f lew accord ing  to  th is  on  the  same f l igh ts  as  

yourse l f  and then  you w i l l  then dea l  w i th  the  issues in  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  you  w i l l  f i l e  and i f  you,  by  then we w i l l  have 20 

seen some documents  wh ich  you th ink  are  impor tan t  cou ld  

be  fo r  the  Commiss ion  you w i l l  do  so .   

MR ZWANE:    I  w i l l  have to  ge t  in  touch w i th  them,  bu t  I  no  

longer  have the i r  de ta i l s  as  I  am no longer  Min is te r  o f  

Minera ls ,  so  I  w i l l  do  the  best  tha t  I  can Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja ,  thank you.  

MR ZWANE:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  we mus t  s top  he re  because we 

have reached f i ve  o ’c lock .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  ar rangement  there fore  i s  tha t  

fu r ther  quest ions  can be put  to  Mr  Zwane in  wr i t ing  and he  

w i l l  respond by  way o f  a f f idav i t  bu t  even before  he  rece ives 

any quest ions he  has go t  some homework  to  do  to  see 

what  he  can get  in  te rms o f  documents  tha t  th rows l igh t  on  10 

the  issues and  the  lega l  team wi l l  themse lves a lso  

approach the  Economic  Depar tment  o f  the  Free S ta te  

Prov ince,  to  t ry  and see what  in fo rmat ion  the  documents  

can be obta ined.    Today is  the  –  what  i s  the  da te  today?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The 13 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    13 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Of  May.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  May,  i f  we say t ry  and le t  us  have the  

a f f idav i t  by  25  May do you th ink  tha t  w i l l  g ive  you enough 

t ime Mr  Zwane?  20 

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r  I  w i l l  endeavour  to  do  my best .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You w i l l  do  your  best .     

MR ZWANE:   Yes,  I  w i l l  co l lec t  whatever  I  can get ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  o r  maybe I  jus t  say  on  or  be fore  the  

–  Monday is  31  May,  29  w i l l  be ,  30  w i l l  be  Sunday,  
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Sa turday w i l l  be  29 ,  on  or  be fore  Fr iday the  28 t h ,  o r  le t  me 

g ive  you more  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  no  tha t  i s  enough Cha i r.   That  i s  

two weeks.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  am say ing  tha t ’s  f ine ,  because 

you are  s t i l l  go ing  to  pu t  quest ions to  h im,  remember,  we  

w i l l  g ive  h im tha t .    Your  a t to rney is  f ine  w i th  tha t?  

COUNSEL FOR MR ZWANE:   We are  okay w i th  tha t  Cha i r,  

we shou ld  be  ab le  to  ge t  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  we w i l l  g ive  you enough t ime,  10 

and –  bu t  in  the  meant ime you I  th ink  t ry  and make sure   

you have g i ven h im quest ions by  when? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    We can g ive  the  quest ions  by  th is  

weekend Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  th is  weekend? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  because they are  a l ready here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  a l r igh t ,  okay a l r igh t ,  and then  

he w i l l  –  the  a f f idav i t  w i l l  dea l  w i th  every th ing ,  okay,  

a l r igh t .   Thank  you very  much Mr  Zwane fo r  you r  

coopera t ion  and thank you to  your  a t to rney a lso ,  Mr  Denda 20 

fo r  your  coopera t ion ,  thank you.   

MR ZWANE:    Cha i r  le t  me a lso  thank you,  I  rea l l y  have  

learn t  a  lo t  in te rac t ing  w i th  you and your  t ime,  I  wish  tha t  

th is  Commiss ion  can bear  f ru i t s  fo r  the  count ry  as  we are  

mov ing  fo rward  and as  I  have sa id  I  w i l l  con t inue to  
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coopera te  w i th  the  Commiss ion  and g i ve  i t  my best  shot ,  

a l l  the  best  Cha i r.   I  know your  work  i s  no t  as  easy as  we  

see you on te lev i s ion  there ,  there  i s  a  lo t  tha t  i s  go ing  on  

beh ind  the  scenes.  

 Otherwise  f rom my s ide  I  want  to  thank you fo r  the  

oppor tun i ty  o f  g iv ing  me to  exp la in  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  I  

th ink  tha t  goes  a  long way,  and thank you  fo r  the  

oppor tun i ty  once more ,  to  your  leaders  o f  ev idence I  do  no t  

have a  compla in t ,  I  rea l l y  want  to  apprec ia te  tha t  

oppor tun i ty,  thank you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much Mr  Zwane.   We wi l l  

ad journ  th is  day sess ion  now fo r  15  m inutes  and thereaf te r  

we w i l l  resume and s tar t  the  even ing  sess ion  and tha t  w i l l  

re la te  to  Mr  Koko ’s  ev idence,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  in  regard  to  Eskom.   We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Once aga in  good a f te rnoon Mr  Se leka,  20 

good a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good even ing  Cha i r.  

MR KOKO:   Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon,  a re  you read? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes we are  ready Cha i rpe rson  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As the  Cha i rperson ind i ca ted  th is  

even ing  sess ion  is  in  regard  to  Mr  Koko and I  th ink  due to  

the  t ime lapse we may have to  admin i s te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  p lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:  Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR KOKO:    Matshe la  Moses Koko.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  10 

prescr ibed oath?  

MR KOKO:   No.  

REGISTRAR:  Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and  say so  

he lp  me God.  

MR KOKO:    So  he lp  me God.  20 

MATSHELA MOSES KOKO:  [duly  sworn,  s tates]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Yes ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.    On the  las t  

occas ion  we were  about  to  go  i n to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms 

Su le iman in  regard  to  the  t rave l  o f  Mr  Koko to  Duba i ,  
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be fore  we go there  Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  touch on  

cer ta in  mat te rs  in  re la t ion  to  McK insey and Tr i l l i an  and see 

whethe r  we can come c lose to  f ina l i s ing  on  tha t .   I  know 

we have some a f f idav i t  ou ts tand ing  but  we probab ly  w i l l  

have to  make a  d i f fe ren t  a r rangement  in  regard  to  how we 

dea l  w i th  those a f f idav i t s ,  and I  want  to  Mr  Koko s tar t  w i th  

Eskom Bund le  14 [c ]  on  page 811.112,  and I  want  to  exp la in  

tha t  because th is  dea ls  w i th  the  requ i rement  o f  Nat iona l  

Treasury  approva l .   Both  Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh Cha i r  have 

sa id ,  have a l leged in  th is  emai l  f rom the  o f f i c ia l  o f  Nat iona l  10 

Treasury  a re  exact ly  as  –  we l l  the  vers ion  is  qu i te  d i f fe ren t  

by  Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh but  maybe they w i l l  –  Mr  Koko  

w i l l  exp la in  to  you why re ference to  th is  emai l  has been  

made.    

 That  emai l  i s  an  exchange between Mr  Dave Gorey 

o f  Eskom,  th is  emai l  i s  the  f i rs t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  page –  

oh  wa i t ,  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page ,  there  is  an  emai l  f rom 

Dave Gorey . . . [ in te rvenes]   

COUNSEL FOR MR KOKO:    Cha i r  I  have not  qu i te  heard  

what  the  page number  i s?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  page 811.112 in  Bund le ,  Eskom 

Bund le  14 .   Eskom Bund le  14 ,  page 811.112.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So the  f i rs t  emai l  i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  

the  page,  f rom Mr  Dave Gorey to  DJ@Eskom.co .za on  

Thursday the  4 t h  o f  February  2016  a t  3 .07pm,  i t  says  “so r ry  
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Cha i r  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  cc  Mr  Char les  Kamima,  the  sub jec t  i s  

p rac t ice  no te  number  SCM3 o f  2003,  and the  emai l  reads:  

“Good a f te rnoon So l i ,   

Thank you fo r  your  hosp i ta l i t y  th is  morn ing .   We 

look fo rward  to  schedu le  product ive  engagements  in  

the  fu tu re .    As  we d iscussed p lease conf i rm to  us  

tha t  p rac t ice  no te  number  SCM3 o f  2003 ent i t led  

“appo in tment  o f  consu l tan ts ”  i s  cur ren t ly  va l id  and 

e f fec t i ve  fo r  pub l i c  en t i t ies  such  as  Eskom.   We 

unders tand tha t  th is  p rac t ice  no te  and o thers  w i l l  be  10 

inco rpora ted  in to  a  new se t  o f  regu la t ions once the  

rev iew process has been comple ted .  

Best  regards,  

Dave Gorey  

Sen io r  Manager  :  Commerc ia l  

Eskom Group Commerc ia l ”  

And the  te lephone contac ts  a re  g iven.   Mr  Koko are  you on  

the  same page?  

MR KOKO:    I  am there ,  I ’m  there  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Then a t  the  top  o f  tha t  i s  a  20 

rep l y  emai l  f rom So l ly.c tangana@treasury.gov.za  sent  on  

Thursday the  4 t h  o f  February  2016  a t  17 :23  to  Dave  Gorey,  

cop ied  i n  i s  Mr  Char les  Kadema,  Vukami  Indaba,  S ind i le  

Nxon je lo ,  sub jec t  re  Pract ice  Note  numbers  SCM3/2003,  

the  emai l  reads:  

mailto:Solly.ctangana@treasury.gov.za
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“Dear  Dave,  

Prac t ice  Note  3 /2003 is  s t i l l  app l i cab le  un t i l  

rep laced w i th  new ins t ruc t ions a f te r  the  

promulgat ion  o f  the  new Treasury  Regu la t ions.   The  

re ta iner /cont ingency fee  pr inc ip les  are  no t  c lear ly  

ou t l ined in  the  prac t ice  no te .   I f  you  in tend app ly ing  

them you need to  do  some fu r ther  work  to  ensure  

tha t  you do no t  compromise  the  p r inc ip les  o f  

Sect ion  217 o f  the  Const i tu t ion  and o the r  

leg is la t ion .   10 

Regards,  

So l l y ”  

Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Koko you reca l l  th is  the  emai l  when  

we were  ta lk ing  about  the  requ i rement  fo r  Nat iona l  

Treasury  approva l ,  amongst  o ther  th ings you were  mak ing  

re ference to  th is  emai l .  

MR KOKO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson why were  

you mak ing  re ference to  the  emai l?  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  the  le t te r  o f  award  you have i t  as  20 

ev idence befo re  th is  Commiss ion ,  i s  da ted  the  17 t h  o f  

December  2015.    We cou ld  no t  have got  to  tha t  po in t  o f  

the  le t te r  o f  award  un less  we have met  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

and compl iance to  Nat iona l  Treasury  Regu la t ions  are  a t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  so  fo r  –  when we had the  f i rs t  s teer ing 
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commi t tee ,  I  th ink  i t  was in  January,  an  impress ion  was 

made . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  be fore  you proceed Mr  Koko,  the  

December  tha t  you ta lk  about  in  te rms o f  when the  award  

was made is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   I t  i s  2015,  one f i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Right .    The impress ion  tha t  was put  to  us  

when we had the  f i rs t  s teer ing  commi t tee  by  the  pro jec t  

manager  was tha t  the  Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  compl iance is  in  10 

p lace as  we l l .   We a l so  heard  ev idence and there  are  

a f f idav i t s  in  th i s  Commiss ion ,  i f  I  reca l l  one i s  f rom Mr  

Mabe lane,  i  th ink  Mr  S ingh makes the  same s ta tements  

tha t  the  cont rac t  was ac tua l l y  conc luded in  January  2016.   

A t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes when the  quest ion  o f  compl iance to  

Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  p roduct  the  on ly  re fe rence tha t  was put  

to  the  fo re  i s  a  le t te r  –  i s  an  emai l  be tween Dave  Gorey 

and Mr  So l l y  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  who was then the  CPO,  Ch ie f  

P rocurement  Off i cer  a t  Nat iona l  Treasury.  

 Now I  have never  had s igh t  o f  tha t  un t i l  the  20 

proceed ings in  th is  Commiss ion  and i t  i s  what  i t  i s  be fore  

you now,  and you  see tha t  i t  i s  da ted  the  4 t h ,  so  tha t ’s  the  

on ly  reason why I  made tha t  s ta tement  and I  have sa id  to  

you I  am not  go ing  to  pass a  comment  o r  judgment  ca l l  on  

th is  emai l ,  excep t  two th ings;  one i t  came a f te r  the  fac t  
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and two i t  i s  fo r  the  lawyers  to  dec ide  whether  th is  le t te r  

g ives  consent  o r  no t  bu t  what  I  can te l l  you ,  what  I  can te l l  

you ,  i s  tha t  we came to  a  rea l i sa t ion  somet ime in  

February /March tha t  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  compl iance was  

not  in  p lace  so  I  have no doubt  in  my mind tha t  cer ta in ly  I ,  

Matshe la  Koko,  and members  o f  the  s tee r ing  commi t tee  

and the re  were  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  us  there  Cha i r  and  one o f  

the  prob lems I  have in  the  proceed ings the re  I  seem to  be  

the  spokesperson o f  the  S teer ing  Commi t tee  and  by  the  

way I  need to  make th is  c lea r  tha t  the  de legat ions f rom the  10 

Board  was not  to  the  S teer ing  Commi t tee ,  so  you  cannot  

ho ld  the  S teer ing  Commi t tee  co l lec t i ve l y  accountab le ,  that  

i s  no t  how Corpora te  works ,  bu t  in  any event  a l l  tha t  I  am 

say ing  is  th is  l e t te r  when I  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  was to  say to  you  

the  peop le  invo lved when they say we have Nat iona l  

Treasury  Compl iance they a l l  re fe r  to  th is  le t te r,  bu t  i t  i s  up  

to  you to  make our  judgment  ca l l  whethe r  th is  le t ter  g ives  

compl iance or  no t ,  bu t  what  I  am put t ing  to  you  is  tha t  

a round February /March I  th ink  I  used,  the  te rm tha t  I  used 

someth ing  l i ke  the  wr i t ing  was on the  wa l l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  wr i t ing  was on the  wa l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  wr i t ing  was on the  wa l l  was  

ment ioned around February /March  or  someth ing .  

MR KOKO:    Yes I  th ink  I  made . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  March/Apr i l .  
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MR KOKO:    Yes,  February /March the  wr i t ing  was on the  

wa l l  and I  do  no t  reca l l  any d issent  tha t  the  wr i t ing  was not  

on  the  wa l l ,  in  o ther  words the re  was no compl iance to  

Nat iona l  Treasury  Regu la t ions and th is  le t te r  cannot  be  

re l ied  upon.   Tha t  i s  as  fa r  as  I  can put  i t  Cha i r,  I  had not  

seen th is  le t te r  a t  tha t  t ime,  I  came to  know about  th is  

le t te r  I  th ink  somet ime in  the  Par l iamentary  f i le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  wou ldn ’ t  know.  

MR KOKO:    That ’s  I  th ink  e i ther  towards  Eskom 

Par l iamentary  f i le ,  i t  was pa r t  o f  the  bund le  tha t  Ms  10 

Dan ie ls  pu t  toge ther,  tha t ’s  when  I  came to  be  aware  o f  

th is ,  bu t  Cha i r  we are  p lay ing  around in  c i rc les ,  the  wr i t ing  

was on the  wa l l ,  there  was  no Nat iona l  Treasury  

compl iance a t  tha t ,  a t  leas t  a round February /March and  

when the  le t te r  o f  award  o f  17  December  2015 was  s igned  

and when the  da te  o f  the  7 t h  o f  January  i s  re fe r red  to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no  tha t  cer ta in ly  exped i tes  the  

proceed ings,  I  on ly  wanted to  re fer  –  to  b r ing  i t  to  the  

Cha i rperson ’s  a t ten t ion  because i t  had been ment ioned but  

Cha i r  as  Mr  Koko  says inso fa r  as  he  is  concerned the  po in t  20 

doesn ’ t  need to  be  be laboured,  he  has g i ven you what  he  

unders tands is  le t  –  th is  emai l  exchanged comes he says 

a f te r  the  fac t ,  the  cont rac t  had  been conc luded  w i thout  

hav ing  ob ta ined  in i t ia l  Treasury  approva l .   I t  i s  the  

s ign i f i cance o f  tha t  s tep  wh ich  is  under  sc ru t iny  Mr  Koko,  
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the  s ign i f i cance o f  tha t  s tep  and –  because in  te rms o f  the  

Act  wherever  the  Act  i s  re fe r red  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  appears  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  appears  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  the  Pub l ic  

F inance Management  Act  sec t ion  1  says:  

“Reference to  the  Act  inc ludes  regu la t ions and 

ins t ruc t ions issued by  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  so  tha t  

i f  you  fa i l  to  comply  w i th  the  ins t ruc t ion  or  the  

regu la t ions i t  i s  a  fa i lu re  to  comply  w i th  the  

leg is la t i ve  pro fess ion . ”  10 

The fa i lu re  leads  to  the  cont rac t  be ing  a  nu l l i t y,  be ing  a  

nu l l i t y  because there  is  no  pr io r  compl iance.    So tha t  

cont rac t  then becomes enfo rceab le  aga ins t  a  government  

depar tment  o r  an  SOE,  a  S ta te  Owned Ent i t y,  and  tha t  i s  

s ign i f i can t  because what  Mr  S ingh – I  am not  sure  about  

you in  regard  to  the  payments ,  why they were  met ,  i s  tha t  

Eskom had an ob l iga t ion  to  make those payments .    I s  tha t  

your  pos i t ion  as  we l l?  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  when I  was here  I  p romised to  send you  

a  po l i cy  o f  Eskom,  and I  sa id  you w i l l  no t  wa i t  long,  and I  20 

d id  exact ly  tha t .    I  have sent  i t  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  we l l  I  recent ly  asked them 

whethe r  they have got  what  I  s imp ly  ca l led  the  document  

tha t  shou ld  te l l  me who had what  respons ib i l i t i es  o r  

ob l iga t ions in  the  process ing  o f  invo i ces and they assured 
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me tha t  they have got  tha t .   So tha t  may or  may not  

necessar i l y  be  what  you a re  ta lk ing  about  bu t  I  am jus t  

say ing  I  have jus t  been ca l l ing  on  tha t ,  bu t  I  th ink  they  

have got  eve ry th ing  now,  o r  i s  i t  –  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No we do Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You do ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We do I  have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay do le t  me have cop ies ,  I  don ’ t  

know i f  they  are  a l ready here  in  advance because I  do 

want  to  look  a t  those documents .  10 

MR KOKO:    Yes and Cha i r  I  am happy to  go  to  i t  to  show 

you tha t  i t  i s  no t  the  –  i t  i s  wrong to  say because the  

cont rac t ,  the  en ter ing  in to  a  con t rac t  adds prob lems,  in  

o ther  words because i t  needs,  fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  word ,  

le t ’s  say  because i t  i s  an  i r regu lar  cont rac t  there fore  you 

are  no t  –  you can ’ t  pay the  cont rac tor.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  no  cont rac t?  

MR KOKO:   You . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  you can ’ t  pay ja .  

MR KOKO:   You wi l l  be  wrong to  reach tha t  cont rac t . ,  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you made the  po in t  las t  t ime I  th ink ,  

a t  leas t  the  approach o f  Eskom is  t ha t  i f  there  i s  a  cont rac t  

bu t  there  was some i r regu lar i t y  as  long as  the  ou ts ide ,  the  

o ther  par ty  has . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    Ac ted  bona f ides .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    . . . sa t i s fac tor i l y  then they shou ld  be  pa id  

and then Eskom can dea l  in te rna l l y  w i th  i t s  own o f f i c ia ls  

who may  no t  have done what  they were  supposed to  do .  

MR KOKO:    Exact ly,  and I  have a l so  made –  I  have 

se lec ted  the  page ,  I  a lso  quoted . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

MR KOKO:   I t  i s  ca l led  an  ed i f i ca t ion  po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    You  have to  repor t  yourse l f ,  you have  to  go  

and p lead pover ty  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Why peop le ,  what  i s  the  [ laugh ing ]  

MR KOKO:   You have to  go  and say I  am gu i l t y  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  go  and say . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and  

they dec ide  how to  dea l  w i th  you?  

MR KOKO:   And  they dec ide  how to  dea l  w i th  you but  –  

and i t  i s  wr i t ten  in  b lack  and wh i te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR KOKO:   I t  says ,  i f  I  may quote :  

“The procurement  and tender  commi t tee  cannot  20 

w i thho ld  payment  to  a  supp l ie r  because o f  in te rna l  

governance process. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  –  tha t  m ight  be  

a  ve ry  fa i r  approach in  the  sense tha t  i f  the  o ther  par t y  to  

the  cont rac t  ac ted  in  good fa i th  then – and i t  has  done i t s  
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par ty,  i t  has  per fo rmed the  work ,  they ge t  pa id  because  

somet imes when  jus t  because o f  some i r regu lar i t y  and 

somet imes no mat te r  how smal l  the  i r regu lar i t y  then a  par t y  

re fuses to  pay ye t  the  o ther  par ty  has per fo rmed,  maybe 

spent  money to  per fo rm as we l l ,  i t  can  be qu i te  un fa i r  

somet imes.  

MR KOKO:    Ja ,  I  am s imply  say ing  to  you Cha i r  i t  i s  no t  

the  gospe l  o f  Moses,  i t  i s  what  Eskom f ramework  says,  

un less  the  o the r  par ty  d id  no t  ac t  in  good fa i th ,  in  o ther  

words un less  the  o ther  par ty  was par t  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was par ty  to  the  i r regu lar i t y.  

MR KOKO:    Was par ty  to  the  i r regu lar i t y  then there ’s  a  

prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .    Wel l  Mr  –  we 

w i l l  le t  Mr  Se leka  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   Cha i r  I  can . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh he is  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  I  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  as  we go in to  i t  Cha i r,  and th is  i s  a  20 

lega l  mat te r,  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You can reach fo r  the  f i le  i f  you  want  to .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have i t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  I  w i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  r igh t .  

MR KOKO:    I t  i s  bund le ,  tha t  i s  MK49,  in  Bund le  15 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes I  w i l l  g ive  you the  re ference .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  as  we do tha t  I  jus t  want  to  

underscore  tha t  by  jus t  –  and I  apprec ia te  Mr  Koko is  no t  a  

lawyer,  i r regu lar i t y  i s  one th ing ,  un lawfu lness is  anothe r.    

Here  th is  cont rac t  i s  no t  jus t  i r regu la r,  th is  con t rac t  i s  

un lawfu l  and unenforceab le ,  fo r  want  o f  compl iance w i th  a  

leg is la t i ve  requ i rement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now le t ’s  go  to  what  Mr  Koko i s  d rawing 

to  your  a t ten t ion .   I t  i s  in  Eskom Bund le  15 [b ] ,  and tha t  i s  

on  page 613.   So th is  i s  –  the  document  i s  Eskom 

Procurement  and Supp ly  Management  Procedure .  

MR KOKO:    G ive  me the  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 613,  bu t  Cha i r  you have to  read 

tha t  in  contex t  w i th  where  the  paragraph s tar ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  what  i s  i t  tha t  we are  

look ing  fo r,  because i f  Mr  Koko says th i s  po l i cy  says in  fac t  

the  mere  fac t  tha t  a  cont rac t  i s  i r regu lar  doesn ’ t  mean tha t  20 

Eskom must  w i t hho ld  payment  to  the  o ther  pa r t i cu la r  

cont rac t  even though the  o the r  par t i cu la r  cont rac t  has  

ac ted  in  good fa i th  and has per fo rmed to  the  sa t is fac t ion  o f  

Eskom,  un less  you say no  tha t  i s  no t  what  i t  says ,  I  don ’ t  

need to  look  a t  i t  now,  I  can look a t  i t  la te r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he goes on to  say he  says  Eskom 

must  pay i f  the  o ther  par ty  has ac ted  in  good fa i th  and they 

have per fo rmed  the i r  s ide  o f  the  ba rga in  to  Eskom’s  

sa t is fac t ion ,  so  i f  tha t  i s  uncontes ted  we don ’ t  need to  

rea l l y  go  there ,  I  can look a t  i t  la te r,  bu t  i f  i t ’s  contes ted 

then I  w i l l  l ook  a t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The paragraph  is  qua l i f ied  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  heav i l y  qua l i f ied .     10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t ’s  go  to  i t ,  s t ra igh t  to  i t ,  because 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]?  

MR KOKO:    Yes,  2 .6 .7 ,  paragraph  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    2 .6 .7 ,  we ’ re  look ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    Paragraph 8 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The bu l le t  po in t ,  the  th i rd  bu l le t  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So th is  says,  and Cha i r  look  a t  the 20 

head ing ,  “Condonat ion  o f  I r regu lar  Procurement ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now I  have made a  d is t inc t ion  be tween  

an i r regu lar i t y  and a  nu l l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Because here  is  the  i r regu la r i t y  in  the 

procu rement ,  i t  i s  a  p rocess re la ted  de fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  a  substance re la ted  de fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  an  i r regu lar i t y  I  guess depend ing  

on the  c i r cumstances cou ld  go  to  p rocess,  i t  cou ld  go  to  

substance,  i t  wou ld  depend,  I  don ’ t  know here ,  bu t  I  don ’ t  

th ink  a l l  i r regu la r i t ies  jus t  go  to  p rocedure  or  p rocess,  I  

th ink  some might  go  to  p rocess.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Some might  go  to  substance,  the  one 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja,  then you have whenever  an  Eskom 

employee p rocures assets ,  goods o r  serv ices  by  any means  

w i thout  adherence to  the  approved  procurement  f ramework ,  

now tha t  i s  impor tan t  Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  why I  am 

emphas iz ing  here  is  p rocedure .     

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The condonat ion  p rocess must  be  

fo l lowed in  o rder  to  g ive  e f fec t  to  the  i r regu lar  p rocurement  20 

and enab le  payment  to  the  supp l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So there  needs to  be  condonat ion  

f i rs t ,  then there  cou ld  be  payment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  then the re  cou ld  be  payment ,  and  

le t  me sk ip  the  f i rs t  two,  they are  impor tan t  those bu l le t  
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po in ts ,  bu t  le t  me sk ip  them,  i t  says :  

“ the  i r regu lar  p rocurement  must  be  dea l t  w i th  as  

fo l lows invo lv ing  th ree  separa te  bu t  s imu l taneous  

s teps. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i f  you  say they are  impor tan t  maybe  

we shou ld  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    We shou ld  read them? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The f i rs t  one is :  

“a  d isc ip l inary / remedia l  p rocess. ”  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The i r regu la r  p rocurement  must  be  dea l t  

w i th  as  fo l lows,  invo lv ing  th ree  separa te  bu t  s imu l taneous 

s teps.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    One,  o r  bu l le t  one.  

“A d i sc ip l inary / remedia l  p rocess where  the  

employee who commi t ted  an  ac t  o f  f inanc ia l  

m isconduct  may  be d isc ip l ined accord ing  to  the  

approved HR/ IR po l i c ies  and p rocedures.   Th is  i s  in  20 

compl iance w i th  the  PFMA requ i rement  o r  the  

e f fec t ing  o f  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion  i f  i r regu la r i t ies  have  

occur red  w i th in  the  execut ion  o f  p rocurement . ”  

Bu l le t  po in t  2  says:  

“An in te rna l  governance p rocess due to  a  dev ia t ion  
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f rom the  approved procurement  f ramework  a l l  

cond i t ions  must  be  launched by  the  PTC Secre tar ia t  

w i th  the  [R isk  &  Governance Trends Ana lys is  and 

Commerc ia l  R isk  Cont ro l  Depar tments ] . ”  

Mr  Koko can you he lp  us  w i th  what  does PTC s tand fo r?  

MR KOKO:    P rocurement  Tender  Commi t tee .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P rocurement  and Tender  Commi t tee ,  

thank you.    W i th  Group Techno logy and –  wa i t  –  a l l  

cond i t ions  must  be  lodged w i th  the  Procurement  Tender  

Commi t tee  Secre tar ia t  w i th  the  R isk  &  Governance  Trends  10 

Ana lys i s  and Commerc ia l  R isk  Cont ro l  Depar tmen ts  w i th in  

Group Techno logy and Commerc ia l .   Where  a  r i sk  

assessment  must  be  conducted in  consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  l ine  

management  o f  the  de fau l t ing  employee,  in  o rder  to  

de termine the  r i sks  faced by  Eskom as a  resu l t  o f  the  

procu rement  i r regu la r i t y  and any spec i f i c  ac t ions tha t  need  

to  be  taken in  o rde r  to  rec t i f y  o r  p revent  the  i r regu la r i t y  

f rom reoccur r ing .   The R &  G,  wh ich  is  R isk  &  Governance  

Depar tment ,  w i l l  fo l low up w i th  the  re levant  l ine  managers  

on  the  s ta tus  o f  the  cor rec t i ve ,  p reventa t i ve  o r  d isc ip l ina ry  20 

processes to  be  taken w i th in  the  ag reed t imef rames and 

w i l l  repor t  thereon v ia  the  Sen ior  Manager  R isk  and  

Governance to  the  Group Commerc ia l  and Management  

Commi t tee ,  appear  f rom the i r  o f f i ce  and Group &  D iv is iona l  

Execut ives .    
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 And bu l le t  po in t  3  Cha i r  i s  the  one Mr  Koko is  

re fe r r i ng  to .    A payment  p rocess to  the  supp l ie r  wh ich  

reads:  

“The re levant  p rocurement  tender  commi t tee  i s  

requ i red  to  approve the  payment  to  the  supp l ie r  

aga ins t  a  va l id  invo i ce  and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Eskom 

has a  va l id  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  to  pay fo r  the  

assets ,  goods or  serv ices  de l i vered.    Un less  

o therwise  adv i sed by  the  Eskom Lega l  Depar tmen t  

a  Procurement  Tender  Commi t tee  is  no t  commi t ted  10 

to  undu ly  de lay  or  w i thho ld  payment  due to  a  

supp l ie r  based on  in te rna l  governance issues. ”  

So tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  is  heav i l y  qua l i f ied  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  a re  you re ly ing  on  to  say tha t?   

What  qua l i f ies  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  reads -  the  re levant  PTC is  requ i red  

to  approve the  payment  to  the  supp l ie r  aga ins t  number  one  

there  must  be  a  va l id  invo ice  and number  two to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  Eskom has a  va l id  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  to  pay.   I f  

the i r  cont rac t  i s  a  nu l l i t y  Cha i r  i t  i s  unenforceab le  aga ins t  20 

the  SOE and then  you have anothe r  i ssue he re ,  un less  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Un less?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Un less  o therwise  adv ised  by  the  

Eskom Lega l  Depar tment  wh ich  means you a l so  need them 

to  be  made aware  o f  the  –  in  th is  case the  i r regu lar i t y  in  
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o rder  to  g ive  adv i ce  one way or  the  o ther.   Then the  

u l t imate  s tep  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The qual i f icat ion you are talk ing about the 

one based on that  part  of  the page where i t  says to the 

extent  that  Eskom – that  says i t  is required to approve the 

payment to supply against  a  va l id  invoice and to the extent  

that  Eskom has a val id contractual  obl igat ion to pay for the 

excess goods or serv ices.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And of  course – ja  – is i t  – that  is the one.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is the – that  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And then unless otherwise.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  – wel l  you see ordinar i ly  is the 

posi t ion not  that  between two contract ing part ies i f  there has 

been non-compl iance wi th something in terms of  a contract  

or non-compl iance wi th whatever else in certain 

ci rcumstances the party who otherwise would be able to rely 

on the non-compl iance not  to perform his or her part  can 

waive that  for whatever reasons or condone that  – that  would 20 

be wi th in thei r  – their  power.   I f  they want to take the point  

they take the point  and of  course there can be l i t igat ion af ter  

that .    

And of  course i f  the one party has al ready performed 

then issues of  un just  enr ichment and al l  of  those th ings at  
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common law would ar ise but  in recent  t imes is the posi t ion 

not  that  we have seen part icular ly  wi th regard to contracts,  

tenders and so on involving government departments and 

SOE’s where even i f  the contractors declared by court  to  be 

unlawful  the court  would nevertheless say what would be just  

and equi tab le in the ci rcumstances.    

You might  recal l  the cash pay master  cont ract  and 

the decision of  the const i tut ional  court  in regard to that .   

 So where i t  is accepted i t  the cont ract  was unlawful  

but  nevertheless to say at  a pract ical  level  i f  we just  say i t  10 

was unlawful  that  is the end of  everything i t  might  work out  

an in just ice on the other party or on a party as in the case of  

the cash pay master services that  related to social  grants i t  

could affect  innocent  people you know.   

So the court  says i t  was unlawful  but  for  a  certain  

per iod of  t ime we wi l l  un – accept  – we wi l l  a l low this  

unlawful  contract  to be cont inued with and for – to be deal t  

wi th as i f  i t  was lawful .   So one has those things.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  those are legal  issues.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Those are legal  issues.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which one maybe could leave unt i l  later.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  f rom your side you can obviously as 

you – what you bel ieve you want to pursue – to explore al l  

opt ions – al l  I  am simply saying is… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – i t  may be that  to the extent  that 

Eskom may have taken the approach that  just  because there 

is an i r regular i ty does not  mean we wi l l  never pay.   We wi l l  

check whether the other party has acted in good fa i th.  We 

wi l l  check whether the other party has performed i ts  part  to 

our sat isfact ion and i f  i t  acted in good fai th and i t  has 10 

performed i ts part  of  the deal  in good fai th to our sat isfact ion 

we wi l l  pay and deal  wi th our  own employees or  off ic ia ls in 

terms of  the i r regular i ty  as a way of  being fai r  because we 

have benef i t ted f rom thei r  services.   So – so – but  I  th ink 

maybe something that  can be looked at .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  – at  later but  you might  wish to say 

something before we move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Chair  just  to say in th is matter the 

matter did come to court  and Chair  is correct  in other 20 

matters where thi rd part ies are involved you may want  to say 

wel l  look you wi l l  affect  an adversely innocent th i rd  part ies 

just  carry on wi th th is cont ract .  

 In th is case when i t  – when the matter went to court  

to review McKinsey and Regiments were al l  – Tr i l l ian were 
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ordered to repay the money.   In fact  McKinsey offered to pay 

the money before the judgment was out .   Tr i l l ian was f ight ing 

i t  that  very u l t imately ordered to pay.  

 So in th is case the money they were ordered to repay 

and issues of  unjust i f ied enr ichment did not  ar ise.   But  that  

is because Chai r  there is a dist inct ion where you fai l  to 

fo l low your  own internal  processes and the party you 

contract ing wi th does not  know that .   That  is the Chair  quant  

ru le  si tuat ion where wel l  your  d i rectors represented to me 

they have got  the approval  – wel l  they compl ied wi th internal  10 

processes you cannot te l l  me otherwise af ter  I  have 

contracted wi th you.  

 But  when i t  is a matter of  law and as the Chair  says 

we can deal  wi th that  in due course.   I t  is a  di fferent  matter 

and in part icular ly  in th is case where. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Deal  wi th i t  some other t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  general ly  speaking my impression is 

that  i f  you are supposed to fo l low a procedure or i f  the 

procedure was legal ly bind ing and you do not  fo l low i t  that  20 

should resul t  in a negat ive.   I f  i t  is  a procedure where that  

was not  legal ly binding that  might  be di fferent .   So – but  let  

us move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – but  you can then explore whatever 
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you wish to explore.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chair   

MR KOKO:   But  Chair  I  have to comment.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes please comment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Koko you do not  – you cannot resist .  

MR KOKO:   This  interact ion is about  me you must  – you 

cannot – I  may not  be there Chair  when you – when you deal  

wi th i t  at  the end ( talk ing over one another).  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no your  counsel  wi l l  be able to  

make an input .  10 

MR KOKO:   But  I  need to say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – ja – say something.   Ja say 

something ja.  

MR KOKO:   Because of  al l  the people that  wi l l  be deciding I  

was the only one who was there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   So at  least  you need to consider.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no you can say something.  

MR KOKO:   My posi t ion.   At  al l  mater ia l  t imes up unt i l  

November in my mind – up unt i l  … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   2015.  

MR KOKO:   2015 February/March  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   At  a l l  mater ia l  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   March – February/March 2016 yes.  
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MR KOKO:   2016.   The cont ract  was lawful  and there was no 

issue.   Post  March the issues of  compl iance came. There is  

two issues.   One was Nat ional  Treasury which was a gate 

keeper and there was condi t ion precedent that  re lates to the 

30% in 00:09:36.   And remember now I  was not  involved 

hands on and I  –  and I  can tel l  you now and I  have to say 

this because I  th ink I  see where Mr Seleka is going.   Mr 

Seleka is  t ry ing to – is  go ing to  a point  where he is saying 

you knew about the payment you did nothing and therefore 

you are compl ic i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You must wai t  unt i l  he says so otherwise 

you could spend a lot  of  t ime on the – only to f ind that  he is  

( ta lk ing over one another).  

MR KOKO:   I  accept  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when he does say you can deal  wi th i t .  

MR KOKO:   But  a l l  what  I  want you to know is that  al l  these 

issues were vent i lated at  the board – at  the BTC and  

CHAIRPERSON:   2015 

MR KOKO:   Not  2015 but  certainly 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   2016 20 

MR KOKO:   2016.   I  have given you a date already.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR KOKO:   13 December,  8 August  and 21 June.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   2016.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   A l l  these payments and were condoned for the 

for  lack of  a bet ter word at  the board and I  had nothing to do 

wi th them.  Just  –  I  just  want you to  know that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is f ine.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Just  before I  go there.  

ADV BARRIE SC:    Chair  may I  say something? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BARRIE SC:    This issue relates to the val id i ty  of  the 

MS.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV BARRIE SC:    And the reason that  i t  was regular 

re lated to provision of  publ ic law and that  is the i r regular i ty 

and the law on that  is wi th respect  very clear is  that  unt i l  i t  

is set  aside that  administ rat ive act  which in th is case was in  

conclusion of  the contract  remains val id and the court  may 

set  i t  aside and then of  course things are what would be 

equi table under the ci rcumstances or even al though i t  was 

i rregular  and hence unlawful  but  unt i l  the – i t  reaches that  

stage i t  cannot simply be regarded as a nul l i ty  and that  20 

simply ar ises f rom the presumpt ion in administ rat ive law of 

regular i ty is i t  needs to be set  aside so i t  is actual ly qui te a 

number of  complex issues of  law that  ar ises in th is part icular 

context  in the enr ichments sphere as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV BARRIE SC:    But  I  just  wanted to make that  point , .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.   That  is f ine.   Okay let  us 

cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Then I  wish to refer Mr 

Koko to page – on the same bundle 14 (c) 811.  

MR KOKO:   Not  –  thought you were in Bundle 15 – can I  put  

the 15 away? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja that  you can put  as ide.   The one about  

the supply chain management – yes.   Go back to 14(c) page 

811.170 10 

MR KOKO:   Page 48.11.1.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 811 

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   .170.   Chair  I  wish to be fai r ly quick on 

this.  

MR KOKO:   I  am there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 811.8170.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   .170 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry 811.170 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  Eskom Bundle 14.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes (c).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you got  i t .  

MR KOKO:   I  am there Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   I  am very fami l iar wi th th is document.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So this is  an emai l  f rom Mr Prish 

Govender Wednesday 2 September 2015.  I t  is addressed to 

Mr Koko he has copied in is Mr Singh and Edwin Mabelane – 

Subject  is Feedback on McKinsey negot iat ions the 

at tachment is feedback on the negot iat ions.   Final  pack pdf  

and he wri tes:  

“Hi  Matshela p lease f ind at tached the above 10 

for your at tent ion. ”  

Now this is September 2015 before the let ter  of  acceptance 

is signed by Mr Edwin Mabelane in December.  

“So please f ind at tached above for your  

at tent ion the f i rs t  three pages is  a cover  

let ter f rom mysel f  providing an execut ive 

update.   Sect ion 3 of  the cover let ter k indly  

requests your intervent ion to resolve certain  

key issues.   Kind Regards Prish Govender 

Program Director Group Capi tal  Div is ion,  GM 20 

Commodity Sourc ing act ing Group 

Technology and Commercia l  Divis ion.”  

 Mr Koko was Mr Govender report ing to you? 

MR KOKO:   No Si r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is he is the same department as you but  
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in a di fferent  div is ion? 

MR KOKO:   No Si r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   P lease explain h is designat ion.  

MR KOKO:   Commodity sourcing was – i t  is in  Group 

Commercial .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   Group Commercial  was in Finance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Group Tech – Group Technology and 

Commercial .  So what was your posi t ion at  the t ime again? 

MR KOKO:   I  was the Group Execut ive Technology and 10 

Commercial  Chai r.   When I  was wi th  suspension Group 

Commercial  and Technology was spl i t .   The name was kept  

but  Commercial  when I  came back on the 20t h of  July the 

Commercial  part  was into – was 00:15:31 into Commercial .   

So Mr Govender reported to Mr Anoj  Singh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Group Technology Commercial  is that  – is 

that  posi t ion your  explaining consistent  wi th the feedback of  

October you gave.  

MR KOKO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  correct .   Oh Chair  I  just  want to – 20 

you signed the feedback is 22 October. .  

MR KOKO:   I  s igned i t  on the 6t h of  October 2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And your posi t ion was Group Execut ive 

Group Technology and Commercial .  

MR KOKO:   That  is correct  Chair  and the point  that  I  am 
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making that  you wi l l  f ind in Eskom is that  at  that  point  when I  

came back Group Commercial  and Technology was in  

t ransi t ion of  being spl i t  but  I  was in the off ice so I  carr ied the 

off ice but  the commercial  part  of  the Group Technology was 

in Commercial  – was in the CFO.  The sort  – the cut t ing 

happened effect ively on the 23r d of  October 2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So – so in September you were st i l l  in 

that  posi t ion.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So Mr Prish Govender is in Group 10 

Technology and Commercia l  Divis ion.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which is where you were the GE.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You are saying he reported to you.  

MR KOKO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Even in September 

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Who reported to you – Edwin Mabelane? 

MR KOKO:   No Chai r.   Edwin Mabelane was an act ing in my 20 

posi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you came back.  

MR KOKO:   When I  was on suspension.   That  is when the re 

– i f  you look – i f  you read Mr Mabelane’s aff idavi t  he deals 

wi th th is topic I  th ink qui te nicely.   That  in my absence a 
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rest ructur ing of  the commercial  d iv is ion started and the 

second 00:18:05 were migrated to  the CFO.  When I  came 

back that  process was unfolding.   I  deal  wi th the topic in my 

main aff idavi t .   So even though he was in my box but  the 

report ing l ine was in the CFO unt i l  the 23r d of  October  when 

i t  was f inal ly formal ised.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are you talk ing about Mr Edwin Mabelane 

now? 

MR KOKO:   Correct .   No,  no I  am saying you asked about Mr 

Mabelane I  said Mr Mabelane was act ing when I  was on 10 

leave.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja but  I  am talk ing in September 2015.  

MR KOKO:   When I  was in September 2015 Chai r  or not  

even in September 2015 – in June in July 20t h 2015 the 

rest ructur ing commenced and the commercia l  people even 

though they were in my box they were off ic ia l ly report ing to  

the CFO and that  process of  restructur ing was f inal ised and 

concluded  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the 23r d October.  

MR KOKO:   On the 3r d of  October  when the – they did not  20 

only report  there but  they took. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   They moved out  o f  your… 

MR KOKO:   They moved out  of  my … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh out  of  your l i fe .  

MR KOKO:   Out  of  my l i fe complete ly.   Yes.   So – so in – at  
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th is point  we had a t ransi t ion per iod.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   That  – but  the understanding was very clear  

commercia l  in the CFO and that  happened before I  came 

back f rom suspension.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the covering let ter is  on the next 

page.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So – I  am sorry just  to – to get  f inal  

c lar i f icat ion.   Would that  mean that  those people who were 10 

report ing to the f inance department or the CFO when – 

dur ing the restructur ing.   Does that  mean that  before your  

suspension they were report ing to you.  

MR KOKO:   They were report ing to me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   They were report ing to me before my 

suspension.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So something happened whi le you were on 

suspension.  

MR KOKO:   Correct .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   They began restructur ing.  

MR KOKO:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you came back some of  the people 

that  had been report ing to you before suspension were now 

report ing to the CFO and that  restructur ing cont inued unt i l  
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the 23r d when i t  was completed.  

MR KOKO:   Indeed Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The – this covering let ter he refers to is  

on the next  page 811.171 and he said:  

“Sect ion 3 of  the cover let ter k indly  requests 

your intervent ion to resolve cer tain key 

issues.”  

 The let ter is dated 2 September 2015 and he 

addresses to you:  10 

“Dear Mr Koko.   Ti t le is Feedback McKinsey 

negot iat ions Top Engineers Program the 

current  status. ”  

 Now I  am not  going to read al l  that  – let  me go to  

what he says requi res your intervent ion which is on the next 

page Key 811.179 he said Sect ion 3.  Sect ion 3 says:  

“Summary of  key i tems to date requi r ing 

EXCO intervent ion.”  

3.1 says:  

“Eskom legal  is of  the v iew that  an 20 

appl icat ion for  deviat ion f rom Nat ional  

Treasury guidel ines on the use of  consul t ing 

needs to be submit ted.   This deviat ion is 

based on the fact  that  the guidel ines is not  

speci f ic on a r isk based approached to 
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contract ing.   The teams current ly  f ina l is ing 

the appl icat ion wi th the off ice of  the act ing 

CEO.”  

 Did you make any intervent ion in regard to that  Mr 

Koko? 

MR KOKO:   No Chai r.   Chai r  no I  d id noth ing.   I  d id nothing.   

I  am giving you a st raight  answer but  I  want  to fo l low up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For a st raight  quest ion.  

MR KOKO:   Ja.   Every t ime I  g ive you – my counsel  gives 

me a lecture on how to answer he said I  must  not  waste 10 

t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON:   No.  

MR KOKO:   My counsel  te l ls me answer the Chair  and then 

you can go.   So the answer is no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is f ine.  

MR KOKO:   Chai r  the – th is document is preceded by an 

emai l  of  the 31s t  of  August  2015 and i t  is on page 811.168 – 

there is two pages.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Point  168? 

MR KOKO:   8.68.   811.168.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   And you know Chair  my apologies to abuse you 

but  Ms Mothepu says I  was – I  used the term I  was the main 

negot iator.   That  is not  the term she used.   I  went  back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MR KOKO:   She used a term I  was central .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR KOKO:   She was cent ral .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR KOKO:   That  is the term she used.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no I  d id say I  cannot recal l .  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Main negot iator.  

MR KOKO:   Yes and I  was saying to you she was wrong 

because i f  you look at  th is emai l  on page 168 a person who 10 

is cent ra l  to the negot iat ions would not  wri te  to the 

negot iat ing team.  Remember now I  am wri t ing to the team 

that  is appointed by the board tender commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  remember you made the point  last  

t ime.  

MR KOKO:   Right .   So what I  am saying to you is the basis 

of  th is let ter – of  th is emai l  was because i t  was up – i t  was 

af ter the meet ing of  the board of  the 22n d of  July  2015 where 

the board says go and put  a corporate plan cont ract  to deal  

wi th the design to cost .   And the basis of  th is emai l  was to 20 

check on the progress that  the team is making.   I f  the team 

came to me and says i t  is  a l l  systems go I  would have not  

set  up a separate contract  wi th  f ixed rate that  is  fu l ly 

compl iant  wi th the Nat ional  Treasury.  I  would have said to 

them sign because I  have got  th is urgency.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Once they came with th is lot  of  intervent ions,  I  

decided I  am not  get t ing involved here.   The team has – they 

have been appointed by the board,  they have been given the 

mandate they must  l ive wi thin the author i ty.   I f  they need any 

intervent ion,  the intervent ion can only come f rom the 

author i ty that  gave them not  me – I  lef t  them and went to do 

a separate cont ract  that  I  s igned and in i t ia l ised on the 29t h 

of  September 2015 that  was eventual ly s igned in 2016 a year 

later by Mr Mabelane.   So I  d id nothing Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  remind me what are the topics that  

st i l l  remain to be deal t  wi th in Mr Koko’s evidence? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  the moment i t  is t ransact ions that  you 

are deal ing wi th.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The t ransact ions.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are t ry ing to f inal ise McKinsey 

Tr i l l ian.   The other t ransact ions wi l l  be in relat ion to Tegeta.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And I  –  wel l  the plan was before we to 
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get  to Tegeta because i t  is qui te heavy we could get  out  of  

the way the t ravel  to Dubai .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Ja.   No that  is f ine I  just  wanted to  

have an idea.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we are busy wi th McKinsey.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then there is the issue of  the 

t ravel l ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then i t  is Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No that  is al r ight .   Cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja we – we wi l l  a lso br ief ly touch on – 

associated wi th  the t ravel  Mr Koko l inks or otherwise or  

re lat ions or otherwise wi th the Gupta’s  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A lr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja Mr Koko okay – the thing is I  ask you 20 

one quest ion you answer i t  by giv ing … 

MR KOKO:   I  gave you di rect  answers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Koko is fo l lowing his counsel ’s 

advice.  

MR KOKO:   I  g ive a d irect  answer S ir  – I  d id nothing.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Because there is a problem with 

th is agreement you say you signed as wel l  and I  do not  want 

to go there because we did go into i t  when you f i rst  

appeared.  

MR KOKO:   Chair  I  have answered the quest ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja thank you.   Thank you.   The 

Chairperson for the Chairperson’s benef i t  Mr Koko i f  you did 

nothing is i t  not  surpr is ing because as you told the 

Chairperson last  t ime you signed what I  have now seen is 10 

cal led the posi t ion paper which adopts the t reasury 

regulat ions of  2013/2014.  I t  came into effect  on the 1s t  of  

January 2014.    

MR KOKO:   I  conf i rm I  s igned that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   In  August  2014 you signed i t .  

MR KOKO:   I  conf i rm I  d id that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  is the cost  containment and you 

appoint  consul tants on the basis of  the fee,  correct? 

MR KOKO:   I  conf i rm that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  would have thought in September 2015 20 

which is the year later when Mr Prish Govender says to you 

we need your intervent ion on Sect ion 3 and the f i rst  foremost 

i tem on that  sect ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On Inst ruct ion 3 or Sect ion3.? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   He sa id Sect ion 3.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Compl iance wi th Nat ional  Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

MR KOKO:   Chai r  I  am very fami l iar  wi th th is document – I  

know i t  very wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MR KOKO:   I  am very fami l iar wi th th is document.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no,  no the one thing that  I  have 

not iced is  that  you read Mr Koko – you read these 

documents and you know where – what is what.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And he watches Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And he watches.   Ja I  would have thought 

that  being fami l iar wi th that  speci f ic issue he was ra ising in 

3.1 you would have done someth ing – so I  am surpr ised 

when you say you did not  – you did nothing.  

MR KOKO:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So i f  you do not  have an answer to that  

that  is okay.   I  am just  expressing mysel f .  

MR KOKO:   No,  no.  I  do.   Chair  i t  is  not  surpr is ing at  al l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   My f i rst  day when I  came to work I  sent  an emai l  

to Mr Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   20 July 

MR KOKO:   20 Ju ly and I  to ld him we need to comply to the 
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cost  containment the requirement of  Nat ional  Treasury or we 

get  a – an approval  f rom Nat ional  Treasury.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said you sent  an emai l  to? 

MR KOKO:   Mr Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The Chai rman.  

MR KOKO:   That  is the emai l  – one of  the emai ls that  he 

denies that  I  d iscussed i t  wi th him.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR KOKO:   And I  a lso told him that  Mr Ngubane once he 

understood what we need to do he was very clear  to Ms 10 

Daniels,  comply or we wi l l  get  the approva l  f rom Mr  

Treasury.   A t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes,  tha t  i s  what  d i rec ted  me.   

Guys,  you know the  ru les .   You comply  or  you get . . .   You 

get  na t iona l  consu l t . . .  d iv is ion .   There  is . . .   So I  d id  no t  

have to  ge t (? )  anyth ing .   You know the  ru les ,  chaps.   You  

must  comply  or  you must  go  to  Mr  Treasury.   Mr  Treasury  

must  agree w i th  you but  you cannot  s imp ly  no t  comply.   

And I  have no o ther  in te rvent ions to  do  and the  board ,  as  a  

mat te r  o f  fac t  and  tha t  i s  what  I  to ld  Dr  Ngubane,  the  board  

has no  author i t y  to  le t  you car ry  on  w i thout  comply ing .   Ja ,  20 

look a t  th is .   There  is  no th ing  you  cou ld  have done .   I t  i s  

as  s imp le  as  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    So  is  your  answer  tha t :   I  d id  no t  do  –  

tha t  you d id  no t  do  anyth ing  because you had a l ready c lear  

to  them what  they  were  supposed to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR KOKO :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    They  knew my pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR KOKO :    They  knew exact ly  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    . . .answer  w i l l  ge t  fo r  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  remember  those emai ls  wh ich  

you say a re  to  Dr  Ngubane,  wh ich  he  has den ied ,  bu t  I  do  10 

not  reca l l  in  any  o f  those emai ls  tha t  you are  say ing  you 

need Treasury  approva l .    

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  go  to  my t ranscr ip t .   I  do  no t  th ink  we  

shou ld  waste  your  t ime.   My t ransc r ip ts  a re  very  c lea r  o f  

my d i scuss ion  w i th  Dr  Ngubane.   I t  was a l l  about  Nat iona l  

Treasury ’s  compl iance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Remember  you  were  say ing ,  when you  

were  g iv ing  ev idence a t  some s tage,  tha t  you ra ised  I  th ink  

the  issue w i th  h im and you sa id  you l i s tened to  you very  

a t ten t ive l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR KOKO :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And once he saw your  po in t ,  he  ran  w i th  

i t .  

MR KOKO :    I t  was on th is  po in t ,  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR KOKO :    So  we are  wast ing  your  t ime i f  you pu t . . .   The 

t ranscr ip t  w i l l  show th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Th i s  mat te r  was dec ided by  BTC.   

Dr  Ngubane was not  a  BTC.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  does not  necessar i l y  mean he  

d id  no t  send an emai l  to  h im or  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .d iscuss w i th  h im.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  d iscussed w i th  h im as the  

cha i rperson o f  the  who le  board .   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I . . .   Yes,  I  have the  emai l s  wh ich  

Mr  Koko sends out  to  Dr  Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  have opened to  them.   Maybe 

Mr  Koko shou ld  check and te l l  us  wh ich  one  says to  

Dr  Ngubane you need Treasury  approva l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    No,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . fo r  the  MSA.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  I  make a  propos i t ion  to  you tha t  o f  a l l  

the  emai l s  I  have  sent  to  Dr  Ngubane,  I  am happy to  dea l  

w i th  them one by  one,  exp la in  to  you why I  sent  to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR KOKO :    Sen t  those emai ls  th rough to  h im.   You gave 

us  tha t  oppor tun i t y.   I  took  tha t  oppor tun i ty  to  dea l  w i th  two 

o f  them.   Both  o f  them on tha t  la tch(? )  the  MSA.   And I  to ld  

you tha t  the  reason I  sent  th is  Dr  Ngubane is  because the  

board  was ca r r ied  away g i v ing  the  cost  const ra in ts  a t  the  

t ime to  go  w i th  the  r i sk  approach wh ich  s ta r ted  in  my t ime 

before  I  was  expanded.   And I  to ld  Dr  Ngubane tha t  you  

cannot  p roceed on th is  l ine  un t i l  o r  and un less  you have  

Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  approva l .   The  t ranscr ip t  w i l l  dea l  w i th  

tha t  s t ra igh t fo rward .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  you may  w ish  to  do  Mr  Se leka  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

MR KOKO :    I  mean,  i t  i s  qu i te  s imp le  he re ,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR KOKO :    Mr  Se leka ’s  ass is tan ts  a re  jus t  qu ick .   They  

can jus t  go  to  the  t ranscr ip t s    

CHAIRPERSON :    what  you may w ish  to  do  i f  there  i s  an  

issue about  what  Mr  Koko may have sa id  or  d id  no t  say  in  

h is  ev idence about  h is  d i scuss ion  w i th  Mr  Ngubane or  the  20 

emai l  wou ld  be  tha t  maybe your  jun io r  look  i t  up ,  check  

tha t .   I f  necessary,  Mr  Koko is  coming back on  Monday,  i s  

i t  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   That  can be . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . c la r i f ied  on  Monday.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  even  by  way o f  a  wr i t ten  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  when I  come on Monday we w i l l  dea l  

w i th  th is .   I t  w i l l  d isappear  qu i ck l y  because I  know what  I  

sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So maybe your  jun io r  can make  a  no te 

and i t  can be sor ted  ou t  on  Monday.   In  the  meant ime,  she  

can look i t  up .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  moves away f rom 

microphone –  unc lear ]   That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  we make  prog ress,  ka .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    We wi l l  a lso  –  ja ,  le t  me not  say  

up f ron t  bu t . . .   Then Cha i r,  le t  me –  maybe th is  m ight  be  the  

las t  o r. . .   Mr  Koko,  le t  us  go  to  page 829.36 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    S ix . . .   Page -  I  mean,  829 .36.   I  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    I  am there ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   I  l i s tened las t  t ime,  Mr  Koko,  

when you were  say ing  there  was a  payment  to  be  made in  
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te rms o f  th is  agreement .  

MR KOKO :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  i s  no t  c lea r. ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  r igh t .  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The peop le  are  say ing  there  was no  

f igure  bu t  there  was an amoun t  to  be  pa id .   I s  my 

reco l lec t ion  cor rec t?  

MR KOKO :    No,  your  reco l lec t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Not  cor rec t?  

MR KOKO :    Your  reco l lec t ion  i s  no t  cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR KOKO :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  have not  asked the  ques t ion  ye t ,  

except  those tha t  you have answered.   Now in  th is  

document ,  we have seen tha t  you r  feedback to  the  BTC is  

tha t  the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  i s  zero ,  cor rec t?  

MR KOKO :    No,  Cha i r.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    The va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Le t  me read to  you then.  20 

MR KOKO :    The  va lue  o f  the  con t rac t  i s  zero  and  i t  has  

go t  an  up f ron t  payment  o f  R 475 mi l l ion .   That  

R 475 mi l l ion ,  i f  I  reco l lec t ,  w i l l  be  deducted out  o f  fu tu re  

invo i ces.   That  R 475 mi l l ion  was not  in  the  or ig ina l  

mandate  and i t  was. . .   I f  you  read  the  m inutes  and  I  hope  
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we w i l l  go  to  i t  now,  now tha t  we are  in  i t .   You w i l l  see  the  

meet ing  c lear l y  says tha t  the  R  475 mi l l ion  is  rec t i f ied  

because i t  was not  in  the  or ig ina l  mandate .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  le t  us  go  to  paragraph – the  

in t roduct ion  on  page 829.36.   I t  says :  

“ In  acco rdance w i th  the  mandate  approved by 

the  Board  Tender  Commi t tee  v ia  Round Rob in  

on  6  Ju ly  2015 to  negot ia te  w i th  McK insey to  

deve lop  the  cur ren t  Top Eng ineers  

Prog ramme. . . ”  10 

 And i t  goes on and on.   The next  parag raph  

says:  

“The mandate  p rov ided as  fo l lows.  

The mandate  to  negot ia te  w i th  McK insey and 

to  deve lop  the  cur ren t  Top  Eng ineers  

Prog ramme in to  an  in te rna l  consu l t ing  un i t  tha t  

can prov ide  broad c lass  management  

consu l t ing  serv ices ,  capab le  o f  reso lv ing  

emerg ing  company w ide  r i sks  by  dr iv ing  the  

sav ing  and un lock ing  cash,  i s  hereby 20 

approved,  sub jec t  to  the  fo l low ing:  

1 .1  The cont rac t  va lue  w i l l  be  ze ro  rand  

as  th is  in i t ia t i ve  is  se l f - fund ing  and the  pro jec t  

dura t ion  is  l im i ted  to  a  max imum of  th ree  

years . . . ”  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 235 of 354 
 

 I t  i s  repeated somewhere  e l se  in  the  document .    

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  the  mandate  tha t  was g iven on the  

6 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015,  th is  i s  the  mandate  tha t  was g iven and 

tha t  i s  why the . . .  had to  be  rec t i f ied .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you say when the  manda te  was  

or ig ina l l y  g iven,  the  va lue  was zero?  

MR KOKO :    yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  la te r  on ,  there  was th i s  amount  o f  

R 475 mi l l ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and tha t  was ra t i f ied  la te r?  

MR KOKO :    Yes.   And the  m inutes  say so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ye.  

MR KOKO :    I  hope Mr  Se leka w i l l  take  you th rough the  

m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r,  le t  us  see how tha t  comes  

about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because i t  i s  no t  ra t i f i ca t ion  o f  20 

anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On page 829.39 because tha t  

repeated ly  says the  cont rac t  i s  zero  because i t  i s  se l f -

fund ing .   I t  i s  r i sk  based.   Then on page 829.39,  you have 
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two co lumns.   The second two co lumns and on the  r igh t  

s ide  o f  i t  where  i t  s ta r ts  w i th :    

“McK insey has no t  accepted in i t ia l  pos i t ion  

concern ing  p ro jec t  se tup  costs  and expenses  

payment  a l l  hav ing  been pa id  f rom rea l - l i fe  

sav ings.    

McK insey wou ld  requ i re  pro jec t  se tup  and  fees 

f rom va lue  packages as  a  down payment  as  

McK insey is  o f  the  v iew tha t  they w i l l  be  

exposed to  a  h igher  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Whereabout  a re  you read ing  f rom i t  –  

po in t  39?  

MR KOKO :    The  second co lumn.   329 there .   The second 

co lumn on the  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The one s ta r t ing  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    McK insey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .McK insey has no t  accepted.  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .   Okay cont inue.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the  second one is :  

“McK insey wou ld  requ i re  pro jec t  se tup  and 

fees fo r  va lue  packages as  down payment  as  

McK insey is  o f  the  v iew tha t  they w i l l  be  

exposed to  a  h igher  than acceptab le  cash- f low 
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r i sk .  

Th is  r i sk  wou ld  no t  be  acceptab le  to  McK insey 

as  a  company.  

McK insey has,  there fo re ,  p roposed .    

They rece ive  down payments  in  v iew o f  p ro jec t  

se tup  costs  as  consu l t ing  fees fo r  each work  

s t ream,  tha t  they w i l l . . .  pay  a f te r  the 

commencement  o f  each work  packages.  

The down payments  w i l l  be  pa id  equa l l y  ove r  a  

predete rmined dura t ion  o f  6  o r  12-months 10 

depend ing  on the  ind iv idua l  work  s t ream. . . ”  

 And i t  ta lks  about  the  s ize  and dura t ion  o f  the  

down payments  w i l l  depend on the  na ture  and scope o f  

work  o f  each ind i v idua l  work  s t ream.   The –  then I  –  we l l ,  

le t  me go to  the  las t  bu l le t  po in t  in  tha t  b lock ,  Cha i r.   I t  

says :  

“The proposed se tup  costs  p lus  consu l t ing  

fees to  be  pa id  as  a  down payment  fo r  the 

procu rement  s t ream is  R 15 mi l l ion  payab le  

a f te r  commencement  o f  each work  package a t  20 

equa l  t ranches o f  R 8 .3  m i l l ion  ove r  a  6 -month  

per iod .  

I f  McK insey defau l ts ,  immedia te l y  in i t ia tes  a  

re fund process. . .  w i l l  have the  r igh t  to  ca l l  up  

the  bank guarantee thus ensur ing  tha t  the  
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p r inc ip le  o f  ze ro  rand va lue  cont rac t  i s  

ma in ta ined. . . ”  

 And i t  i s  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t ,  i s  i t  cor rec t  Mr  Koko 

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  ma in ta ined fo r  Eskom,  hey?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  ma in ta ined fo r  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    “There  w i l l ,  however,  be  a  t im ing   

“d i f fe rence f rom cash- f low perspect ive  in  te rms  

o f  rea l i s ing  the  zero  rand va lue  pr inc ip le . . . ”    10 

 I t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Koko,  then is  i t  tha t  i t  i s  as  a  

resu l t  o f  McK insey ’s  ins i s tence tha t  the  down payment  o f  

R 475 mi l l ion  was  ar r i ved a t?  

MR KOKO :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  unc lear ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Say aga in?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  remember  what  your  counse l  sa id?   

S t ra igh t  answer.   Yes or  no?  

MR KOKO :    Yes,  th is  i s  what  i t  says .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   [ laughs]  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  Cha i r  now tha t  I  have answered the  20 

answer  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Look  a t  the  tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    On the  le f t -hand s ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    I t  has  go t  a  t i t le  tha t  says approved mandate  

ob jec tor (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    You w i l l  f ind  tha t  on  327.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    And on the  r igh t -hand s ide  i t  says  resu l ts  

ach ieved.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR KOKO :    The team is  do ing  a  wonder fu l  th ing  there ,  10 

Cha i r. . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR KOKO :    Th is  i s  what  we came to  te l l  you  on the  

6 t h  o f  Ju ly.   Th is  i s  what  we ach ieved.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   The . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    And Cha i r. . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Th is  i s  what  we asked.   Th is  i s  what  we  

ach ieved.   Condone o r  rec t i f y  the  dev ia t ions.   I t  i s  up  to  20 

the  Board  Tender  Commi t tee  to  say we do not  accept  o r  we 

accept .   Now tha t  I  have answered the  answer  yes,  I  am 

a lso  g i v ing  you in fo rmat ion  tha t  w i l l  benef i t  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    There  is  no th ing  wrong.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On the  next  page,  Cha i r,  wh ich  dea ls  

w i th  recommenda t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  po in t  40?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Po in t  43 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 5  –  paragraph 3 .   F i rs t  i t  

says :   F inanc ia l  Eva lua t ion  o f  Negot ia ted  Cont rac t  P r ice .   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry.   I  thought  you  

were  a l ready read ing  on page – po in t  40 ,  were  you  not?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    40?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You. . .  read ing  there  ye t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  yes .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   No,  I  have f in ished the  par t  I  

wanted to  read there ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  jus t  tha t  you sa id  on  the  nex t  page.   

So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . fo r  me tha t  was the  page we were  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Le t  us  go  to  page 829.43.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And you have paragraph 3 ,  F inanc ia l  

Eva lua t ion  o f  Negot ia ted  Cont rac t  P r ice .   And i t  reads:  

“Due to  the  fac t  tha t  the  cont rac t  va lue  w i l l  be  

zero  rand. . .  i s  se l f - fund ing ,  Eskom’s  f inanc ia l  

eva lua t ion  was usua l ly  no t  done.  10 

However,  the  proposed down payment  

necess i ta ted  tha t  the  f inanc ia l  eva lua t ion  be  

done.  

The process is  cur ren t ly  in  the  process(s ic )  

and a  f inanc ia l  repor t  w i l l  be  submi t ted  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The process is  cur ren t ly  in  p rogress.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In  p rogress.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.    20 

“ . . .and the  f inanc ia l  repor t  w i l l  be  submi t ted  to  

the  members  a t  the  meet ing . . . ”  

 Was tha t  done Mr  Koko?  

MR KOKO :    I  cannot  reca l l ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Then paragraph 4 ,  Recommendat ion :  
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“To  ra t i f y  m inor  d i f fe rences  between  

negot ia ted  ou tcomes and approved mandate  

parameters  Eskom in  sub-c lause 4 .1  to  4 .4 . . . ”  

 And tha t  aspect  dea ls  w i th  the  down payment  o f  

R 475 mi l l ion .   Was tha t  down payment  made to  McK insey?  

MR KOKO :    I  do  no t  know Cha i r.   The pro jec t  manager  w i l l  

know.   Cha i r,  I  cons i s ten t ly  have to ld  you tha t  th is  

Commiss ion  has  go t  the  wrong person answer ing  these  

quest ions bu t  id  o  no t  know.   A l l  tha t  I  -  a l l  tha t  I  am happy 

w i th  and a l l  what  I  power (?)  over (? )  i s  tha t  the  team p layed 10 

open cards  to  the  dec i s ion  maker  and  the  dec is ion  maker  

made the  dec i s ion  w i th  the  eyes w ide  open and i f  the  –  i f  

the  money was pa id ,  i t  was approved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Now,  Mr  Se leka,  I  thought  you 

were  no t  so  conv inced tha t  there  was ra t i f i ca t ion  as  

Mr  Koko sa id .   So  I  thought  you were  taken  us  or  a re  we on  

our  way there?  

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  there  was ra t i f i ca t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  know you have sa id  tha t  bu t  I  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Because the  m inutes  says so  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  thought  Mr  Koko was say ing  –  was 

k ind  o f  quest ion ing  whethe r  the  ra t i f i ca t ion  was fo r  tha t  o r  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t .    
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  way you los t  me,  i t  looks  I  may 

have misunders tood you Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No.   Cha i r,  he  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The ra t i f i ca t ion  o f  475?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He says . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You remember  whether  you were  

quest ion ing  tha t  o r  no t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  I  was not  quest ion ing  tha t .   I  was  

quest ion ing  how the  amount  came about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The down payment  came about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    For  the  sake o f  comple teness.   Can you 

te l l  me – can you show me Mr  Koko where  the  ra t i f i ca t ion  20 

is?  

MR KOKO :    Mr  Se leka must  take  us  to  the  m inutes  o f  the 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  the  BTC? 

MR KOKO :    Yes.   I t  says  –  i t  i s  ve ry  c lea r.   I  can te l l  you.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Look,  i f  you  do not  f ind  i t  immedia te ly,  i t  

i s  f ine .   I  thought  you might  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    No,  Cha i r.   Mr  Se leka ,  must  take  us  there .   I f  I  

am there ,  I  wou ld  know i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the re  a re  m inutes  tha t  I  see a t  page 

830 but  tha t  must  be  the  board  because I  see  i t  was  

checked by  Dr  Ngubane.   No,  i t  is  f ine .   We can f ind  i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  I  have got  the  m inutes  on  my compute r.   

So dur ing  the  b reak I  can take  them out  and g i ve  you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  I  can te l l  you .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  s tand by  th is  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    And th is  submiss ion  is  compl ied  in  a l l  

aspects .   And I  remember,  I  cannot  te l l  you  how the  

ra t i f i ca t ion  came about  because  I  was not  par t  o f  the 

Negot ia t ing  Team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR KOKO :    That  I  have no knowledge o f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  what  I  am happy w i th ,  however  i t  came 

about  i t  was t ransparent  to  the  BTC and the  BTC approved  

i t  and in  the  even t  tha t  i t  was pa id ,  wh ich  I  w i l l  no t  know,  i t  
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was pa id  lawfu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry,  jus t  g ive  me the  da te  o f  the  BTC 

meet ing?  

MR KOKO :    21  October  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page re ference?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  cont inue then.   I f  he  has found i t ,  

you  can have a  look qu ick ly.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh i t  i s  no t  the  m inutes .   I t  jus t  an 10 

ex t rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  do  no t  wor ry.   We wi l l  f ind  them the  

minutes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Bu t  even the  ex t rac ts  o f  the  m inutes  a l so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  have read them before .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay le t  us  cont inue.   We wi l l  see  

a f te r  the  break.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  Koko,  there  is  a lso  someth ing  I  was 

look ing  fo r  here  wh ich  I  am not  immedia te ly  f ind ing  wh ich  

is  tha t  you a l so  recommended add i t ions  to  the  pro jec t .  

MR KOKO :    I  a lso  recommended  add i t ions  to  the  pro jec t .   

Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Not  you persona l ly  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    You cannot  say  you.   Eskom has got  44  000 

employees.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  Mr  Koko.   The peop le  who s igned  

the  recommenda t ion  is  –  a re  here .   Char les  Ka lema 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .Govender,  Mand la  Nob inga(?)  i f  I  am 

pronounc ing  i t  cor rec t l y.   And then  Matshe la  Koko.   

MR KOKO :    Yes.   But  Cha i r,  Eskom a de legat ion  to  10 

au thor i t y.   What  does the  Group Execut ive  s igns fo r?   I t  

s igns fo r  compl iance.   I t  does not  s ign  fo r. . .   He cannot  be .   

So he cannot  be .   He is  no t  a  spec ia l i s t .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    So you cannot  b r ing  a  t ransact ion  tha t  i s  –  

tha t  has go t  to  do  w i th  –  le t  me  g ive  you an example  o f  

Eskom Treasury  where  you say because Mr  Koko  s igned 

there fo re  he  s igned fo r  Nat iona l  Treasury.   He cannot .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Koko . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know what  exact ly  you are  

ta lk ing  about  bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  about  

th is  document  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  and the  fac t  tha t  

you s igned i t  a t  page 829.44.   There  is  no th ing  I  see on  

th is  document  o r  even next  to  your  s ignature  tha t  suggests  
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tha t  you s igned i t  o r  any reason o ther  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  

reason why the  o thers  s igned  i t .   Because the  las t  

parag raph is  4  and the  head ing  to  4  i s  Recommendat ion  

and i t  says :  

“To  ra t i f y  m inor  d i f fe rences  between  

negot ia ted  ou tcomes and approved mandate  

parameters  i s  conta ined in  sub-c lause 4 .1  to  

4 .4 . . . ”  

 So as  I  read i t ,  i t  says  i t  i s  a  recommendat ion  fo r  

the  ra t i f i ca t ion  o f  the  so -ca l led  m inor  d i f fe rences and tha t  10 

seems to  suggest  to  me tha t  a l l  o f  these peop le  who have 

s igned here  are  say ing  to  whatever  au tho r i t y  th is  document  

i s  d i rec ted  a t :   We are  recommend ing tha t  you ra t i f y  these  

minor  d i f fe rences .   That  i s  how I  read i t .  

MR KOKO :    Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR KOKO :    Fo r tunate ly,  on  th is  t ransact ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  can  l i ve  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR KOKO :    Fo r tunate ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You have no prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR KOKO :    On th is  t ransact ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  have no prob lem wi th  tha t .   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR KOKO :    Fo r tunate ly,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  your  unders tand ing  is  no t  r igh t .   Upon th i s  

document . . .  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you see what  you are  say ing  may  

we l l  be  so  i f  you  say no t  necessar i l y  in  te rms o f  what  i s  

wr i t ten  in  th is  document  bu t  in  –  on  the  bas is  o f  what  i s  

wr i t ten  in  Eskom po l i c ies  or  regu la t ions.  

MR KOKO :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    To  say,  in  te rms o f  those  in te rna l  

documents ,  when I  was the  Group Execut ive  s igns any  

document  such as  th is ,  I  am not  s ign ing  to  say I  go  a long 

w i th  what  they a re  say ing  in  substance.  

MR KOKO :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am s ign ing  to  say there  has been  

compl iance w i th  A ,  B ,  C.  

MR KOKO :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which ,  o f  cou rse ,  I  w i l l  no t  know.  

MR KOKO :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    So  I  am say ing  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR KOKO :    The Group Execut ive  Techno logy and  

Commerc ia l  a t  tha t  po in t  he ld  the  pos i t ion  o f  the  Ch ie f  
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P rocurement  Off i cer  who is  an  o f f i c ia l  a t  the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee  who is  accepted to  s ign  eve ry  s ing le  document  

tha t  serves be fo re  the  Board  Tender  Commi t tee  to  be 

compl ian t  w i th  the  requ i rements  o f  the  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee .   I t  is  imposs ib le  fo r  h im to  be  an exper t  on  

every th ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no .   I  unders tand  I  th ink  what  

shou ld  happen in  tha t  s i tua t ion  is  tha t  someth ing  shou ld  be  

wr i t ten  to  ind ica te  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you are  s ign ing  fo r  

because in  the  absence o f  tha t ,  one read th is  and says:   10 

Oh,  Mr  Koko was recommending th is  as  we l l .  

MR KOKO :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  a l l . . .  I t  i s  no t  done tha t  way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    And I  do  hope in  de fence o f  my co l leagues 

tha t  a re  s t i l l  there ,  the  documents  ge t  rev ised and wr i t ten  

tha t  way.   The 32-10-34 has got  a  requ i rement  o f  who s igns 

fo r  what .   So i f  you  go in to  the  32-10-34 i t  w i l l  te l l  you  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    . . .who s igns and why  he s igns.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.  

MR KOKO :    So. . .   But  th is  –  I  mean,  I  have s igned many  

o f  these documents  wh ich  says there  you s igned  to  say 
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every th ing  i s  co r rec t .   So i t  i s  imposs ib le .   So le t  me g ive  

you an example .   I  am not  a  nuc lear  sc ien t is t .   When the  

nuc lea r  sc ien t is t  in  Eskom goes to  the . . .  commi t tee ,  I  must  

s ign  to  make sure  tha t  a l l  the  governance processes have  

been done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  in  any event ,  Cha i r.   In  th is  document  tha t  

i s  be fore  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    . . . I  am happy to  have s igned fo r  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So the  recommendat ions then have  

tha t  4 .4  as  we l l  above the  s ignatures  or  jus t  be fore  the  

peop le  s ign ing .   The SOE format  Serv i ce  Leve l  Agreement ,  

fo rmat  o f  cont rac t  can be approved w i th  i t s  assoc ia ted  

cond i t ions .   And then tha t  cond i t ion  inc luded C lause 22 

about  you w i l l  do  no th ing  un t i l  you  have rece ived Treasury  

approva l .   You remember  the  c lause?  20 

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  tha t  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  inc luded a  c lause  twenty  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Repeat  f rom the  quest ion ,  f rom the  
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beg inn ing .   I  have missed i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   So 4 .4  reads:  

“The SLA,  Serv ice  Leve l  Agreement ,  wh ich  is  

one o f  the  recommendat ions  fo rmat  o f  

cont rac t ing ,  be  approved w i th  i t s  assoc ia ted  

cond i t ions . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And tha t  SLA inc luded,  i t  was 22,  in  

te rms o f  wh ich  Eskom under took tha t  i t  w i l l  do  no th ing  –  

and I  am paraphras ing  –  un t i l  i t  has  rece ived Treasury  10 

approva l .    

MR KOKO :    In  o ther  words,  the  ga tekeeper  to  th is  cont rac t  

i s  compl ian t  to  Nat iona l  Treasury  Regu la t ions.   So.   And 

th is  i s  normal ,  Cha i r,  the  –  because i t  i s  a  bespoke(?)  

cont rac t ,  the  Board  Tender  Commi t tee  has to  ag ree to  i t  

w i th  the  necessary  cond i t ions .   So th is  i s  –  I  unders tood  

exact ly  what  tha t  meant  when I  s igned i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Thank  you.   Then las t l y  i s  4 .5  

wh ich  says:  

“That  recommended tha t  the  Genera t ion ,  20 

Pr imary  Energy and C la ims Management  Va lue  

Packages as  conta ined in  Append ix  7 ,  8  and 9 

be  accepted and inc luded as  par t  o f  th is  

t ransact ion . . . ”  

 So those packages,  you were  recommending tha t  
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they  be  added to  the  or ig ina l  p roposa l  when they were  no t  

there  in i t ia l l y.  

MR KOKO :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  tha t  no t  cons is ten t  w i th  

Ms Matshepo ’s  ev idence?  

MR KOKO :    No,  Ms Matshepo ’s  ev idence is  nonsense,  

man.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  you and Mr  Ano j  added to  the 

or ig ina l  p roposa l  tha t  had been made by  McK insey and  

Reg iments  . . . [ in tervenes]   10 

MR KOKO :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .o r  Tr i l l i an .  

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  th is  i s  where  you have to  demand 

paperwork .   Th i s  i s  where  Mr  Se leka has to  show and te l l .   

Ms Matshepo ’s  emai ls  a re  a f te r  th is . . .  December.   

Ms Matshepo says. . .  a f te r  –  in  November /December  and  

then comes in  and says we have added,  i t  i s  a f te r  th is  

Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  tha t  t ype o f  ev idence.   I f  you  become 

pedant ic  and you jus t  fo l low paperwork ,  Ms Mothepu is  

go ing  to  be  exposed and she needs to  come and exp la in  to  20 

you why she says I  have changed and added i tems when  

the  add i t ions  served on her  to  the  board  on  the  6  October  

and she re fers  to  the  November  and December .   

And in  any event ,  Cha i r ,  in  any event ,  Ms Mothepu,  

and here  is  one i ssue tha t  makes her  a rgument  fa l l .   One 
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o f  the  th ings tha t  she says I  added was maste r  –  vendor  

p rocu rement ,  wh ich  is  no t  par t  o f  4 .5 .   Vendor  p rocurement  

i s  no t  pa r t  o f  Genera t ion ,  vendor  p rocurement  i s  no t  par t  o f  

[ ind is t inc t ] ,  vendor  p rocu rement  i s  no t  par t  o f  c la ims  

management .    

So the  th ings tha t  she says I  have added,  two o f  

them,  Duvha insu rance and maste r  vend ing  a re  no t  par t  o f  

4 .5 .   She was b la tan t ly  l y ing  to  you.   Now you need to  

unders tand,  g iven the  documents  he re  because the  

documents  are  te l l ing  you someth ing  d i f fe ren t  and we w i l l  10 

ge t  to  o the r  w i tnesses.   I  mean,  I  rece ived a  document ,  an  

a f f idav i t  f rom wi tness 3 ,  tha t  a l l  o f  a  sudden she says I  d id  

no t  know Mr  Koko in  2013 but  I  saw h im and recogn ised 

h im.   Why wou ld  somebody who does not  know me,  saw me 

seeming ly .   The ev idence befo re  you,  Cha i r ,  tha t  you must  

go ,  when you s i t  on  your  own,  mak ing  your  repor t ,  must  

jus t  look  a t  the  documents  and the  ev idence.  

Duvha insurance ,  master  se rv i ces ,  i s  no t  par t  o f  

th is  4 .5 .   That  i s  the  ev idence befo re  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r .   Ms Mothepu – I  

w i l l  read f rom the  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  one o f  the  bund les ,  bu t  

Cha i r ,  paragraph 14 –  bund le  14 ,  le t  me read.   I t  says :  

“F rom October  2015 my team was in t roduced to  

[ ind is t inc t ]  Matshe la  Koko,  Pr i sh  Govender ,  Andre  
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P i l lay  and Edwin  Mabe lane. ”  

She has you ac tua l l y  wr i t ten  tw ice .  

“Each in i t ia t i ve  s teer ing  team wou ld  meet  regu la r ly  

w i th  des ignated Eskom rep resenta t i ves  a t  Megawat t  

Park . ”  

And 27:  

“Matshe la  Koko and Ano j  S ingh added in i t ia t i ves  

tha t  were  no t  p rov i s iona l l y  on  the  proposa l .   Th is  

were  on l ine  vend ing  and Duvha insurance c la im and 

rebu i ld  H i tach i  insurance se t t lement . ”  10 

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  am say ing  to  you a l l  the  th ree  –  and I  

am g lad  Mr  Se leka and God is  w i th  Moses,  I  a lways say so ,  

I  have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  4 .5 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  c la ims  management ,  there  the  

package is .  

MR KOKO:    The c la ims management  i s  Medup i  and Kus i le ,  

i t  i s  bu i ld ing  –  i t  i s  the  issue tha t  i s  on  the  head l ine  o f  

Maake.   They now ra ise  i t  i s  Maake say ing  -  be fore  we  

f in ish  th is ,  be fo re  you f in ish  your  repor t ,  a l l  your  w i tnesses  

tha t  a re  s ta r  w i tnesses w i l l  be  beh ind  bars  soon,  bu t  20 

anyway.   The c la im management  i s  Group Cap i ta l ,  i t  i s  

Maake,  i t  i s  a l l  the  c la ims in  Medup i  and Kus i le ,  i t  i s  pure l y  

Kus i le  and Medup i  and Ingu la(? ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So are  you say ing  to  the  Cha i rpe rson  

what  Ms Mos i lo  i s  say ing  here  as  in i t ia t i ves  added ,  on l ine 
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vend ing ,  Duvha insurance,  rebu i ld  H i tach i ,  were  they in  the  

proposa l  o r  were  they no t  in  the  proposa l?  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r,  I  am say ing  to  you what  i s  in  the  

proposa l  i s  here .   What  i s  in  the  proposa l  I  s igned o f f  on  i t  

on  the  6  August  2015.   I t  served on the  board  on  the  21  

October  2015.   There  is  no  vendor  management  here ,  there  

is  no  Duvha sys tems here .   There  is  no  rebu i ld ing  o f  Duvha 

bo i le rs  he re .   I t  i s  th ings tha t  a re  added,  a re  tabu la ted ,  

Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  them,  they are  he re ,  they are  de ta i led  

and they are  no t  added by  me,  they are  added by  10 

negot ia t ing  team tha t  negot ia ted  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  the  answer  i s ,  no  they are  no t  

in  the  proposa l .  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They wou ld  no t  have been par t  o f  the 

MSA.  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson,  can we go to  bund le  

16(b)  jus t  to  f in ish  o f f  on  th is  po in t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

MR KOKO:    Can I  take  th is  away?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  jus t  keep i t  there .   16(b ) ,  th is  i s  Mr  

Ano j ’s  bund le .   D id  I  say  16 (b)?   Ja ,  so  Mr  S ingh has 

prov ided a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion .   The  

a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  on  page 1016 but  I  want  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  you 
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to  go  to  page 1018,  paragraph 11 w i th  the  head ing :  

“Top consu l tan ts  p rogramme s teer ing  commi t tee  

meet ing . ”  

MR KOKO:    I  am there ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  the  Cha i rpe rson there?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   The paragraph 11 

reads:  

“The f i rs t  Top Consu l tan ts  Programme Steer ing  

Commi t tee  meet ing  was he ld  on  9  February  2016.   I  10 

a t tach  here to  the  PowerPo in t  p resenta t ion  as  AS5  

wh ich  was presented on the  day  se t t ing  ou t  i n te r  

a l ia :  

1 .  An overv iew o f  the  MSA.  

2 .  S teer ing  commi t tee  te rms o f  re fe rence.  

3 .  Ro le  and respons ib i l i t y  o f  s teer ing  commi t tee .  

1  o f  2  and 2  o f  2  and then 11.4 :  

“P rogramme s tee r ing  and leadersh ip . ”  

Turn  the  page:  

5 .  The cont rac t  cur ren t ly  inc ludes work  packages.  20 

6 :  Work  packages  in i t ia t i ve  proposa l  and S tee rco   

    approva ls . ”  

Now we go to  AS5 wh ich  is  f rom page 1108 o f  Eskom 

bund le  16 .   So tha t  i s  the  presenta t ion  he  has prov ided to  

the  Commiss ion  wh ich  he  sa id  was made th rough the  
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S teerco  on  the  9  February  2016.   On the  f i r s t  page ,  Cha i r ,  

you see:  

“S teer ing  commi t tee  meet ing  agenda. ”  

You have:  

1 .  Open ing  and we lcome by the  Cha i rman,  sa fe ty  

b r ie f ing  in t roduct ions and apo log ies .  

2 .  Overa l l  descr ip t ion  o f  the  mechan ics  o f  the  cont rac t . ”  

And there  is  va l id  po in ts  there :  

“H igh  leve l  MSA overv iew,  descr ip t ion  o f  the  work  

packages,  approva l  by  s teer ing  commi t tee . ”  10 

And i t  goes on 3 ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  packages.   The next  

page you see members  o f  S teerco .   Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  the i r  

passpor t  photos  are  there .   Mr  Ano j  S ingh is  the re ,  the  

Group CFO,  Mr  Matshe la  Koko,  Genera t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  Matshe la  Koko who appears  in  

tha t  p ic tu re  does not  look  very  much l i ke  the  one in  f ron t  o f  

me.  

MR KOKO:    I t  i s  the  same person,  Cha i r ,  I  can  conf i rm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The fau l t  must  be  w i th  whoever  took the  20 

p ic tu re .   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  res t  o f  the  Eskom team is  

there .   Wel l ,  ja ,  those who cons t i tu ted  S teerco  and then  

you have o ther  members  f rom McKinsey and Tr i l l i an .   Ms  

Mothepu i s  a lso  there .   Then the  agenda i s  repeated.   You  
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tu rn  the  page,  Cha i rperson:  

“MSA overv iew,  th ree  year  cont rac t ,  100% 

per fo rmance-based. ”  

And,  Mr  Koko,  when I  read the  th ree  year  cont rac t  th is  may 

–  you may or  may not  be  ab le  to  comment ,  i t  reminds me 

what  Ms Goodson ’s  ev idence in  her  a f f idav i t  tha t  she was  

to ld  when she jo ined Tr i l l i an  in  –  I  th ink  when she  jo ined,  

in  November  o r  December  2015,  the  ac t i v i t y  s ta r ted  the re  

in  2016 tha t  the  opera t ions o f  Tr i l l i an  are  fo r  th is  

d ispensat ion  and  the  d ispensat ion  she was to ld  about  was 10 

a  th ree  year  per iod .   I  thought  what  a  co inc idence w i th  th is  

cont rac t  be ing  fo r  th ree  years .  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  have no pe rsona l  knowledge  o f  the 

d iscuss ions Ms Mothepu had w i th  o ther  peop le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Then on the  next  page,  Cha i r ,  you  

have the  b lock  ta lk ing  o f :  

“Ro le  and respons ib i l i t i es  o f  s teer ing  commi t tee”  

And they g ive  you the  ro les  and respons ib i l i t i es .    

1  o f  2  and aga in  2  o f  2 .   Turn  the  page,  Cha i r  to  

1112:  20 

“Programme s tee r ing  leadersh ip”  

Then you have the  s teer ing  commi t tee  members ’  names se t  

ou t  and then under  tha t  you have the  var ious packages or  

in i t ia t i ves  to  wh ich  the  work  w i l l  re la te .    

So one is  p rocurement  w i th  Mr  Edwin  Mabe lane,  as  
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the  f i rs t  name.  

Two is  Pr imary  Energy,  the  f i rs t  name Lu is  

Mboweni .  

Three is  Genera t ion  and the  f i r s t  name there  is  Mr  

Matshe la  Koko.  

C la ims is  Abram Masango,  f inance  is  Ano j  S ingh.  

Mr  Koko,  so  those are  the  va r ious packages w i th in  the  

MSA.  

MR KOKO:    Yes and,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  want  to  ge t  

emot iona l  and ge t  upset ,  th is  –  where  is  –  i f  you  take  th is  10 

as  a  bas i s ,  and rea l l y  i t  upsets  me now,  i f  you  take  th is  as  

a  bas is  o f  what  was presented on the  9  February  –  and I  

have a  ve ry  vague memory  o f  i t ,  i t  l i s ts  the  packages.   So  

i f  you  say Maste r  Serv ices  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  cannot  f i t  in  

where  my name i s .   I t  cannot .   And i f  any  w i tness come and 

say Mr  Koko caused a  change o r  added a  top i c  and tha t  

top ic  i s  vendor  management  o r  i nsurance,  then you come 

here ,  bu t  i t  does  not  f i t  here .   I t  ac tua l l y  f i t s  in  f inance  

wh ich  i s  what  I  have a lways been say ing  and you w i l l  see  –  

look  a t  Ms Mothepu ’s  name.   Look  a t  i t ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  under  20 

number  5 ,  i t  i s  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 .   Do see tha t?   My name is  no t  

there .   So she cou ld  no t  have negot ia ted  w i th  me on issues  

tha t  under  number  5 .   She is  no t  on  number  3  wh ich  i s  

where  I  wou ld  be .    

Any package tha t  you add under  Genera t ion  w i l l  
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have to  be  au tho r ised by  me.   Any package tha t  ge ts  done  

under  f inance,  where  she i s ,  w i l l  have to  be  f inanced by  

o thers  and,  Cha i r ,  once aga in ,  once aga in ,  I  am begg ing  

you to  jus t  fo l low  the  ev idence.   I  have to ld  you tha t  I  had 

a  very  so f t  spot  fo r  her ,  I  l i ked  he r ,  I  l i ke  how she car r ied  

herse l f ,  she had d i f f i cu l t y  ta lk ing  to  peop le  in  Eskom and I  

wou ld  ass i s t  her .   I f  she  want  to  ta lk  to  peop le  in  Treasury  

I  wou ld  p i ck  up  the  phone and say ta lk  to  th is  young lady.   

I f  she  want  to  ta lk  to  peop le  in  i nsurance,  I  wou ld  ass i s t  

her .   That  i s  the  –  I  ac tua l l y  t r ied  to  p lay  a  mento r ing  ro le  10 

to  her  bu t  the  record  speaks fo r  i t se l f ,  Cha i r ,  jus t  focus on  

the  records,  fo rge t  the  goss ip .   Do not  be  l i ke  Ms Thu l i  

Madonse la  who took the  goss ip .   The documents  a re  here ,  

le t  us  s tay  w i th  the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

ADV BARRIE SC :    Cha i rman,  may I  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR KOKO:    I  apo log i se ,  S i r ,  bu t  I  am very  emot iona l  

because I  have been th rough th is  hundred t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Bar ry?  20 

ADV BARRIE SC :    The updated vers ion  o f  the  bund le  16  

has no t  been sent  to  us ,  so  we do not  have these  

documents .   I  d id  no t  want  to  in te r rup t  bu t  they can even  

be sent  to  us  e lec t ron ica l l y  o r  emai led  to  use r i gh t  now,  

tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  our  bund le  s tops a t  page 792 and tha t  was  
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a t  the  end o f  March,  so  we were  no t  g iven access  to  the 

updated bund le .   I t  can  jus t  be  sent  to  us  even as  we s i t  

here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  i s  cor rec t  

because I  have asked fo r  th i s  bund le  a f te r  i t  was updated 

to  be  sent  to  Mr  Ndou.   He is  nodd ing  h is  head.   Yes 

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He is  nodd ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because I  was  cop ied  in  the  emai l  tha t  10 

went  to  h im,  w i tnessed h is  s ta tement .  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  wh ich  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry .  

MR KOKO:    I  th ink  Mr  Se leka is  r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    I  remember  see ing  these document  f rom Mr  

Ndou.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  so?  

MR KOKO:    Yes,  I  th ink ,  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  maybe they were  no t  passed on to  20 

Mr  Bar r ie .   Ja .  

MR KOKO:    I  th ink  so ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  so  maybe tha t  i s  what  

happened.  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Ndou is  r igh t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi tness 3  …[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    P ro f  Lourens,  I  have seen the  document .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  and Pro f  Lourens because they 

asked fo r  i t .  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Ndou sent  them to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Mr  Koko,  the  Cha i r  w i l l  l ook  a t  the  

emai ls  f rom Ms Mothepu because Ms Mothepu tes t i f ies 

about  the  emai ls  tha t  she sent  to  you.   I  do  no t  th ink  they 10 

can be ca l led  goss ip .   The emai ls  say :  

“Thank you fo r  meet ing  w i th  me. ”  

And go on to  say th is  i s  what  i s  be ing  –  needs to  be  

d iscussed and then,  in  some o f  them,  ar ranges  tha t  we 

shou ld  have a  meet ing .  

MR KOKO:    And there  is  no  con f i rmat ion  those meet ings 

took p lace,  to  d iscuss those spec i f i c  top ics ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  wa i t ,  tha t  i s  no t  the  po in t .   

MR KOKO:    Wha t  i s  the  po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  I  am say ing  to  you is  th i s .   The  20 

Cha i rperson w i l l  look  a t  the  emai ls  wh ich  is  no t  goss ip ,  i t  

i s  emai ls  tha t  has been sent  one,  to  you –  I  mean,  one,  to  

your  PA tha t  cop ied  you and the  o thers  are  sent  d i rec t l y  to  

you and she is  thank ing  you fo r  hav ing  met  w i th  you and 

she a l so  a r ranges to  have a  meet ing .   And she tes t i f ies  to  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 263 of 354 
 

the  ex ten t  o f  those emai l s ,  no th ing  more ,  no th ing  less .  

MR KOKO:    The  Cha i rman wi l l  a lso  look a t  the  t ranscr ip t  

tha t  Ms Mothepu  says I  gave her  an  Ind ian  man to  work  

w i th  on  these top ics  and th is  Ind ian  man tu rns  to  be  my 

pro fess iona l  ass is tan t  who is  a  b lack  lady.   So the  

Cha i rman must  a lso  take  in to  account  tha t  she l ied  to  you.   

And,  Cha i r ,  you  must  a lso  take  in to  account  tha t  I  

responded to  none o f  those emai ls .   I  cou ld  no t  respond to  

any o f  them because they a re  no t  in  my scope.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second,  what  I  wanted to  10 

t ry  and remember… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  whether ,  Mr  Koko,  you accepted tha t  

you rece ived those emai ls  bu t  d id  no t  respond or  whethe r  

you d isputed tha t  they were  sent  to  you.  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  cannot  even remember  rece iv ing  

those emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    I  cannot  remember  rece iv ing  those emai ls  and 

even i f  I  rece i ved them I  wou ld  no t  have ac ted  on them 20 

because they were  ou ts ide  my competency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  except  tha t  i f  she  says she met  

w i th  you when you know –  when you knew you d id  no t  meet  

w i th  her  you cou ld  respond and say what  a re  you  ta lk ing  

about ,  I  never  me t  w i th  you.  
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MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing  to  you ,  I  have  

sa id  i t  ca tegor i ca l l y  tha t  I  have never  met  Ms Mothepu to  

d iscuss the  issues tha t  a re  on  those emai l s .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    I  have never ,  I  cou ld  no t .   The best  I  cou ld  do  

is  to  re fe r  her  to  the  peop le  tha t  a re  dea l ing  w i th  those  

top ics .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  po in t  tha t  I  am put t ing  to  you is  

tha t  i f  you  knew tha t  you d id  no t  meet  w i th  her  and you  

rece ive  an  emai l  f rom her  say ing  tha t  she met  w i th  you and 10 

d iscussed those top ics  w i th  you tha t  wou ld  be  a l l  the  more  

reason why,  i f  you  d id  rece ive  such an emai l  f rom her ,  i t  

wou ld  be  necessary  to  wr i te  back and say what  a re  you  

ta lk ing  about?   I  never  met  w i th  you.  

MR KOKO:    No,  le t  me te l l  you  a  s to ry  and le t  me te l l  you  

the  fac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    By  the  23 r d  –  a l l  those emai l s ,  w i thout  fa i l ,  a re 

a f te r  the  23  October  when I  was out  o f  tha t  o f f i c ia l  o f f i ce .    

New person was in  tha t  o f f i ce  to  dea l  w i th  whatever  comes  20 

in  tha t  o f f i ce .   When you a re  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  and you  

get  p romoted,  the  new Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  comes in  to  

dea l  w i th  whatever  comes in to  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  except ,  o f  course ,  tha t  i f  there  

are  mat te rs  tha t  a re  ra ised tha t  happened wh i le  I  was the re  
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and he or  she was to  ver i f y  whether  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the 

pos i t ion ,  tha t  person can ask  me o r  re fe r  and say I  want  to  

respond th is  bu t  i t  happened dur ing  your  t ime,  what  i s  the 

pos i t ion?  And then I  can say I  never  had a  meet ing  w i th  

tha t  person.   Tha t  par t  you unders tand? 

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  nobody came to  me to  say have you 

had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Mothepu?  I  do  no t  remember  

ge t t ing  her  emai ls .   I  have never  responded to  her  emai ls .   

The bu lk  par t  o f  my in te rac t ions w i th  her  was to  he lp  her  to  

meet  peop le  in  Eskom,  to  in t roduce her  to  peop le ,  to  d r ink  10 

co f fee  w i th  he r  and o ther  peop le  tha t  were  ass is t ing ,  bu t  I  

wou ld  never  dea l  w i th  insurance,  fo r  example .   That  

insu rance c la im i s  f inance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no…[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    The Group Execu t ive  Genera t ion  has no  

competency in  insu rance.   The Group Execu t ive  fo r  

Genera t ion  has no  competency in  Master  Vend ing .   He may 

know someth ing  to  do ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  h is  competency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  no t  tha t  even  though  

you may have moved out  o f  one pos i t ion  or  depar tment  to  20 

another  you s t i l l  use  the  same emai l  address and there fore  

the  emai l s  wou ld  s t i l l  have come to  you i f  they  were  sent  to  

you?  

MR KOKO:    Oh,  Cha i r ,  I  have come to  accept  –  I  have  

come to  apprec ia te  why peop le  cont inued to  send me 
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emai ls  on  the  issues tha t  I  have dea l t  w i th  in  my prev ious  

pos i t ion  as  a  Group Execut ive  Commerc ia l .   I  now have 

come to  peace w i th  tha t  because I  had s igned the  cont rac t ,  

I  had s igned the  cont rac t .   I  had s igned the  corpo ra te  p lan  

cont rac t .   So peop le  fo r  whatever  reason may have not  

been –  may have not  accepted tha t  I  am out  o f  the  ro le  tha t  

enab led  me to  s ign  those cont rac ts  and they probab ly  

thought  tha t  I  have an in f luence when I  was out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  and I  d id  no t  want  to  go  in to  th is  10 

mat te r  bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  see what  Ms Mothepu  wr i tes  in  

the  emai l  because i t  i s  no t  about  I  am pursu ing  the  mat te r  

w i th  Mr  Koko when he has a l ready le f t  h is  o f f i ce  or  h is  

pos i t ion  as  –  wh ichever  pos i t ion  i t  was.   A  person who 

wr i tes  –  and these emai ls ,  we  read them,  you know,  

prev ious l y .   But  here  is  the  one o f  30  November  2015.   She 

says:  

“Good day,  Matshe la ,  I  hope th is  emai l  f inds  you  

we l l  and i t  was a  p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week.   I  

had a  chat  w i th  Er ic  Wood regard ing  add i t iona l  20 

f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  tha t  need to  be  inc luded as  pa r t  

our  ba lance shee t  op t im iza t ion  and cash un lock ing . ”  

But  tha t  f i rs t  l i ne  tha t  I  had p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week 

is  what  we a re  ta lk ing  about .  

MR KOKO:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  have …[ in tervenes]  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  no t  goss ip .  

MR KOKO:    I  have never  den ied  meet ing  Ms Mothepu.   

But  i f  Mr  Se leka reads tha t  I  have  met  her  to  d iscuss the  

f inanc ia l  i ssues tha t  she re fers  to  la te r  i s  wrong.   I  have 

met  Ms Mothepu.   I  have en joyed  in te rac t ing  w i th  her  bu t  

to  say you have  met  her  to  d iscuss the  i ssues tha t  she  

ra ised la te r ,  Mr  Se leka is  wrong.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  me,  there  i s  no th ing  wrong or  

r igh t  about  …[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Se leka …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we l l ,  yes ,  i f  the  emai ls  say  tha t  i s  

what  you met  to  d iscuss on  a  par t i cu la r  occas ion  i t  wou ld  

be  the  au thor  o f  the  emai ls .  

MR KOKO:    No but  read i t  aga in ,  Mr  Se leka,  read tha t  

emai l  aga in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me read the  o the r  one,  5 

December  2015.  

MR KOKO:    No,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  reads:  

“H i  Matshe la  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry .   Do you want  h im to  read the  

prev ious one?  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you want  to  l i s ten  to  i t  

p roper ly?  
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MR KOKO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Read i t ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me read i t .   I  say :  

“ I  hope th is  emai l  f inds  you we l l  and i t  was a  

p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week.   I  had a  chat  w i th  

Er ic  Wood regard ing  add i t iona l  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  

tha t  need to  be  inc luded as  par t  our  ba lance shee t  

op t im iza t ion  and cash un lock ing  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  

s t ream.   These inc lude the  sa le  and  lease-back on  

the  op t ic  f ib re  ne twork ,  p repa id  e lec t r i c i t y  vend ing ,  10 

EFC d i sposa l ,  H i tach i  c la ims,  rep lacement  o f  

bo i le rs  and Duvha insu rance c la im.   We are  

cur ren t ly  compi l i ng  a  bus iness  case fo r  these 

in i t ia t i ves  and requ i re  some in fo rmat ion  f rom you  

and your  team.   We wou ld  l i ke  to  se t  up  t ime ear l y  

th is  week w i th  yourse l f  and your  team to  source  the  

in fo rmat ion  in  o rder  to  comple te  the  bus iness case  

by  the  end o f  the  week. ”  

MR KOKO:    Where  in  tha t  le t te r  does i t  say  she d iscussed  

those th ings w i th  me?  Where  in  tha t  emai l  does i t  she  20 

d iscussed those th ings w i th  me? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka,  I  th ink  he  wanted to  

re fer ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  to  re fe r  to  the  fac t  tha t  she says  

she met  w i th  you.   

MR KOKO:    She met  …[ in tervenes ]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  he  wants  to  go  to  another  

one,  I  do  no t  know whether  tha t  i s  the  one.  

MR KOKO:    No,  no ,  no ,  bu t  Cha i r ,  there  i s  nowhere  in  tha t  

emai l  where  Ms Mothepu says she d iscussed those issues 

w i th  me.   She says she met  me las t  week,  she d i scussed  

these issues w i th  o thers .   She d id  no t  d iscuss w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR KOKO:    So  le t  tha t  be  very  c lear .   She met  w i th  me,  

she d iscussed these issues w i th  o the rs ,  no t  w i th  me 

because she cou ld  no t  have d i scussed them wi th  me .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  Cha i r .   Mr  Er ic  Wood or  Dr  Er ic  

Wood,  we know is  a t  Tr i l l i an ,  he  is  Ms Mos i lo ’s  boss.   She 

has gone back a f te r  meet ing  w i th  you to  d iscuss the  

add i t iona l  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  tha t  need to  be  inc luded and  

she is  say ing  to  you we need more  i n fo rmat ion  and they  

wou ld  l i ke  t ime ear ly  th is  week to  se t  up  –  t ime ear ly  th is  

week w i th  yourse l f  and your  team to  source  the  in fo rmat ion  

in  o rder  to  comple te  the  bus iness cases by  the  end  o f  the  

week.  20 

MR KOKO:    Exce l len t  and e lsewhere  –  e lsewhere ,  even on  

Twi t te r ,  in  her  book,  she has wr i t ten  a  book,  she  sa id  Mr  

Koko never  gave me aud ience.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Never  what?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Never  gave me?  
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MR KOKO:    Aud ience on these top ics .   She sa id  Mr  Wood 

had to  phone her  when she was on her  s ickbed to  say go  

and wa i t  on  Mr  Koko ’s  door  and when Mr  Koko and  found 

me on the  door ,  Mr  Koko to ld  me who to ld  you to  come 

here ,  you are  b rave.   That  i s  her  ev idence,  tha t  i s  a  fac t .   

That  i s  he r  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  d id  Ms  Mothepu say tha t  she  

d iscussed the  top ics  tha t  Mr  Koko says were  never  10 

d iscussed w i th  h im?  D id  she say  in  her  ev idence  or  any  

emai l  she d i scussed those top ics  w i th  h im?  Le t  us  ge t  tha t  

c lea r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  w i l l  reca l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR KOKO:    the  answer  i s  no .   The answer  i s  no .   Mr  

Se leka is  no t  go ing  you a  d i rec t  answer ,  the  answer  i s  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Cha i r ,  I  have  not  –  I  

have not  looked a t  th is  recent ly ,  because I  was prepared to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    i t  i s  no t  tha t  type o f  ev idence.   I f  you  

become pedant i c  and you jus t  fo l low paperwork ,  Ms 

Mothepu is  go ing  to  be  exposed  and she needs to  come 

and exp la in  to  you why she says I  have changed and added 



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 271 of 354 
 

i tems when the  add i t ions  served on her  to  the  board  on  the 

6  October  and she re fers  to  the  November  and December.   

And in  any event ,  Cha i r ,  in  any event ,  Ms Mothepu,  

and here  is  one i ssue tha t  makes her  a rgument  fa l l .   One 

o f  the  th ings tha t  she says I  added was maste r  –  vendor  

p rocu rement ,  wh ich  is  no t  par t  o f  4 .5 .   Vendor  p rocurement  

i s  no t  pa r t  o f  Genera t ion ,  vendor  p rocurement  i s  no t  par t  o f  

[ ind is t inc t ] ,  vendor  p rocu rement  i s  no t  par t  o f  c la ims  

management .    

So the  th ings tha t  she says I  have added,  two o f  10 

them,  Duvha insu rance and maste r  vend ing  a re  no t  par t  o f  

4 .5 .   She was b la tan t ly  l y ing  to  you.   Now you need to  

unders tand,  g iven the  documents  he re  because the  

documents  are  te l l ing  you someth ing  d i f fe ren t  and we w i l l  

ge t  to  o the r  w i tnesses.   I  mean,  I  rece ived a  document ,  an  

a f f idav i t  f rom wi tness 3 ,  tha t  a l l  o f  a  sudden she says I  d id  

no t  know Mr  Koko in  2013 but  I  saw h im and recogn ised 

h im.   Why wou ld  somebody who does not  know me,  saw me 

seeming ly .   The ev idence befo re  you,  Cha i r ,  tha t  you must  

go ,  when you s i t  on  your  own,  mak ing  your  repor t ,  must  20 

jus t  look  a t  the  documents  and the  ev idence.  

Duvha insurance ,  master  se rv i ces ,  i s  no t  par t  o f  

th is  4 .5 .   That  i s  the  ev idence befo re  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r .   Ms Mothepu – I  
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w i l l  read f rom the  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  one o f  the  bund les ,  bu t  

Cha i r ,  paragraph 14 –  bund le  14 ,  le t  me read.   I t  says :  

“F rom October  2015 my team was in t roduced to  

[ ind is t inc t ]  Matshe la  Koko,  Pr i sh  Govender ,  Andre  

P i l lay  and Edwin  Mabe lane. ”  

She has you ac tua l l y  wr i t ten  tw ice .  

“Each in i t ia t i ve  s teer ing  team wou ld  meet  regu la r ly  

w i th  des ignated Eskom rep resenta t i ves  a t  Megawat t  

Park . ”  

And 27:  10 

“Matshe la  Koko and Ano j  S ingh added in i t ia t i ves  

tha t  were  no t  p rov i s iona l l y  on  the  proposa l .   Th is  

were  on l ine  vend ing  and Duvha insurance c la im and 

rebu i ld  H i tach i  insurance se t t lement . ”  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  am say ing  to  you a l l  the  th ree  –  and I  

am g lad  Mr  Se leka and God is  w i th  Moses,  I  a lways say so ,  

I  have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  4 .5 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  c la ims  management ,  there  the  

package is .  

MR KOKO:    The c la ims management  i s  Medup i  and Kus i le ,  20 

i t  i s  bu i ld ing  –  i t  i s  the  issue tha t  i s  on  the  head l ine  o f  

Maake.   They now ra ise  i t  i s  Maake say ing  -  be fore  we  

f in ish  th is ,  be fo re  you f in ish  your  repor t ,  a l l  your  w i tnesses  

tha t  a re  s ta r  w i tnesses w i l l  be  beh ind  bars  soon,  bu t  

anyway.   The c la im management  i s  Group Cap i ta l ,  i t  i s  
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Maake,  i t  i s  a l l  the  c la ims in  Medup i  and Kus i le ,  i t  i s  pure l y  

Kus i le  and Medup i  and Ingu la(? ) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So are  you say ing  to  the  Cha i rpe rson  

what  Ms Mos i lo  i s  say ing  here  as  in i t ia t i ves  added ,  on l ine 

vend ing ,  Duvha insurance,  rebu i ld  H i tach i ,  were  they in  the  

proposa l  o r  were  they no t  in  the  proposa l?  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r,  I  am say ing  to  you what  i s  in  the  

proposa l  i s  here .   What  i s  in  the  proposa l  I  s igned o f f  on  i t  

on  the  6  August  2015.   I t  served on the  board  on  the  21  

October  2015.   There  is  no  vendor  management  here ,  there  10 

is  no  Duvha sys tems here .   There  is  no  rebu i ld ing  o f  Duvha 

bo i le rs  he re .   I t  i s  th ings tha t  a re  added,  a re  tabu la ted ,  

Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  them,  they are  he re ,  they are  de ta i led  

and they are  no t  added by  me,  they are  added by  

negot ia t ing  team tha t  negot ia ted  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  the  answer  i s ,  no  they are  no t  

in  the  proposa l .  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They wou ld  no t  have been par t  o f  the 

MSA.  20 

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson,  can we go to  bund le  

16(b)  jus t  to  f in ish  o f f  on  th is  po in t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR KOKO:    Can I  take  th is  away?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  jus t  keep i t  there .   16(b ) ,  th is  i s  Mr  

Ano j ’s  bund le .   D id  I  say  16 (b)?   Ja ,  so  Mr  S ingh has 

prov ided a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion .   The  

a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  on  page 1016 but  I  want  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  you 

to  go  to  page 1018,  paragraph 11 w i th  the  head ing :  

“Top consu l tan ts  p rogramme s teer ing  commi t tee  

meet ing . ”  

MR KOKO:    I  am there ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  the  Cha i rpe rson there?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   The paragraph 11 

reads:  

“The f i rs t  Top Consu l tan ts  Programme Steer ing  

Commi t tee  meet ing  was he ld  on  9  February  2016.   I  

a t tach  here to  the  PowerPo in t  p resenta t ion  as  AS5  

wh ich  was presented on the  day  se t t ing  ou t  i n te r  

a l ia :  

4 .  An overv iew o f  the  MSA.  

5 .  S teer ing  commi t tee  te rms o f  re fe rence.  

6 .  Ro le  and respons ib i l i t y  o f  s teer ing  commi t tee .  20 

1  o f  2  and 2  o f  2  and then 11.4 :  

“P rogramme s tee r ing  and leadersh ip . ”  

Turn  the  page:  

6 .  The cont rac t  cur ren t ly  inc ludes work  packages.  

6 :  Work  packages  in i t ia t i ve  proposa l  and S tee rco   
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    approva ls . ”  

Now we go to  AS5 wh ich  is  f rom page 1108 o f  Eskom 

bund le  16 .   So tha t  i s  the  presenta t ion  he  has prov ided to  

the  Commiss ion  wh ich  he  sa id  was made th rough the  

S teerco  on the  9  February  2016.   On the  f i r s t  page ,  Cha i r ,  

you see:  

“S teer ing  commi t tee  meet ing  agenda. ”  

You have:  

3 .  Open ing  and we lcome by the  Cha i rman,  sa fe ty  

b r ie f ing  in t roduct ions and apo log ies .  10 

4 .  Overa l l  descr ip t ion  o f  the  mechan ics  o f  the  cont rac t . ”  

And there  is  va l id  po in ts  there :  

“H igh  leve l  MSA overv iew,  descr ip t ion  o f  the  work  

packages,  approva l  by  s teer ing  commi t tee . ”  

And i t  goes on 3 ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  packages.   The next  

page you see members  o f  S teerco .   Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  the i r  

passpor t  photos  are  there .   Mr  Ano j  S ingh is  the re ,  the  

Group CFO,  Mr  Matshe la  Koko,  Genera t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  Matshe la  Koko who appears  in  

tha t  p ic tu re  does not  look  very  much l i ke  the  one in  f ron t  o f  20 

me.  

MR KOKO:    I t  i s  the  same person,  Cha i r ,  I  can  conf i rm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The fau l t  must  be  w i th  whoever  took the  

p ic tu re .   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  res t  o f  the  Eskom team is  

there .   Wel l ,  ja ,  those who cons t i tu ted  S teerco  and then  

you have o ther  members  f rom McKinsey and Tr i l l i an .   Ms  

Mothepu i s  a lso  there .   Then the  agenda i s  repeated.   You  

tu rn  the  page,  Cha i rperson:  

“MSA overv iew,  th ree  year  cont rac t ,  100% 

per fo rmance-based. ”  

And,  Mr  Koko,  when I  read the  th ree  year  cont rac t  th is  may 

–  you may or  may not  be  ab le  to  comment ,  i t  reminds me 

what  Ms Goodson ’s  ev idence in  her  a f f idav i t  tha t  she was  10 

to ld  when she jo ined Tr i l l i an  in  –  I  th ink  when she  jo ined,  

in  November  o r  December  2015,  the  ac t iv i t y  s ta r ted  the re  

in  2016 tha t  the  opera t ions o f  Tr i l l i an  are  fo r  th is  

d ispensat ion  and  the  d ispensat ion  she was to ld  about  was 

a  th ree  year  per iod .   I  thought  what  a  co inc idence w i th  th is  

cont rac t  be ing  fo r  th ree  years .  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  have no pe rsona l  knowledge  o f  the 

d iscuss ions Ms Mothepu had w i th  o ther  peop le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Then on the  next  page,  Cha i r ,  you  

have the  b lock  ta lk ing  o f :  20 

“Ro le  and respons ib i l i t i es  o f  s teer ing  commi t tee”  

And they g ive  you the  ro les  and respons ib i l i t i es .    

1  o f  2  and aga in  2  o f  2 .   Turn  the  page,  Cha i r  to  

1112:  

“Programme s tee r ing  leadersh ip”  
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Then you have the  s teer ing  commi t tee  members ’  names se t  

ou t  and then under  tha t  you have the  var ious packages or  

in i t ia t i ves  to  wh ich  the  work  w i l l  re la te .    

So one is  p rocurement  w i th  Mr  Edwin  Mabe lane,  as  

the  f i rs t  name.  

Two is  Pr imary  Energy,  the  f i rs t  name Lu is  

Mboweni .  

Three is  Genera t ion  and the  f i r s t  name there  is  Mr  

Matshe la  Koko.  

C la ims is  Abram Masango,  f inance  is  Ano j  S ingh.  10 

Mr  Koko,  so  those are  the  va r ious packages w i th in  the  

MSA.  

MR KOKO:    Yes and,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  want  to  ge t  

emot iona l  and ge t  upset ,  th is  –  where  is  –  i f  you  take  th is  

as  a  bas i s ,  and rea l l y  i t  upsets  me now,  i f  you  take  th is  as  

a  bas is  o f  what  was presented on the  9  February  –  and I  

have a  ve ry  vague memory  o f  i t ,  i t  l i s ts  the  packages.   So  

i f  you  say Maste r  Serv ices  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  cannot  f i t  in  

where  my name i s .   I t  cannot .   And i f  any  w i tness come and 

say Mr  Koko caused a  change o r  added a  top i c  and tha t  20 

top ic  i s  vendor  management  o r  i nsurance,  then you come 

here ,  bu t  i t  does  not  f i t  here .   I t  ac tua l l y  f i t s  in  f inance  

wh ich  i s  what  I  have a lways been say ing  and you w i l l  see  –  

look  a t  Ms Mothepu ’s  name.   Look  a t  i t ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  under  

number  5 ,  i t  i s  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 .   Do see tha t?   My name is  no t  
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there .   So she cou ld  no t  have negot ia ted  w i th  me on issues  

tha t  under  number  5 .   She is  no t  on  number  3  wh ich  i s  

where  I  wou ld  be .    

Any package tha t  you add under  Genera t ion  w i l l  

have to  be  au tho r ised by  me.   Any package tha t  ge ts  done  

under  f inance,  where  she i s ,  w i l l  have to  be  f inanced by  

o thers  and,  Cha i r ,  once aga in ,  once aga in ,  I  am begg ing  

you to  jus t  fo l low  the  ev idence.   I  have to ld  you tha t  I  had 

a  very  so f t  spot  fo r  her ,  I  l i ked  he r ,  I  l i ke  how she car r ied  

herse l f ,  she had d i f f i cu l t y  ta lk ing  to  peop le  in  Eskom and I  10 

wou ld  ass i s t  her .   I f  she  want  to  ta lk  to  peop le  in  Treasury  

I  wou ld  p i ck  up  the  phone and say ta lk  to  th is  young lady.   

I f  she  want  to  ta lk  to  peop le  in  i nsurance,  I  wou ld  ass i s t  

her .   That  i s  the  –  I  ac tua l l y  t r ied  to  p lay  a  mento r ing  ro le  

to  her  bu t  the  record  speaks fo r  i t se l f ,  Cha i r ,  jus t  focus on  

the  records,  fo rge t  the  goss ip .   Do not  be  l i ke  Ms Thu l i  

Madonse la  who took the  goss ip .   The documents  a re  here ,  

le t  us  s tay  w i th  the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  20 

ADV BARRIE SC :    Cha i rman,  may I  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR KOKO:    I  apo log i se ,  S i r ,  bu t  I  am very  emot iona l  

because I  have been th rough th is  hundred t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Bar ry?  

ADV BARRIE SC :    The updated vers ion  o f  the  bund le  16  
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has  no t  been sent  to  us ,  so  we do not  have these  

documents .   I  d id  no t  want  to  in te r rup t  bu t  they can even  

be sent  to  us  e lec t ron ica l l y  o r  emai led  to  use r i gh t  now,  

tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  our  bund le  s tops a t  page 792 and tha t  was  

a t  the  end o f  March,  so  we were  no t  g iven access  to  the 

updated bund le .   I t  can  jus t  be  sent  to  us  even as  we s i t  

here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  i s  cor rec t  

because I  have asked fo r  th i s  bund le  a f te r  i t  was updated 10 

to  be  sent  to  Mr  Ndou.   He is  nodd ing  h is  head.   Yes 

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He is  nodd ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because I  was  cop ied  in  the  emai l  tha t  

went  to  h im,  w i tnessed h is  s ta tement .  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  wh ich  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry .  

MR KOKO:    I  th ink  Mr  Se leka is  r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    I  remember  see ing  these document  f rom Mr  20 

Ndou.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  so?  

MR KOKO:    Yes,  I  th ink ,  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  maybe they were  no t  passed on to  

Mr  Bar r ie .   Ja .  
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MR KOKO:    I  th ink  so ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  so  maybe tha t  i s  what  

happened.  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Ndou is  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi tness 3  …[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    P ro f  Lourens,  I  have seen the  document .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  and Pro f  Lourens because they 

asked fo r  i t .  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Ndou sent  them to  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Mr  Koko,  the  Cha i r  w i l l  l ook  a t  the  

emai ls  f rom Ms Mothepu because Ms Mothepu tes t i f ies 

about  the  emai ls  tha t  she sent  to  you.   I  do  no t  th ink  they 

can be ca l led  goss ip .   The emai ls  say :  

“Thank you fo r  meet ing  w i th  me. ”  

And go on to  say th is  i s  what  i s  be ing  –  needs to  be  

d iscussed and then,  in  some o f  them,  ar ranges  tha t  we 

shou ld  have a  meet ing .  

MR KOKO:    And there  is  no  con f i rmat ion  those meet ings 20 

took p lace,  to  d iscuss those spec i f i c  top ics ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  wa i t ,  tha t  i s  no t  the  po in t .   

MR KOKO:    Wha t  i s  the  po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  I  am say ing  to  you is  th i s .   The  

Cha i rperson w i l l  look  a t  the  emai ls  wh ich  is  no t  goss ip ,  i t  
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i s  emai ls  tha t  has been sent  one,  to  you –  I  mean,  one,  to  

your  PA tha t  cop ied  you and the  o thers  are  sent  d i rec t l y  to  

you and she is  thank ing  you fo r  hav ing  met  w i th  you and 

she a l so  a r ranges to  have a  meet ing .   And she tes t i f ies  to  

the  ex ten t  o f  those emai l s ,  no th ing  more ,  no th ing  less .  

MR KOKO:    The  Cha i rman wi l l  a lso  look a t  the  t ranscr ip t  

tha t  Ms Mothepu  says I  gave her  an  Ind ian  man to  work  

w i th  on  these top ics  and th is  Ind ian  man tu rns  to  be  my 

pro fess iona l  ass is tan t  who is  a  b lack  lady.   So the  

Cha i rman must  a lso  take  in to  account  tha t  she l ied  to  you.   10 

And,  Cha i r ,  you  must  a lso  take  in to  account  tha t  I  

responded to  none o f  those emai ls .   I  cou ld  no t  respond to  

any o f  them because they a re  no t  in  my scope.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second,  what  I  wanted to  

t ry  and remember… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  whether ,  Mr  Koko,  you accepted tha t  

you rece ived those emai ls  bu t  d id  no t  respond or  whethe r  

you d isputed tha t  they were  sent  to  you.  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  I  cannot  even remember  rece iv ing  20 

those emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    I  cannot  remember  rece iv ing  those emai ls  and 

even i f  I  rece i ved them I  wou ld  no t  have ac ted  on them 

because they were  ou ts ide  my competency.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  except  tha t  i f  she  says she met  

w i th  you when you know –  when you knew you d id  no t  meet  

w i th  her  you cou ld  respond and say what  a re  you  ta lk ing  

about ,  I  never  me t  w i th  you.  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing  to  you ,  I  have  

sa id  i t  ca tegor i ca l l y  tha t  I  have never  met  Ms Mothepu to  

d iscuss the  issues tha t  a re  on  those emai l s .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    I  have never ,  I  cou ld  no t .   The best  I  cou ld  do  

is  to  re fe r  her  to  the  peop le  tha t  a re  dea l ing  w i th  those  10 

top ics .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  po in t  tha t  I  am put t ing  to  you is  

tha t  i f  you  knew tha t  you d id  no t  meet  w i th  her  and you  

rece ive  an  emai l  f rom her  say ing  tha t  she met  w i th  you and 

d iscussed those top ics  w i th  you tha t  wou ld  be  a l l  the  more  

reason why,  i f  you  d id  rece ive  such an emai l  f rom her ,  i t  

wou ld  be  necessary  to  wr i te  back and say what  a re  you  

ta lk ing  about?   I  never  met  w i th  you.  

MR KOKO:    No,  le t  me te l l  you  a  s to ry  and le t  me te l l  you  

the  fac t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    By  the  23 r d  –  a l l  those emai l s ,  w i thout  fa i l ,  a re 

a f te r  the  23  October  when I  was out  o f  tha t  o f f i c ia l  o f f i ce .    

New person was in  tha t  o f f i ce  to  dea l  w i th  whatever  comes  

in  tha t  o f f i ce .   When you a re  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  and you  
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ge t  p romoted,  the  new Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  comes in  to  

dea l  w i th  whatever  comes in to  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  except ,  o f  course ,  tha t  i f  there  

are  mat te rs  tha t  a re  ra ised tha t  happened wh i le  I  was the re  

and he or  she was to  ver i f y  whether  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the 

pos i t ion ,  tha t  person can ask  me o r  re fe r  and say I  want  to  

respond th is  bu t  i t  happened dur ing  your  t ime,  what  i s  the 

pos i t ion?  And then I  can say I  never  had a  meet ing  w i th  

tha t  person.   Tha t  par t  you unders tand? 

MR KOKO:    Cha i r ,  nobody came to  me to  say have you 10 

had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  Ms Mothepu?  I  do  no t  remember  

ge t t ing  her  emai ls .   I  have never  responded to  her  emai ls .   

The bu lk  par t  o f  my in te rac t ions w i th  her  was to  he lp  her  to  

meet  peop le  in  Eskom,  to  in t roduce her  to  peop le ,  to  d r ink  

co f fee  w i th  he r  and o ther  peop le  tha t  were  ass is t ing ,  bu t  I  

wou ld  never  dea l  w i th  insurance,  fo r  example .   That  

insu rance c la im i s  f inance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no…[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    The Group Execu t ive  Genera t ion  has no  

competency in  insu rance.   The Group Execu t ive  fo r  20 

Genera t ion  has no  competency in  Master  Vend ing .   He may 

know someth ing  to  do ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  h is  competency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  no t  tha t  even  though  

you may have moved out  o f  one pos i t ion  or  depar tment  to  

another  you s t i l l  use  the  same emai l  address and there fore  
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the  emai l s  wou ld  s t i l l  have come to  you i f  they  were  sent  to  

you?  

MR KOKO:    Oh,  Cha i r ,  I  have come to  accept  –  I  have  

come to  apprec ia te  why peop le  cont inued to  send me 

emai ls  on  the  issues tha t  I  have dea l t  w i th  in  my prev ious  

pos i t ion  as  a  Group Execut ive  Commerc ia l .   I  now have 

come to  peace w i th  tha t  because I  had s igned the  cont rac t ,  

I  had s igned the  cont rac t .   I  had s igned the  corpo ra te  p lan  

cont rac t .   So peop le  fo r  whatever  reason may have not  

been –  may have not  accepted tha t  I  am out  o f  the  ro le  tha t  10 

enab led  me to  s ign  those cont rac ts  and they probab ly  

thought  tha t  I  have an in f luence when I  was out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r  and I  d id  no t  want  to  go  in to  th is  

mat te r  bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  see what  Ms Mothepu  wr i tes  in  

the  emai l  because i t  i s  no t  about  I  am pursu ing  the  mat te r  

w i th  Mr  Koko when he has a l ready le f t  h is  o f f i ce  or  h is  

pos i t ion  as  –  wh ichever  pos i t ion  i t  was.   A  person who 

wr i tes  –  and these emai ls ,  we  read them,  you know,  

prev ious l y .   But  here  is  the  one o f  30  November  2015.   She 20 

says:  

“Good day,  Matshe la ,  I  hope th is  emai l  f inds  you  

we l l  and i t  was a  p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week.   I  

had a  chat  w i th  Er ic  Wood regard ing  add i t iona l  

f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  tha t  need to  be  inc luded as  pa r t  
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our  ba lance shee t  op t im iza t ion  and cash un lock ing . ”  

But  tha t  f i rs t  l i ne  tha t  I  had p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week 

is  what  we a re  ta lk ing  about .  

MR KOKO:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  have …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  no t  goss ip .  

MR KOKO:    I  have never  den ied  meet ing  Ms Mothepu.   

But  i f  Mr  Se leka reads tha t  I  have  met  her  to  d iscuss the  

f inanc ia l  i ssues tha t  she re fers  to  la te r  i s  wrong.   I  have 

met  Ms Mothepu.   I  have en joyed  in te rac t ing  w i th  her  bu t  

to  say you have  met  her  to  d iscuss the  i ssues tha t  she  10 

ra ised la te r ,  Mr  Se leka is  wrong.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  me,  there  i s  no th ing  wrong or  

r igh t  about  …[ in tervenes]  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Se leka …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we l l ,  yes ,  i f  the  emai ls  say  tha t  i s  

what  you met  to  d iscuss on  a  par t i cu la r  occas ion  i t  wou ld  

be  the  au thor  o f  the  emai ls .  

MR KOKO:    No but  read i t  aga in ,  Mr  Se leka,  read tha t  

emai l  aga in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me read the  o the r  one,  5 20 

December  2015.  

MR KOKO:    No,  Cha i r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  reads:  

“H i  Matshe la  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry .   Do you want  h im to  read the  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 286 of 354 
 

p rev ious one?  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you want  to  l i s ten  to  i t  

p roper ly?  

MR KOKO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Read i t ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me read i t .   I  say :  

“ I  hope th is  emai l  f inds  you we l l  and i t  was a  

p leasure  meet ing  you las t  week.   I  had a  chat  w i th  

Er ic  Wood regard ing  add i t iona l  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  10 

tha t  need to  be  inc luded as  par t  our  ba lance shee t  

op t im iza t ion  and cash un lock ing  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  

s t ream.   These inc lude the  sa le  and  lease-back on  

the  op t ic  f ib re  ne twork ,  p repa id  e lec t r i c i t y  vend ing ,  

EFC d i sposa l ,  H i tach i  c la ims,  rep lacement  o f  

bo i le rs  and Duvha insu rance c la im.   We are  

cur ren t ly  compi l i ng  a  bus iness  case fo r  these 

in i t ia t i ves  and requ i re  some in fo rmat ion  f rom you  

and your  team.   We wou ld  l i ke  to  se t  up  t ime ear l y  

th is  week w i th  yourse l f  and your  team to  source  the  20 

in fo rmat ion  in  o rder  to  comple te  the  bus iness case  

by  the  end o f  the  week. ”  

MR KOKO:    Where  in  tha t  le t te r  does i t  say  she d iscussed  

those th ings w i th  me?  Where  in  tha t  emai l  does i t  she  

d iscussed those th ings w i th  me? 



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 287 of 354 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka,  I  th ink  he  wanted to  

re fer ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  to  re fe r  to  the  fac t  tha t  she says  

she met  w i th  you.   

MR KOKO:    She met  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  he  wants  to  go  to  another  

one,  I  do  no t  know whether  tha t  i s  the  one.  

MR KOKO:    No,  no ,  no ,  bu t  Cha i r ,  there  i s  nowhere  in  tha t  

emai l  where  Ms Mothepu says she d iscussed those issues 

w i th  me.   She says she met  me las t  week,  she d i scussed  

these issues w i th  o thers .   She d id  no t  d iscuss w i th  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR KOKO:    So  le t  tha t  be  very  c lear .   She met  w i th  me,  

she d iscussed these issues w i th  o the rs ,  no t  w i th  me 

because she cou ld  no t  have d i scussed them wi th  me .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  Cha i r .   Mr  Er ic  Wood or  Dr  Er ic  

Wood,  we know is  a t  Tr i l l i an ,  he  is  Ms Mos i lo ’s  boss.   She 

has gone back a f te r  meet ing  w i th  you to  d iscuss the  

add i t iona l  f inanc ia l  in i t ia t i ves  tha t  need to  be  inc luded and  

she is  say ing  to  you we need more  i n fo rmat ion  and they  20 

wou ld  l i ke  t ime ear ly  th is  week to  se t  up  –  t ime ear ly  th is  

week w i th  yourse l f  and your  team to  source  the  in fo rmat ion  

in  o rder  to  comple te  the  bus iness cases by  the  end  o f  the  

week.  

MR KOKO:    Exce l len t  and e lsewhere  –  e lsewhere ,  even on  
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Twi t te r ,  in  her  book,  she has wr i t ten  a  book,  she  sa id  Mr  

Koko never  gave me aud ience.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Never  what?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Never  gave me? 

MR KOKO:    Aud ience on these top ics .   She sa id  Mr  Wood 

had to  phone her  when she was on her  s ickbed to  say go  

and wa i t  on  Mr  Koko ’s  door  and when Mr  Koko and  found 

me on the  door ,  Mr  Koko to ld  me who to ld  you to  come 

here ,  you are  b rave.   That  i s  her  ev idence,  tha t  i s  a  fac t .   

That  i s  he r  ve rs ion  Cha i r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  d id  Ms  Mothepu say tha t  she  

d iscussed the  top ics  tha t  Mr  Koko says were  never  

d iscussed w i th  h im?  D id  she say  in  her  ev idence  or  any  

emai l  she d i scussed those top ics  w i th  h im?  Le t  us  ge t  tha t  

c lea r .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  w i l l  reca l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR KOKO:    the  answer  i s  no .   The answer  i s  no .   Mr  

Se leka is  no t  go ing  you a  d i rec t  answer ,  the  answer  i s  no .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Cha i r ,  I  have  not  –  I  

have not  looked a t  th is  recent ly  because I  was prepared to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So  I  wou ldn ’ t  ho ld  h is  hand,  I  wou ld  

ho ld  h i s  hand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine ,  because I  am t ry ing  to  

make sure  we don ’ t  spend too  much t ime on someth ing  tha t  

m ight  no t  be  an  issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    The answer  i s  no  Cha i r,  and I  know 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  the  answer  i s  no .   In  fac t  she sa id  to  me,  he r  

own wr i t ing  tha t  Mr  Koko re fused to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  

d iscuss th is  th ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR KOKO:    And when I  fo rced myse l f  on  h im and  wa i ted  

Mr  Koko to ld  me you are  brave.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m okay.    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  I  w i l l  read th is  o ther  one Cha i r  

wh ich  is  on  the  5 t h  o f  December  2015 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  i f  i t  doesn ’ t  say  what  i s  in  i ssue  

why do you read  i t ,  because as  I  unders tand i t ,  one,  Mr  

Koko doesn ’ t  deny tha t  he  had in te rac t ions w i th  Ms 

Matshepo and tha t  they even met .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l l  he  is  say ing  the  two o f  them never  

d iscussed th is  spec i f i c ,  those par t i cu la r  i ssues ,  so  i f  

whatever  emai l  doesn ’ t  say  they d iscussed those issues,  I  

am not  sure  whether  you need to  read i t .  
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MR KOKO:   Chai r  there ’s  no  such an emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   

MR KOKO:    I  can  te l l  you  now the re  is  no  such an emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  okay,  my  jun io r  has opened up to  

someth ing ,  th is  emai l  suggests ,  can I  read i t  in to  the  

record  Cha i r,  tha t ’s  a l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  me f i rs t  what  i t  says  be fore  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  says ,  i t  a t taches a  f inanc ia l  –  what  10 

is  th is ,  a t tached p lease f ind  the  f i nanc ia l  s t ream in i t ia t i ve 

fo r  your  rev iew and comment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  addressed to  Mr  Koko?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  addressed  to  Mr  Koko Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay te l l  us  where  to  f ind  i t  and 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and she says “ I  am ava i lab le  on  

my mobi le  phone . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Where  do  you f ind  i t  f i rs t?   What  

bund le?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    SM Bund le  14 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and what  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ c ]  on  page 811.256.  

MR KOKO:    Bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    14 [c ] .  
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MR KOKO:    811?  

CHAIRPERSON:    811.256  

ADV SELEKA SC:    .256.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mas i lo  Matshepo 

to  Mr  Kokomm@eskom.co.za  Mr  Er ic  Wood is  cop ied ,  the  

sub jec t  i s  Eskom in i t ia t i ves ,  the  emai l  was 5  December  

2015,  ten  past  n ine  in  the  morn ing :  

“H i  Matshe la   

A t tached p lease f ind  the  f inanc ia l  s t ream in i t ia t i ves  

fo r  you r  rev iew and comment .   I  am ava i lab le  on  my 10 

mob i le  phone shou ld  you w ish  to  contac t  me and  

can come to  the  o f f i ce  shou ld  you w ish  to  d iscuss. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  o f  course  i t  doesn ’ t  say  there  

d iscussed,  bu t  i t  c lea r ly  i s  an  ema i l  tha t  f rom her  s ide  she 

contempla tes  cou ld  be  a  sub jec t  o f  a  d iscuss ion  i f  Mr  Koko  

w ished tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    Pause  there  Cha i r,  jus t  pause 

there  Mr  Koko,  the  t ransc r ip t  wh ich  my jun io r  has jus t  

opened,  he r  ev idence on the  14 t h  o f  January  2021 on page  20 

185 you –  the  Cha i rperson is  ask ing  she is  ta lk ing  about  

these emai ls  and  the  next  page,  on  the  next  page and the  

Cha i rperson when you say on  the  next  page you  mean  

588.150,  she says yes.    So the  prev ious emai l  I  sen t  a t  

n ine  m inutes  pas t  e igh t  I  had t ime to  go  to  meet  w i th  Mr  
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Matshe la  Koko.   He had made up the  i t inerary  v iews  and so  

I  sent  h im the  updated proposa l  a t  the  same day,  the  7 t h  o f  

December  th is  t ime a  12 :33,  so  i t  reads,  and then she 

reads,  7  December.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  emai l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That ’s  another  yes,  i t  w i l l  be  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  must  be  d i f feren t  because th is  one is  

f i ve  to  seven.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  do  we know whether  tha t  one o f  

the  5 t h  ta lks  about  d iscuss ing ,  tha t  they d i scussed those 

top ics?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one o f  the  5 t h?  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  7 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Of the  7 t h ,  okay,  Cha i r  le t  me read 

what  she says.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   She says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    We read the  emai l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    She says yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  they  m ight  no t  have tha t  in ten t ,  

th is  i s  where  –  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because we were  tak ing  i t  w i th  

chrono logy o f  the  emai l .     
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She says yes  so  the  p rev ious emai l  I  

sent  a t  n ine  m inu tes  past ,  so  le t ’s  check,  we can check the 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  no t  the  one o f  the  5 t h  o f  

December  because tha t ’s  ten  past  n ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t ’s  ten  past  n ine .   And then she says I  

had t ime to  go  to  meet  w i th  Mr  Matshe la  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He had made updates  and rev iews.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    He had made?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He had made updates  and rev iews.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And so  I  sent  h im the  updated proposa l  

a t  the  same day,  the   7 t h  o f  December,  th is  t ime a t  12 :33 ,  

so  i t  seems to  me  there  are  two emai ls  on  the  same day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  the  one I  was ask ing  about  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR KOKO:    And is  i t  no t  conven ien t  tha t  they update  i t  

la te r,  no t  be fo re  you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They are  here  to ,  they a t tach  even in  

the  emai l  o f  the  5 t h  Abb ie ,  yes  there  are  annexures 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    I s  i t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I  don ’ t  know who . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    Maybe i t  shou ld  show . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t ’s  –  bu t  Mr  Koko we ta lk  

about  ones tha t  he  is  a l leged to  have made.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  have you got  the  7 t h  December  

one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me go there  Cha i r.   But  then Cha i r  

in  tha t  ev idence or  o ra l  tes t imony  there  i s  Mr  Koko  who is  

say ing  I  am not  g iv ing  you a  d i rec t  answer,  you ask  10 

whethe r  d id  they  meet  to  d iscuss th is ,  there ’s  the  answer.  

MR KOKO:    No Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He sa id  no ,  Ms Matshepo –  I  don ’ t  

have to  speak fo r  he r,  because I  cou ldn ’ t  remember  what  

she sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  look  a t  the  –  in  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .emai l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .page 811.278.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    278?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    278.   And i t  i s  e igh t  m inutes  past  n ine  

tha t  emai l .   Aga in  to  Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Monday 7  December  2015 a t  809,  she 
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sa id  emai l i ng  f rom Matshepo@reg iments ,  

kokomm@eskom.co.za  updates  proposa l ,  Eskom cash  

un lock ing  and ba lance sheet  op t im isa t ion  in i t ia t i ve  7  

December.  

“Good morn ing  Matshe la   

A t tached p lease f ind  the  update  proposa l  fo r  you r  

cons idera t ion .   

K ind  regards, ”  

And then the  document  fo l lows Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  o f  course  is  an  update  f rom 10 

Tr i l l i an .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  Reg iments .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or Reg iments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whatever.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And not  one made by  Mr  Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No Cha i r,  we l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  you w i l l  no t  f ind  tha t  any update  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on don ’ t  speak a t  the  same t ime.    

Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  yes ,  th is  i s  f rom one s ide  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  f rom Ms Matshepo ’s  s ide?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr  Koko?  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  in  my language,  I  don ’ t  i f  Mr  Se leka  

speaks the  same language,  bu t  in  my language we ta lk  

about  [ speak ing  i n  ve rnacu lar ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR KOKO:   Which don ’ t  s t ink ,  I  am te l l ing  you aga in  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  does i t  mean?  

MR KOKO:   I  am go ing  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  t rans la te  i t .  10 

MR KOKO:   I  am go ing  to  have to  d i f f i cu l t y  i f  I  t rans la te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay [ laugh ing ]  bu t  the  ac tua l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   What  I  am say ing  to  you is  Cha i r,  and I  am 

say ing  i t  aga in ,  there  is  no  emai l  where  Ms Matshepo says  

i t  i s  d iscussed w i th  me,  there  w i l l  be  no  emai l  where  I  have  

made updates  on  any document  tha t  Ms Matshepo has put  

to  you.    Le t  me read to  you what  Ms Matshepo says.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No before  tha t ,  here  is  an  emai l  tha t  

maybe . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  what  Mr  Se leka seems to  be  look ing  20 

fo r,  same bund le ,  page 811.303,  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Ms 

Matshepo to  you  Mr  Koko,  sub jec t  i s  updated proposa l  an 

there  a re  a t tachments  and she says:  

“Dear  Matshe la ,  

A t tached p lease f ind  the  updated f inanc ia l  p roposa l  
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document  fo r  th is  a f te rnoon ’s  meet ing  a t  14h00. ”  

Now I  don ’ t  know whether  tha t ’s  a  meet ing  be tween the  two  

o f  you she i s  ta lk ing  about  o r  another  meet ing?  

MR KOKO:   Exce l len t ,  when you probed tha t  d id  th is  

meet ing  happen  she sa id  no .   She d idn ’ t  say  she met  me a t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  she d idn ’ t  say  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  th ink  to  say the  least  what  some o f  

the  emai ls  suggest  i s  tha t  she wanted to  d iscuss 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   She d id ,  she i s  no t  doubt  she d id ,  le t  me g ive  10 

you,  le t  me read you what  she sa id .    Le t  me read you what  

Ms Matshepo says.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  read ing  f rom what?  

MR KOKO:   I  am read ing  f rom her  book.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]  

MR KOKO:   No but  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  Cha i r  because i t  

te l l s  you her  m indset .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay jus t  read . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   No,  no ,  no  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  read i t .  20 

MR KOKO:  

“One December  morn ing  I  woke  up w i th  ch ron ic  

s inus in fec t ions,  so  bad tha t  I  was cough ing  my  

b lood,  by  GP booked me o f f  on  s ick  leave and I  sen t  

Er ic  Wood a  message exp la in ing  how i l l  I  was and  
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tha t  I  wou ld  no t  be  coming to  the  o f f i ce .    He was  

hav ing  none o f   i t ,  he  to ld  me to  dr ive  to  Megawat t  

Park  and wa i t  in  the  execut ive  recept ion  area to  

ensure  Matshe la  Koko reads our  MSA proposa l .   I  

have prev ious ly  sent  . . .  [ l i s ten  to  th is ]  . . .  I  have  

prev ious l y  sent  the  document  to  Matshe la  and  

unsuccessfu l l y  t r ied  to  ge t  an  appo in tment  w i th  h im,  

so  I  d ragged myse l f  ou t  o f  bed,  showered and drove  

to  Eskom where  I  wa i ted  Matshe la ’s  a r r i va l .   I  

g ree ted h im and  he to ld  me why are  you there ,  10 

young lady you are  brave. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR KOKO:   Now she sent ,  whatever  she sent ,  she wr i tes  

whatever  she wr i tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  you say  there  was no d iscuss ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  .  

MR KOKO:   There  was no d iscuss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  top ics .  

MR KOKO:   . . .o f  the  top ics .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MR KOKO:  And you w i l l  no t  f ind  an  emai l  tha t  says as  we 

d iscussed o r  as  we . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  we have f in ished two 

hours ,  le t ’s  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad journment  and then  

depend ing  on what  you have Mr  Se leka maybe we shou ld  
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make prog ress and move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    When we come back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  sha l l  I  do  when we come back?  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  d id  you want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  wanted to  answer  your  quest ion  as  to  

whethe r  the  meet ing  d id  take  p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Th is  one,  because he r  ev idence is  here  

Cha i r,  what  Mr  Koko is  read ing  is  about  1  December,  we 

are  now on the  7 t h  o f  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then I  ask  h im now the  emai l  –  the  

emai l  –  the  emai l  Ms Matshepo  on –  I  gave the  page  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  wha t  t ranscr ip t  th is  is  on ,  so  

i t  can  be checked .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  –  the  da te  i s  aga in  the  14 t h  o f  20 

January  2021,  the  page is  187.  

CHAIRPERSON:    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  am read ing  f rom the  top  o f  the  

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:  

“Now the  emai l  Ms Matshepo on page [and I  use  the  

number ]  da ted  7  December  2015 a t  12 :33 . ”  

I  th ink  i t  i s  th is  one:  

“ . . .a t  12 :33  to  Mr  Koko i t  a l luded to  a  meet ing  in  the  

a f te rnoon a t  14h00.   D id  tha t  meet ing  take  p lace?”  

And Ms Matshepo  answers :  

“Yes tha t  meet ing  takes p lace,  tha t  i s  how i t  i s  t ied 

down. ”  

I f  you  go to  page 588.75,  then she says you mus t  go  to  10 

tha t  page.   I t  says :  

“Remember  I  sa id  H i  Matshe la ,  and Edwin  as  per  

your  request  as  in .   I  say  yes  and dur ing  tha t  

meet ing  a t  two o ’c lock  we sa t  w i th  your  techn ica l  

team and p rov ided –  and they prov ided the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in fo rmat ion  i f  you  see tha t  a f te r  tha t  

two o ’ c lock  meet ing  we met  w i th  the  team hence we 

worked,  we worked th rough the  n igh t  and up unt i l  

a lmost  e igh t  th i r t y  in  the  even ing  in  the  –  then I  

don ’ t  know wha t  they typed there  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  when . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   Does she say she met  w i th  me a t  two or  she 

met  w i th  my team a t  two?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You remember  when I  read tha t  emai l  I  
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sa id  when she ta lked about  the  meet ing  a t  two I  sa id  I  

don ’ t  know whether  she meant  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Koko or  

w i th  somebody e l se .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i s  i t  t rue  tha t  f rom her  ev idence i t  

appears  tha t  she met  w i th  the  techn ica l  team? 

MR KOKO:    She met  w i th  the  techn ica l  team,  she d idn ’ t  

meet  w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  cor rec t  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes she says we met  w i th  the  techn ica l  10 

team,  le t  me see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  take  the  ad journment  and 

then I  th ink  when we come back le t ’s  t ry  and make some 

progress.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  I  w i l l  go  back to  my p lan  Cha i r,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   We wi l l  ad journ  fo r  ten 

m inutes .    

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  20 

INQUIRY AJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r,  so  we can leave as ide  

tha t  be fore  I  ra ise  the  emai l s  o f  Ms Matshepo.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Which  ones are  we put t ing  as ide?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one w i th  the  emai ls  o f  Ms  

Matshepo,  I  th ink  i t  i s  14 [c ]  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR KOKO:    14 [c ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   [ c ]  ja .   Mr  Koko I  jus t  want  to  go  back 

to  the  presenta t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we jus t  need  to  do  the  best  we can to 

make progress,  tomorrow we must  f in ish ,  no t  tomorrow 

Monday  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Monday yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    On Monday,  Mr  Koko is  s t i l l  l ook ing  fo r  

the  r igh t  f i l e ,  in  fac t  bund le  16?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    16 [b ]  yes .   Jus t  one i tem . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

Mr  Koko . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    16?  

CHAIRPERSON:    16 [b ] .   What  about  th is  one tha t  you 

have got  th is  s ide  o f  you r  desk,  is  i t  no t  tha t  one?  Wi l l  

somebody he lp  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   Regis t ra r  I  do  need he lp .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t ’s  go  to  page 11.17  So Mr  Koko 

a t  the  bo t tom o f  11 .17  the  next  b lock  wh ich  i s  approva l  –  I L 

to  approva l  o f  f i xed  grants  cont rac ts  Kemden,  the  

execut ive  sponsor  there  is  ind ica ted  as  yourse l f ,  m in im ise  

R/L cost  o f  f i xed  pr iced cont rac ts  f o r  uncont rac ted  vo lumes  
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a t  Kemden and your  name appears  in  the  next  one  so  I  am 

go ing  to  go  th rough them then you  can exp la in  them to  the 

Cha i rperson.   F ixed pr ice  cont rac ts  Grootv le i ,  you a lso  

appear  there  a  execut ive  sponsor,  f i xed  pr i ce  cont rac ts  

Arnot ,  you a lso  are  the  execut ive  sponsor,  next  page 

Dutuka Kemden . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease remind  Mr  Se leka what  i s  the  

po in t  about  a l l  o f  these?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  fo r  Mr  Koko to  exp la in  Cha i r,  he  is  

there  as  the  execut ive  sponsor  in  what  on  the  face  o f  i t  10 

seems to  be  issues re la t ing  to  the  pr i ce  o f  the  cont rac t ,  

wh ich  wou ld  suggest  the  f inanc ia l  par t  o f  the  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i f  he  was invo lved in  i t  

and then what?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  he  –  we l l  Mr  Koko has sa id  to  the  

Cha i rperson my invo lvement  was jus t  genera t ion  and I  was 

dea l ing  w i th  genera t ion ,  the  f inances were  no t  my pa r t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And o f  course  he was not  in  the  f inance 

depar tment .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Of  course  he was not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  need the  f inance depar tment  

fo r  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You need peop le  in  tha t  depar tment .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ld  you accept  i f  he  says I  

wasn ’ t  invo lved in  f inance?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  le t  me add the  las t  one Cha i r  then 

we can f in ish ,  page 11.23,  tha t  b lock  a t  the  top ,  number  5 ,  

f inance,  must  have vend ing  agent  as  Eskom lead i s  

Matshe la  Koko and a t  the  end you have conc lus ion  o f  the  

Duvah insu rance  c la im and Eskom lead aga in  i s  yourse l f  

Mr  Koko.   And in  par t i cu la r  the re ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  i s  the  po in t  about  them? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC  Yes there  is  Duvah insu rance,  Mr  Koko  

sa id  he  is  no t  par t  o f  the  Maste r  Serv i ces  Agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Remember  Ms Mas iva  sa id  i t  was  

added,  i t  wasn ’ t  in  the  or ig ina l ,  i t  was added by  Messrs  

S ingh and Mr  Koko as  some o f  the  new in i t ia t i ves  and Mr  

Koko sa id  i t  was not  bu t  here  we see i t  in  the  p resenta t ion ,  

one,  and number  two i t  fa l l s  under  f inance and Mr  Koko 

fea tures  there ,  maybe you can exp la in  tha t  to  the  

Cha i rperson and we move a long.   20 

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  Mr  Se leka has been ta lk ing  about  

Kemden and o the r  par ts ,  they are  a l l  genera t ion ,  Rand per  

ton  genera t ion ,  Rand per  ton  is  t he  b iggest  cont r ibu tor  o f  

genera t ion  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  cos t ,  i t  i s  in  the  au thor i t y  o f  Group  

Genera t ion ,  Group Execut ive  Genera t ion ,  and i t  was c lea r  
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cu t ,  b lack  and wh i te  so  there  is  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No issue there .  

MR KOKO:   There  is  on  issue there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you were  negot ia t ion  the  po in t  o f  

p r ice  there?  

MR KOKO:  Where?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  those Kemden?  

MR KOKO:    No,  so  the  –  be fo re  you got  in to  i t ,  i t  ta lks  

about  Rand pe r  ton ,  now Rand pe r  ton  is  a  cont r ibu tor  to  

k i lowat t ,  cents  pe r  k i lowat t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  genera ted  so   you  10 

s ta r t  a t  the  top ,  i t  says  reduce your  p roduct ion  cos ts ,  what  

i s  the  b iggest  s ing le  i tem you need to  reduce to  meet  your  

p roduct ion  costs  i t  i s  your  coa l  cos t ,  and how do you tha t  

Cha i r?   I t  i s  wha t  we ca l l ,  and I  dea l  w i th  th is  e legant ly,  

n ice l y  in  my main  a f f idav i t .    We ta lk  about  spatch ing  on  

marr i ed  o rder,  so  the  most  –  the  cheapest  genera t ion  un i ts  

must  be  ava i lab le  so  tha t  you d i spatch  them f i r s t  be fore  

you d ispatch  the  most  expens ive  genera t ion ,  and your  rand 

per  ton  he lps ,  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  n ice l y  in  my main  a f f idav i t  

and I  even g ive  you a  cab le  o f  how we reduce  a  rand per  20 

ton  o f  coa l  bu t  increas ing  the  EAF and d ispatch ing  the  

un i ts  on  mer i t  o rde r.   . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  i t  i s  jus t  we want  

l iqu id i t y  Cha i r  there ,  i t  i s  c lear  cu t .   The ambigu i ty  i s  on 

page 11.23,  you see i t  in  a  f inance l igh t  my name shou ld  

no t  a r ise  there  because th is  i s  the  CFO’s  s l ide  and I  don ’ t  
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remember  how the  d iscuss ion  he re  un fo lded or  t ransp i red ,  

i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  see  what  the  m inu tes  says 

because a l l  what  you see in  th i s  box i t  i s  in  the  CFO box 

and on ly  the  CFO has the  competency to  dea l  w i th  i t ,  

nobody e l se .     

CHAIRPERSON:    There  wou ld  be  no need fo r  anothe r  

g roup execut ive?  

MR POPO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POPO:  No the  peop le  tha t  w i l l  be  here  w i l l  be  the  10 

subord ina tes  o f  the  CFO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  CFO? 

MR POPO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you are  no t  one o f  them? 

MR POPO:  And I  am not  one o f  them,  so  I  don ’ t  even 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    They a re  f inance peop le ,  you are  no t  a  

f inance pe rson.  

MR POPO:   They  are ,  they a re  f inance peop le  and le t  me 

te l l  you  those who normal ly  a t  Eskom your  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  20 

f inance is  a t  your  b iggest  r i sk  and I  a lways get  the  r igh t  

peop le  to  suppor t  me,  no  Cha i r  I  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  

tha t ,  I  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes o f  course  tha t  i s  one aspect  o f  i t  
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Mr  Koko tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka I  come back to  my  po in t ,  

re fe rence to  these pages is  meant  to  p rove what  po in t ,  o r  

i s  re levant  to  wha t  po in t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson the  b igger  p ic tu re  i s  th is ,  

the  s takeho lde r  Th is  s takeho lder  wh ich  is  a l loca t ing  

respons ib i l i t i es  to  each o ther  on  the  9 t h  o f  February  2016 

has gone ahead  to  do  th is  meet ing  in  respect  o f  th is  

cont rac t  when they know tha t  there  is  no  Nat iona l  Treasury  

approva l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Matshepo in  add i t ion  to  tha t  says 

Duvah insu rance  was added,  and there  is  the  Duvah 

insu rance c la im wh ich  Mr  Koko ea r l ie r  sa id  i t  wasn ’ t  par t  o f  

the  Master  Serv ice  Agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  we see i t  in  the  presenta t ion  wh ich  

Mr  Ano j  S ingh  has prov ided  to  the  Commiss ion  as  

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And how then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why d idn ’ t  you go s t ra igh t  to  the  one 

a t  11 .23  wh ich  has go t  as  I  unders tand i t  the  –  tha t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  because we have been go ing  th rough  a lmost  

page by  page and i f  the  issue is  tha t  th is  Duvah issue tha t  
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i s  a t  11 .23 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes Cha i r  i t  shows two th ings tha t  

page,  we l l  there ’s  a  mul t i - face ted issues about  th is ,  

because I  was pursu ing  –  I  was  pursu ing  one par t i cu la r  

i ssue in  regard  to  Mr  Koko ’s  invo lvement ,  even in  th is  a rea  

o f  f inance wh ich  accord ing  to  the  presenta t ion  he  was  

there ,  he  has g iven you h is  vers ion  and then what  Ms  

Mas i lo  sa id  was one o f  the  aspects  o r  in i t ia t i ves  added,  bu t  

we have come to  the  end o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you see to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you were  10 

say ing  th is  commi t tee  made ce r ta in  dec i s ions or  was 

d iscuss ions cer ta in  i ssues knowing tha t  there  had been no  

approva l  f rom Na t iona l  Treasury  tha t  I  unders tand,  bu t  tha t  

shou ldn ’ t  take  l ong because the  –  Mr  Koko doesn ’ t  d ispute  

tha t  there  was no  approva l  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  but  the  one about  the  Duvah what  i s  

the  po in t  about  i t ,  o ther  than accord ing  to  Ms Matshepo i t  

was added,  was  i t  –  was . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  why shou ld  we  

spend so  much t ime t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  whether  Mr  Koko 20 

was invo lved in  any d i scuss ions concern ing  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  read the  paragraph in  

Matshepo,  where  she sa id  what  she says,  Mr  Koko den ies  

tha t ,  I  heard  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  you don ’ t  to  fo l low spend too  
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much t ime on every th ing  Mr  Koko  den ies  because some o f  

i t  m igh t  no t  be  impor tan t ,  so  tha t  i s  why I  am ask ing  what  

i s  the  s ign i f i cance o f  th is  Duvah e lement  and whe ther  Mr  

Koko d iscussed i t ,  was invo lved in  any d iscuss ions on  i t ,  

where  does i t  take  us?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  Cha i r  I  have to  tes t  the  

cor rec tness or  o therw ise  o f  a  w i tness e i ther  vers ion  or  a  

den ia l  o f  a  par t i cu la r  aspect .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  unders tand tha t ,  a l l  I  am s imply  

say ing  is  i f  i t  i s  no th ing  impor tan t  we shou ldn ’ t  spend too  10 

much t ime on i t ,  le t ’s  spend t ime on what  you know is  

impor tan t ,  so  tha t  i s  why I  am ask ing ,  I  was ask ing  why –  

what  i s  the  s ign i f i cance o f  whether  o r  no t  Mr  Koko was 

invo lved in  d iscuss ions o f  the  Duvah issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  haven ’ t  answered the  Cha i rperson ’s  

quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  haven ’ t  heard  why i t  i s  

s ign i f i can t  o ther  than put t ing  one w i tness ve rs ion  to  

anothe r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  w i th  Mr  Koko Cha i r  i t  i s  one  fo l lows 20 

the  broader  p i c tu re  tha t  Mr  Koko goes in to  cer ta in  de ta i l s  

and un less  one goes in to  these deta i l s  you are  go ing  to  

leave them hang ing .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  we can leave them hang ing  i f  

they  are  no t  impor tan t ,  what  wou ld  no t  be  r igh t  i s  to  leave  
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hang ing  those tha t  a re  impor tan t .   Those tha t  a re  no t  

impor tan t  we can  leave them hang ing  o the rwise  when we 

have four  hours  we can spend th ree  hours  on  those tha t  

a re  no t  impor tan t  ins tead o f  spend ing  th ree  hours  on  the  

impor tan t  ones.   So I  am jus t  check ing  because I  am not  

sure  tha t  I  apprec ia te  why you a re  spend ing  so  much t ime 

on i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No Cha i r  I  am done on i t ,  i t  i s  the  

b igger  p ic tu re ,  bu t  I  am done w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The b igger  p ic tu re  i s  the  process 

engaged in  the  negot ia t ion  o f  the  MSA,  the  team tha t  was 

invo lved and how each one o f  them p lays  a  ro le  in  the  

negot ia t ion  o f  the  MSA,  tha t  was the  b igger  p ic tu re .    Now 

we have a t tempted to  go  i n to  the  de ta i l s ,  o f  course  as  you  

say we l l  you don ’ t  need to  address  every th ing  tha t  Mr  Koko  

says bu t  I  have  tended to  go  there  to  show whethe r  

someth ing  is  co r rec t  o r  no t  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No le t  us  ident i f y  those impor tan t  i ssues 

and then le t ’s  spend t ime on those.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because we don ’ t  have t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  cor rec t  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  I  w i l l  p rov ide  you w i th  the  chapter  and  

verse  o f  the  board  meet ings on  the  Master  Agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR KOKO:   I  d id  te l l  you  as  one o f  the  d iscuss ions I  had 

w i th  the  Cha i rman and I  d id  te l l  you  tha t  they wanted to  

appo in t  B lue  Labe ls  as  a  Master  Vendor  by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  I  

have s ince  acqu i red  the  m inutes  o f  the  board  meet ings and 

I  w i l l  p rov ide  them to  you and you  w i l l  see  where  the  t ru th  

l ies .   I t  i s  fa r  away f rom where  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  so  by  God ’s  10 

grace thanks to  my name be ing  Moses I  have found  them,  

so  I  w i l l  p resent  them to  you,  I  am go ing  to  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR KOKO:  Second ly  the  –  by  the  t ime o f  th is  meet ing  we 

were  a l l  under  the  impress ion  tha t  there  was Nat iona l  

Treasury ’s  approva l  a t  th is  s tage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  th is  wou ld  have been 2015? 

MR KOKO:   Th is  i s  2015 . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No tha t  i s  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    2016.  20 

MR KOKO:    2016,  the  9 t h  o f  February,  a t  th is  s tage 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  was before  the  wr i t ing  was  on the 

wa l l?  

MR KOKO:   I t  was before  the  wr i t ing  was on the  wa l l .  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 312 of 354 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Th is  was before  the  wr i t ing  was on the  wa l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r i gh t .   So –  yes le t ’s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:  So remember  the  le t te r  o r  the  emai l  f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury  i s  da ted  the  4 t h  o f  February,  4 t h  o f  

February  2016,  t ha t  i s  the  emai l  tha t  I  sa id  you look a t  i t  

and you w i l l  make your  own judgment  on  i t ,  th is  meet ing  

was on the  9 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  okay.  10 

MR KOKO:   So  I  am go ing  to  say to  you tha t  on  th is  

meet ing  probab ly  the  team made a  re ference to  tha t  emai l  

communica t ion  tha t  we have approva l  f rom Treasury.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  f ine .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see i t  i s  someth ing  l i ke  th is  Cha i r,  I  

have the  ev idence to  show tha t  he  s igned Eskom pos i ton  

paper  in   August  2015 a l ready.  

MR KOKO:    Bu t  how d i f fe ren t  i s  tha t?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang  on,  now Mr  Se leka jus t  

go  accord ing  to  your  p lan .   I f  you  were  go ing  to  reach tha t  

i ssue somet ime la te r  you w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  when you reach  

i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We a l ready  addressed i t  Cha i r,  i t  i s  
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go ing  back to  i t .  

MR KOKO:    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay [ laugh ing ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We d id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   Because then we have got  to  address i t  aga in  

because i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  a l r i gh t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:   Then i f  we have done i t  then we must  do  i t  

aga in ,  because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay th is  i s  what  we must  do ,  le t ’s  10 

cont inue now,  tomorrow when –  no t  tomorrow –  Monday 

before  we s tar t  the  two o f  you w i l l  have re f l ec ted  on 

exact ly  tha t  and then i f  there  i s  someth ing  to  be  c leared i t  

can  be c leared  when we s tar t  on  Monday,  okay,  le t ’s  

cont inue.       

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  te rms o f  the  way fo rward  what  you  

s t i l l  need to  dea l  w i th  Mr  Se leka  jus t  te l l  me what  those 

mat te rs  a re  and then so  tha t  maybe you can te l l  me what  

exact ly  i s  impor tan t  to  be  covered.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   We can t raverse  two aspects ,  as  I  was  

say ing  to  Mr  Koko dur ing  the  break,  h is  t rave l  to  Duba i  and  

w i tness to  h i s  ev idence in  regard  to  what  he  says he  saw 

Mr  Koko a t  Saxonwold .   What  then remains  Cha i r  i s  the  

issue o f  Tegeta  wh ich  we can dea l  w i th  on  Monday.   
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MR KOKO:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  cont inue then.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   So le t ’s  dea l  w i th  

the  t rave l  agent  Mr  Koko,  wh ich  i s  in  Bund le  18 [d ] .   Cha i r  

so  we move,  we  take away Eskom Bund le  14 .   [d ]  page  

1565.7 .     

MR KOKO:    15?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   65 .7   

MR KOKO:    I  am there  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  the  Cha i rperson there?  Thank you 10 

Cha i r.    I  w i l l  s imp ly  read f rom the  a f f idav i t .    Trave l  

a r rangements  fo r  Matshe la  Koko,  paragraph 23:  

“Dur ing  December  2015 I  rece ived . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i sn ’ t  the  pos i t ion  tha t  Mr  Koko has  

addressed these in  an  a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have not  addressed th is?  

MR KOKO:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  no  tha t ’s  f ine ,  i f  he  hasn ’ t  then  

you can read,  okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  i f  he  had addressed on i t  then  

you cou ld  jus t  ask  the  re levant  quest ions w i thout  read ing  

but  i f  he  hasn ’ t  you can read.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  
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“Dur ing  December  2015 I  rece ived a  request  f rom 

Mr  Essa to  a r range f l igh t  t i cke ts  fo r  a  Mr  Matshe la  

Moses Koko. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    On a  l igh ter  no te ,  I  was wonder ing  why 

Mr  Koko  you d idn ’ t  respond to  th is  on  an  a f f idav i t  because 

you do read a  lo t  and  you wr i te  a  lo t .   

MR KOKO:    Cha i r  you remember  th is  came in ,  in  our  las t ,  

when we were  here  and I  jus t  d idn ’ t  have the  t ime to  do  

tha t ,  bu t  le t  me te l l  you  I  have a  lo t  to  say about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

MR KOKO:   I  have a  lo t  to  say about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR KOKO:   And Cha i r  I  th ink  we d id  Mr  Bar r ie?   

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  what?  

MR KOKO:   In  our  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  we dea l t  –  we 

d idn ’ t  dea l  w i th  the ,  yes  i t  i s  r igh t  bu t  we d idn ’ t  dea l  w i th  

th is  th rough my,  bu t  i t  came a f te rwards,  bu t  we dea l t  w i th  

the  Duba i  t r ip  in  our  supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine .  

MR KOKO:    Mr  Cha i r  I  can assure  you we dea l  w i th  th is  in  20 

an  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .    Mr  Se leka  

cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

“ I  rece ived a  request  f rom Mr  Essa to  a r range f l igh t  
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t i cke ts  fo r  Mr  Matshe la  Moses Koko and two o f  h is  

fami ly  members ,  these be ing  a  Miss  Mes ima 

E l izabeth  Koko and a  Mr  Peha Koko.   Th i s  was fo r  

the i r  t rave l  f rom Denpasar,  Ba l i  to  Duba i  on  4  

January  2016 and  f rom Duba i  th rough Johannesburg  

on  20 January  2016.   The  t i cke ts  were  du ly  i ssued 

as  fo l lows. ”  

And the  tab le  i s  g iven o f  the  t i cke ts  tha t  were  issued.   

Paragraph 26 on the  next  page:  

“These t rave l  agents  d id  no t  book any f l igh ts  fo r  Mr  10 

Koko and h is  fami ly  members  f rom South  A f r i ca  to  

Denpasar,  Ba l i ,  Indones ia   We were  a lso  requested  

to  a r range fo r  t rave l  v isas  fo r  Duba i  fo r  Mr  Koko  

and h is  o ther  two fami ly  members .   These v i sas  

were  ar ranged th rough Tr imax . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  LLC 

wh ich  is  s i tua ted  in  Duba i .   I  emai led  the  th ree  

v isas  to  Mr  Essa on h is  sa l imessa@gmai l . com. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Mr  Se leka,  d idn ’ t  we dea l  w i th  th is ,  

why do I  th ink ,  have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  Mr  Koko dea l ing  w i th  

the  t r ips  wh ich  were  booked in  December  and he came 20 

back in  January.  

MR KOKO:    We d id  Cha i r  bu t  we d id  no t  have th is  a f f idav i t  

i s  a  consequence  o f  the  prev ious d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR KOKO:   Th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  jus t  don ’ t  want  us  to  repeat  what  

we have done.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes no  th i s  a f f idav i t  has no t  been dea l t  

w i th  in  re la t ion  to  Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR KOKO:   We had Ms A lana ’s  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  a f f idav i t  we  

dea l t  w i th  .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  Okay.  

MR KOKO:   And  I  to ld  you tha t  Ms A lana ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  

de fec t ive  and I  used –  I  was ve ry  po l i te ,  bu t  I  jus t  to ld  i t  i s  10 

a  l ie  under  oa th  and I  asked you to  –  tha t  she cannot  ge t  

away w i th  tha t  manner,  to  remedy i t  the  lega l  team went  to  

p rocu re  th is  one,  so  th is  supposed to  be  a  remedy o f  Ms 

A lana ’s  a f f idav i t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r  le t  me jus t  summar i se  th is  

because the  t r ip  tha t  was meant  to  be  a  re turn  t r ip  on  the  

20 t h  the  t i cke t  was changed,  o r  the  book ing  was changed 

and he re tu rned on the  5 t h  o f  January  2016.  

MR KOKO:    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So you know the  a l legat ions tha t  

Mr  Essa is  the  one who ar ranged th is .  

MR KOKO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  the  invo ice  issued in  Mr  

S ingh ’s  name i t  was a  m is take,  tha t  i t  had Mr  S ingh ’s  
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name,  i t  shou ld  have been –  we l l  I  don ’ t  know whether  i t  

shou ld  have been your  name or  Mr  Essa but  the  expense  

fo r  the  t r ip  were  a l loca ted  aga in  to  Mr  Essa as  they say 

and then paragraph 32 Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  most  impor tan t  

th ing .  D id  th is  t r ip  take  p lace?  

MR KOKO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  da tes  tha t  a re  app l i cab le?  

MR KOKO:  Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You le f t  South  A f r i ca  on  the  da te  g iven  10 

and you came back to  South  A f r i ca  on  the  da te  g i ven?  

MR KOKO:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you went  to  the  p laces tha t  she says  

you went  to?  

MR KOKO:   Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  then you can ta lk  about  the  

o ther  th ings,  who  pa id  and so  on ,  and who made book ings,  

a t  leas t  those impor tan t  th ings a re  covered,  the  t r ip  d id  

happen and on the  da tes  g iven and  to  the  p laces tha t  a re  

g iven.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  and the  payments  i s  i n  pa rag raph  

32 on page 1565.9 ,  she says on  January  2016 I  rece ived a  

ca l l  f rom e i ther  Mr  Essa or  h is  sec re tary  ind ica t ing  tha t  the  

dr iver  wou ld  be  d ropp ing  o f f  the  money to  se t t le  the  invo i ce  

in  respect  o f  Mr  Koko ’s  t rave l  a r rangements .   The dr i ver  
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d ropped R100 000 cash a t  my house,  wh ich  I  tu rn 

depos i ted  a t  the  bank in to  ou r  bank account  and ind ica te  

the  re fe rence as  S .Essa,  the  re ference o f  EFT on the  

rece ip t  was an er ror.    So I  th ink  on  the  rece ip t  Mr  

. . . [ in te rvenes]    

MR KOKO:    Can we go to  the  rece ip t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Koko  you wou ld  have seen 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO:    Can we go to  the  rece ip t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I s  i t  S34?  So they had t i cked o f f  10 

EFT,  there  are  th ree  opt ions,  cash,  ca rds ,  EFT,  pa id  by  

cash,  ca rds ,  EFT,  they t i cked o f f  EFT and the  way I  

unders tand her  she say tha t  was a  m is take.    But  I  th ink 

you need to  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson Mr  Koko . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t ’s  –  and she  says i t  was Mr  Essa o r  

h is  secre tary  who asked he r  to  make the  book ings ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Koko jus t  te l l  your  s ide  o f  the 

s to ry  w i th  regards to  your  knowledge who made the  20 

book ings fo r  you r  t rave l l ing  and who pa id  and so  on .   Who 

was supposed to  have someth ing  to  do  w i th  i t  and who was 

not  supposed to  have someth ing  to do wi th i t .  

MR KOKO:   Chai r  thank you.  I  gave you my covering 

arrangements when I  was here.   F irst  I  to ld  you that  the 
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aff idavi t  of  Ms Alana Lima was a l ie – was a l ie  in al l  aspects 

and i t  was an aff idavi t  that  was given to  the Hawks in 2018 

and now I  understand why nothing has come out  of  i t  

because l ies can only take you this far.  

 So Ms Alana had al leged that  they booked a t r ip  for  

me f rom Johannesburg to  Indonesia to Dubai  and back to 

Johannesburg for  the per iod of  the 5t h to the 20t h and Mr 

Essa paid for i t .   That  was – that  is  a l ie.  

 Hundred percent  of  i t  is a l ie.   So now they have 

come back and they have taken the Alana Lima’s l ie and they 10 

have parked i t .   So i t  is no long appl icable and I  am glad 

they have done that  they made good progress.   We are going 

to make excel lent  progress here today.  

 So I  have given you your team my t ravel l ing  

arrangements.   I t  is  in the bundle I  th ink – i t  is  Sundown 

Travel l ing i t  is  the one that  has got  a pr ice of  332 i f  you can 

take the Chairman to the page.   

CHAIRPERSON:   What page is i t  Mr Seleka? 

MR KOKO:   Oh ja ,  ja i t  is 1565.59 

CHAIRPERSON:   Point  9  20 

MR KOKO:   Yes.   1569 – 1565.59 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Pont  59.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have got  that .   The t ravel  agent  

there is Thompsons is that  r ight? 
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MR KOKO:   Correct .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  found i t .  

MR KOKO:   Right .   And that  is a booking for my wife and I  

and f ive of  my kids.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How many kids? 

MR KOKO:   F ive kids.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR KOKO:   From Johannesburg to  Indonesia on the 23r d of  

December 2015 and back on the 5t h  of  January 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on I  am st i l l  at  Point  59.  10 

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  see the dest inat ion.  

MR KOKO:   Chair  i f  you go to the pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh is i t  in the next  page.   23 December  

MR KOKO:   In fact  i f  you go to 1565.63 you wi l l  f ind the 

t ravel l ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   63.  

MR KOKO:   1565.63.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes there is an emai l  there.  

MR KOKO:   And there is – i t  has got  the covering 20 

arrangements for al l  my members.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay i t  is addressed to you and those you 

were t ravel l ing wi th.   I t  says:  

“Thank you for  a l lowing us to  provide you 

wi th your 00:03:40 f ree t ravel  arrangements.  
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P lease conf i rm your  f l ights a minimum of  72 

hours pr ior to departure and to check for any 

scheduled changes. ”  

 And then i t  says whatever i t  says there and then in  

terms of  the departure i t  is 23 December 2015 f rom 

Johannesburg Internat ional  Ai rport  for Doha Qatar Airways 

that  is at  14:00 you were to arr ive in Doha at  twenty past  

eleven in the night  on the same day.   And then you were to  

depart  the fol lowing day 24 December f rom Doha at  35 

minutes to 9 Qatar  Ai rways and arr ive at  Nborra [? ]  arr ive 10 

ai rport  on 24 December at  ten past  eleven in the n ight  and 

then the next  page that  is  1565.64 then there provision for  

t ransfers there is  – there I  guess to your dest inat ion is that  

r ight?  Mr Koko.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay and in terms of  that  booking you 

were to  arr ive back in  Johannesburg on 5 January 2016 at  

f ive to nine in the morning.   Yes.   And this I  would take i t  

coincides substant ia l ly i f  not  exact ly the same as the t ravel  

arrangements made by Travel  Excel lence or not  exact ly? 20 

MR KOKO:   No,  no,  no.   These are the t ravel… 

CHAIRPERSON:   This is  Thompsons that  I  know.  

MR KOKO:   Th is is Thompsons Travel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   Th is has nothing to do wi th Travel  Excel lence.   I  
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do not  know Travel  Excel lence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no remember I  asked you when we 

were st i l l  on the aff idavi t  of  the t ravel  of  Ms Alana 

ADV SELEKA SC:   A lana yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja when we were deal ing wi th the aff idavi t  

I  asked you whether. .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or Sul l iman sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sul l iman ja.  

MR KOKO:   No,  no i t  is Sul l iman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  asked you – hang on.   I  asked you 10 

whether you took the t r ip on the dates given by her  to the 

dest inat ions given by her and you said yes.   So we must – i f  

that  is correct  in regard to her i t  must  be correct  in regard to 

th is.   That  is what  I  am talk ing about.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.   Yes Chair  I  was – when you say her.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   I  was answering the quest ion of  Ms Sul l iman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no no – ja.  

MR KOKO:   Ms Sul l iman aff idavi t  is  fa lse in al l  aspects.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja,  ja.  20 

MR KOKO:   So we  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no we are talk ing about Sul l iman ja.  

MR KOKO:   Ms Sul l iman aff… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  those – this informat ion f rom 

Thompsons what  I  am saying is  in accordance with what you 
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agreed to.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When I  was.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When we were talk ing about Suleiman’s 

aff idavi t .  

MR KOKO:   Yes and the bookings were not  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   By Travel  Excel lence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no this one is Thompsons.  10 

MR KOKO:   Th is is Thompsons and i t  is done by my fami ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no,  that  is f ine.  

MR KOKO:   And whi le we are on that  paid for by my fami ly  

and Chair  I  now have a conf i rmat ion f rom Thompsons on the 

payment and the date the payment was received.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   And we have given i t  to you now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  separate – is that  separate f rom the 

bundle? 

MR KOKO:   Yes i t  is separate.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   New 

MR KOKO:   Chai r  we have prepared a very nice bundle for  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   And we have sent  i t  to  the team unfortunately Mr 
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Seleka was busy the whole so he did not  have access to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   But  we have got  a – in l ine to your guidance last  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay that  is f ine yes.  

MR KOKO:   We have done i t  in addi t ion – i t  is a nice pack.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   00:07:59 referenced. 

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is good ja .  

MR KOKO:   So the documents you wi l l  see here are not  10 

marked but  they put  in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes they wi l l  be marked in due course.  

MR KOKO:   You have got  the same documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   That  are properly marked in that  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  I  can – I  can – they can be given 

to me to see for now and then … 

MR KOKO:   You have to see them Chair  otherwise we are 

not  – we wi l l  not  make progress i f  you do not  see them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR KOKO:   I  to ld you that  we are going to work f rom the 

documents today and we are going to take away the gossip.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   We – I  see the f i rst  document and 

these documents wi l l  be in a bundle that  wi l l  handed – and 

handed up at  some other t ime.  The f i rst  document in f ront  of  
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me is f rom Kgomotso Koko sent  to Desdi fano Vanessa 

subject  invoice and proof  of  payment request .   I t  says:  

“Hi  Vanessa thank you,  thank you great ly  

appreciated. ”  

Oh i t  is dated 3 March 2021 at  ten past  one in the af ternoon.  

“Thank you,  thank you great ly appreciated so 

there is no way to f ind the actual  deposi ts ? 

are you able to see the branch i t  was made 

f rom at  least  …”  

MR KOKO:   You have to read the emai ls f rom the bot tom.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no I  forgot  that .   I  should start  wi th the 

one at  the bot tom.   So that  one is f rom Vanessa to Kgomotso 

and i t  says – i t  is  dated 3 March 2021 at  f ive past  one.   I t  is  

to – i t  is f rom Dest i fano Vanessa to Kgomotso Koko and the 

subject  is Invoice and proof  of  payment request .  

“Hi  Kgomotso I  can f ind h istory of  two 

deposi ts to us f rom FNB 17 November 

R113 000.00,  25 November R270 800.00 

hope this helps you.   Regards Vanessa.”  

And then Kgomotso responds on the same day a few minutes 20 

later I  th ink.  

“Hi  Vanessa thank you,  thank you great ly  

appreciate i t  so there is no way to f ind the 

actual  deposi ts – are you able to  see the 

branch i t  was made f rom at  least?”  
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The next  document start ing f rom the bot tom is f rom Vanessa 

Dest i fano to Kgomotso.  

“Can I  have your  contact  number please as 

the below is not  making any sense to me.”  

And then Kgomotso to Vanessa.  

“ I  wi l l  appreciate the cal l ”  

And gives the number.   And then the next  one is – there is  

an emai l  f rom Vanessa Dest i fano to Kgomotso.  

“Sorry I  do not  what is i t  that  you need this  

for as I  am honest ly concerned that  we wi l l  10 

not  be able to help you we do not  keep 

informat ion for  longer than f ive years 

(mumbl ing) at  al l . ”  

And then Kgomotso wr i tes to Vanessa.  

“Hi  Vanessa I  am sure you have bank 

statements for November/December 2015.   

Can you kindly use my reference to check 

the payment amounts that  00:12:00 the date 

would be af ter the date of  the deposi t  s l ip  

that  I  sent  you as that  was the f i rst  payment. ”  20 

I  am not  going to read al l  of  them.  I  th ink they can be read 

when there is a f i le proper ly but  I  wanted just  to have an 

idea what they say.   They can be read once they – ja.  

MR KOKO:   Yes Chair  but  what they say is that  we have 

made a booking.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   And we have paid for i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   And they conf i rm that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   My fami ly paid for that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   Now – but  what is also 00:12:44 before you take 

I  need to make another – I  need to make a very important  

point .   So you see that  the conf i rmatory aff idavi t  – the 10 

conf i rmatory invoice was to the va lue of  R332 255.00.  The 

payment that  has been conf i rmed that  you have just  read 

now is R383.800.00 i t  is R51 000.00 more and the 

R51 000.00 more was a budgetary quote that  my wife  

received f rom Thompson to change to Dubai  because she 

was determined to go to Dubai  on the 24t h of  November 

al ready.   So she paid that  amount.  The emai l  that  you – 

there is  another  emai l  Chair  and I  am going to  beg you and 

ask you to look at  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR KOKO:   I t  is part  of  the bundle I  gave you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  me see.   Yes Registrar.  

MR KOKO:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   This no – Thank you.   Which one is i t?  

MR KOKO:   I t  is the one f rom Tato.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Document number what f rom the top? 

MR KOKO:   I t  is the last  one – i t  is the very last  page. 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is the last  one.  

MR KOKO:   Very – single page – i t  is a single page l ike this.   

I t  is just  00:14:12.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes I  have got  i t .    

MR KOKO:   And i t  comes f rom Tato.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   To Terry. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   To Terry Gunther.  10 

MR KOKO:   Kuzakona.  Tato is my daughter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   And you wi l l  see 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is dated 14 December 2015.   I t  is sent  

by Tato at  11:47 subject  is addi t ional  arrangements for  Mr M 

Koko,  Mr P Koko and Ms M D Koko to Terry Gunther and i t  

says:  

“Hi  Terry I  hope this mai l  f inds you wel l .  The 

part ies in – the party in the subject  would l ike to 

add a t r ip to Dubai  on the al ready planned t r ip to 20 

Bal i .   Below are the specs.  

•  Depart  18 December to Dubai .  

•  00:15:98 unt i l  the depart  to Bal i  f rom Doha 

on the 23 December.   Please quote as soon 

as you can so that  I  can revert  f rom my 
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s ide.”  

 Yes.  

MR KOKO:   So al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is 14 December.  

MR KOKO:   14 December.  What is  – what th is te l ls you for 

me – we were going to Indonesia.   My fami ly had plans to go 

to Dubai .   They p lanned for i t .  We paid for i t .  The di ff icul ty  

that  we had Chai r  is that  my daughters had problem and you 

wi l l  see i t  is three names i t  is Piha,  i t  is Masema, i t  is me 

which are the names that  comes on the Sal im Essa emai ls.   10 

So there was no – we planned for i t .   We paid wi th our  

money but  we had di ff icul ty wi th passports.   So we could not  

– my daughter ’s –  my daughter could not  get  passports.  So I  

went to Ms Daniels because between Ms Daniels and my 

professional  assis tant  they never bat t led wi th visas – things 

happens quickly.   I  gave al l  the documents we have to Ms 

Daniels.  I  says we have booked our t r ip to Dubai .   We have 

paid for i t .   I t  is paid for.   I  do not  need anybody – I  do not  

need Sal im Essa to pay for i t .    There is the evidence that  we  

paid for i t .   I  know – and – they were good in organising.   20 

Please see i f  you can sort  out  the visas for us.   And i f  you 

cannot succeed then we wi l l  s imply 00:16:49 we wi l l  not  go – 

we wi l l  just  go to Indonesia and back f rom Indonesia but  we 

wi l l  not  do the Dubai  t r ip.   We lef t  South Afr ica wi thout  v isas 

conf i rmed.  They were conf i rmed when I  was in  – when I  was 
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in Indonesia.   They came to me and that  is what we 

discussed earl ier  in – infoporta l  emai l  address and that  is  

when I  a lso said when I  came back I  said to her how did I  get  

th is?  She says i t  was for convenience.   I  had no clue who 

she used to get  the visas for me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The visas.  

MR KOKO:   I  had no clue at  al l .   But  secondly I  d id not  

expect  to pay because the evidence I  have showed you we 

have paid for i t .   But  I  never got  any refund that  somebody 

ever paid for us.   That  is how far I  can take the story.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR KOKO:   But  Chair  but  here is a 00:17:51 for you.   When I  

received the aff idavi t  of  Alana and we – you joked about i t  

and say R100 000.00 I  said to you nobody pays R100 000.00 

for you and you do not  know about i t .   Nobody.   I t  is not  my 

cul ture.   No – nobody wi l l  pay R100 000.00 for  me and I  do 

not  know anything about i t .   Chair  I  am going to give you a 

communicat ion between my at torneys and the at torneys on 

record of  Mr Sal im Essa.   I  know them because we are in a 

case together  in the SIU and this is where I  said the people 20 

who come to you to l ie under oath cannot get  away wi th i t  

because they – they make i t  impossible for  you to  get  to the 

t ruth.   So I  am going to give them to you Chair  and you wi l l  

then understand what I  – what I  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  is that  st i l l  under the t r ip? 
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MR KOKO:   I t  is under the t r ip.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   I t  is –  i t  deals wi th the payment Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR KOKO:   I t  deals wi th who paid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Chai r  I  see you have stopped sani t is ing 

documents.   We – I   the Minister  of  Heal th says we are 

enter ing the thi rd  wave.   Chai r  Ms Suleiman says she was 

cal led on the 20t h by ei ther Mr Essa or the secretary that  10 

somebody wi l l  dropping the cash on the 20t h and she – and 

somebody dropped the cash in the house.  That  somebody is  

a person by the name of  – I  wi l l  te l l  you – Shaheed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR KOKO:   That  person his name is Shaheed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Shaheed.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR KOKO:   Now i f  you go to the last  page of  the document 

f rom Shannon Li t t le i t  is an emai l  communicat ion between Ms 20 

Sul l iman and Sal im Essa.   Again you read i t  f rom the bot tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja there is  a let ter Shannon Li t t le  

At torneys.   There is the let ters two pages and then there is – 

do you want me to go to the last  page? 

MR KOKO:   Yes i t  is the emai l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the last  page is Travel  Excel lence – 

just  te l l  me –  

MR KOKO:   I t  is an emai l  conversat ion,  

“ just  thanking you at  al l  t imes 

Sameera Suleiman.”  

I t  is Sameera Suleiman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  i t  must  – ja i t  could be on the 

previous page is i t  not .  

MR KOKO:   Yes second previous page yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja te l l  me.  10 

MR KOKO:   Ja you read f rom the bot tom up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja tel l  me about i t .   Only the re levant  

parts.  

MR KOKO:   I t  is an emai l  f rom Sal im Essa on the – no,  no.   

I t  starts f rom the bot tom.  So the bot tom – i t  is an emai l  f rom 

Sameera Excel lence – Travel  Excel lence on the 18t h of  

January 2016 at  20 past  – 18 minutes past  9.  

“Salam Sal iem please see your bookings 

below.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   You are – okay I  see where 20 

you are.   Ja that  is f rom  

MR KOKO:   Sameera 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sameera Sul l iman. 

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She is wri t ing to  
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MR KOKO:   Sal im Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sal im Essa.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And she says:  

“Please see your booking below.”  

MR KOKO:   Yes.   She says:  

“Sal im Sal iem see your bookings below.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   And she gives the bookings of  Mr Essa and th is 

te l ls – these are the bookings of  Mr  Essa and Mr Essa’s kid  10 

and the wi fe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   And Sal im – and the next  emai l  is f rom Sal im 

Essa – sal imessa@gmai l .com the aff idavi t  of  Ms Sul l iman 

says that  is the emai l  that  she communicated wi th Sal im 

Essa on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   I t  is  8 – i t  is Monday 18 January 2016 twenty 

past  eleven f rom Sameera Sul l iman.   

“RE please see below Mr Sal im Essa 20 

responding to Ms 00:23:49 and he says 

perfect . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   The next  emai l  comes f rom Sal im Essa – f rom a 

Blackberry Ms Sal im is Ms Sameera Sul l iman sends an emai l  

mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
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to Sal im Essa at  21 past  9 Sameera she says:  

“Can I  issue your t icket?”  

And then the next  emai l  comes f rom Sal im Essa at  January 

18 22 minutes past  11 Sal im Essa says:  

“Yes please sending 100K with Shahied to  

cover th is and the 11t h and level l ing – and 

leave me with some credi t . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   And this is the R100 000.00 that  Ms Sul l iman 

received in his house.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   That  was brought by Shahied that  she says i t  is 

mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   And she has kept  these emai ls communicat ions 

f rom you.   So – so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   Ms Sal im – Mr Sal im – and we received these 

emai ls  – th is communicat ions f rom lawyers of  records of  

Sal im Essa on the 24t h – on the 24t h of  March.  At  that  point  20 

we only had the aff idavi t  of  Ms Alana.   We only received the 

emai l  of  Ms Sul l iman on the 25t h.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so you say you got  them through your  

interact ion wi th Mr Sal im Essa’s lawyers.  

MR KOKO:   At torneys.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   In regard to the SIU.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Invest igat ion.  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wish that  Mr Sal im Essa could make 

himsel f  avai lable to the commission.  

MR KOKO:   I  wish so too because he can – he can break al l  

th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because his  lawyers wrote to the 

commission and said he was complaining that  he was being 10 

defamed in the commission and the commission wrote to  

them and said where is he?  Could you give us – can you 

give us an undertaking that  i f  we a l locate a date for  him to 

come and appear before the commission he wi l l  come?  And 

I  am told there has been no answer to th is.  

MR KOKO:   Chair  i t  is my wish that  he comes here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   He wi l l  – he wi l l  –  th is commission needs him 

here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja we want him – we want him to come and 20 

explain th ings and you know a l l  k inds of  th ings have been 

said about him he could explain to the nat ion what 

happened. 

MR KOKO:   Ja I  do not  have contact  him Si r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR KOKO:   I  actual ly went into the SIU documents search 

for the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Contract  at torneys.  

MR KOKO:   And hence give i t  here.   But  Chai r  the point  is –  

the point  I  am making to you is Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay that  – that  I  guess we wi l l  get  – we 

have got  to  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We wi l l  keep them there Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know I  need to – okay al r ight .  

MR KOKO:   The point  I  am making Chair  is th is is relevant  to  10 

who paid for Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   Mr Sal im Essa says I  brought the R100 000.00.   

I  know the R100 000.00 you are talk ing about.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR KOKO:   I t  was brought by Shahied.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   Here is the emai l  communicat ions then that  te l ls 

you what th is R100 000.00 is for.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was for ja.  20 

MR KOKO:   I t  was not  for Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR KOKO:   But  Chair  i f  you go to – i f  you go to page 

1565.58.   I f  you are there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry what page? 
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MR KOKO:   Bundle 18 1565.58.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is point  58.  

MR KOKO:   Yes Point  58.  

CHAIRPERSON:   58 

MR KOKO:   Yes.  And you wi l l  real ise Chair  I  do not  buy the 

story of  mistakes you know.  I  have come to the point  where 

people are al lowed – everybody else is al lowed when he l ies 

to represent  a mistake – wel l  I  do not  – when i t  is  Mr Koko i t  

impacts on his credibi l i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes r ight .  10 

MR KOKO:   So  

CHAIRPERSON:   Right  I  am there.  

MR KOKO:   So – so Ms Sul l iman says:  

“ I  have received the money in my house. ”  

Who received the money in – that  is  a receipt .   Who received 

the money there?  Whose name is there?  You can see i t  at  

the bot tom r ight .   Received by:  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  also the – the date when that  is 

received is 20 January 2016 i t  seems to me not  18.   But  that  

is a receipt  at  the off ice and did she not  say the cash was 20 

del ivered to her house? 

MR KOKO:   The cash was – just  – in the house and she took 

i t  to the bank.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  was – and the receipt  – did she say 

she took i t  to the bank or to the off ice? 
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MR KOKO:   No she took i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka what is  your recol lect ion? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   She said:  

“ I  in turn deposi ted at  the bank into our bank 

account. ”  

MR KOKO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Okay.    

“And indicated the reference as SE Essa” 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR KOKO:   E i ther th is is f raudulent  or she is ly ing.   This 10 

cannot both be correct .   E i ther she – in fact  Chai r  we wi l l  get  

into the detai l .   This is ei ther f raud or she is ly ing.   But  Chair  

there is another important  part .  Me and my counsel  spent  

nights looking at  the receipt  number.   That  receipt  number 50 

or 595TE what do you read there? 

CHAIRPERSON:   505.  

MR KOKO:   I f  you – we have asked for or ig inal  of  th is.   I t  

reads -  i f  you  look a t  c lose ly  w i th in  th is  595.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    And you can s tar t  w i th ,  l i ke ,  i f  595 is  1040.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    I s  1040.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    And tha t  i s  why we have asked fo r  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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MR KOKO :    Bu t  in  any event .   Ms  Ha l ima who l ied  to  you 

in  an  a f f idav i t  be fore .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    Who l ied  to  the  Hawks before .   The  Hawks 

sa id  in  Sect ion  205 not ice  and says:  We need the  person  

who in te rac ted  w i th  Mr  Essa to  wr i te  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich  

number  i s  po in t (? )  fou r.   She wro te  i t .   She d id  no t  re fe r  

them to  Sa l im –  to  Ms Su l iman.   But  th is  document ,  Cha i r,  

you shou ld  no t  take  i t  l i gh t l y.   I  am ask ing  you.   I  am 

begg ing  you.   Because i t  i s  s imp ly  f raud.   These peop le  a re  10 

mis lead ing  you f rom get t ing  to  the  t ru th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  i s  –  what  needs to  be  looked 

a t  i s  tha t  we have t rave l  agents  –  agenc ies ,  Thompsons 

and Trave l  Exce l lence.  

MR KOKO :    I  th ink  I  know what  happened there ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    I  th ink  I  know what  happened there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    They both  seem to  c la im to  have made 

book ings.   I  know tha t  there  was –  there  is  a  po r t ion  o f  the 

–  one o f  the  a f f idav i t s  f rom t rave l  agents  wh ich  seemed to  20 

say there  is  a  par t  o f  a  lack  o f  the  t r ip  tha t  they  d id  no t  

make book ings fo r  bu t  they say they made book ings fo r  the  

o thers .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  the  same a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So we have got  two t rave l  agents .   
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So  the  f i rs t  th ing  is  to  see whether  there  i s  ac tua l  conf l i c t  

in  te rms o f  the  vers ions and i t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  does  

appear  to  be  so .   But  the  one th ing ,  Mr  Koko,  tha t  wou ld  be  

very  in te res t ing  is  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you had never  used  

Trave l  Exce l lence.   You had never  in te rac ted  w i th  e i ther  

Ms A lana o r  Ms Su l iman.    

 There  is  the  quest ion  o f  how they wou ld  have 

come to  know about  your  t r ip  and when and what  t ime you 

wou ld  leave fo r  what  dest ina t ion  and come back  in  what  

f l i gh t  i f ,  one,  the  pos i t ion ,  as  you put  i t ,  as  I  unders tand i t  10 

tha t  you had never  had anyth ing  to  do  w i th  them.   And two,  

i f  nobody had to ld  them about  those deta i l s ,  they  say o r  

one o f  them says  Mr  Sa l im Essa to ld  them about  i t  o r  h is  

secre tary.   What  do  you say about  tha t?  Are  you  ab le  to  

say anyth ing?  

MR KOKO :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    I  have gone th rough th is  ev idence and  th is  i s  

where  t r ied  and rea l l y  t r ied  to  he lp  you.   I t  i s  a  fac t  tha t  my  

t rave l  a r rangements  or  my chang ing(?)  a r rangements  f rom 20 

Indones ia  to  Duba i  was done by  Trave l  Exce l lence.   The 

documents  say so .   I  am not  a  type o f  guy who. . .  a  

document ,  un l i ke  many.   The documents ,  i f  you  l ook –  the  

f l igh t  number  tha t  i s  there ,  i s  the  f l igh t  number  tha t  I  used.   

So I  have no doubt  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  par t  you accept ,  tha t  they d id  tha t?  

MR KOKO :    I  have no doubt .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    Look ,  Cha i r,  when – and th is  i s  what  I  keep on  

ask ing  you.   When documents  speaks fo r  i t se l f .   You rea l l y  

look  s tup id  to . . .   I  mean,  I  have seen many peop le . . .  look  

s tup id  because the  every  –  the  document  say so  when you  

t ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]  [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    . . . take  peop le  fo r  a  r ide .   The document  say 10 

so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR KOKO :    So .   And tha t  i s  no t  a  debate .   You have got  

l im i ted  t ime and I  do  no t  want  to  spend t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    So  tha t  i s . . .  [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    From Indones ia  to  Duba i  was done by  Trave l  

Exce l lence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  20 

MR KOKO :    They l ied  be fore  and  I  do  no t  know why they  

l ied  tha t  they booked my. . .  p lan .   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR KOKO :    Because they were  l y ing .   They d id  no t  th ink  

tha t  I  wou ld  have  the  documents .   I  w i l l  f ind  the  documents  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 343 of 354 
 

to  show tha t  they  were  ly ing  bu t . . .   [Speaker  unc lear ]   But  

now they have. . .  [Speaker  unc lear ]   Now when I  –  when my 

daughte r  ba t t led  w i th  a  v isa  and I  asked Ms Dan ie ls .   My 

propos i t ion  is  s imp le .    

 And tha t  i s  why I  spend a  lo t  o f  t ime,  t ry ing  to  

show you the  prox im i ty  be tween  Suzanne and Mr  Essa.   

That  i s  why I  –  I  even now I  have pr in ted  emai ls  to  show 

you tha t  these peop le  know each  o ther.   Ms Dan ie ls  in  h is  

–  in  he r  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  says he  has  been 

communica t ing  w i th  Mr  Essa s ince  March –  s ince  Apr i l  10 

2015.    

 You got  –  aga in ,  i f  you  do not  have i t .   I  on ly  –  

your  lega l  team,  I  w i l l  go  and show i t  to  you.   They know 

each o the r,  these peop le .   I t  i s  no  co inc idence  tha t  Ms 

Essa o f fe red  h im –  o f fe red  her  R 800 mi l l ion  b r ibe .   I t  i s  no  

co inc idence tha t  you wou ld  wake up on a  Saturday morn ing  

and go to  meet  peop le  in  Duba i  w i th  py jamas,  wear ing  

py jamas.   They know each o ther    

 I  th ink ,  ins tead o f  her  go ing  to  where  I  sent  her  

because I  gave her  the  documents  –  I  gave(?)  her  where  to  20 

go .   She went  to  her  f r iends.   She went  to  her  f r iends.   

Now you keep on say ing  to  me.   Why is  Sa l im fo l low ing 

you?  Sa l im is  no t  fo l low ing me.   Ms Dan ie ls  wen t  to  her  

f r iends.    

 I  had no reason,  Cha i r,  to  ge t  anybody pay ing  fo r  
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me.   I  have g iven you conf i rmat ion  tha t  I  w i l l  pay  

R 383 000,00.   I  have g i ven you  documents  to  show you 

tha t  as  ear l y  as  December  2014 ,  we have –  my  fami ly  

p lanned go v ia  Duba i .   We jus t  cou ld  no t  –  had a  prob lem 

wi th  the  v isas  wh ich  Ms Dan ie ls  sor ted  fo r  us .   I  do  no t  

know he(s i c )  sor ted  o f  us .   But  c lear ly,  c lear l y  he(s ic )  

so l ved i t  b rought  h is (s ic )  f r iends in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So .   But  you say f rom you s ide  you had 

ins t ruc ted  her  to  dea l  w i th  Thompsons?  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    And I  gave her  the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    I  gave her  man to  dea l  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Had she dea l t  w i th  Thompsons a t  your  

ins tance in  regard  to  anyth ing  be fore  o r  she had no t?  

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  I  –  Suzanne used to  –  Suzanne  

in t roduced he rse l f  in  Par l iament  as  the  Ch ie f  o f  S taf f  in  my 

o f f i ce .   That  i s  how she in t roduced. . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR KOKO :    So  tha t  te l l s  you wha t  a  type o f  re la t ionsh ip  I  

had.   A pro fess iona l  one.   We are  no t  f r iends.   But  we are  

pro fess iona ls  tha t  I  can ask  he r  such th ings.   Granted,  a t  

tha t  po in t ,  I  asked he r.   I t  was December  2015.   She had 

a l ready moved to  the  Cha i rman ’s  o f f i ce  bu t  we s t i l l  kep t  the  
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re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR KOKO :    We s t i l l  kep t  the  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you have no  reco l lec t ion  whether  she 

might  have dea l t  w i th  Thompsons  Trave l  Agents  a t  her (? )  

ins tance out  o f  th is?  

MR KOKO :    No,  I  do  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  no t . . .   Ja ,  okay.  

MR KOKO :    No,  no ,  no .    

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r igh t .  10 

MR KOKO :    I  do  no t  –  I  do  no t  have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR KOKO :    Bu t  these are  –  the  t rave l  a r rangements ,  I  

th ink  tha t  be tween her  and my pro fess iona l  ass i s tance,  

there  wou ld  –  I  wou ld  jus t  ge t  my to  my o f f i ce  and p ick  up  

my t rave l l ing  documents  and I  w i l l  go .   Between them,  they  

were  very  e f f i c ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  is  you r  ev idence tha t ,  one,  in  regard  

to  th is  par t  o f  the  leg  or  th is  leg  o f  the  t r ip  f rom Indones ia  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR KOKO :    To  Duba i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to  Duba i ,  she  is  the  one who asked –  

who must  have asked Trave l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Trave l  Exce l lence . . . [ in te rvenes ]   
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MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to  make book ings fo r  you?  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  she is  the  one a l so  who dec ided 

in  regard  to  the  v i sas  to  use Trave l  Exce l lence 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .w i thout  your  knowledge?  

MR KOKO :    Yes,  and here  I  am say ing  he r  assoc ia te  wh ich  

concern ing  Sa l im  Essa.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR KOKO :    Because the  th ing  w i th  Sa l im Essa is  there .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    I  mean,  you a l l  –  we  had to  go  th rough Sa l im 

Essa.   [Speaker  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  why wou ld  you th ink  she wou ld  go  to  

Trave l  Exce l lence when she knows you wanted he r  to  use  

Thompsons?  Because i t  i s  no t  l ike  –  i t  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  

you sa id :   You know,  I  need to  t rave l .   F ind  a  t rave l  agent  

and make th is  –  ask  them to  do  th is  fo r  me wi thout  20 

spec i fy ing  wh ich  one.   But  i f  you  were  us ing  Thompsons 

and you sa id  to  her :   Ask Thompsons to  do  th is  fo r  me.   

Why wou ld  she go to  Trave l  Exce l l ence?  

MR KOKO :    Remember  when I  to ld  you –  I  dea l t  w i th  th is  

top ic  be fo re ,  when we get  in to  the  v isas .   I  sa id  to  you but  



13 MAY 2021 – DAY 394 
 

Page 347 of 354 
 

th is  emai l  address is  an  emai l  address tha t  you gave to  me 

tha t  I  must  use  i t  when I  want  to  ta lk  to  the  Cha i r  bu t  i s  the 

same emai l  address tha t  b r ings me a  v isa .   And by  the  way,  

I  have s ince  changed my mind.   I  th ink  she – Ms Dan ie ls  

had –  tha t  was a  po r ta l  tha t  Ms  Dan ie ls  had access to .   

G iven the  ev idence,  tha t  i s  what  i t  i s .   And she answer  she 

gave me was conven ience.   And  I  sa id  to  you then the  

m is take I  d id  no t  do ,  I  d id  then,  was not  to  p robe th is  

conven ience th ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    And in  regard  to  her  hav ing ,  p robab ly,  10 

because I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  you a re  say ing ,  p robab ly  

approached Trave l  Exce l lence whether  d i rec t l y  o r  th rough 

Sa l im Essa . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    No,  I  th ink  she –  I  th ink  she approached 

Trave l  Exce l lence  th rough Sa l im Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   When  d id  you d i scover  tha t  

ac tua l l y  tha t  leg  o f  your  t r ip  had been booked fo r  by  Trave l  

Exce l lence?  

MR KOKO :    Cha i r,  th is  i s  in te res t ing  conversa t ion .   Long,  

long.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Soon a f te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Not  soon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f te r  coming back?  

MR KOKO :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  much la te r?  
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MR KOKO :    2018.  

CHAIRPERSON :    2018?  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KOKO :    Dr  Bonn(? )  was even gone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And how d id  i t  come about  tha t  you  

found out?  

MR KOKO :    Because Eskom went  in to  –  and th is  i s  the  

po in t .   So I  was so  t ransparent  w i th  these emai ls  t ha t  I  –  

on  my phone used my Eskom ema i l  address.   You know,  i t  10 

is  no t  a  characte r is t i c  o f  a  person t ry ing  to  h ide .   So  I  used 

my emai l  address ,  Eskom emai l  address to  sent  the  emai ls  

to  the  recept ion is t  to  c la im(?)  the  v isas .   And then  i t  d ied  

there .   Two years  la te r,  Eskom comes back to  me and say:   

Ac tua l l y,  th is  emai l  t ra i l ,  somewhere  a long the  l ine  i t  has  

go t  Sa l im Essa in  i t .   What  was go ing  on?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l . . .   And then,  d id  you contac t  he r  

tha t  t ime,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  to  say:   On whose author i t y  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    By  tha t  t ime we were  no  longer  on  speak ing  20 

te rms,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR KOKO :    She was ca l l ing  ou t ,  te l l ing  everybody tha t  I  

s to le  money f rom Eskom.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Now,  Ms Su l iman says she  
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was asked by  e i ther  Mr  Sa l im  Essa or  h i s  secre tary  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Or  h is  secre tary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  h is  -  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  secre tary  to  

make book ings fo r  you.  

MR KOKO :    Yes.   And the  v isas ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  and the  –  we l l ,  I  d id  no t  remember  

about  the  v isas  i n  te rms o f  her  bu t  yes ,  okay.   And you –  

we have reached  a  po in t  where  you are  ab le  to  say :   Wel l ,  

as  fa r  a  par t i cu la r  leg  o f  the  t r ip  f rom Indones ia  f rom Duba i  10 

tha t  was –  book ing  was made by  Trave l  Exce l lence  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    No,  the  documents  say so . . .  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    You cannot  a rgue tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  to  –  we have gone fu r ther  because 

you have sa id  th is  must  have  happened in  th is  way.   

Ms Dan ie ls  must  have spoken to  Sa l im Essa and Sa l im 

Essa must  have spoken to  Trave l  Exce l lence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR KOKO :    Cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  to  an  ex ten t  and maybe i t  i s  a  l im i ted 

ex ten t ,  the  two vers ions f i t  in  there  a l though i t  comes f rom 

d i f fe ren t  ang les .  

MR KOKO :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  
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MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because in  regard  to  tha t  par t  o f  the  leg ,  

then Ms Su l iman must  be  co r rec t  to  say e i ther  Mr  Essa or  

Mr  Essa ’s  sec re tary  spoke to  me  and –  in  regard  to  tha t  

par t  o f  the  t r ip .  

MR KOKO :    Yes,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

MR KOKO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you accept  tha t .  

MR KOKO :    That  par t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  par t  i s  no t  a  p rob lem.  

MR KOKO :    I t  i s  no t  a  p rob lem for  me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR KOKO :    I  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We are  a t  about  twe lve  

m inutes  past  n ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We d id  no t  ta l k  about  when we wou ld  20 

s top .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  we shou ld  s top  and then on 

Monday we can cont inue.   On o ther  t imes,  I  wou ld  go  – I  

wou ld  be  p repared to  go  fu r the r  bu t  I  have got  to  –  I  th ink  
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we shou ld  s top  now.   And then on Monday we t ry  and  

f in ish .   I  do  no t  know whether  Mr  Se leka you had to  o r  

th ree  quest ions you wanted to  pu t  in  regard  to  th is  be fore  

we ad journ  o r  you –  they can wa i t  un t i l  Monday?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    We –  I  can ask  two or  th ree  or  –  ja .   Or  

shou ld  they wa i t?   Le t  them wai t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They can wa i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Le t  them wai t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Then i t  i s  f ine .   But  be fore  we ad jou rn ,  I  

want  to  ra ise  someth ing  and I  want  m is ter  –  to  hear  what  

Mr  Bar r i e  m ight  say  about  i t ,  i f  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  he  

wou ld  want  to  respond to  on l y  on  Monday,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  do 

no t  know,  Mr  Bar r ie ,  whether,  one –  once Mr  Se leka has 

f in ished quest ion ing  Mr  Koko you w ish  to  re -examine,  

number  one.    

 Number  two.   I f  you  w ish  to  re -examine,  I  do  no t  

know what  you have in  m ind as  to  how long i t  m igh t  take .   

But  hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  I  want  to  say  e i ther  i f  Mr  Se leka ends 20 

up us ing  a l l  the  t ime on Monday o r  uses most  o f  the  t ime 

and the  t ime tha t  i s  le f t  i s  no t  enough fo r  you to  f in ish ,  I  

have begun to  say to  lega l  representa t i ves  o f  persons who  

w ish  to  re -examine tha t  maybe they cou ld  cons ider  whethe r  

in  the  p lace o f  o ra l  re -examinat ion ,  they wou ld  be  
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comfor tab le  w i th  f i l i ng  an  a f f idav i t  a f te r  the  ev idence 

leader  has f in ished to  quest ion  the  w i tness.    

 Wi th in  an  agreed  per iod ,  f i l i ng  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich  

c la r i f ies  a l l  the  issues tha t  they  wou ld  have w ished to  

c la r i f y.   Some have sa id  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  obv ious ly  i t  

depends on each  lega l  representa t i ve .   But  tha t  i s  s imp ly  

because o f  the  t ime const ra in ts .   So I  do  no t  know whethe r  

you w ish  to  t h ink  about  i t  o r  i s  there  someth ing  tha t  you  

want  to  say someth ing?  

ADV BARRIE :    Cha i r,  someth ing  tha t  we know. . .  10 

[Speaker ’s  m icrophone not  work ing  proper l y ]  . . .bu t  we have 

f i led  a  new bund le ,  a  fu r ther  bund le  today.   I t  was sent  to  

the  team which  we asked to  be  added to  Bund le  50 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV BARRIE :    And we hope tha t  w i l l  be  made ava i lab le  to  

you by  Monday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV BARRIE :    Our  p rob lem is .   Th is  i s  Mr  Koko ’s  –  I  th ink  

i t  h is  e igh t  day here  and i t  i s  a  very  –  i t  i s  in  a  sense w ide-

rang ing .   In  ano ther  sense,  they  are  ac tua l l y  ve ry  –  the  20 

issues are  ac tua l l y  s imp le .   But  the  way tha t  the 

examinat ion  has gone in  re la t ion  to  each and every  po in t  

because every  t ime Mr  Koko comes to  tes t i f y,  then the  

work  s t ream goes and they f ind  w i tnesses who cont rad ic t  

h im and then he  comes back and tha t  i s  pu t  to  h im and 
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then –  and i t  i s  an  end less  process.    

 And then we need to  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  some way  

or  another  and I  am not  qu i te  sure  tha t  i t  i s  p rac t ica l l y  

poss ib le  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  comprehens ive ly  in  an  a f f idav i t .   

What  I  wou ld  propose is  tha t ,  yes ,  we w i l l  do  a  –  do  

someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t  bu t  i t  m igh t  s t i l l  be  necessary  to  

hear  Mr  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV BARRIE :    Someth ing  to  e luc ida te  in  some ins tances 

but  I  am sure  tha t  i t  w i l l  cu t  the  proceed ings . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Cons iderab le .  

ADV BARRIE :    . . . cons iderab le  bu t  we need a  b i t  o f  t ime.   I  

jus t  need a  b i t  o f  b rea th ing  space.   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   [ laughs]   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   That  i s  

a l r igh t .  

ADV BARRIE :    But  yes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV BARRIE :    . . .we have ac tua l l y  cons ide red tha t  

because we know tha t  you have these t ime const ra in ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  thank you  Thank you,  thank  20 

you.   Okay we are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  today.   For  the  

benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c .   Tomor row I  w i l l  be  hear ing  w i tnesses 

who w i l l  g ive  ev idence in  connect ion  w i th  the  S ta te 

Secur i t y  Agency.   Mr  Koko w i l l  resume h is  ev idence on 

Monday,  the  even ing  sess ion .    
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 Bu t  I  want  to  t hank you Mr  Se leka and your  

team.   I  want  to  thank the  invest iga t ion  team.   I  want  to  

thank you Mr  Koko.   I  want  to  thank Mr Bar r ie  and h i s  

ins t ruc t ing  a t to rney.   And the  s ta f f  and the  techn ic ians fo r  

your  coopera t ion  to  enab le  us  to  s i t  so  la te  in  o rde r  to  t ry  

and f in ish  the  work .   I  app rec ia te  a l l  the  sacr i f i ces  tha t  

everybody is  do ing  –  i s  mak ing  to  ass i s t  us .   Thank you  

very  much.   We w i l l  ad journ  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 14 MAY 2021  


